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PEOPLE HAVE A CHOICE WHERE THEY WORK,
SHOP AND LIVE. WE AIMTO CREATE OUTSTANDING
PLACES WHICH MAKE A POSITIVE DIFFERENCE

TO PEOPLE'S EVERYDAY LIVES.

PLACES
PEOPLE
PREFER

FOR MORE INFORMATION
You Il find binks throughout this Report, to guide
you to turther reading or relevant information

Find more information on cur website
www britishland com

See page title
=4 PO0-00

FEEDBACK
We value your feedback
Please contacts us at

Qur corporate website
www britishland com

QuriPad app
British Land investor relations

Follow us on Twitter
@BriishLandPLC

Place /pleis/ noun an area or location

An office campus or building, shopping centre
or park, retail outlet, venue or residential building

People / pi plall/ noun persons in general
or consrdered collectively

Customers [occupiers), users [office workers,
shoppers and wisitors), residents, local community,
intermediaries [e g agents) and other related
stakeholders

Prefer /prifa/verb like better than any other
Tend to choose because it meets your needs

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

We believe that operating sustainably and behaving
responsibly are fundamental to creating long-term
value Information relating to social environmental
and ethical 1ssues is therefare integrated throughout
this Report This provides the reader with insight

into the critical linkages in our thinking and activity

It also shows more directly how we create vatue

not just for aur investors but for our other key
stakeholders and the society in which we operate




HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

» Portfolio returns boosted by our actions and strengthening

markets

» Increased letting activity driven by improving occupier demand

» Significant development returns as 2010 West End programme
cornpletes along with further pre-lets

= Significant investment adding to core income and replenishing

development pipeline

» Taking advantage of stronger debt markets to raise £15 bilion

of new finance

EPRANET ASSET VALUE PERSHARE

688p

Up 15 4%
DIVIDEND PER SHARE

27.0p

Up 2 3%, in ine with previous
announcements

TOTALACCOUNTING RETURN

20.0%

Reftecting the increase in our Net Asset
Value per share and income yield from
the dividend

PORTFOLIO VALUATION'

£12.0bn

Up 8 3% with asset management and
development contributing half the uplift

UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£297m

Up 8 4% reflecting the accretive
investment of our equity placing
proceeds development lettings
and higher like-for-like growth

UNDERLYING EPS

29.4p

Down 3% primantly as a result
of disposals made last year

1 Qur share of UK porticlio excluding £89 milion
of assets held in Eurcpe

CARBON EMISSIONS

=36% since 2009

We have reduced our Scepe 1and 2
carbon emissions acrass our Like-for-like
portfolio by 356% since 2009

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

7.8/10

Inour biennial independent custormer
satisfaction survey our occuplers scored

us 7 8 out of 10 for satisfaction with landlord
outperforming the industry average of 51
out of 10

EMPLOYEE SATISFACTION

One Star

We achieved a One Star rating in The Sunday
Times Best Compantes to Work For survey
2014 (2013 One Star)

EPRA PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Asat 31 March [Em) 2014 2013 2
EPRA earnings 295 268 262
EPRANAY 7,027 5%57 5381
EPRANNNAY &700 5522 5148
Asat 31 March [%) 2014 2013 2mz2
£PRA net imitial yield 48 55 52
EPRA Topped-up

net imitial yveld 53 57 58
EPRA vacancy rate 52 34 24

IFRS PERFORMANCE MEASURES

As at 31 March [Em} 2014 2013 202
IFRS profit before tax 1110 260 479
IFRS netassets 7417 5487 5104
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STRATEGIC REPORT

WHAT WE DO

We are

one of Europe’s largest publicly-listed real estate companies We manage, develop
and finance a £178 billion portfolio of properties of which our share 1s £12 0 billion
Our portfolio 1s focused on high-quality retail locations around the UK and London offices

competitively priced financing

gives us significant advantages Operationally, we
benefit from the breadth of our occupier relationships
and our ability to develop and leverage best practice
across our portfalio Financially, our scale gives us
a cost of capital advantage We are able to access
a broad range of debt providing us with flexible and

1s small and agile, best able to react quickly to
opportunities Although we manage a large
property portfolio, we are a tearn of 242 employees
Our employees focus on the most highly-skilled
and value-added activities It keeps our operating
costs low and allows us to he more flexible

Our portfolio REIT Legislation Our markets
— s - P16 d ;7
Our objective 1s Our strategy s
to deliver long-term and to create and operate places that people RIGHT

sustainable total returns to our will prefer when making a decision where to PLACES P18-23 >

shareholders We do this by work, shop and live We are customer-oriented,

creating places people prefer enabling us to develop a deep undersianding CUSTOMER P45
of what 1s important to people who use our ORIENTATION )
places, we employ a lean team of expert CAPITAL
people who translate this understanding into the P26-27

EFFICIENCY

creation of the right places to meet peoples
needs, and our capital efficiency means we EXPERT P28_29

N g:‘:";;ss model can effectively finance our portfolio PEOPLE

Our scale Our team

complementary skills

Strategic partnerships
-~ P26

are some of the best known property
investors and food retail businesses
Partnerships are an important part of our
business, allowing us access to attractive
investment opportunities, the ability to
share risk, and work with people with long-term value

underpin everything we do
We believe behaving responsibly
and managing social and
environmental issues are
core to our ability to delver

Governance
> P5%-81

Corporate responsibility
> P42

Customer orientation Financing People
- P24-25 - P26-27 =4 P28+29
Qur partners Our values INTEGRITY

We do what 1s right not what 15 easy

ONE TEAM

Working collaberatively both with
internal and external stakeholders

EXCELLENCE

We are the best we can be and
have a growth mindset

COMMERCIAL ACUMEN
We take the lead in our field

2 The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014




OUR PORTFOLIO

Qur properties are home

to over 1,000 different
organisations and are places
where over 99,000 people
work or live They are visited
around 300 million times
each year

£17.8bn

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

£12.0bn

OF WHICHWE OWN

31.9m sq ft

OF FLOOR SPACE

£608m

CONTRACTED RENT

26.1%

DCCUPANCY RATE

10.3 years

WEIGHTED AYERAGE LEASE LENGTH

STRATEGIC REPORT

UK RETAIL AND LEISURE

As the UK s largest listed owner and
manager of retail space, our portfolic
1s well matched to the different ways
people shop today, from major regional
shopping centres to single occupier
locations We are focused on being

the preferred destination for retailers
and their customers by being the

best provider of spaces and services

LONDON OFFICE AND RESIDENTIAL
Our Offices and Residential portfolio

1s focused on London reflecting its
position as a leading global city, a place
where people want to work, live and
visit We have an attractive mix of
high-quality buildings in well-managed
enviranments and a pipeline of
development projects which will

add significantly to cur portfalio
Increasingly, our offices are in mixed-
use environments which include

retail and residential elements

£10.4bn

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

£6.9bn

OF WHICH WE OWN

24.6m sq ft

OF FLOOR SPACE

15

SHOPPING CENTRES

66

RETAIL PARKS

85

FOOD SUPERSTORES

N Retail and Leisure portfolio
P20

N Retail and Leisure performance review
P47-48

Whiteley Shopping Hampshire

£7.4bn

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

£5.1bn

OF WHICH WE OWN

7.3m sq ft

OF FLOOR SPACE

3

OFFICE-LED, MIXED-USE CAMPUSES
OVER 54 ACRES WITH 33 BUILDINGS
(INCLUDING DEVELOPMENTS)

54

STAND-ALONE OFFICE BUILDINGS

8

OFFICE AND RESIBENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS

- gfzf]lces and Residential

JEN Dffices and Restdential performance review
P4?-50

The Leadenhall Buiiding Lendon
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STRATEGIC REPORT

How do you keep retail relevant in an online world?

WHITELEY SHOPPING, HAMPSHIRE

W28 but physical space remains a core part of the buying

BRSNS experience for consumers Our understanding of
consumers and what they want ensures we continue

to create the very best environments where people choose

to shop and spend their time and where retailers want to be

Getting the right food and leisure offer 1s playing an increasingly

important role in attracting shoppers and encouraging them

to stay longer, helping our occupiers to generate sales and

achieve their goals

The way people are shopping Is clearly changing

Our recently opened Whiteley Shopping 1s a great example

of how we can bring together insights and hest practice from
across our business It 1s why we were able to attract leading
high street brands such as Fat Face and Joules who chose

to open their first out-of-town stores at Whiteley Shopping

It 1s why the cinema and all restaurant units in our forthcoming
leisure extension are already pre-let or under offer, 12 months
before opening Whiteley Shopping has rapidly become a
preferred destination for retailers and shoppers It was voted
‘Best Medium Sized Shopping Centre Development in Europe’
by the international Council of Shopping Centres in 2014

4 7m P? The architecture has an extra level of

a guality, which combined with the environmental

ANNUALISED FDOTFALL credentials rang true with our brand, and
therefore 1s what appeals to our customers r

65 minutes

AVERAGE LENGTH OF VISIT

1-25m TiM MOODY

PEQPLE IN CATCHMENT AREA HEAD OF PROPERTY, FAT FACE

87%

OF VISITORS ARE INTHE
AFFLUENT ACHIEVERS'
DEMOGRAPHIC

1,355

FREE PARKING SPACES

BREEAM SUSTAINABILITY Whiteley Shopping
RATING www whiteleyshopping co uk

m www britishland com/shoppingcentres
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STRATEGIC REPFORT

How do you attract leading globat companies to your offices?

REGENT'S PLACE, LONDGON

HECUKES as a place to do business Great working environments,
BREESH particularly those which have good transport links,

are increasingly important in attracting and retaining
the best people As well as gocd buildings to work in, great
environments have places to shop and enjoy leisure time
People are also choosing to live In the best of these environments

Ry Compantes from around the world are choosing London

Regent’s Place Is a great example of how we are able to create
outstanding work environments for London by understanding
our occupiers’ needs and working closely with the local
community Its high-qualrty offices, well served by major
transport links, are enhanced by restaurants, shops, a health
club, a theatre, art studios, a children’'s nursery and landscaped
open space As a result, this 13-acre campus has attracted

a broad range of businesses from around the world

from banking to oil and gas, to media and technology,
including one of our newest occupiers, Facebook We have
also provided 150 high-end apartments for people to buy
along with 160 more affordable homes for people to rent

1 5 000 Pr\we are delighted to be moving
] to Regent's Place and joining a vibrant
WORKERS AND RESIDENTS business community Our new office
space will transform the way we work
45 together as a company”?

DIFFERENT COMPANIES

98% SIMON REES

OCCUPANCY RATE CEQ DIGITAL CINEMA MEDIA

6.4%

ANNUAL INCREASE
IN YALUE SINCE 2009

Excellent

BREEAM SUSTAINABILITY
RATING

Regent s Place
www regentsplace com

ﬂ www briushland com/fotfices
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Reflecting upon my first full
year as Chairman, it 1s notable
how active British Land has
been two major acquisitions,
a new Joint venture partner at
Broadgate, a substantial new
retail opening, and a significant
new landmark on the London
skyline, to name just a few

of the highlights of the past

12 months This was achieved
while continuing to deliver
strong operational performance
and maintaining a robust
balance sheet

20.0%

TOTAL ACCOUNTING RETURN

688p +15.4%

EPRA NET VALUE PER SHARE

27.0p +2.3%

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

Full-year results 2014 video
www britishland com/investors

Chief Executive s review
P10-13

Chairman s gavernance review
P&0-61

L)

>3

QOverall, this 1s testament to the management
tearn s commitment to operatienal excellence
and delivery of tatal shareholder returns

Underlying pre-tax profit of £297 million was
up 8 4% reflecting the successful investment
of our equity placing proceeds rents from
recenily completed developments and higher
like-for-like rental growth The value of our
portfolio now stands at £12 0 billion and NAY
1S up to 688 pence pershare The Board

has recommended a fourth quarter dividend
of 6 75 pence per share making a total of

270 pence per share for the year anincrease
of 2 3% over the prioryear For 2014/15we are
proposing a dividend increase of 25% The
combination of NAY growth and dividend gives
a total accounting return of 20 0%

Over the past four years, the management
tearmn has been reshaping our business and
the strong results we reporied this year are
evidence of this strategic direction We have
greater weighting to London and the South
East, and importantly within London we are
well positioned with more assets in the West
End and up-and-coming areas As the retall
environment continues to evolve we have been
investing in and future proafing our cwn retail
portfolio to better reflect the way people shop
Finally we completed eight developments

in the {ast 12 months and have been active

in replenishing the pipeline with a combination
of new and existing assets that offer
significant potential

Strategically during the period we invested the
proceeds of our equity placing carefully, but
ahead of plan We bolstered our development
portfolic which will provide the business with
opportunities aut into the medium term

Our acguisition of Paddington Centralin

July te me, encapsulates ali the gualities of
British Land This was a complex iransaction,
with multiple vendors and issues to resolve
British Land s ability to rapidly understand and
address them combined with cur significant
financing rescurces meant we were able

to acquire a very aitractive asset at a highly
competitive price Itis the combination of skill
and scale that allows British Land to extract
significant value from opportunities that

very few athers could With our strong asset
management experience, In particular that
developed at Regent s Place and Broadgate,
we are confident in our ability to add further
value by creating an attractive environment

in which people want to work, tive and shop

The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014

The achievernents of the year are all the more
notable given they have been delwered by
avery small team in FTSE 100 terms of just
over 240 employees With a nigorous focus

on operational efficiencies British Land s
comprised of a small but highly-effective team
of Industry experts As part of our commitment
to our employees we have cantinued to invest
in training our staff to hene their skils and
develop their careers [would like to take this
opportunity to thank the tearn for their hard
work during the year

The importance of good corporate governance
cannot be understated As a Board we focus
continually on enhancing our effectiveness
aswell as embracing the changes io the UK
Corporate Governance Code and the changes
to 1t that have come into force during the year

In September Richard Pyrn steod down as
Non-Executive Director and Chatrman of the
Audit Commiitee We appomted Tim Score

to the Board in March as a Non-Executive
Birector and Chairman of the Audit Commitiee
His experience and insights given his role

as CFO of 3 leading FTSE 100 company,

wilt further strengthen the expertise and
compesition of the Board | would like to thank
Aubrey Adams far his role as Chairman of

the Company s Audit Commitlee during the
interim perod and the extremely valuable
contribution he made

Further developments in our governance
structure during the year included the
establishment of a new management
committee, the Cperations Committee
which has been formed to improve the
flow of infarmation between the Executive
Comrttee and the wider Company and
imprave the quality of strategic and tactical
decisions that are made

Our business does not operate inisolation

our performance 1s underpinned by strong
relationships with our occuplers partners,
suppliers employees and the communities
inwhich we operate Our occuplers are some
of the best businesses globally with whom we
work closely to understand their requirements
and create places they, their employees and
customers want to use Our partners are some
of the most respected investors and retailers
Partnerships with the likes of Norges Bank
and GIC further enable us to make the most

of significant large-scale oppartunities




Managing our sacial, environmental and
econemic impactsis ceniral to howwe

do business adding value to our assets

and delivering value to our shareholders

All members of our Executive Committee
have a corperate respensibiity target linked
ta their variable remuneratron We continue
our efforts to improve understanding of how
social and environmental factors add value
We are working with The Prince s Accounting
for Sustainability Project to put sustainability
at the heart of business decision making,
strategy and reporting Our latest research
highlights the social benefits and commercial
results of our 30-year involvement at

Regent s Place and our partnershipwith

the local community and Camden Council

As we emerge from the shadow of global
recession we remain confident for the
prospects for the business in our chosen
markets and locations Against an improving
economic backdrop, Briish Land is well
positioned for the future with a highly attractive
portfolio of assets, extensive and resilient
financing capacity and a highly-motivated and
commiited team of experts |took towards
the coming year as we continue to buitd upen
our successes

John Gildersleeve
Non-Executive Chairman

STRATEGIC REPORT
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

OUR YEAR

P’ The business Is In good
shape and we've delivered a
strong set of results We have
benefited from strengthening
occupational and investment
markets but the decisions
and actions we have taken
both this year and In previous
years have been a significant
contributor to our performance,
driving around half our
vatuation uplift 7?7

£1,970m

GROSS INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

14.2%

TOTAL PROPERTY RETURNS
OUTPERFORMING IPD BY 40 BPS

2.3m sq ft

LETTINGS/RENEWALS
6 3% AHEAD OF ERY

Full-year results presentation
www britishland com/results

Full-year results 2014 video
www britishland com/investors

Performance review
P43-55

gAaB8

It has been a goed year for British Land and cur
business 1s performing well We have executed
well aganst the plan we set cut lastyear

The decisions and actions we have taken both
this year and in previous years continue to be

a key driver of our performance along with the
strengthening of our markets

During our 2014 financial year we successfully
invested the proceeds of our equity placing
ahead of schedule, acquiring attractive assets
at good prices Assets such as Paddington
Central where we can create attractive
environments places people prefer to work,
shop and live (n and which are integrated into
their local communities We made major
sirides replenishing our London development
potential giving us a significant pipeline of near
and medium-term opportunities In Retail

we took advantage of stronger (nvestment
markets to sell mature assets redeploying
the capital into properties with more attractive
prospective returns such as SouthGate Bath
We tock advantage of improving debt markets
to raise new competitively priced finance
providing us with additional flexible capital

to support the future growth of the bustness

As economic confidence has improved in the
UK and debt finance more broadly available,
the market environment has become
significantly mare favourable, particularly

in the second half of our financial year
Domestic and international investors were
more active, driving a higher volume of
transactions with a consequent tightening

of yields Capital returns outside London
strengthened, although Lendon continued to
outperform all other markets, driven both by
stronger investment and occupational markets
The UK retail market maternially improved,
particularly from an investment perspective
Retailers are now undoubtedly more positive,
not only in the autloak for consumer spending
but also the place that physical space plays

in their omni-channel strategies

Our underlying pre-tax profits were 8 4%
ahead at £297 million as we invested the
placing praceeds benefited frem development
lettings and Uke-for-bike rental growth
improved Underlying EPS at 29 4 pence

was 3 0% lower, primarily as the result of the
disposals we made last year Our dividend

15 2 3% up at 270 pence, in line with previous
announcements, reflecting our successtul

10 The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014

investment of the placing proceeds and
success In letting up developments

EPRA Net Asset Value increased by 15 4% to
688 pence per share Taking into account the
nmpact of the dividend, and the increase in
Net Asset Value, we delivered an overall total
accounting return for the period of 20 G%
Reflecting our confidence tn the coming year
the Board I1s proposing a quarterly dividend
of & 92 pence per share or 27 68 pence per
share for the full-year anincrease of 2 5%

We generated total property relurns of 14 2%
and capital returns of 8 9%, once again
outperforming the IPD benchmark by 60 bps
and 140 bps respectively Qur UK portfelio ‘
valuation uplift was 8 3% with our actions - !
asset management and development - driving
around half the uplift and the balance coming
from market yield shift The strengthening
performance was especiatly notable within our
London Office and Residential portfolic where
values were 14 5% higher Our Retail valuations
were 4 4% shead reflecting our active assat
management and improving market sentiment
Across our pertfolio, rental values were 3 0%
shead of 2013, compared with 1 7% for the
market as a whole

Underpinning our business 1s the quality and
sustainability of aur rental income 1t 15 these
rental streams that enable us to support and
increase the dividend and grow our business
Qur customer criegntation focus on landlord
services and asset management ensure we
continue to attract and retain high guality
occuplers We signed over 2 3 million sq ft of
lettings and lease extensions during the year
with iInvestment lettings signed on average

6 3% ahead of ERV Our Uke-for-like occupancy
was 130 bps ahead reflecting the strength
of our letting activity Overall occupancy was
down at %6 1% as we completed West £nd
developments which were moved into the
standing portfolio

Within our Retall business our operationat
metrics strengthened reflecting the quality

of the portfolio and our strong asset
management We signed 17 million sq f1 of
lettings 2nd renewals with investment lettings
and renewals 4 9% ahead of ERV With
occupancy up 110 bps to 98 5%, our portfelio
1s now virtually fully let Footfall was flat for
the year as a whole and up 1 2% in the second
half significantly outperforming the market




In Offices we made good progress with
increased letting activity broadly balanced
between standing investments and
developments Overall, investment deals were
signedat 8 4% ahead of ERV At Regent s Place
we completed our development of 10-30 Brock
Sireet 10 Brock Street was fully let less than
three months after practicat completion to
adverse range of occupiers and the campus
itself 1s now virtually full At Paddington
Central, wilthin our first months of ownership
we have increased occupancy and are already
making good progress on cur plans to improve
the campus Post our year-end we have seen
an increase In occupler interest across our
portfolio with over 150,000 sq ft of space let

or under of{er on attractive rental terms

Our 2010 development programme Is

nearing completton and has been substanuially
de-risked through letiings and residential
sales It has now generated £608 million of
profit with a further £45 million estimated to
come We have been actively replenishing our
pipeline including through the acquisition

of development sites at Paddington Central
and an option agreement to develop at Blossem
Street Shoreditch These take gur recently
committed and near-term pipeline to almost

2 milbon sq ft We also have significant
medium-term opportunities at existing sites
including at Eden Walk Harmswaorth and
Surrey Quays

Accessto flexible and cost effective financing
15 a key differentiator for British Land It atlows
us to respond quickly to opperiunities Our
financial flexibility net enly allows us te have
ready access to financing to fund growth, but
also allows us to access the capital markets
at the optimal time so taking advantage of
improving financing terms Since 1 April 2013
we have raised £1 5 bilbon of new unsecured
financing from a diverse range of lenders
oncompetitive terms These included a

£200 million US Private Placement with a
12-yearterm and a £785 milion {ive-year
revolving credit facility

STRATEGIC REPORT

KEY HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
TIMELY " Gross investment of £1 3 billion focused on London and the South East
INVESTMENT * Placing proceeds invested ahead of plan accretive to EPS and NAV
PROFITABLE * Campleted five of our 2010 London developments an schedule —
DEVELOPMENT total estimated profits of £634 mullion

= Replenished development pipeline
RESHAPING RETAIL * Sale of £391 million mature UK retail assets ahead of valuatien
PORTFOLIO * Invested in hugh-quality preferred retail destinations
STRENGTHENING = 2 3million sq ft of lettings and renewals
QCCUPATIONAL METRICS

Like-for-like occupancy up 130 bps

The British Land Company PLC Annual Repert and Accounts 2014
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW
LOOKING FORWARD

rr We have pos|t|0ned our POSITIONING OUR BUSINESS
business behind several FOR FUTURE GROWTH

Over recentyears we have warked hard to
key themes and invested build mere growth into our business We have

actwely invested more capital into improving
occupational and investment rmarkets while

accordingly These trends

have enduring relevance at the same time re-shaping our portfolio

which leave us well We have positioned our business around
several key themes 1dentified these trends

pOSItIOﬂE‘d going forward early and invested accordingly

to lake advantage of London’s In total we have undertaken £4 6 billon of

Contmumg success and gross investment activity over the last four

years made up of over £3 billran of acquisitions

improving demand for and development spend along with £1 6 billicn

the best retail space 44 of disposals These trends have enduring
relevance which we believe leaves our
business well positioned as we look ahead

1 ATTRACTIVE ENVIRONMENTS

Occupiers are much more focused on

the environments in which they operate This

15 a theme right across our business That s
why we talk about Places People Prefer itis
why we are investing at our office campuses

at Paddington Central Broadgate and Regent s
Place and why we are investing to improve

the environments at our retaill destinations
such as Glasgow Fort and Whiteley Shopping

2 LONDON AS A LEADING GLOBAL CITY

London has becarme one of a smali number
of what are called global ciies where people
are choesing te locate their business activities,
to live and visit From a property perspective,
we believe Londaon will remain strong both
operationally and from an investment
perspective over the longer-term and this

will also benefit its immaediate hintertand In
the South East Around 75% of our investrent
in the last four years has beenin Landon and
the South East As a result it has increased
from 30% of our business four years ago to
over 40% today on a pro forma basis

3 IMPORTANCE OF TRANSPORT
INFRASTRUCTURE

Public transport will becorme more and more
impartant in Londen Crossrail which opens
i 2018, 1s going to have a big impact We now
own more than £3 billion of real estate within
a stone s throw of Crossrail stations At our
Breoadgate campus the entrance to the station
will be an the doorstep of 100 Liverpool Street,
where we are planning a major refurbishment
of the buillding Paddington Centralwill be just
twe minutes from Bond Street on Crossrail,
effectively edging it into the West End
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4 KEY ROLE OF HIGH-QUALITY
PHYSICAL RETAIL

Shops will remain critical to retailers even

in an increasingly digitally enabled world But
success factors are changing As retailers
continue to focus their stores on the best space,
it 1s our view that these locations will generate
better sustainable long-term returns than
other locations That 1s why we have been so
active buying selling and developing and with
£2 3 billion of activity in total over the last four
years, we believe our retail business 1s much
better placed as a result

5 PROFITABLE DEVELOPMENT \

Developing prrme property remamns a
fundamental driver of value In our business
QOur 2010 programme has generated significant
returns for our shareholders and we have
made great progress replenishing our pipeline
We have committed to a number of these
schemes, notably Clarges Mayfair and expect
to commit to developing a new building

4 Kingdom Street at Paddington Central later
this year Butwe have also kept plenty of
optionality, recognising that things can change

CUTLODOK

Lacking to the next year overall we rermnain
positive about our property markets Across
the UK as awhole we are stillin the early
stages of an economic recovery and real
wages are only Just starting to increase

From a property perspective the differential
between property and bond yields is stillwide
by historical standards With interest rates
expected to rermarn at low levels for the
foreseeable future properiywill remainan
attractive source of Income return However
we have seen tightening of property yields
earlier than many people expected particularly
in London, and so we see our key markets

as having rather different dynamics

In London offices, yields have tightened
significantly and in the core markets are close
to their ten year lows However occupatanal
demand Is strengthening at a time when
development completiens are relatively irmited
So wa continue to expect the market to perform
but for this performance to be driven primarily
by rental growth With significant development
space to let, we are well positioned to capture
this growth




In prime residential we have already sold
nearly all of the apartments develaped as
part of our 2010 programme generating
significant profits Price growth has slowed
but we are comiortable with our position
given the bulk of our exposure 1s now at
Clarges Mayfair which we bought in 2012
and where we are already on site Located
on Piccadilly near the Ritz, and with
spectacular views over Green Park, this

1s an excepiional scheme and we expect
to generate good returns for shareholders

In retail, away from London the cycle

1s at an earlier stage Investor appetite

i1s strengthening with demand frem both
domestic and international investors

Looking at our portfolio we are still
significantly off trough yields particularty

for some of our larger assets Froman
occupational point of view, retailers are both
more confident about the outlook for consumer
spending and are clearer about the central
role that physical space plays within therr
omni-channel strategies Sowhile they are
locking to take more space, they are becorming
ever more discerning about the space they

are willing to take Overalltherefore we are
more positive about the potential for further
yield compression in retail and expect rents
for ugh quality space ta benefit over tme

as consumer spending continues to improve

In terms of investment we expect to be

more balanced in our acquisitions and
disposals in the coming year We will continue
to take advantage of market strength to sell
more mature retat assets and we have a
number of assets under offer or in the market
Although the market remains competitive

we believe we can continue to take advantage
of more complex situations to make attractive
acquisiions We will also move forward
progressively with our new development
programme and expect to cornmit ta

4 Kingdam Street at Paddington in the
coming year

There are, of course risks toall this Political
risks both at home and abroad are arguably
greater than they were a yearago These

of course may have an impact, but we draw
considerable comfort from the strength

of our business and we laok to the future
with confidence

Chris Grigg
Chief Executive

OUR PRIORITIES FOR THE YEAR AHEAD

STRATEGIC REPORT

» Drive like-for-lke income through active asset management

» Progress our existing development programme
- deliver Leadenhall and 5 Broadgate, and

- lease up our remaining space in recently completed developments,
and selectively pre-let office space and pre-sell residential units

in our current developments

» Maintain strong occupier satisfaction, driven by our market-

leading service

» Accelerating our development pipeline

- commit to new sites, such as 4 Kingdom Street at Paddington,

- progress our medium and long-term developments, such as Blossom
Street in Shoreditch, Surrey Quays and Harmsworth Quays, and

- continue to build our pipeline by Identifying new opportunities both

within and outside our portfclio

» Employ our property and deal making skills to access
more complex property acquisitions as well as assets close

tc our existing properties

» Continue to reshape our Retail portfolio

—enhance our existing portfolio to meet the evolving needs of occuplers

and consumers,

- take advantage of market strength to sell more mature assets, and

- invest in retail schemes which are preferred destinations or have the

ability to be

» Exit Europe

» Maintain our financial gearing within our 40% to 50% LTV
range LTV may fall below this level due to phasing of recycling

» |nvest in our capabilities for the medium-term

- In particular, invest In people, processes, analytics, technology

and marketing

» Maintam our One Star rating in the Best Companies

to Work For survey
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

\_\CE CREATE BY FOCUSING ON WHICH ENSURES
Y [V
. ENDURING DEMAND
P I_ AC ES RIGHT FROM OCCUPIERS
PLACES AND INVESTORS
= Well located IN PROPERTY

PEOPLE
PREFER

People have a choice about
where they live, work and

shop It1s our aim to create
outstanding places which
make a positive difference

to everyday lives

British Land:

Creating Places People Prefer.

* Great envirenments
= Modern buildings
= Adaptable space

= Efficient buildings
= Sustainable

* |ntegrated into the community

Right places
=4 P18-23

CUSTOMER
ORIENTATION

» Strong occupier relationships

= Bestcustormer service

* Qccupier and consurmer insights
» Engaged communittes

Customer orientation
- P24-25

CAPITAL
EFFICIENCY

= Scale
= Lowcostdebt
= Flexible financing

Capital efficiency
> P26-27

EXPERT
PEOPLE

= Expertsintheir field
= Lean flexible operating structure

= Values led

Expert people
- pP28-29

* High-quality occupiers
» Attractive lease terms
= High occupancy

= Strong cash flows

ALONG WITH AN
OPTIMAL CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

* Appropriate leverage

= Growing dividend

14 The British Land Company PLC Annuat Report and Accounts 2014




STRATEGIC REPORT

AND DELIVERS

CREATING VALUE

SUSTAINABLE
TOTAL RETURNS

AS MEASURED BY
GROWTH IN NET ASSET VALUE (NAV]

+15.4%

EPRA net asset value per share was up
15 4% to 688 pence

INCOME FROM DIVIDEND

+2.3%

Quarterly dradend of 6 75 pence brings total
dividend for the year te 27 pence a 2 3% increase
year-on-year

TOTALACCOUNTING RETURN

20.0%

As a result of the increased dividend and our NAV
we reperted a tatal accounting return of 20 0%

a
=~ ECONOMICALLY

CURINVESTORS

Our shares are widely owned from large
instituttons with global footprints UK
local authority pension funds to smatl
individual investors Over the last three
years we have generated total accounting
returns of 35 4% for our investors Of this
the income return through our regular
quarterly dividend payment has been 14%

OUR OCCUPIERS

By creating the night spaces we help
our occupiers thrive, with productive
workforces in cur office properties and
popular brands at cur retail destinations

SOCIALLY

LOCAL COMMUNITIES

98 apprentices are learning while they
earn at our progerties and developments
supported ar part-funded by us and our
suppliers We have contributed over

£39 & million to cormmuneties through the
planning process over the last three years
creating affordable homes improving
public spaces enhancing pedestrian links
and delivering community facilities

OUR PEOPLE

We again achieved a One Star accreditation
in The Sunday Times Best Companies to
Work For survey We ranked in the tep iive
FTSE 100 companies for reporting
wellness and engagement of employees

in the Business in the Community
Workwell Benchmark 2013

SUPPLIERS

Our five-year development programme 1s
contributing £1 2 billion to the UK econamy
gross value added, boosting business for
thousands of firms around the UK

LOCAL COMMUNITIES

Every £1 million we spend on construction
generates an estimated 31 )obs Our five-

year development programme Is creating
32,300 jobs during construction

ENVIRONMENTALLY

OURINVESTORS

We create green buildings that stand the
test of time and we believe deliver better
returns for our investars

QUR OCCUPIERS

We have cut landlord-influenced energy
across our like-for-like portfolio by 34%
over the last five years, saving aur
occupiers £6 9 millicn

PEOPLE WHO WORK, SHOP
ORLIVE IN OUR BUILDINGS

Qur green buildings are designed to
enhance the experence of those who
use them All our office developments
are certihed BREEAM Excellent for
sustainability and 94% of our major
retail developments are Excellent or
Very Good

The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014

15

Zy~7 1oday nibayeg

80t—4G UDIIRJBUNLLIZ) PUB 3JUBUIIADG 8G-£7 MBIAR) BIUBWLIOLIBY

081401 UONELLIO|UI 131D pUe S]UBLLI3|e|S |eIDUe 4




STRATEGIC REPORT

THE MARKETS WE OPERATE IN

OVERVIEW

The UK has & large commercial property
market which attracts a broad range

of domestic and international investors

It has strong, established property rights,
long-term leases with upwards only rent
reviewswith occupiers generally responsible
for repairs maintenance and Insurance,

and a transparent valuation system

Today 1t 1s one cf the top markets globally
for international imvestors in property

THE SHAPE OF THE MARKET

Because of the dversity of ownership, there
15 na definitive or regular measurement

of the total market

The British Property Federation estimated

that the commercial rnarket was worth around
£569 billion in 2012 which split into three main
sectors retail office and indusirial, along

with a number of smaller specialist sectars
The commercial residential market 1s currently
a small part of the institutional (nvestment
market but it 1s expected to grow significantly

MEASURING MARKET PERFORMANCE
The Investment Property Databank {IPD]
aggregates the valuation performance of
around £121 billion of commercial property
providing monthly quarterly and annual
perfarmance information These are the
benchmarks against which many property
companies ncluding British Land measure
themselves At Briush Land our properties
are valued on a sermi-annual basis by
external professionals

COMPETITIVE LANDSCAPE

British Land competes for capital and
properties with a diverse range of investors —
private, public and institutional A number of
our equity shareholders also invest alongside
us in specific assets and compete with us for
investment opportunities The most notable
examples are GIC and Norges Bank who

are both top 10 shareholders and are our
Joint venture pariners st Broadgate and
Meadowhall respectively

16 The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014

INVESTING IN PROPERTY
There are many different ways of investing
in the commercial property market

* In publicly-listed property corpantes such
as British Land

= in awide variety of isted and unlisted
funds, or

= directly in the property itself

Publicly-listed real estate companies account
for around 15% of the commercial market in
the UK - Brisish Land accounts for around 11%
of the UK-listed real estate market by market
capitalisation More than 75% of Listed property
companies in the UK are RE{Ts

PROPERTY REGULATION

Property management and development

is closely governed by lecal and natioral laws
and requlation which cover a whaole range

of important activities including building
planning roads parking public transport and
fire Of these planning has the most material
impact an the value development chainin so
far as planning regulates both the development
of the building itself and the purpose for which
it1sused Changes in the planning environment
can have a significant impact on value and

this 1s one of the key ways that British Land
creates value

Inrecentyears the Government has introduced
new legislation to simplify the complex local
and natienal planning processes and rules

in England, with the aim of boosting investment
and sustainable development

REITLEGISLATION

REITs are globally recognised investment
structures which exist in 34 countries around
theworld REITs are required to distribute a
sigruficant propartion of the rental profits from
their REIT operatiens to their shareholders
The broad intention s to replicate the tax
treatment of a direct investment in property
effectively removing the double-layer of tax
payable by both the company and the
shareholder Instead tax s payable at the
shareholder level

The UK REIT regime was launched in 2007
and British Land became a REIT in that year
Changes to the REIT rutes were introduced In
2012 which tn effect, were designed to make
1t easter for companies te become REITs and
attract institutional investment




KEY MARKET TRENDS

OUR MARKETS

Our focus areas - retail and offices account
for over 60% of the total commercial property
market in the UK We have chasen to focus on
these areas because they are large and liquid
markets with 1 our view the best long-term
growth potential for rents and capital values
We believe they are highly complementary
We also have praperty in sectors which
comnplement our core business, principally
leisure and residential, and increasingly new
developments are mixed-use

Historically, retail has produced more stable
returns than London offices this reflects
office development cycles which at imes,
has created sigmificant supply or demand
imbalances

IPD TOTAL UK ALL PROPERTY RETURN

Growth (%} 2012 2013 200

Retait 50 21 101

Offices 79 4 b 185

Industrial b4 30 16.4

Other 92 52 n3

UK market 63 iz 134
Source IPD

RETAIL

The retail market contmues to evolve with

the growth of e-commerce and mobile
technologies The UK 1s the most developed
market in the world for online shopping which
accounts for around 11% of the total market
The role that physical shopping environments
play 1s changing sigrficantly as a result
Consumers are expecting much more from the
places they shop more convenience In more
attractive environments, with better facilities -
food, drink and increasingly some kind of
leisure offer whether it be a children s play area
ora cinerna and bowling alley Many retailers
are increasingly viewing their physical stores
as an integral part of their overall marketing
effort and key to their internet offer through
Click and Collect

Poor quality space which does not conform

to shoppers requirements in this new world
15 becoming functionally or economically
chsolete, as retarlers focus thewr physical
space on a smaller number of more highly-
perferming locations and operaters with
weak business models fall The impact of this
can clearly be seen onretail rents As shown
on the chart on the left, in the last three years
secondary rents have {allen by 3 2% per annum
compared to an increase of 1 4% perannum
far prime rents We have already benefited
frem facusing on those locations where we
can create destinations which are preferred
by retailers and ihewr customers

S Retail and Leisure review for 2013/14
market overview P47-48

LONDON

Our increased focus on London in recent years
reflects (s growing status as one of the most
imporiant cities globally, a place where people
are choosing to locate their businesses live
visit and invest Loaking forward Londonis
expected to retain its status as a world-class
aity with population forecast to grow to just
over nine millicn people by 2023 tnternational
invesiors have become an important part of the
market including in residential where they have
played a key role in the emergence of a super-
prime sector i the West End Large areas

of London are being improved or regenerated
by property and infrastructure investment,

the mos! significant of which 1s Crossrail

ati4 Bbilbon rail ine due to opentn 2018
Running {ram Heathrow through the West

End iothe City and Canary Whart itwall
dramatically cut journey times

JEN Otfices and Residential review for 2013/14
market overview P47-50

STRATEGIC REPORT

MOST IMPORTANT GLOBAL CITIES
NOWANDIN 10 YEARS

Growth (%} Now In 10years
Landon 1 1
New York 2 2
Hong Kong 3 [
Paris & 7
Singapore 5 5
Miam & n
Geneva 7 9
Shanghat 8 4
Betying 9 3
Berlin 10 10
Sao Paulo 1" 8

Source Knight Frank Wealth Report

As people increasingly want to work and

tive In environments with a broad range of
amenities nearby, including high-quality public
spaces, cafes and restaurants and retail

and leisure facilities the boundaries between
offices, retail residential and leisure are
becoming blurred To meet this growing
requirement our business in London s
increasingly fecused on creating and managing
great environments often in campuses which
are mixed-use
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RIGHT
PLACES

CAPITAL
EFFICIENCY

CUSTOMER
ORIENTATION

EXPERT
PEOPLE

V

Our business integrates

the entire value-creation chain
in property from investment
(buying and selling) to
development and property
management

WE CREATE HIGH-QUALITY,

ADAPTABLE ASSETS

= Properties and locations with enduring
appeal both to occupiers and investors

= Adaptable buildings that can evolve
to the needs of our cusiomers

» Sustainable and resilient buldings

IN ATTRACTIVE ENVIRONMENTS
» Environmentswith a broad amenity offer

= Well-connected locations

WITH BEST-IN-CLASS SERVICE
» Focus on continuous improvermnent of our
service offering and delivery

= Services supported by latest technologies

THAT OFFER GOOD VALUE FOR MONEY
= Attractive and affordable locations

DEVELOPMENT - 2010 PROGRAMME

WHERE WE INVEST

Our ability to creste value requires us bath

to identify long-term trends and to ensure

that we manage the risk and opportunities
created through economic and property cycles
Property s a cyclical market with returns
sensitive to changes in supply and demand,
both from occupiers and investors

We invest in places where we see good or

the potential for good lasting demand from
occuplers and investors Attracting high-quality
occuplers an longer lease terms generates
sustainable and growing rental incorne which
drives increases in the capital value of our
properties over time The right space tends
to perform better over the tong-term than
average or poerer quality property reflecting
the benefits of enduring demand from
occuprers and investors

Within the UK property market we focus on
investing, developing and managing high-
quality retail and London offices Thisis
because these markets are large and liquid
and, in our view, have the best long-term
growth potential for rents and capital values
Isee the markels we operate in on page 16]
Although we report them separately theyare
highly complementary and we run therm closely
together Today anincreasing emcunt of the
spaces we are creating are mixed-use The
substantial retalt cash flows enable us to flex
our tvestrment in the more cyclical Landen
office market and invest in significant
development projects

We optimise and flex the allocation of our
capital across these sectors including between
investment and development actvities We
regularly review our property portfolio and
recycle capital out of mature assets Our
investment strategy 1s cansidered alangside

the risk parameters agreed by the Board

(see page 40)

We believe our ability to source and structure
deals 1s a competitive advantage allowing

us to access high-guality investments and
development opportunities at attractive prices
We are able to do this because our extensive
network of market contacts, property and
corporate finance expertise and financial
strength which enables us to take on large
complex iransactions

OUR PORTFOLIO

Our partfolio comprises assets with a range
of lease lengths and different ages including
those which are newly developed and those
which are scheduled for major refurhishment
ordevelopment This allows us to drive
returns throeugh asset management initiatives
development and recycling of capital from
mature assets into those with better growth
potential

2010 London programme 2 7 million sq ft

Completed 2012 Completed 2013

199 Bishopsgate 10-30Brock Street

Completed 2013

10 Fortman Square

Completed 2013 Completed 2014

Marble Arch House
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GLASGOWFORT

As one of our largest shopping parks, we
have been investing to Improve the experience
for the 12 mitlion people who visit Glasgow
Fort each year Qur investment in an eight-
screen Vue cinema and five restaurants

to add to the existing line-up of over 60 retail
brands at the park has delivered outstanding
results Footfall grew by 8% dwell time

rose to 102 minutes We have recently
obtained planning permission for a 112 000
sq ft extension whichincludes a 80,000 sq ft
store pre-let to M&S

Glasgow Fort
www glasgowfort comn

m www britishland com/retailparks

DRIVING PERFORMANCE THROUGH

ASSET MANAGEMENT

We look to drive perfarmance from the portfolic
through active management of the spaces

we own, both the buildings themselves and the
environments around them Proactive asset
management adds significantly ta the value of
an asset over ime by Increasing rental income
Asset management covers a broad range of
activities including

* new lettings, rent reviews and lease
renewals,

® providing high levels of service to occuplers
* changing planning consents, and

= changing configurations, refurbishment and
extensions to meet customer requirements

We have 31 asset management specialists in
the business They are responsible for making
strategic decisions on the occupier mix leasing
renewal or extension of leases We utiise our
scale and customer relationships to drive value
through our active asset management

Our asset managemnent specialists work with
our local property teamns to deliver attractive
and vibrant environments - places that are
well integrated into the surrounding area,
with the right mix of amenities and pleasant
public spaces

DEVELOPMENT

Development forms animpaortant part of our
business We have a streng and established
track record for delivering large-scale
development and refurbishment projects
Development offers the opportunity to create
value by delivering the right product at the

right paint in the supply and demand cycle

The amaunt of development we undertake
varies depending on our view of the prospective
returns Developrnent returns are generally
considered higher nisk than those available
from existing inceme-producing properties
and we target returns that are commensurately
higher as a result The risk principally arises
from the length of ume the development

takes from inception to completion the risks
include leiting the building and increases

DEVELOPMENT RECENTLY COMMITTED AND NEAR-TERM PIPELINE

STRATEGIC REPORT

in construction costs This can be mitigated
through pre-letting and fixed-cost contracts
As part of our overall management of risks we
maintaina maximum limit of total development
exposure (both pre-let and speculatve] of not
more than 15% of cur investment portfolio

Our current committed developments are over
70% pre-let and 77% of our costs are fixed

In recentyears we have been one of only

a few companies with the financial resources
and expertise to exploit a scarcity of high-
quabty London office space

In 2010, we committed toa £15 billion
development programme focused on London,
which has delivered over £600 million of

profit with a further £45 million estimated

to came It 1s expected o be a key driver of aur
rental iIncome growth, adding an estimated
£85 million to our contracted rent As this
programme Is nearing carmpletion and we

see development returns remaining attractive,
we have replenished our development pipeline
We have recently committed to 1 3 million

sq ft of new development projects and have
afurther 719000 sq ft of projects in cur near-
term pipeline Of these we expect to commit

to 4 ¥ingdom Street later this year

S Business review for Development
P&4-50
Supplementary information for Development

- P172-173

Recently commutted 1 3 million sq fi

Near-term 07 million sgqft

Tocemplete 2015 Tocomplete 2014

Yalding House The Hempel

Te complete 2014

Aldgate Place

Tocomptete 2017

Clarges Mayfair

4 Kingdom Street
Paddington Centrai

Expected to commit

Blossom Street
Shoreditch

5 Kingdom Street
Paddington Central
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RIGHT
PLACES

V

OUR UK RETAIL AND
LEISURE PORTFOLIO

UK'S LARGEST LISTED LANDLORD -
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

£10.4bn

FOCUSED ON HIGH-QUALITY PROPERTIES
INWELL-LOCATED RETAIL LOCATIONS

24.6m sq ft

HIGH-QUALITY OCCUPIERS
GENERATING HIGH-QUALITY CASH
FLOWS - CONTRACTED RENT

£397m

OCCUPANCY RATE

98.5%

ACTIVELY RESHAPING QUR PORTFOLIO
TG BEST POSITION FOR GROWTHWITH

£2.3bn

of gross investment activity
over the past four years

KEY RETAIL ASSETS

CUSTOMER CAPITAL

ORIENTATION

Our portfolio 1s well balanced to the different
ways consumers shop We own some of the
best retall locauons in the country, whether
experiential shopping where you may go for a
whole day out convenient destination shopping
where you regularly shop for a couple of hours
or functional shopping, which meets everyday
or basic needs, such as a food shop

Our scale and strong relationships gives us
competitive advaniage, ensuring that we

have an unparalleled landlord s view of our
occuplers and consumers behaviour The
adaptability of our portfolio1s key the majority
of our assets benefit from flexible planning
consents and are easily adapted allowing us
to respond to ¢changing requirements and
deliver the most attraciive space i retailers
and consumers

Our asset management activities are focused
on leveraging existing retailer relationships
improving the retail mixand targeting a broader
range oi retallers, increasing the food and
beverage offer, unit configuration and ilexibility
including mezzanines and improving the retail
enviranment including upgrading and extending
our assets

RETAIL STRATEGY

Our aim s to be the preferred destination
far retallers and consumers by owning and
creating retail assets that reflect how the
consumer shops and meets the needs

of retailers In a fast-changing retart
environment we focus on

Detailed understanding of the consumer
We undertake extensive research including
over 50 000 exit surveys conducted over the
last 12 months, to provide us with detailed
knowledge on how people shop at each

of our key assets

Previding the right services to attract both
the retailer and consumer

Serwices cover a broad range including digital
Click and Collect marketing and community
engagement and are becoming an Increasingly
important part of British Land s Retaii offer

EFFICIENCY

EXPERT
PECPLE

Creating the nght space in an environment
where people want to shop and retailers
can thrive

We continually look to Invest in our assats
whether through great shop fit-outs or major
refurbishments and extenstens to provide
retailers with high-quality, flex/ble modern
space at affordable prices

RETAIL DEVELOPMENT

We have a 372 000 sq {1 retail development
programme which is primarily focused

on upgrading and extending our existing
gssets and increasing cur feod and leisure
offer to improve the overall environment,
which will deliver good near-term returns

PERFORMANCE COVERVIEW I
Our Retall pertfolio has consistently
outperformed IPD All Retail over the last one
three and five years with each major sub sector
outperforming its benchmark over the same
period This underlines the quality and
restlience of our pertfolio and our ability to
evolve our Retall offer in & rapidly changing

marketplace
BRITISH LAND RETAIL TOTAL
PROPERTY RETURN VERSUS IPD
1year Jyears Syears

British Land Retail 10 7% 71% 1 5%
IPD 10 1% 5 7% 9 6%
Performance +60bps +140bps +190bps

versus IPD

All Retail

> Retai and Leisure review for 2013/14
P47-48

fi More detail on our properties
www britishland com/our-properties

Y

Meadowhall Shopptng Centre

Tesco and Sainsbury s food superstores

V \

20 The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Teesside Shopping Park

-V

Drake Circus Shopping Centre, Plymouth




OUR LONDON OFFICE AND
RESIDENTIAL PORTFOLIO

PORTFOLIO FOCUSED ON TRANSPORT
AND INFRASTRUCTURE HUBS AND
UP-AND-COMING AREAS

7.3m sq ft

WE CREATE ATTRACTIVE ENVIRONMENTS
AND PLACES
3 campuses

HIGH-QUALITY STANDING INVESTMENTS -
CONTRACTED RENT

£211m

OCCUPANCY RATE

92.1%

WEIGHTED AVERAGE LEASE
LENGTH TO FIRST BREAK

8.4 years

OFFICE PORTFOLIO DEVELCPED
INLASTFIVE YEARS

Around 400/0

STRONG PIPELINE OF COMMITTED
DEVELOPMENT

£1.2bn

KEY LONDON OFFICE ASSETS

Our Office and Residential businesses focused
on London, reflect the Capital s position as a
leading global City one of the world s largest
centres for financial and business services,
and increasingly where people are choosing
towork live and visit

We own, manage and develop modern high-
quality and well-located office sccommodation,
supported by outstanding customer service,
which meets the needs of a broad range of
organisations Our portfolio comprises an
attractive mix cf high-quality builldings in
well-managed erwironments and a significant
pipebine of development projects |ncreasingly,
our office properties and campuses include
retall and residential elements

Residentiat plays an imporiant role in our office
developments inthe West Endand 1s also a
profitable business in its own right We focus
on hugh-end properties in Landon and our
approach s to recycle capital quickly, as we
develop and look to sell the majority of the
units before schemes complete

tn Offices, our asset management activities
are focusing on leveraging our strong occupler
relationships, attracting new occupiers,
aclively managing our lease expiries and
improving the working environment

OFFICE STRATEGY

Qur aim s to create offices in London which
have enduring appeal to occupiers, by virtue
of theirlocation, design, overall costs to
occupy environment and the way inwhich
we manage and maintain them In order

to achieve this we facus on

Understanding our occupiers’ needs
Our understanding of occupier needs

is the key to the quality and sustainability
of our buildings, ensuring that they are
both well-let and stand the test of time

Ensure our estates appeal to a broad

range of occupiers

We support our occupiers to attract and
retain talent by offering places with strong
transport links excellent public spaces and
an attractive working environment enhanced
by restaurants shops and leisure {acilities

STRATEGIC REPORT

Best-in-class services

We {ocus on world-class property
management covering everything from
day-to-day services to the development
of new bulldings

OFFICE AND RESIDENTIAL BEVELOPMENT

In 2010 we took the decision to commat to a
significant London development programme
totalling 2 3 millien sq ft of office and residential
space One million sq ft of this has now
completed with the remainder to complete

over the next 32 monihs We remain positive

on the outlook for develepment returns over the
coming year we have successfully replenished
our pipeline and we have commitied to a
nurnber of new projects, totalling a further

485 000 sq ft, ncluding Clarges, The Hempel
and Aldgate Place

Ji More information on our developments
www briishland com/development

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Our London Office portfolic has delwered
strong iotal returns of 14 9% per annum
over the last five years and consistently
outperformed IPD All offices reflecting our
focus on London and the quality of our
buildings

BRITISH LAND OFFICE TOTAL
PROPERTY RETURN VERSUSIPD
1year 3years Syears

British Land Qffice 12 3% 13 6% 14 9%
IPD 18 5% 102% 11 5%
Performance +80bps +340bps +340bps

versus|PD

All Otfices

S Office and Residential review for 2013/14
Pég-50

More detail on our properties
www britishland com/our-properties

Y

Broadgate, EC3

Regent s Place, NW1

v \

Paddington Central W2

Y

10 Portman Square, W1
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RIGHT
PLACES

-

ENVIRONMENTAL EXCELLENCE

Efficient, modern bulldings are more cost
effective to run and less at nisk from emerging
1Issues, such as new climate change legislation
rising energy costs, changing cccupier demands
and potential reputaticnal damage Sustainable
buildings are also better protected and future
proofed against physical risks caused by
increased flooding and rising temperatures
There are grawing Indications te suppoert aur
view that sustainability particularly energy
efficiency help protect and grow capital value
over the medium to long-term

Cccupiers and people who work, shap and
live 1n our buildings increasingly prefer
energy efficient low-carbon builldings OQur
stakeholders expect us to lead on energy
efficiency to reduce costs and future proof
our buildings

Reducing our carben footprint i1s an important
part of our effort to manage buildings efficiently
and develop sustainable buildings We actively
manage greenhouse gas eMISSIONs across

our business We have participated in the
Carbon Disclosure Project for eight years

We are joint top of the FTSE 350 Carbon

ENVIRONMENTAL AWARDS INCLUDE

CUSTOMER ,
ORIENTATION

CAPITAL
EFFICIENCY

Performance Leadership Index 2013 and
have been recognised in the Disclosure
Leadership Index for the third year running

The UK government aims ta reduce emissions
by 80% by 2050 and I1s intreducing legislation
to drive reductions in the built environment
which s responsible for around halfthe UK s
carbon emissions We aim to reduce our
Like-for-like emissions (Scope 1 and 2) by
40% by 2015 compared to 2009 To date we

EXPERT
PEOPLE

F

have achieved a 36% reduction |n support N Scope 3 emissions

of this reduction, we have a number of other P174
targets including improvements in waste

management and water efficiency

We have reported on all erission sources
required under the Companies Act 2004
(Strategic Report and Directors Reports]
Regulations 2013 These sources fall within cur
consclidated financial statement and relste to
head office actvities and controlled emissions
from our managed portfclic We do not have
responsibility far any emissions that are

not included in our consaolidated statement
We have used the GHG Protocol Corperate
Accounting and Reporting Standard

[revized editionl, data gathered to fulfil

ABSOLUTE SCOPE 1 AND 2 EMISSIONS [TONNES CO,E)

m www britishland com/responsibility

our requirements under the CRC Energy
Efficiency Scheme, and emission factors
from the UK Government s GHG Conversion
Factors for Company Reporting 2013

For full details of the methodology used to
calcutate these emissions and for PwC s
independent assurance, please see our
Corporate Responsibility Full Data Report
2014 www britishland com/crdata

CIBSE Client Energy Management Award
and Building Performance Award 2014

World Green Business Council - Business
Leadership in Sustainability Award 2013

NARE IT Global Recognttion
- Leader in the Light Award 2013

Property Week Sustainability
Achievernent Award 2013

Year ended 31 March 2014 2013 2009
Combustion of fuel

Managed portfalio gas use and fuel use in British Land owned vehicles 5406 5722 5015
Operation of facilities

Managed portfolio refrigerant lass from air conditioning 1,677 1076 653
Purchase of electricity, heat, steam and cooling for our own use

Managed portfolio electricity use 36,264 37295 42339
SCOPE 1 AND 2 EMISSIONS INTENSITY [TONNES CO,E]'

Year ended 31 March 2014 2013 2009
Per m?- Offices 0048 D045 0079
Per m? - Shopping centres e021 0024 D039
Per m? - Retail parks a004 0004 0007
Per £m - gross rental and related income 5941 6199 -

1 Heating and cooling degree day adjusted to narmalise for weather
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COMMUNITY SUPPORT

Aswell as listening to the requirements of

our occuplers we work with local communities
tounderstiand their needs and help address
tocal issues, for instance by supporting local
employment, training and apprenticeships We
know that local people prefer places created
with their collaboration - the night mix of retail,
restauranis and leisure, new jobs much-
needed community facilities better public
spaces safer walking routes and amenities
such as accessible toilets and baby changing
facilities Places which are integrated well into
the surrounding area becorme part of the local
community It adds richness, Ufe a sense of
community and diversity to cur places, which
makes therm more attractive for occuplers

We are making good progress on our
Comrmunity Charter which we launched in 2071
This sets out ten commitments to the people
wha live near our major preperties and
developments These commitments cover

our approach to community engagement,

and to lecal issues such as training
employment and education

Our strong reputation for commurity support
makes us more likely to become the partner of
choice for local authorities and others [t means
our planning proposals are mare likely to be in
tune with what local communities want, helping
us achieve better quality glanning permissians,
mare guickly

www britishland com/responsibility

COMMUNITY AWARDS INCLUDE

Business in the Community Awards 2014
Reaccreditations 2013 in Glasgow Hull
and London

Business in the Community Awards 2013
in Gtasgow Hull Rotherham and Landon

REGENT S PLACE

STRATEGIC REPORT

APPRENTICESHIPS

Since 2007, we have invested over £50 million
of cash and in-kind contributions to local
infrasiructure and intiatives through our
community programme As a key member

in the West Eusten Partnership we were able
to better understand the issues the lecal
community faced and work to address them
The statistics avallable for the peried from
2004 to 2010 show that the area around
Regent s Place has benefited from a
substantial reduction in levels of deprivation -
in the tap 1% of all London areas
Improvements in the lecal community have
gone hand-in-hand with commercial growth
with property values increasing twice as
much as the rest of the West End office
market since 2009

Our experience at Regent s Place has
shaped ourvision of what good community
engagerment across our entire portfalio
can and will look like

Regent sPlace at 30
www britishland com/regentsplace30

Regent s Place
www regentsplace com

www britishland com/otfices

Bruce Ewen i1s one of 98 apprentices who
learnt while they earned at our assets last
year, supported or part-funded by us and our
suppliers as part of our focus on employment
andtraining Over 100 local jobseekers have
also ganed sustainable employment with
oursuppliers at Broadgate in the City,
through our Skills into Work programme
with community partner the Fast London
Business Alliance
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RIGHT
PLACES

CUSTOMER \
ORIENTATION

e

Close relationships with our occupiers, along with a deep
understanding of the people who use the spaces, forms the basis
of all our activities This underpins our ability to generate high-

quality, secure cash flows

Our approach 1s firmly grounded in strong
relationships and research Qurscalein
retail and office markets gives us bread reach
across our markets We undertake extensive
shepper research programmes across
around 80% of our multi-tenanted assets -

in the last 12 months we have interviewed
over 50,000 people

We alse work hard o ensure our relstionships
with our occuplers are strong In Retail we
have had over 500 meetings over the last 12
months Every two years, we cormmission
extensive Independent custormer satisfaction
surveys across cur business to help us better
understand cur occuprers needs and identify
opportunities for further improvements

Cur fifth biennial customer survey in 2013
confirmed that we continue to significantly
autperform industry averages for occupler
satisfaction

m www britishland com/occupiers

We attract some of the highest-quality
occuplers to our properties The quality of

our properties and our customer focus means
that our occupiers want to stay with us They
commit to long leases and then extend them
they also sign up for more space and grow
with us

The quality and diversity of our occupiers
high occupancy levels, strong rents and leng
leases give us significant security of income
which enhance the value of our properties
No single occupier accounts far mare than
8% of our total revenues Our average

lease length at 10 3 years s longer than

the industry average of 10 years

FINANCIALLY STRONG OCCUPIERS
Inaddition to benefiting from a high-quatity and
dversified portfolic of accupiers, we take a
ngorous approach to managing and monitoring
their financial positions We review the financial
covenants of all new occupiers with rent over

a certain threshold before agreeing any lettings
and paying incentives We also assessthe
financial covenant strength of all our major
accuplers on a pericdic basis and we monitor
those we consider may be experiencing
financial difficulty Over the last year occupiers

in administration have fallen from 0 9% to
01% of our tatal rent reflecting the quality of
our portfolic Our occupancy which s high
at 96 1% also includes some vacant space at
recently completed London affices We have
good levels of interest in this space and are
confident about letting prospects

HIGH-QUALITY OCCUPIERS TOP 10

CAPITAL
EFFICIENCY

EXPERT
PEOPLE

ATTRACTING NEW RETAIL
OCCUPIERS OUT-OF-TOWN

Our stronger understanding of the consumer
I1s allowing us to target a broader range of
retater It helped us attract Nike to take space
at Chester and Rotharham and Fat Face and
Phase Eight to take their first out-of-town
stores at Whiteley Shopping

% Rent
Tesco 77
Sainsbury s 60 m www britishland com/retail
Debenhams 58
uUBsS az
RETAINING OFFICE OCCUPIERS
Home Retail Group 27 ON OUR HIGH-QUALITY CAMPUSES
Kingfisher (B&Q) 27 Our occupiers choose 1o stay and grow
with us Across our office porifolio existing
HM Government 25 occuplers such as Herbert Smith, F&C
Next ple 24 Tullet Prebon Close Asset Management
and Premier Oil have signed close to
Virgin Active 20 17 millton sq ft of lease extensions with
Arcadia Group 20 us over the last three years

LONG LEASES AND HIGH OCCUPANCY

Broadgate
www broadgate co uk

ﬂ www britishland com/offices

Weighted average Undertying Lixe-for-

lease length! occupancy ke change?

Retait 11 Syears 98 5% +100 bps
Qffices 8 Lyears 921% +190 bps
Total 10 3years 9% 1% +130hps

1 Tofirstbreak

2 Occupancy movernent on the same graup of properties over the past 12 months by excluding sales purchases

and newly completed developmenls
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

In Offices, day-to-day facilities management
1s undertaken by Broadgate Estates awholly-
owned subsidiary, whose team also provides
facilities management and other services

to thurd-party clients The fact that Broadgate
Estates also acts for other occupiers and
investors helps thern to deliver best-in-class
occuprer services to the British Land

Office portfolio

In Retall we outsource the day-to-day
operational management of most of our

retall properties including maintenance and
cleaning to external agents Qutsourcing day-
to-day management to expert agents, who
manage on a large scale, helps us to minimise
operational costs for us and our occuplers
gwes us significant operational flexility and
further broadens our Insights into cccupier
and consumer trends We work closely with
our managing agents and proactwely monitor
their performance against our customer-
focused standards

SAFE ANDHEALTHY ENVIRONMENTS
British Land 1s committed to providing safe
and healthy environments for all users of the
buildings and places we manage Weaim to
be a leader in cur industry and to apply best
practice in meeting applicable health and
safety requiremnents We perform regular
risk assessments across the portfolic and
set ourselves ambiticus targets for resolving
identified risks to achieve continuous
improvement Performance against these targets
and accident reporting are monitored by our
Health and Safety Committee which, inturn,
reports performance to the Risk Committee

PROPERTY AWARDS INCLUDE

Whiteley Shopping in Hampshire won the ICSC New
Development Award 2014 [Medium sized category]

St Stephen s Shopping Centre in Hull wan the
Retall Week Retall Desunation of the Year 2013

Meadowhatl
www meadowhall co uk

ﬂ www britishland com/cffices

STRATEGIC REPORT

PROVIDING THE RIGHT SERVICES IN RETAIL

Prowision of Click and Collect services 1s
increasingly important Consumers ability

to get in and out of a retail destination really
matters and the free car parking in a large
proportion of our schemes is a real benefit

At Meadowhall Shopping Centre in Sheffield
Click and Collect and pioneering technologies
such asvirtual gift cards are attracting
shoppers

ﬂ www britishland com/shoppingcentres

MEETING OUR OFFICE OCCUPLERS NEEDS

"\t | was asked who was the best landlord
that we deal with, every ime it would be
British Land #*

NICK BENBOW OF REGUS
OCCUPIER AT THE BRCADGATE TOWER
AND 338 EUSTON ROAD REGENT S PLACE
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RIGHT
PLACES

Capital efficiency means
achieving the right risk/return
balance of equrty and
borrowings to support the asset
side of our balance sheet and
enhance shareholder returns

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

The equity to finance the €18 killion property
portfolio we manage comes frem our
shareholders and aur co-tnvestors in joint
ventures and funds The strategic alliances
we develop with our partners enable us to
leverage our equity achieve benefits of scale
and spread nisk

OUR MAIN PARTNERS

CUSTOMER
ORIENTATION

Partner Property
GIC Broadgate
Norges Bank Meadowhall Shopping Centre

Tesco 34 superstores
3shopping centres
3retail parks

Sainsbury s 33 superstores

Oxford Properties The Leadenhall Building

uss Whiteley Shepping
Eden Walk Shopping Centre

Aviva SouthGate Shopping Centre

The use of partnerships is an integral part of
our business and a key way inwhich we extend
our capital base They also enable us to access
attractive investment cpporiumties alongside
like-minded partners with complementary
skills Around half of our owned assets by value
are In joint ventures or funds including our twe
largest single assets the City office campus
at Broadgate and Meadowhall Shopping
Centre Our recent City development projects,

1 e those inour 2010 development programme
have been developed within joint ventures

Our partnerships are based on developing
deep and long-term relationships In the
majority of cases, we provide asset
management develapment, carparate and
financial services and we earn performance
and management fees This enhances our
overall returns strengthens our relationships
with key customers and suppliers and keeps
us close to our markets

N Financial policies and principles
P56-58

CAPITAL

EFFICIENCY

EXPERT
PEOPLE

v A

THE LEADENHALL BUILDING

At 736 ft high and with over 610,000 sq ft

of lettable floor space over 44 floors, The
Leadenhall Buillding 1s the tallest office tower
in the City of London Its developmentis an
excellent example of British Land s ability

to form strategic partnerships with leading
institutional investors Working closely

with Oxferd Properties, the real estate arm

of OMERS [Ontario Municipal Employees
Retirement System| we have respective scale
to undertake this significant development
opportunity while sharing the associated
risks The strength of the design and
desirable location has meant that the building
15 already 53% pre-let at terms cverall
accretive to value

The Leadenhali Building
www theleadenhatlbullding com

ﬂ www britishland com/offices
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DEBT FINANCE

We focus on having sufficient competitively
priced and flexible borrowings avallable to
deliver our property strategy

The scale of our business, combined with

the quality, secunity and stability of our rental
Income, means that we are attractive to

a broad range of debt providers and able to
arrange finance on attractive terms Good
access to the capital and debt marketsis a
compelitive advantage both reducing our cost
of funding and allowing us to take opportunities
when they arise

Debt financing involves risk from adverse
changes in the property and financing markets
In arranging and monitoring our financing we
include important nsk disciplines, ensuring
that relevant nsks are fully evaluated and
managed We choose the appropriate gearing
level and follow five guiding principles which
govern the way we structure and manage

our debt These principles are outlined on

the opposite page and explained on page 57

GEARING

In deciding our gearing level we weigh up
the potential Increased returns obtainable
from greater leverage [through borrowing to
buy property] against the risks of having more
debt We use 2 loan to value ratic (debt as a
percentage of the value of our assets, LTV]

to measure our gearing and settle onan

LTV range which reflects the strength of our
operational business and reliability of cash
flows, where we are comfortable that overall
returns will be enhanced withaut exposing
the Group to undue risk

STRENGTH OF BALANCE SHEET METRICS

31 March  31March

Praportionately consolidated 2014 2012
Loan to value [LTV) 40% 40%
Average interest rate 41% 4 6%
Interest cover 25x 2 3x
Group

Lean to value [LTV} 29% 24%
Average interest rate I5% 4 4%
Interest cover I2x 28x




Our preferred LTV range I1s between 40% and
50% on a proportionally consolidated basis, 1e
including our share of joint ventures and funds
At 31 March 2014, this ratio was 40% From
time tc time we may fall below this as a result
of phasing of recycling actwity or valuation
Increases we would not increase gearing

as a result of market improvements in
investment yields

We leverage our scale through joint ventures
and funds which are financed with debt, in
securitisations and loans which are non-
recourse to British Land In doing so, the LTV
at £0% on a proportionally consclidated basis
15 hugher than the Group measure for our
unsecured lenders which s around 30%
Accordingly we can operate with a higher level
of gearing on a propocticnally consolidated
basis without putting pressure on the British
Land credit profile

OUR APPROACH

We monitor the markets and seek to access
different types of finance when the relevant
market conditions are favourable to meet
the needs of our business including our Joint
ventures and funds We aim to avoud reliance
on any particular scurce of funds and borrow
both on unsecured and secured bases frem
a large number of lenders from different
market sectors and geographical areas

Our unsecured revelving credit facilities
praovide {lex:bility to support the operations
of our business with the ability to draw

and repay at short notice witheut additional
cost Undrawn committed facilities are
maintained for immediate available iquidity

Maturities of different facilities are well
spread, from debentures with terms up

10 2035 US Private Placements at circa
12yearsand a range of bank faciities with
terrms usually of five years This spread
reduces our refinancing risk in respect

of timing and market conditions

We aim to have no requirement to
refinance in Brinsh Land with a two year
horizon and continue to review the

debt markets to arrange new finance

as opportunities arise

The same two financial covenants [set

out on page 58) apply to all British Land
unsectired herrowings Our consistent
approach has helped us build the long-term
relationships with debt providers which

we encourage and value

STRATEGIC REPORT

OUR FIVE FINANCING PRINCIPLES

MAINTAIN LIQUIDITY

£2.0bn

Undrawn commuited facilities?

EXTEND AND STRETCH MATURITY
OF DEBT PORTFOLIO

8.7 years

Average debt maturity

MAINTAIN FLEXIBILITY

£2.6bn

Of revolving credit facilities to draw
and repay at no additional cest?

MAINTAIN STRONG
BALANCE SHEET METRICS

40%

LTV [propartionally consolidated)

2.5x

Interest cover (proportonally consolidated)

41%

Weighted average interest rate

A-

Rating from Fitch

1 HUT s debt shown at our share (£0 3 btllion)
within joint ventures and funds

2 Bntish Land faclibes pro forma for the new
£785 mitlion revalving credit facility
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RIGHT
PLACES

As partof British Land s first Community Week
180 valunteers worked together on community
projects close lo some of our key assels One teamn
of volunieers hosted a day of entertainment at Age
UK s centre in Camden

92% of our staff said volunteering activities

were effective for team buildng Here two of
ourvolunteers are workung on the garden area at
Richard House Children s Hospice in Newham

OUR VALUES

CUSTOMER
ORIENTATION

INTEGRITY

We dowhat s nght not what 15 easy

ONE TEAM

We work collaboratively with both
internal and external stakehclders

EXCELLENCE

We are the best we canbe and
we have a growth mindset

COMMERCIAL ACUMEN

We take the lead in our field

CAPITAL
EFFICIENCY

EXPERT
PEOPLE

V

Qur team of 242 people 1s small for a FTSE 100 company
We believe that this 1s the best of both worlds Our approach
15 to recruit small teams of experts in therr fields who

buy in additional, external resources as they need them

Our lean team makes our business
entreprenaurial, fast and flexible For our
people this also means that each individual
has the chance te get Involved towork
alongside indusiry leaders and to have

a real impact in our business and beyond

Our skills give us considerable competitive
advantage n a fast paced, changing
environment Our outsourced madel and
scale also mean that we have the lowest
operating costs of the major UX REITs

We are a values-based organisation Our
people are good to deal with they are talented
and professianal, have integrity and work well
with others Our peaople and values are part

of what make us different and drive a hugh
performance culture They make us a good
organisation to do business with, so we are
often a partner of choice for customers,
suppliers joint ventures and regeneration
projects They are also at the heart of our
employer brand The smallest big company
you Wl ever work for which helps us attract
and grow the best talent

Our Board consists of expert individuals with
experience frarm a number of relevant sectors,
as detailed in their biographies on pages 46
and 67 The Board draws on its diverse range
of skills and breadth of knowledge when
developing British Land s strategy and
provides strong leadership as that strategy

Is implemented

Over the last year our HR strategy has focused
on two key areas

= nurturing talent - so we get mare out of our
people and so they graw and develop and

® oplimising cur organisation — S0 we are
as dynamic as possible and have the
capabilities we need for the future

28 The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014

We believe that staff engagement s a
competitive advantage We have a full formal
and informal staff programme to increase
engagement One of the benefits of the
relatively small size of our head office team

15 that we are able to get all our employees
together in one room We make the most of this
opportunity holding all-staff conferences each
year and all-staff meetings every month where
people from different areas of our business

are able to update our whole team on relevant
developments and respond to questions

We also offer awide range of volunteering
opporiunities many of which are designed

te encourage team-building and develop staff
competenciles and skills that will be useful

In the workplace, at the same time as helping
to address community 1ssues We also have
a broad range of social activities which many
staff participate in

In 2013, we participated in our third annual
staff satisfaction survey through The Sunday
Times Best Companies to Work For survey
We achieved a One Starrating for the third
year running

WELLBEING

We are comrutied to the wellbeing of our staff
recognising our obligatiens as an employer
and the benelits this brings to our business
We provide a safe working environment
access to healthcare services and an employee
assistance scheme which includes a
counselling service We promote and suppart
actwve lifestyles thraugh subsidised gym
membership, pravision of cycling facilities
membership of the Government s Cycle to
Work Scheme and regular sporting activities
arranged through our social programme




STRATEGIC REFORT

- oo
HUMAN RIGHTS AND FAIRNESS We currently have two female Directors on Report of the Nomination Committee 5
IN THE WORKPLACE the Board, Dido Harding a Non-Executive P79-81 Diversity Policy &
We treat our staff and suppliers with fairness Birector and Lucinda Bell Finance Director P81 Developing people at British Land =
dignity and respect We support the protaction This currently represents 18% female Board Governance review -§_
of internationally recognised human rights membership As at31 March 2014 of the 34 Pé5-47 Board of Directors ne
and have been a signatory to the United Nations  senior management at British Land and our P73 Employees S
Global Compact which promates absolute subsidiaries 21% were female Of the 526
respect for human nghts, since 2009 Britssh employees at British Land and our subsidiaries,
Land supports the United Nations Guiding 48% were female We report diversity in line
Principles on Business and Human Rights, with the UK s new narrative reporting
also known as the Ruggie Framework regulations Senior management therefore
We are develeping a Supply Chain Charter includes employees of British L.and and our
ta ensure that these principles are subsidiaries who have responsibility for
implemented throughaut our supply chain planning, directing or controtling the activities
British Land treats all job applicants and of the Company or a strategically significant

part of the Company

employees equally and conducts business o—
inan honestway Measures to deliver g
en these commitments include our Equal 3
Oppertunities Polcy Anbi-Bribery and g
Cerruption Policy, Competiticn Policy g
and Fraud Awareness Policy ,E
We have been a signatory to the UK ‘,—"3
Government s Prempt Payment Code since =

it launched in 2010 We paid 97% of invoices
by value within 30 days this year excluding
disputed invoices

DIVERSITY

Our recruitment practices have lang included
a comritment to diversity and gender equality
The Board s Diversity Palicy 1s detated in the
Report of the Norminatien Commuttee on pages
79to 81 The policy throughout British Land

1s to emplay the best candidates available

In every position, regardless of sex race
lethn:c origin, nationality colour] age religion
ar phiiosophical belief sexual orientation
marriage or civil partnership, and pregnancy
maternity, gender reassignment or disability

AWARDS INCLUDE

801-44 UDIIEISUNLUSS PUR 33UBUIAADL)

We won a National Payroll Giving Excellence
Award 2013 with 23% of staff signed up

to our new scheme, an impressive rise

from 2% n 2011

PADDINGTON CENTRAL

The strengths of our pecple in deal making delivered results in our £470 rillion acquisition of
Paddington Central in July 2013, an off-rmarket transaction with a complex ownership structure
On a netimitial yield once fully tet of 6 2% on the existing properties and development sites at

a price of £173 per sq ft, we believe this 1s a very aitractive entry price into & well-located, major

081 =40 UCIIELLIO)UI J3Y)0 pUE S)USLLAIRSS JBIILRUI4

West End office
We rank in the top five FTSE 100 companies -
for reporting wellness and engagement
of employees, in the Business in the Faddington Central www britishland com/ofhices
Community Workwell Benchmark 2014 www paddingtoncentral cam m
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STRATEGIC REPORT

DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY
HOW WE PERFORMED IN THE YEAR

Creating places people prefer drives enduring
dernand for our properties from occuplers and
Investors This generates the long-term growth
In our rental iIncome and capital which, together
with an optimal capital structure, delivers value
for our shareholders

DELIVERING
VALUE

DRIVING

CREATING

PLACES
PEOPLE
PREFER

DEMAND

for our properties from
occupiers and investors

—

—

GENERATING
LONG-TERM
GROWTH

in our rental income
and caprtal

far our shareholders

Our priorities ensure that we focus our efforts on the most value creating activities.

OUR KEY PRIORITIES IN 2013/14

» Continue to increase our weighting

to London and the South East

- focus on up-and-coming areas with strong
infrastructure links, and

- replenish our London development pipeline

Fully deploy the proceeds of our equity placing

- the net impact of placing and investment to be
accretive to earnings by the end of the financial year
on an annualised basis

Deliver and de-risk our 2010 development
programme

- complete all our developments in the West End, and

- de-risk through pre-letting office space
and pre-selling residential units

» Exiting Europe

» Continue to drive corporate efficiencies

HOW WE ASSESS OUR PERFORMANCE
We measure how we are delivering agamst our strategy at the Group level through our key performance indicators
We monitor our exposure to each of our principal risks through our key risk indicators By remaining within agreed
parameters, we ensure that our actions are consistent with the nisk appetite of the business QOur incentives are
closely aligned with the delivery of our strategy and with the intention of matching the interests of management with
our shareholders The incentives are based on a range of financial and non-financial measures
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» Reshape our Retail portfolio

- reshape our existing portfolio to meet the evolving
needs of occuplers and consumers,

- take advantage of market strength to sell
more mature assets,

- Invest in retail schemes which are preferred
destinations or have the ability te be, and

- build the Retall tearmn to extend our consumer-facing
skills and activities

» Maintain our financial gearing within

our 40% to 50% LTV range

- access debt markets to meet the evolving
needs of the business

» Maintain our One Star rating in The Sunday

Times Best Companies to Work For survey

» Deliver our corporate responsibility goals




DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY
DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE
TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

Our objective is to deliver long-term sustainable total returns
for our shareholders through the increase in the value of our
shares and the income we distribute by way of the dividend

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
TOTAL ACCOUNTING RETURN

20.0%

As a resull of the increased dividend and our NAV
we reported a total accounting return of 20 0%

GROWTH IN NET ASSET VALUE [NAV])

+15.4%

EPRA net asset vatue per share was up
15 4% to 688 pence

INCOME FROM DIVIDEND

+2.3%

Quarterly dridend of & 75 pence brings total
dividend for the year to 27 pence a 2 3% increase
year-on-year

TOTAL ACCOUNTING RETURN

As a business we are focused on maximising
total shareholder returns Qver tirne, we expect
our total accounting returns to be a good proxy
for total shareholder returns and this 1s the key
performance indicator we use to track cur
averallprogress

Qur total accounting return s the overall return
we generate including the impact of debt
commonly called the levered property return
It1s calculated based upon a combination of the
net income distributed to shareholders in the
form of the dividend plus the percentage
growth in Net Asset Value per share [NAV]

During the year we generated a total accounting
return of 20 0% Our dvidend was increased
by 2 3% to 27 0 pence per share and our NAY
increased by 15 4% to 488 pence pershare

STRATEGIC REPORT

KEY RISK INDICATORS

The iggest driver of our returns are the
ecanormic environment and the appeal
of investment in property within that
The primary key nisk indicators that we
monitor in this area are

* forecast GDP growth, and
* the rmargin between property yields and

borrowing cosls

KEY INCENTIVE MEASURES
The management team s compensation
and incentivisation 1s linked to

» total accounting returns

Managing risk
=4 P36-41

Remuneration Policy
-2 P84-93
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RIGHT
PLACES

\/

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
PROPERTY RETURNS

14.2%

vsIPD

+60 bps
+320 bps
+200bps

How we allocate our capital manage existing
assets and develop properties s care to our ability
to generate returns We compare our total property
returns with the Investment Preperty Catabank s
[IPD} UK benchmark

DEVELOPMENT COMMITMENT

£1.4bn

Development s an impertant contributor te our
income and value growth but it also adds risk We
aim to keep our committed development exposure
at less than 15% of our investment portfolio

. CUSTOMER
ORIENTATION

OUR ACHIEVEMENTS INTHEYEAR
= We have had an active year with total gross
investments of £2 0 billion, made up of

- £1,033 milbon of acquisitions,
- £710 million of dispasals, and
- £227 millicn of development spend

® As aresult, we successfully deployed the
proceeds of our March 2013 equity placing,
ahead of the schedule we set out The
placing was accretive to EPS by 0 5 pence
and NAV by 4 pence

We invested £787 million in London focusing
on the West End and up-and-coming areas
with strong transpert inks These sites
included Paddington Central and Blossom
Street, Shorediich

s These investments have significantly
replenished our development pipeline
We now have £11 billicn of recently
committed or near-term developments
primarily focused on Londen

» Asaresult, London and the South East
now accounts for over 60% of our total
portfolio up frorm 50% four years ago

= We made significant progress with our
2010 development programme with eight
of the projects now completed In offices
we completed all the West End developments
including our 500 000 sq ft office and
residentizl development at Regent s Place
The Office programme 15 now 73% pre-let
securing £54 million of rent Over 96%
of the residential units are pre-sold or
under offer

in Retall, we opened Whiteley Shopping
in May 2013 For details see page 4

= We continued to reshape our Retail
properties Since 1 April 2013 we have sold
£391 million of more mature retall assets
ahead of book value, we Invested over
£500 million in strong, locally-preferred
locations such as SouthGate Bath increased
our stake in HUT, one of the highest-guality
shopping park portfolios in the UK and
bought a 26% equity stake In a portfolio
of Sainsbury s Superstores

Performance review
- P44-55
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CAPITAL
EFFICIENCY

EXPERT
PEOPLE

KEY RISK INDICATORS

The primary key risk indicators which

we monitar to guide our sirategic decisions
to invest in the right places are

= property capital and ERV growth forecasts

= total and speculative development
exposure, and

a progress of developments against plan
KEY INCENTIVE MEASURES

The management {eam s compensation
and incentivisation 1s Linked to

" property returns,
» successeson purchase and sales, and

= successful progress an development

Managing risk
=4 P36-41

Remuneration Policy
=4 P84-93




RIGHT
PLACES

CUSTOMER
ORIENTATION

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

7.8 out of 10
(industry average 5.1 out of 10)

Our customer crientation helps us to attractand
retain occuplers who are willing to commit to

leng leases for the right building and best-in-class
landlord services Our biennial survey helps us
track our performance and identify opportunities
for further improvements Our next biennial
independent customer survey will be in 2015

DOW JONES SUSTAINABILITY SCORE [DJSI)

70%

Managing our social environmentat and ecanomic
Impacts 1s central fo how we do business and
deliver lang-term value to our shareholders

The DJSI s a key sustamnability reference point

for our occupiers as well as investors Our DJSI
score influences the annual incentive remuneration
of these an our Executive Committee Z014 results
will be available in September 2014

V

OUR ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE YEAR

* We had a good year in Retait agreeing
17 million sq ft of lettings and renewals,
4 9% ahead of esttmated rental value,
with strong demand from a broad range
of occupiers

= In London we successfully tapped
increasing demand for high-guality oifice
space, letting 632,000 sq ft of office space
including 323,000 sq ft to the growing
TMT and insurance sectors [51%)

Performance review
-2 P44-55

» We also farmed a new Joint venture
partnership at Broadgate with GIC who is
also one of our largest shareholders

» QOverthe past year we completed or started
sigruficant leisure-focused extensions on five
of our key assets Glasgow Fort Broughion
Park Chester Fort Kinnaird Edinburgh
Whiteley Shopping Hampshire and Kingston
Centre, Milton Keynes

= Thiswill increase our leisure offer in
multi-tenanted assets to over 70% Within
our experiential assets this figure 1s 9 0%

= As part of our focus on our customers we
significantly expanded our censumer insighis
by extending our shopper survey to over
50 000 users on our major shopping centres
and retail parks within the last 12 months

We strengthened our digital platform with
free wi-fiin 11 of our shepping centres and
free wi-fi hot spots at six of cur major retail
parks, with further roll out planned over
the next six months

We delivered £2 million energy cost
savings for occuplers in the year bringing
total savings over the last five years to

£6 9 million

CAPITAL
EFFICIENCY

STRATEGIC REPORT

EXPERT
PEOPLE

KEY RISK INDICATORS

The primary key risk indicators which we
monitor to ensure that our business 1s
aligned with the needs of our customers
and resilient to vanations in occupier
demand are

= consumer confidence,
= employment forecasts for relevant sectors

= market letting risk [vacancies expiries
administrations] and

= weighted average lease length
KEY INCENTIVE MEASURES

The management team s compensation
and incentivisation 1s inked to

» gross income growth

Managing risk
- P36&-41

Remuneration Policy
> P84-93
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RIGHT
PLACES

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
LOAN TO VALUE (LTV]

Debt plays an important rele in enabling us te take
advaniage of markel cpportunities Our 40% to 50%
LTV range balances the rewards of owning more
property with the nsk inherent in debt financing

WEIGHTED AVERAGE INTEREST RATE
(WAIR]

4%

Our low cost of debt finance Is a key contributor
to our overall performance and a competitive
advantage At4 1% we have one of the lowest
WAIR of the UK REITs combined with one of the
longest average debt maturities at 8 7 years

COSTRATIO

16.2%

Controlling our costs so we maximise the
amount of rent which flows through as profits
and dividends is a key focus of the business
Our small head office and oulsourced business
madel helps to keep costs low

CUSTOMER
ORIENTATION

CAPITAL

EFFICIENCY

EXPERT
PEOPLE

‘

| \

OUR ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE YEAR
s We mantained our loan to value (LTV]
within our 40% to 50% range

* We have continued to demonstrate our ability
to take opportunities to access capital and
debt markets to meet the requirements
of our business

* During the last 12 months we have been
successfulin raising £1 5 billion of unsecured
debt finance for British Land on competitive
terms from a broad range of sources,
including

- £310 millon five-year revolving credit
facility, signed in May 2013 with a syndicate
of eight banks at an initial margin of
135bps perannum

- £200 million US Private Placements with
12-year maturity, signed with New York
Life and Pricoa Capital Group in August
2013 The two sterling fixed rate notes
were swapped to an effective floating rate
of 103 bps per annum above LIBOR This
funding closed as scheduled 1 March
2014 the deferred drawdown date enabled
us to continue to utilise our lower cost
bank facilities [arranged in earlier years]
between signing and closing

- £785 millien revolving credit facility
provided by a syndicate of 14 banks signed
in Aprit 2014, with an imitial margin of 115
bps per annum The initial committed term
of the facility is frve years which may be
extended to a maximum matunity of seven
years at our request and on each bank s
approval forits commitment

= Allthese facilities inctude cur standard
unsecured financial covenants

= These transactions have taken advantage
of market conditions and added further
flexibility and term to our already strong and
diversified debt portfolio such that we are
well ahead of our preferred two-year
refinancing date horizon

British Land s semor unsecured credit rating
has been maintained at A- [Fitch]

N Financial polictes and principles
P56-58

= We have been investing in growing our
capabilities and this 1s one of the reasons
our aperating costs are huigher in the year
However our costs remain one of the
lowest armmong our REIT peers
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KEY RISK INDICATORS

The primary key risk (ndicators which we
menitor to manage the risks relating to our
capital structure are

= LTV

= |kelihood of covenant breach, and
= period until refinancing 1s required
KEY INCENTIVE MEASURES

The management team s compensation
and incentivisation i1s linked to

= pperating costs as a percentage of rent
and assets,

» successful execution of financings and

» progress of strengthening the divideng

Managing risk
> P3&-41

Remuneration Policy
> P84-93




STRATEGIC REPORT

EXPERT

RIGHT CUSTOMER CAPITAL

PLACES

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

THE SUNDAY TIMES BEST COMPANIES
TO WORK FOR SURVEY

One Star

Our people are a key asset and we believe that
staff engagement 1s a competitive advantage

that disiinguishes us frem our peers The Sunday
Times annual survey is one of the most extensive
benchmarks of employee engagement with
nearly 900 organisations participating

British Land characterises itself as The
smallest big company you It ever work for
We have fewer than 250 direct employees
in cur core business and they manage over
€17 bilbon in assets Our goal 1s to leverage
our financial strength while enjoying the
entrepreneurial benefits of a compact
organisation This translates to a rewarding
employee experience

ORIENTATION

OUR ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE YEAR

95% of employees participated in this year s
Sunday Times Best Companies survey
scoring us 76% for | love working for this
organisation We maintained our One Star
rating for the third year in a row

During the year we launched a new peer-
led recognitien pregramme called Hats Off
which focuses on our company values

The majority of the crganisation nominated
colleagues for their achievernents The five
top prize winners participated in a two week
sustainable leadership programme in
Antarctica reinforcing the Group s values

Community engagement remarmed an
important part of cur culture with 77%
of our staff volunteering time to {ocal
initiatives We alse won an award for
our payrall giving scheme which allows
many of our employees te contribute
directly te charities of their choice

Our focus on training and development
increased this year with specialist
appointments in our HR functien and

a suite of new competency-based
programmes rolled-out at all levels

of the business

Detalled compensation studies were used
to ensure that our rewards remain highly
campetitive including comprehensive
healthcare pension and other benefits
Employee satisfaction with reward 1s also
measured through the Best Companias
survey and we continue to score highly

We leveraged our property and financial
skills ta secure highly attractive assets
Nearly all the acquisitions we made
during the year were complex off-market
transacticns involving significant
commercial judgements

EFFICIENCY

PECPLE

KEY RISK INDICATORS
The primary key risk indicator which we
monitor In managing our people risks 1s

= unplanned executive departures
KEY INCENTIVE MEASURES

The managernent team s compensation
and incentivisation 1s linked to

= guality of people and managerment
renewal, and

= company reputation

Managing risk
P36-41

Remuneration Policy
P84-93
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STRATEGIC REPORT

MANAGING RISK IN

DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY

The strengthening economic
environment has improved the
outlook for our performance
however our risk appetite
remains broadly unchanged

The most significant judgements affecting our
risk exposure include our property sector

selection our level of development risk and our

gearing We maintain our focus on sectors
where we see outperformance over the

mediurn term, that s high-quality UK retail and
London offices and we want to increase further

our exposure to London and the South East
As our 2010 development programme lets up
we continue to replenish our pipeline of
cpportunities to maintain an appropriate level
of risk exposure - commensurate with our
return aspirations Qur approach to gearing I1s
unchanged but we see our LTV being towards
the lower end of and possibly below our target
range as valuations increase

OUR APPROACH TO RISK MANAGEMENT

At British Land we take the view that aur
assessment of risk 1s a cornerstane of aur
strategy and our embedded risk management
1s fundarmental to its delivery Ourintegrated
approach combines a top-down strategic
view with a complementary bottem-up
operational process

The top-down approach involves a review of the
external envirorment in which we operate to
guide an assessment of the risks which we are
comfortable exposing the business ta In pursuit
of our perfermance objectives — this 1s our risk
appetite This evaluation frames the
determination of the actions we take in
executing our strategy Key risk indicators
[KRIs] have been identified for each of cur
principal nisks and are used to monitor our risk
exposure The KRIs are reviewed quarterly by
the Risk Committee to ensure that the activities
of the business remain within agreed risk
appetite tolerances

The bottorm-up approach involves identification,
management and moritoring of risks in each
area of our business meaning that rnisk
management 1s embedded in our everyday
operations Control of this process is provided
through maintenance of risk registers in each
area These risk regisiers are aggregated and
reviewed by the Risk Cormnmittee with
significant and emerging risks escalated for
Board consideration as appropriate

This process complements the top-down view
by informing the identification of our principal
risks, ensuring that cperational msks are fully
considered in determining the risk appetite and
the corresponding strategy of the business

Our principal risks are detailed in the table
that follows This year, we recognise the
Increasing risks associated with upcoming
political events, such as the UK general
election, by expanding the risk of Economic
Outlook to be Fconomic and Political Outlock

OUR APPROACH TORISK IN PRACTICE

Development exposure

Development has been a key source of returns
and outperformance for British Land in recent
years We continue to believe that development
can delwer good risk adjusted returns in the
years to come and 50 we maintain our appetite
for nskinthis area Qur letting progress onour
2010 development programme has provided

us with the confidence to commit to several
new developments and we centinue to replenish
our pipeline through acquisition activity and
progression of opportunities within the portfolio
We monitor the development exposure of the
business as a proportion of the portfalia

both currently and on a prospective basis with
reference to a target range and this guides

the pace and quantum of replerishment

of the pipeline noting also the nisks to timing
and delvery of these appartunities including
planning and construction costinflation
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F? We determine our risk
appetite based on our
assessment of the economic
environment that we are
operating in and our
performance aspirations

We use key risk indicators

to monitor the external
environment as well as the
risks across the business
These provide clear
thresholds covering areas
such as gearing, sector
selection, target development
exposure and the sustainability
of our income Remaining
within these thresholds
ensures that our actions

are consistent with our
agreed risk appetite '?

LUCINDA BELL
CHAIR OF THE RISK COMMITTEE




RISK GOVERNANCE

The Board takes overall respansibility for risk
management with a particular fecus en
determining the nature and extent of signuficant
risks itis willing to take 1n achieving its strategic
objectives The Audit Committee assesses the
principal risks facing the Company including
those that would threaten 1ts solvency or
liguidity Their evaluation of these solvency
risks 1s described further 10 the Going Concern
section on page 72 and a description of how
these risks are managed and mitigated 1s
included in the Financiat Strategy Execution
risk in the table of principal nisks which follows

The Audit Committee takes respansibility

for overseeing the effectiveness of sound risk
management and internal control systems
and more information on the system of
internal controls can be found on page 76

The Executive Directors are responsible

for delivering the Company s strategy and
managing operational risk and a Risk
Committee has been established to provide
a forum to fulfil these responsibilities

The Directers in turn place reliance on their
teams to monitor and manage operational
risks on an ongoing basis as well as identifying
emerging risks The risk registers provide a
framework for all staff to feed into this process
recognising ther shared responsibility for
effective management of risk in delivering our
strategy

> Qur governance structure
The Risk Committee P45

N Report of the Audit Committee
P74-78

STRATEGIC REPORT

- [%2]
RISK MANAGEMENT AT A GLANCE g_
The diagram below summarises the complementary top-down and bottorm-up aspects o
of our integrated appreach to risk management £
©
o
[
TOP-DOWN BOTTOM-UP 3]
Strategic risk management Operational risk management
BOARD AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE
Review external
environment
- Assess effectiveness of risk
Set risk appetite management systems E _
and parameters - g
— Report principal risks §
Determine strategic 5
action points g
=
&
w

v

Direct delvery of
strategic actions

Monitor key risk indicators

V

Execute strategic actions

Report on key risk indicators

RISK COMMITTEE

[EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS)

BUSINESS UNITS

/\

Consider completeness
of identified risks and
adequacy of mitigating actions

Censider aggregation of risk
exposures across the business

I AW

B0 -4S LOIIEIBUNLIAL PUR AJUBLIAAGEY

Report prienty and
emerging risks

Identify, evaluate, prioritise,
mitigate and monitor
operational risks recorded
In risk register
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STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL RISKS

Managing our sacial and environmental impacts 1s central to how we do business and deliver
value to our shareholders Toreflect this rather than reporting social and environmental

factors separately we have integrated them within the principal risks disclosure which follows

as indicated by these social and environmental icons () €@

Qur principal key risk indicators are highbighted within How we manage the nsk

EXTERNAL RISKS
RISKS AND IMPACTS HOW WE MANAGE THE RISK MOVEMENT IN THE PERIOD
ECONOMIC * The economic recovery and the # The Risk Committee reviews the economic The UK recorded strong GDP
AND POLITICAL praspect of increasing Interest envirenment on a quarterly basis to assess growth and falling unemployment
QUTLOOK rates present risks and opportunities whether any changes to the economic outlook in 2013 with these trends forecast
in property and financing markets present risks or opportunihies which should to continue In 2014 This s anticipated
and the businesses of our occupiers be reflected In the execution of our strategy te result in increased consumer
Indicators such as forecast GOP growth demand and to be beneficial fer the
= Significant upcoming polilical events L b d
bring risks in two areas unemployment business and consumer businesses of our occupiers Risks
cenfidence interest rates and inflation are te this recovery remain including
- reluctance of investers and considered as well as central bank guidance the prospect of rising inlerest
businesses te make investment and government policy updates rates geo-political conflicis anda
E:ﬁ“;izsu“:::i:\: l;:t;:ome « We are not able to mfluence the outcome of :ﬁ:fol:mﬂ;i:smm growthn
significant political events but take the uncertainty ging
- on determination of the cutcome related to such events and the range cf possible Political European Parliament
the impact on the case for outcomes into accaunt when making strategic elections the referendum on
investment in the UK, and of investment and financing decisions Scottish independence and the UK
specific policies and regulation general etection are all scheduled
= We engage public affars consultants to ensure
intreduced - particularly those within the next 12 months Beyond
that we are properly briefed on the potential
which directly impact real estate that there is the pessibility of a UK
policy and regulatory implications of pelitical
referendum on membership of the
events Where appropriate we actwith other
EU Each of these avents has the
industry participants to influence the debate
potential to impact the appeal and
on these policies
performance of iInvestment in the
UK n general and real estate
n particular both through the
related unceriainty and resultant
implementation of policies and
regulation
COMMERCIAL Reduction ininvestor demand for ® The Risk Committee reviews the property ' The weight of money seeking
PROPERTY UK real estate may resultin falls market on a quarterly basis to assess whether investment opportunities in UK
INVESTOR DEMANGD | | " @55¢t valuations and could arise any changes to the market outlook present risks commercial property both from
from variations in the or oppertunities which should be reflected in international and tradibional
the execution of our strategy The Committee institutional scurces continues
* health of the UK economy
considers indicators such as the margin between to grow Investor appetite has been
» attractiveness of iInvestment propertyyields and berrowing costs and property | | further enhanced by the impraving
inthe UK capital growth farecasts which are considered economic cutlook and increasing
alongside the Committee members knowledge availability of finance at low rates
» avallability of finance and
and experience of market activity and trends with interest now extending beyond
= relahve attractiveness of other a We maintam a focus on thosa sectors which we prime praperties and locations
asset classes
believe will deliver outperformance over the
mediurn term benefitting from centinuing occupier
demand and c¢onsequently investor appetite
CATASTROPHIC An external event such as a civil - @ Asset risk assessments le g security -l B The evaluation of the Lkely
BUSINESS EVENT emergency Including a large-scale flood environmental health and safety] impact of this risk on the
terrorist attack extrerme weather performance of the Group has
® Regular security threat information service
occurrence or environmental disaster not changed since the prior year
could severely disrupt global markets ® Physical security measures at properties The Home Office threat {evel from
lincluding property and finance) and development sites international terrorism remains
and cause significant damage and . Asset ency procedures d substantiat  The portfolio has
disruption to British Land s portfolio ssel emergency procecures reviews remained resilient to the storms
and scenaric tesied
and operations and flooding experienced in the
» Head office business continuity plan in year with minimal damage and
place and regularly tested disruption experienced
= Comprehensive insurance
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STRATEGIC REPORT

KEY
CHANGE FROM LAST YEAR

A  Riskexposure has increased
- p No significant change in risk exposure

' Risk exposure has reduced

EXTERNAL RISKS

RISKS AND IMPACTS HOW WE MANAGE THE RISK MOVEMENT IN THE PERIOD

OCCUPIER DEMAND | | ® Underlyingincome rentat growth » The Risk Commuttee regularly reviews indicators We are seeing improving

AND TENANT
DEFAULT

and capital performance could be
adversely affected by weakening
occupler dernand resulting fram
variations in the health of the UK
economy and cerrespanding
weakening of consumer confidence
and business activity and
Investment

Occupier fallures may adversely
impact underlying income and
capital performance

Changing consumer and business
practices (including the growth

of internet retaiing fexble
warking practices and dermand
far energy efficient buildings)

new technologies new legislation
and alternative locations may
result in earlier than anticipated
obsolescence of our buildings if
evolving occupter and regulatory
requirements are not met

of sccupier demand including consumer
confidence surveys, employment forecasts

for relevant occupter sectors and ERV growth
forecasts These are considered alongside the
Committee members knowledge and experience
of accupier plans trading and leasing aclivity

in guiding execution of our strategy

We have a Key Occupier Account programme
through which we work together with our
occupiers to find ways to best meet their evolving
requirements - Including understanding how
cur stores fit with their omni-channel offer

We perfarm rigorous occupier covenani checks
and review these on an ongoing basis so that
we can be proactive in managing expasure
toweaker occuplers

We are constantly assessing how best to
future proof our buildings and maintain
sustainability briefs acress the investment
pertfolio as well as on acquisitions and
developments

British Land prides itself on taking

a leadership position on defining and
responding to environmental legislation
impacting the built environment All our office
developments are BREEAM Excellent and
94% of our major retail developments are
BREEAM Very Good or Excellent We have
achieved significant landlord-influenced
energy reductions benefiting our occupiers
[see page 22 for further details)

demand for office space in
London underpinned by increasing
take up irom TMT accupiers

Inretail occupiers are becoming
more confidentin the role of
physical space in an ommi-channel
world With a reduced number of
admiristrations as the economy
recovers we are seeing signs

of increasing demand for flexible
space in the bestlocations

AVAILABILITY AND
COSTOF FINANCE

Reduced availabibity of property
financing may adversely impact
Brissh Land s ability to refinance
faciities and result in weaker
investor demand for real estate

Increasing finance costs would
reduce British Land s underlying
ncome

8enchmark borrowing rales and measures

of real estate credit availability are manitored
by the Risk Committee on a quarterly basis and
considered alongside Committee members
awareness of financing actvity in the industry
{0 guide our financing actions in executing

our strategy

We maintain strang relationships with our key
financing partners and advisors to maintain
an awareness of hnancing market activity

We maintamn a diverse range of sources
of finance to provide flexibility to access funding
as required

We clesely monitor relevant emerging banking
regulation working with industry bodies and
other relevant organtsations to participate

in the debate where our interests are affected
In the current year we contributed to the
Vision for Real Estate Finance in the UK
recommendations which were drafted by

a cross-induslry real esiate finance group

We have seen a cantinuing increase
in the availability of finance to
commercial property across a range
of sources Financing costs remain
near historic lows but are expected
to Increase
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STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL RISKS

CONTINUED

Dur principal key nsk indicators are highlighted within How we manage the risk

[INTERNAL RISKS
RISKS AND IMPACTS HOW WE MANAGE THE RISK MOVEMENT IN THE PERIOD
INVESTMENT In order to meet our strategic ohjectives | | * Our investment sirategy 1s determined to be <l B Chris Grigg commented
STRATEGY we must investin and exit from the consistenl with our target risk appetite based “We have been active In
right properties at the night time on the evaluation of the exterral envirenment delivering our investment strategy
Significant underperformance could = Progress against the strategy and continuing inthe year We have increased our
exposure to London and the South
result from inappropriate determination alignment with our risk appetite 1Is monitored
East taking advantage of strengthening
and execution of our property at each Risk Cemimittee by reviewing relevant
investor interest n retail across the
investment strategy including indicators including 2 comparison of forecast
porifolio returns against the IPD benchmark UK to rebalance our portiolio As
= seclorsetection and weighting our 2010 development pregramme
» Individual Investment decisions are subject concludes we have been replenishing
= Uming of Investment and divestment
ta robust risk evaluation overseen by our our development pipeline We remain
decisions
Investment Commuttee including consideration confident that our chosen sector
= exposure to developments of returns relatwe to risk-adjusted hurdle rates facus will deliver outperformance
= sector asset tenant region » Wa foster collaborative relatisnships with our co- over the medium lerm although our
outperforrmance against benchmarks
concentration and investors and enter into ownership agreements
may narrow In the short-term as
which balance the interests o the parites
= co-investment arrangements a result of strengthening investor
demand in secondary praperty and
Responsible Executive Chris Grigg othersectors Asinvestor appetite
Strategic focus intensifies we will remain discrplined
RIGHT Inour Investment approach
PLACES Our strategy for Investing in the right
places s outlined on pages 18to 23
DEVELOPMENT Development provides an opportunity = We maintain our levels of total and speculative -« = Tim Roberts commented
for outperformance but this brings development exposure as a proportion of the We are nowwell advanced
with it elevated risk The carewith investment portfolio value within a target range on our 2010 development programme
which we make our decistons around taking into account associated risks and the and have achigved considerable letting
which schemes to develop when as impact on key financial metrics Thisis menitored success Reducing the risk exposure
well as our execution of these projects, quarterly by the Risk Committee along with on this programme has previded
must reflect this progress of developments against plan us with the confidence ta commit
Development risks could adversely = Foreach project we make a judgement about o further developments including
the residential-led Clarges Estate
impact underlying income and capital apportionment of construction risk Where we
on Piccadilly and we are continuing
performance including retain this nsk we fix costs early in the process
to progress opportunities to further
subject to other market factors with key
* development letting exposure replenish aur pipeline We are
contractors subject to financial covenant review
canscious of the prospect of rising
* construction timing and costs and
= Pre-let1argets are used 1o reduce development construction costs in evaluating
* adverse planning judgements letting risk where constdered appropriate these opportunities The balance
f
Respansible Executives . We actively engage with the communities of these risis 1s managed within
overall development exposure
Charles Maudsley, Tirn Roberts inwhich we operate as detailed in our
metrics which are monitored
Community Charter to ensure that our -
Strategic focus across the orgamisation
development activities consider the interests
’F}II._C.;A"(':.I'ES of all stakeholders For more on our development
9
. e We manage socral and environmental risks programme see page |
across our development supply chain by
engaging with cur suppliers including through our
Sustainability Brief for Developments and Health
and Salety Policy
PEOPLE British Land runs a heavily outsourced 2] Our HR strategy s designed to minimise «al = Chris Grigg commented
model which means that critical risk through Our expert people are a key
business processes and decisions o informed and skitled recruttment or asset and their decrsions and actions
bie inthe hands of a few peaple processes drive our performance We remain
Failure to recruit develop and retain = highly competitive compensation and benefits confident in our appeal as an employer
but are conscious that cormpetition
staif and Directors with the nght skills « people develepment and training
for the best people 15 escatating in
and experience may result in significant
= employze engagement surveys and other our industry, mirroring the increased
underperformance
imtiatives and level of investor activity We were
g:fgogsmle Executive * monitoring of unplanned executive departures ple:lsed tohappomt:S ;fa?;recfr?:he
ag and conducting exitinterviews and taunch a new ay
Strateqic focus year to continue to Improve our
9 9 @ Qur supply chain stralegy 1s designed attractiveness as an employer ang
EXPERT to manage key social and environmental our capacity to develop our staff
PECPLE risks with our outsourced suppliers including Qur high level of staif engagement
health and safety, fraud and bribery was recognised by the award of a
One Star rating in The Sunday Times
Best Companies to Wark For survey ™
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KEY

STRATEGIC REPORT

CHAMNGE FROM LAST YEAR

A

Risk exposure has increased

- p= No sigmificant change in risk exposure

Y

Risk exposure has reduced

INTERNAL RISKS

RISKS ANDIMPACTS

HOWWE MANAGE THE RISK

MOVEMENT IN THE PERIOD

INCOME
SUSTAINABILITY

We must be mindful of maintaining
sustainable income streams n arder
to continue to generate returns for
our shareholders and provide the
platform from which to grow the
business through developrment and
capttal appreciation

We consider sustainatubity of our
Incame streams.in

= executron of nvestment strategy
and capital recycling notably timing
of reinvestment of sale proceeds

nature and struclure of leasing
activity and

nature and timing of asset
management and development
activity

Responsible Executives
Charles Maudsley Tim Roberts

Strategic focus

CUSTOMER
ORIENTATION

We monitor our market letting exposure including
vacancies upcoming expiries and breaks and
tenants in administration as well as our weighted
average lease length

Woe undertake comprehensive profit and cash
{low forecasting incorporating scenario analysis
to model the impact of proposed transactions

We perfarm rigorous occupier covenant checks
and review these an an ongoing basis sc that
we can be proactive In managing exposure

to weaker occuplers

We are proactive in addressing key lease breaks
and expiries to mintmise periods of vacancy

We have a diversified occupler base and monitor
concentration of exposure to indwidual occupiers
or sectors

e We actively engage with the communities
inwhichwe operate asdetailed inour
Community Charter to ensure that we provide
buildings that meet the needs of all relevant

stakehaolders

Charles Maudsley commented

In a challenging market we have
demonstrated the enduring appeal of
our retail properties with lettings above
ERV footfall above benchmarks and
improving occupancy throughout the
year We are invesiing further in our
properties (ncluding with the provisian
of wi-fiand increased food and
beverage options toensure that they
continue to meet the evolving needs
of our occupiers and their customers

Timn Roberts commented "Qccupier
demand across our Office portfolio s
robust supported by the increasingly
diverse range of accupiers which our
buildings appeal to Nowhere 1s this
better demenstrated than at Regent s
Place where 10 Brock Street was fully
let within three months of completion
to a broad range of occuplers including
Debenhams Facebook, Manchester
City Football Club and Whitefoord LLP

For mere on how we manage our
portfolio see pages 241025

CAPITAL We must maintain a capital structure s We set lhe LTV range lo reflect the strength - - | ucinda Bell commented
STRUCTURE - which recognises the batance of our pertfalio and the longevity of our cash During the year our LTV has
EXECUTION between perfermance riskand fiows management of our debt book and our been in the lower half of aur range as
flexibility refinancing risk we successfully invested the proceeds
= Gearing magnifies returns toth s We monitor our LTV on an ongoing basis and from our March 7013 placing sold
retall assets and benefited from
positive and negative manage gearing levels over the cycle
valuation increases Asvalues
® Anincrease In the gearing level * We manage our investmant activity which increase we will continue our rigorous
increases the risk of a breach of can be lumpy as well as cur development assessment of the appropriate LTV
covenants on borrowing facilities cemmitments to ensure that we will remain which may fall below 40% and will
and may increase hinance costs within an appropriate range of LTV not gear up on market yield shift
Respansible Executive Far more on our financral palicies
Lucinda Bell see pages 56 to 58
Strategic focus
CAPITAL
EFFICIENCY
FINANCE We must be judicious in the » We have five key principles guiding the financing «afl B |_ucinda Bell commented
STRATEGY management of our financing as our of the Group which together are employed to “We were agan successful
EXECUTION strategy here addresses risks both manage the rnisks in this area diversify our sources | | in raising finance froma range

to our continuing solvency and the
stability of our profits

Failure to manage the refinancing
requirement may resultn a shertage
of funds to sustain the operations

of the business or repay facilities

as they fall due

This and a breach of financing
covenant bmits are considerad to
be the most significant risks to the
conlinuing operation of Briuish Land
as againgconcern See page 72

for further consideration of going
concern

Responsible Executive
Lucinda Bell

Strategic focus

CAPITAL
EFFICIENCY

of finance mamtain Liguidity extend and streich
maturity of debt partfolio maintan flexibility
maintain strong balance sheet metrics

See page 57 for further details

We closely moniter the perod until refinancing
1srequired which 1s a key determinant of financing
activity, and use scenario modelling tools o
evaluate the Likelihood of covenant breach

We are commutted to maintaining and enhancing
relationships with our key financing partners

We closely monitor retevant emerging regulation
which has the potential to impact the way that
we finance the Group and to introduce operating
constraints

As with ather regulatory and public affairs
matters which impactus we engage with
Government and other industry participants
toinfluence the debate

of sources in the year mncluding
unsecured corporate facilives and

a US Private Placement The attractive
terms of these arrangerments mean
that we continue to operate an efficient
debt book which provides both
flexibility to effect our property
investment activityand 1n conjunction
with our hedging policy stability
offinancing costs ~

For more on our financial policies
see pages 56 to 58
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

AT BRITISH LAND

DEAR SHAREHOLDER,
| am delighted to have taken the
lead for corporate responsibility
at British Land, an area that

| have always been Interested In
It 1s In keeping with our mindset
that the persan responsible

for finance is also responsible
for social, environmental and
ethical Issues Our commitment
to these Issues helps us to
create places people prefer, and
so to deliver long-term value

Corporate responsibility information
1s integrated throughout this Report

Our strategy and carbon data
P22-23

Risks
P38-41

The Corporate Responsibiity Committee
Pé5

EPRA Sustainability Reporting
P174

For more deta|l on our strategy
www britishland com/responsibility

For more detail on our performance
www briishland com/crdata

CCoNNMAOR

Dur custorners and their stakeholders prefer
efficient, modern places which are integrated
well into the surrounding area and are

often developed in collaboration with local
communities This enhances people s daily
lives at work, at home or out shopping These
places also benefit from the actions we take
to future proof against physical risks caused
by increased flooding and rising temperatures

At British Land we have worked very hard
to ensure that corporate responsibility is
integrated inte our business with social,
environmental and ethical facters considered
and managed at every level That s why,
this year, we have integrated corporate
responsibility infarmation threughout this
Report reflecting how we not anly create
value for our investors but make a broader
contribution for our cther key stakeholders
and the society in which we operate

Our size and substance demand a responsible
approach to business Across all ouractivities,
we take great care to try to ensure that cur
impacts are positive, for our occupiers, local
communities Investors suppliers and the
wider environment

Our properties attract over 300 million visits
each year and are places where almost 100 000
people work or live Through our five-year
development programme, we are supporting

a further 32,300 jobs, fuelling growth and
engaging with local communities We work
with our supply chain to create apprenticeships
giving people the chance to learn while they
earn at our assets at the same time as
developing the workforce of tomorrow for our
sector CQur community programme also stands
out for the high tevel of staff invalvernent, with
over three quarters of our people volunteering
this year

In addition, we work closely with our supply
chaln to manage carbon emissions and other
environmental impacts at our properties and
developments | continue to be pleased with the
substantial reductions we have achieved in
landtord-influenced energy costs for occuplers
This reflects the way we run our business, with
our customer orientaticn and environmental
emphasis

STRATEGIC REPORT APPROVAL

The Strategic Repert, outlined on pages

2 to 42 incorporates what we do, our portfolio
places people prefer Chairman s review
Chief Executive s review business model,
markets, strategy, KPls, managing risks

and corporate responsibility

By order of the Board
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We identify the social envirenmental and
ethical 1ssues that matter most by working
with people across the business engaging
with external stakeholders, consulting experts,
reviewg best practice, benchmarking our
performance monitaring the external context
and carrying out risk assessments This year,
750 stakeholders completed an online survey
exploring soctal and environmentsalissues
related to our business, over 100 experts
appraised our approach to carbon and energy
manzagement, and many participated in
independently facilitated werkshops on

key social and environmental issues

Different stakeholders have markedly different
priorities and we need to strike a balance So,
alongside our other stakeholder engagement
activities our Corporate Responsibility Panel,
chaired by Chris Grigg, includes external
experts who provide market insights cn
changing trends in their fields and challenge our
approach Through cur Corporate Responsibility
Committee, we then develop and implement

our strategy and monitor performance

Our lang-term social and environmental
targets will conclude in March 2015 We have
made good progress on these during the year,
as detailed in our Full Data Report 2014

During the coming year we will continue to
focus on delivering these targets and will also
implement our supply chain plan to address

key social and envircnmental 1ssues, notably
increasing our focus on human rights We are
working with The Prince s Accounting for
Sustamnability Project to put sustainability at the
heart of business decision making, strategy and
reparting Areas that have proved challenging
this year that we will continue to focus on both
directly and through our supply chain include
local procurement and employment, renewable
energy In existing buildings and embodied
carbon on developments

| look forward to working with our team
and expert partners to develop our stralegy
further and set new long-term targets

in the coming year

Lucinda Bell, Finance Director
Chair of the Corporate
Responsibiity Committee

Tony Braine
Company Secretary
13 May 2014
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

BUSINESS REVIEW

PORTFOLIO OVERVIEW

UK PORTFOLID VALUATION

£11,951Tm

TOTAL PROPERTY RETURN

14.2%

ERVGROWTH

3.0%

CAPITAL RETURN

8.9%

LETTINGS/RENEWALS VERSUS ERV

6.3%

OCCUPANCY RATE

96.1%

LEASE LENGTH TOFIRST BREAK

10.3 years

GROSS INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

£1,970m

COMMITTED DEVELOPMENTS CAPEX

£227m

ACQUISITIONS

£1,033m

DISPOSALS

£710m

OVERVIEW

Untit this year, the UK property market has been
sharply polarised between the London market
which emerged from the recession sooner and
saw significant inflows of internatianal capital
and the rest of the country Over the past year
increasing confidence in the outlook of the UK
economy and Increased avallability of debt

has benefited the broader UK property market
Nevertheless, London continued to generate
the strongest total returns reflecting )improving
occupational dermnand and continued strong
investment flows

Our portfolic performed strongly during the
year as we benefited both from actions we
have taken this year and in previous years and
from rising markets Our mvestment activity
during the year was matenially accretive to our
property performance notably the investment
of our March 2013 equity placing aleng with
our retail recycling where we have been taking
advantage of market strength to seil more
rmature properiies We also continued to
benefit from our decision in 2010 te commit
toa £1 5 billion development programme,
focused on London Along with more recently
cormmitted projects our developments
cantributed a thurd of our valuation uplift

Today London and the South East accounts
for 61% of our portfolio on a pro forma basis
including the estimated completed value of
cormmitted and near-term developments), up
from 50% four years ago Onthe same basis,
within London, the West End now accounts for
60% of our Offices business, up from 35% four
yearsago We continue to have a substantial

UK PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE

pipeline of developments both nearand
medium-term, focused on London Our UK
Retar portfolio comprising 53% of the total
portfelio, focuses on the best environments
where people choose to spend their time and
retailers want to be

Dverall our UK portfolio generated a total
property return of 14 2%, made up of an incorme
return of 4 9% and a capital return of 8 9%

We continued to outperfarm the 1PD
benchmarks, by 60 bps on total returns and

140 bps on capital returns

The value of our UK portfolio increased by

8 3% to £12 0 bilion with a & 6% uplift In our
investment portfolio and a 20 9% uplift from
developments Qur investment portfolio

was a more Important contributor to portfolio
performance than in recent years driven
by a combination of tightening market yields
and our asset management activity The
performance of our Office and Residential
portfolic was particularly strong up 14 5%
over the year reflecting the strength of the
Lendon markets along with our development
pregrarnme Our UK Retail performance
continued to iImprove with a valuation uplift
of 4 4% with an acceleration in performance
in the secend half of the year

There was a marked improvemant in rental
values across our UK portfolio which were 3 0%
ahead (2013 10%} This compares with growth
of 1 7% for the property market as a whole At
31 March 2014, our portfolio net equivalent yield
was 9 9% compared to é 4% for the market

yaluation uplift

Investment Total

Valuation porifolio  Developments portiolie

Year ended 31 March 2014 Em % % %
Retail and Leisure 6852 [ YA 22 44
QOffices and Residential 5099 14 223 145
Total 11,951 66 209 83
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INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

The gross value of our mvestment activity since
1 April2013 as measured by our share of
acquisitions disposals and capital investment
in developments was £2 G billion

Again we were able to successfully access
transactions to grow our portfolio by taking
advantage of our financial flexibility and our
ability to source deals, move quickly and deal

with complexity The majority of the acquisitions

we made during the year, including Paddington
Central and SouthGate, Bath, were secured

off market Our acquisitions were focused on
both core income producing assets with good
growth prospects from asset management
and develepments Overall, we completed or
exchanged £1 033 million of acquisitiens with
income generating properties adding annual

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPDSALS

rentalincome of £44 million with an average
net intial yield of 5 4% This encludes over
£100 million of patential development sites

In UK Retail, we continued to sell mature
assets where we believe the future returns
will be below our internal hurdle rates of
return In Oifices and Residental, the majority
of our disposals were residential units sold
after practical completion of cur West End
developments We also sold two of our
largest assets in Continental Europe in Line
with our aim of exiting from that market, and
successfully outsourced the management

of the remaining assets Eurepe now accounts
for less than 1% of our total portfolio Overall,
dispesals completed or exchanged raised
£710 miluon and were sald on an average

NIY of 6 2% and at 4 2% ahead of book value

Price BritishLand Annual
[gross] share passingrent
From 1 Aprit 2013 £m Em tm
Acqusitions
Retail 504 502 24
Dffices 499 499 22
Residential 51 32 -
Total acquisitions 1,154 1,033 L&
Disposals
Retail 507 39 26
Offices 30 30 1
Residential 142 142 -
Furope 281 147 9
Total disposals 260 710 35

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

BUSINESS REVIEW
PORTFOLIO REVIEW
CONTINUED

DEVELOPMENT

In 2010, we committed to a major development
programme to deliver 2 7 mullion sq ft of space,
principally in London Well-timed to deliver high
guality offices along with high-end residentiat
urits into a supply constrained London market
along with a number of retail projects the
programme in total has generated £608 million
of profit to date with a further £45 million
estimated to come (based on valuers
estimates) This 1s more than double the
estimate at the time we started the
programme, reflecting strong market growth,
teasing and pre-sales ahead of plan and
release of contingencies The total estmated
annual rental value has increased from

£79 0 mitlion to £85 0 million over the same
period 76% of the space is already let or

under offer and 94% of the residential units
have been sold or are under offer

We remain positive about the prospects for
development returns in London, so as the
2010 programme has been completing, we
have been replenishing our development
potential both for the near-term and alsa for
our longer-term pipeline We have already
committed to a number of new projects

We will continue to manage our development
exposure within aur self-imposed limit of

committed development being not mare than
15% of our investment portfolio and for our
exposure to the London residential market

to rernain below £500 million [total cost net
of pre-sales]

During the year, the purchase of development
sites mainly at Paddington Central and our
agreement with the City of London Corporaticn
tc become their development partner on
Blossom Street Shoreditch added 11 million
sq ft to our pipeline This brings total
development opportunities acquired over the
last two years to 1 6 million sg ft We obtained
planning permission on 1 0 million sq ft of
office, residential and retait development
during the year

As a result of our activity, despite completing
over 12 million sq ft of developments this
year we have 2 5 million sq ft of committed
development under construction We have
contracted 77% of the costs of our committed
developments Excluding projects which are
due to complete over the next year, principally
5 Broadgate and The Leadenhall Building,

we have 43% of our costs contracted

We have a further 719,000 sq ft in our near-
term pipeline which are projects we could
cormnmut to over the next year to eighteen

COMMITTED AND NEAR-TERM DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE

months Aswe complete further projects

and the outlock for the market remains
positive, we antictpate committing to more
development in the coming year, including

4 Kingdom Street Paddington if we were

to commit to all these projects over that time
frame our total capital commitrment, including
land would be £1 2 billion with an anticipated
profit to come of around £300 million Interms
of capital commitment, the rajority of our
recently committed projects are London
residential, the most significant of which

Is the residentral element at Clarges Mayfair

Further out we have a number of potential
development projects primarily in up and
coming areas of London and including mixed-
use schemes

More details on the portfolio, property
performance, individual developments and
assets acquired during the year can be found
in the Retail and Leisure and Offices and
Residential reviews on pages 47 to 50 and

in the detailed other information on pages
16610173

Briish Land share

Current Costto Pra let Residential Pre-sold
Sqft value complete ERV ERV endvalue residential
At 31 March 2014 aao £m Em £m £m £m £m
Completed 1,354 897 19 469 291 165 143
Under construction 1315 516 92 381 282 - -
Total 2010 programme 2,669 1,413 M 850 573 165 143
Completed 21 5 - 03 03 - -
Under construction 1232 417 335 172 &7 664 5
Total recently commutted 1,253 422 335 175 70 114 5
Total committed 2,547 933 427 553 349 664 5
Total near-term pipeline 7% 79 351
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BUSINESS REVIEW

RETAIL AND LEISURE REVIEW

Charles Maudstey
Head of Retail and Leisure

PORTFOLIO VALUATION
(BRITISH LAND SHARE)

£6,852m

TOTALPROPERTY RETURN

10.7%

ERV GROWTH

1.5%

CAPITALRETURN

4.6%

LETTINGS/RENEWALS VERSUS ERV

4.9%

OCCUPANCY RATE

98.5%

LEASE LENGTH TO FIRST BREAK

11.3 years

Retail and Leisure
P20

More detail on British Land properties
www britishland com/retail

(VI

MARKET OVERVIEW

The tentative signs we saw of animproving

UK retail market at the beginning of 2013

have strengthened over the last 12 months
underpinned by better than expected economic
growth and growing consumer confidence
Retailers have become noticeably more
confident not only In the outlook for the market
but alsc the role that physical space will play

In their omni-channel strategies While appelite
for high quality space in the best locations has
improved retailers continue to reduce their
exposure to more secendary locations which

In many cases are becoming functienatly and
economically obsolete Rentalvaluesinmore
secondary locations continued to dechine

while prime rental values rose modestly

There was a marked improvement in the retail
investment market, particularly in the second
half of the year, reflecting increased interest
and demand from a bread range of domestic
and international investors including Savereign
Wealth Funds The volume of transactions
during the year was significantly higher than
the prior year with yields across the retail
market tightening, particularly on secondary
assets where the greater volume of
transactions took place Market evidence

for prime remainad Umited given the scarcity
of available product, with ewners reluctant

to sell, and yields were more stable as a result

We continued to actively reposition and
vpgrade our portfolio focusing on preferred
destinations fer both retailers and shoppers
throughsnvestment in our existing properties
and through recycling This brings the total
investment in the business over the last four
years to £15 billion [acquisitions and capital
spend] with £0 8 billion of disposals, being
mainly smaller properties

PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE

Our retail and leisure portfolio grew in value

to £46 9 billion, a & 4% uplift over the year
Performance was driven by yield compression
(26 bps), reflecting the sigrificant improvement
in the retail investment market complemented
by our asset management actions The portfolio
continued to outperform the market by 40 bps
on a capital returns basis, although not at the
same level as previous years, reflecting the
improvement in secondary asset valuations
particularly in the second half There was

a particularly strong performance from our
department stores and leisure portfolio,

with yield compression driven by appetite for
fixed uplft backed income Our retail parks,
shopping centres and superstores also
benefied from positive rental growth but with
lesser yleld compression due to a relative lack
of transactional ewdence This was particularly
the case for superstares with open-market
rent reviews

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Our occupational metrics improved further
during the year reflecting the strength of our
offer With good demand our portfolio 1s now
virtually fully let with occupancy ahead of
March 2013 by 110 bps to 98 5% There was

a notable reduction in units in admirustration
down from 0 9% ic 0 1% of total rent as we
successfully let up units previcusly in
administration Footfatl improved over the
second half of the year up 1 2% and was
broadly flat over the year We significantly
outperformed the market where footfall was
down 2 6% in the year Our retail ERVs were
15% up cormpared with the market whichwas
flat Since the trough in June 2010 cur rental
values have now grown by over 3 3% compared
with a fallof 1 0% for the market reflecting
the ongaing polarisation between the
performance of the best space where retailers
want to trade and less attractive, more
secondary space Our tike-for-like rental
incormne grew by 3 0% in part benefiting irom
the successful letting of units previously in
admurustration along with surrender premiums

ASSET MANAGEMENT

We had a stronger period for leasing with
hugher levels of letting volumes and an
improvement in the breadth and quality of
occupiers and on enhanced terms, particularty
from fashion home wares and leisure
operators We continued to benefitfrom
retailers looking to take space in the best
quality locations Overalt, we signed 17 mullion
sq ft of tettings and renewals across the
portfolio during the year, on average 4 9%
ahead of ERVwithin the standing investment
portfolio Rent reviews were signed on average
5 0% above previous passing rent with
particularly good uplifts being achieved at
superstores on average 11% ahead of previous
passing rent Although our portiolio 1s nearly
fully let and we see an improving outlook for
rental growth atthough given our high levels

of occupancy and no majar developments
coming onstream our overall leasing volumes
are bikely to reduce through the coming year
We currenily have 273 000 sq it of space

under offer at terms overzll ahead of ERV

Our asset management activities remained
focused on evolving and improving our
overall retaill offer attracting new and existing
occuplers to our properties aswellas
upgrading the physical environment and
expanding the range of services we offer

Our increased investment in consumer
surveys continued to provide valuable insights
and feedback
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

BUSINESS REVIEW

RETAIL AND LEISURE REVIEW

CONTINUED

We leveraged our existing strong retail
relationships signing five long-term deals each
with Next and Arcadia totalling 140 000 sq ft
which for Arcadia included two out of town
Outfit stores We also worked successiully with
retailers to expand new and existing formats,
for example opeming first out of town stores for
Patisserie Valerie at Fort Kinnaird Retall Park,
and Joules and Fat Face at Whiteley

Quality physical environments are becoming
increasingly important in creating the right
places We undertook and committed to almost
200 capital projects during the year to improve
shop fascias and fit-outs and to refurbish and
extend our existing schemes Major projects
completed during the year included the refit

of Debenhams flagship store in Oxford Street
and the creation of a new out of town store for
Next Home & Garden at Camberley We also
continued to expand cur food and leisure offer
with 148 000 sq ft of deals signed with catering
and leisure operators On our larger more
experiential assets we now have 9% of rent
from food and beverage up from 8%

Curdigital strategy (s to enhance the occuprer
and consumer expertence at our retail

assels and 1s an integral part of the phystcal
experience, Increasing convenience and
widening our reach At the beginning of the
year we signad a long-term deal with BT te
provide free wi-fi on our shopping centres
and retail parks We now have free wi-fiin

11 of our shopping centres and free wi-fi
hotspots at six of our major retail parks with
further rallout planned over the next six
months Along with our customner exit surveys
this means we can manitor and improve the
experience of consumers, increasing dwell
tirme which will support our occuprers sales

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

We continued to reshape our porticlio with

£953 rilbion of gross investment activity across
our Retatt and Leisure portfolio including
investment in developments since the 1 April
2013 We have taken advantage of the strength
of the iInvestment markets to sell £391 million of
more mature assets and have invested both in
cur existing portfolio and in acquisitions where
we believe we can generate higher returns

Our largest disposals during the year
included Eastgate Shopping Centre, Basildon
Bon Accord shopping centre in Aberdeen,
and St James Retail Park Northampton

We also sold seven smaller retail parks and
six small food stores Onaverage these sales
were 2 4% ahead of book value Post the year-
end, we sold Cwmbran Retail Park for a net
inthal yield of 6 4%

We made £502 million of acquisitions aver
the period This included a 50% interast in
SouthGate the main shopping destination

in the centre of Bath, for £101 mullion, reflecting
a fully let yield of 5 7% The acquisition price
was significantly below the oniginal sum
invested In constructing the newly built

430 000 sq ft, prime open air retaill scheme
With a large and affluent catchment and an
impressive occupler line up the scheme has
a high annual footfall of around 18 rmilbion
visitors Itis anchored by Debenhams, H&M,
Topshop and Boots and has attracted several
new high profile retailers to the city including
Hotlister Apple, Urban Outfitters All Saints
and Superdry

We increased our ownership of Hercules

Unit Trust {HUT] from 41 2% to 59 8% through
the purchase of £154 millien of units since

the beginning of the year On an average 4 2%
below NAV, this represents an effective net
initial yield of & 0% (based on actual acquisition
costs] Thisinvestment increased our share

of gross assets by £262 million reflecting the
discount to NAV and the leverage within the
HUT structure HUT is the UK s largest
specialist retall park property unit trust with

a portfolio totalling €15 bithon We believe

that HUT s portfolio 1s well posttioned from a
development perspective and to take advantage
of the projected growth in Click and Collect
which s increasingly a core component of
retallers strategies We remain the property
manager of the HUT assets

We also acquired a 26% equity interest

in a portfolio of Sainsbury s superstores far
£83 million, at a reversionary yield of 5 7%
Held in a geared structure, the portfolie
consists of 26 high quality supersteres in
affluent areas primarily in the South East

All rental income untit maturity will be used
to pay interest on the bonds and partially
amortise the securitised debt At maturity it
1s anticipated that the superstores will either
be refinanced or sold to repay the outstanding
debt We expect 1o generate attractive returns
from the investrment and have already seen
an uphft of more than 10% This investment
should be viewed 1n conjunction with the sale
of smaller food stores within an overall
objective of focusing our superstore portiolio
on the highest quality locations

Over the coming year, we expect to make
further disposals We currently have over
£150 million of properties either under
offer orin the market

48 The British Land Company PLC Annual Repert and Accounts 2014

DEVELOPMENT

We have completed nearly 700 000 sq ft of
developments gver the last year including the
305 000 sq ft Otd Market scheme 1n Hereford
shortly after the year-end

Qur largest development completion was at
Whiteley Shopping in Harnpshire, where we
opened a new 321,000 sq ft retail and leisure
shopping scheme in May 2013 Combining the
configuration, set up and experience of high
quality shopping centres and the accessibility
and convenience of retall parks Whiteley
Shopping has quickly become the preferred
destination for retailers and consumers in the
area, attracting over 4 million shopper visits
since opening Whiteley Shopping 1s over 96%
let to a strong mix of prominent national retail
brands including YO! Sushi, Wagamama Fat
Face and Joules InApril 2014, it won the ICSC
European Shopping Centre New Development
Award 2014 and 15 rated BREEAM Excellent
for sustamability

In September, we cpened a 46 000 sq ft leisure
extension at our existing asset at Glasgow Fort
Shopping Park The development was fully
pre-let to @ multiplex Vue Cinema and 24 000
sq ft of restaurant space let to TGl Friday 5,
Prezzo Harvester, Chiquitc and Pizza Express
Since opening, the Glasgow Fort has seen
significant uplifts in footfall, dwell time and
average consumer spend

Post the year-end, we completed our 305 000
sq ft retail and leisure development in the
centre of Hereford Itisalready 96% let/under
offer with a strong line-up of fashion retallers
including H&M, Fat Face, Next, Outfit and an
85,000 sq ft Debenhams, the City s only
department store Leisure comprising a multi-
screen cinema along with seven restaurant
and cafe units, accounts for 21% of the scheme
creating an evening economy and extending
the cenire s trading hours

We have recently committed to 372 000 sq ft
of new development primarily focused on
upgrading and extending our existing assets,
and increasingly our food and leisure offer, to
improve the overall environment Thisincludes
leisure extensions at Whiteley Shopping Fert
Kinnaird, Edinburgh and Broughion Park

in Chester We are also on site building a new
Next Home and Garden ai Meadowhall and
amajor extension to Glasgow Fort anchered
by an 80,000 sq ft M&S




BUSINESS REVIEW

OFFICE AND RESIDENTIAL REVIEW

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residential

PORTFOLIO VALUATION

£5,099m

TOTAL PROPERTY RETURN

19.4%

ERV GROWTH

5.8%

CAPITAL RETURN

15.5%

LETTINGS/RENEWALS VERSUS ERV

8.6%

OCCUPANCY RATE

92.1%

LEASELENGTH TOFIRST BREAK

8.4 years

Office and Residential
=4 P2}

More detail on British Land properties
www britishland com/fothices

OVERVIEW

Lendon retained its position over the year as
the praperty market of chaice reflecting its
ongoing global attractions as a place to work,
e and visit More domestic and international
businesses are choosing to locate in London
drawing on its highly skilled workforce and
quality working environments More pecple
want to live 1n London closer to where they
work ar with shorter commute times Cur
increased investment 0 London has positioned
our business well to take advantage of both
the present market strength and longer-term
trends serving the changing needs of its
growing population Accardingly, we are
focused on mixed-use campuses with strong
transport connections which include retail
and residential elements These greatworking
enviranments are increasingly important

in attracting and retaining the best peaple -
not just good buildings to work in - but places
1o live, shop and enjoy leisure time

The London property market had a strong year
Although the econamic recovery started to
take hotd across the UK, London continued 1o
outpace the regional markets, with all sectors
performing strongly - offices, retail and
residential — and with the second half noticeably
stranger than the first In the prme residential
market in London, where our residential
development is focused, international investors
remained active although price Increases
were generally lower than in recent years

The office market saw continued strong
investment flows driven both by mternational
investors along with the re-emergence of
domestic investors This strong investor
demand led to prime office yields tightening
further Occupationally after two years of more
subdued demand, the teasing market was
markedly buseer, particularly in the second
half with occupiers more willing to look

in a number of different submarkets acrass
London to find the right quality of space

TMT and insurance occupiers remained the
most active but there was also increased
take-up frem other sectors, natably financial
services Overall letting activity in Central
London was arcund 50% ahead of the previous
year With littie new supply coming onto the
market vacancy rates declined particutarly
for high quality Grade A space Accordingly,
rents grew across London with growth

in prune headbine rents of 10% along with
areduction in incentives

PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE

Our Offices and Residential portfolio 1s well
posttioned to benefit from the strengthening
London market and our greater exposure toup
and coming areas The value of our portfolio
grew by over £1 2 billion to £5 1 billion reflecting
both the investments made during the year
along with a 14 5% overalt uplift in valuation

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

cur West End portfolio was up by 16 6% and
the City by 11 8% The portfolio produced a
total property return of 19 4% with our Offices
outperforming the IPD sector benchmark

by 80 bps

In Offices our standing Investments
contributed around 60% of the uplift driven by

a 40 bps compression In yields along with asset
managernent ERVs were 5 8% ahead witha
79% increase in the City reflecting improving
market conditions and increased epportunity
from potential refurbishments Qur office and
mixed-use development pragramme continues
ta deliver strong returns, generating profits

of £252 millian aver the year, and a valuaticn
uplift of 23 0% This uplift was driven by a
combination of factors including pre-lets signed
ahead of ERV, profit release as we complete
our 2010 London development pregramme

and improving market conditions Our stand-
alone residential partfolio was up 15 4% drven
primarily by iIncreased sales values

ASSET MANAGEMENT

The strengthening occupational market was
reflected in our leasing actvity during the

year We signed 632,000 sq ft of lettings and
renewals across our investment and
development partfolio with investment lettings
and renewals at an average of B 4% above ERV
Cur activity was primanily focused on new
letttngs with 289,000 sq (t of deals signed

in aur investrment portfolio and 237,000 sq it

of development lettings

We continued to see healthy dermand across
our portfolio from a range of occuplers from
financial and professional services through

to media, retail and technology companies

nat anly attracted by the quality of our buildings
and buitt environments, but also our high levels
of customer service We were particularly
successfulin tapping demand from the
growing technology and media sectors and the
mnsurance sector which represented 51% of
lettings Driven by our leasing success ouriike-
for-Uke occupancy was 190 bps ahead although
overall itis lower at 92 1% reflecting our newly
completed West End developments moving

into the investment portfolio Post aur year-
end we have seen anncrease In occupler
Interest across our portfolio with over 150 000
sq {t of space let or under offer on attractive
rental terms Ourvacant space 1s virtually all
new Grade A accommodation, so we feel
positive about the letting prospects in a
strengthening occupattonal environment

We made significant progress with the on-
going re-posttianing of our office-ted campuses
and strengthening of their iIncome profites At
Regent s Place we completed our 505 000 sq ft
office and residential development 10-20
Brock Street We continued io see strong
demand for both the offices and residential
units Asaresult all the office space at
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

BUSINESS REVIEW

OFFICE AND RESIDENTIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

10 Brock Street, which is the largest of the
builldings was let within three months of
practical completion to a strong and diverse
range of occupiers including Facebook and
Manchester City Fooltball Club achieving a new
rental high on the campus of £71 per square
foot This added £18 B million of annual rent
on a weighted average lease of 157 years

78% of the residential urits at 20 Brock Street
have been profitably sold or are under offer
The Brock Street development has completed
Regent s Place, a vibrant 2 million sq ft mixed-
use campus where around 15 000 work and
live With an cccupancy of over $8% 1115 well
served by major transport links andis
enhanced by restaurants shops, a health
club, a theatre art studios, achitdrens
nursery and landscaped open space

At Paddington Central, which we acquired in
July, we have let or put under offer 35,000 sq ft,
at terms ahead of our acquisition assumptions,
bringing cccupancy on the campus to %4 2%
We are confident that we will further improve
occupancy We are also looking to improve

on the existing planning consents at 4 and

5 Kingdom Street [see following development
section] and public space in addition to works
to the entrance of the campus and an
introduction of 3 greater variety of uses and
occuplers

Broadgate 1s our largest campus with atmost
4 million sq ft of office, retail and leisure space
We have a strong vision of how Broadgate will
develop as a vibrant mixed-use environment
in the heart of the City and expect it tc benefit
from its position arcund ane of London s
most impertant transport hubs and frem the
completion of Cressrailin 2018 |In December,
we signed a jcint venture agreement for
Broadgate with GIC, the investment arm of
the Government of Singapore, following their
purchase of Blackstone s 50% stake Asone
of our largest shareholders and with a long
history in direct real estate investment we
look forward to working with them to deliver
our vision

We continued to make good progress both

on our near-term and long-term plans at
Broadgate At 199 Bishopsgate a buildingwe
recently fully refurbished, we let a further

63 000 =q ft of space so the building 15 now
56% let We signed over 89,000 sq ft of lettings
en space surrendered by UBS at 1 and

2 Broadgate These lettings tie inwith the
extensian we signed with ICAP last year
enabling us to review options for refurbishment
or redevelopment of the whele building in 2019
In the near term, activity Is centred around
Broadgate South where we are developing

a new office for UBS at 5 Broadgate, alongside
a full redevelopment of Broadgate Circle,

to provide a more vibrant retail and restaurant
offer [see development section) The next

phase will include a major refurbishment

of 100 Liverpool Street, which will be well
timed to benefit from the advent of Crossrail,
and more widespread improvements to the
surrounding area We are working up a scheme
and aim to put in a planning application by the
end of financial year 2015

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

Our strategic aim has been ta grow the level

of investment in London through acquisitions
and development We invested £531 million

In attractive, mainly off-market acquisitions,
not enly adding core income to the portfolio
but alse replenishing the development pipeline

At E470 million Paddington Central an office
led campus in the West End was our most
significant acquisition and our largest since
2005 Acquired ona net initial yield of 5 3%
rsing to 6 2% once fully let, the campus
comprises 610,000 sg ft of ncome generating
properties along with 355,000 sq ft of
consented space at 4 and 5 Kingdom Street
and an additional 80,000 sq ft of potential
development This acquisition increases our
exposure to an up and coming part of the West
End market which 1s expected to benefit from
the apeming of Crossrail As our success at
Regent s Place demonstrates this s anasset
which plays to all of our strengths in managing
large mixed-use schemes in London delivering
value through well-planned asset managemnent
and development {tis still early days butwe
are confident we can deliver significant value

at Paddington Central

We also entered into an option agreement
with The City of London Corporation for the
re-development of Blossom Street Shoreditch
furtherincreasing our near-term devetopment
pipeline and broadening our access to
occuplers in the vibrant and growing TMT
sector Blossom St comprises three sites
covering 2 acres fronting ento Shoreditch High
Street just north of the core City of London
market and which will be clese to the new
Liverpool Street Crossrall station The sites
have potential for around 320,000 sq ft of
office retail and residential accommodation

tn a mux of new retained and refurbished
bulldings We have the option to draw down

a developrment agreement, subject to securing
revised planning consent on the sites

and on practicat completion will be granted

a long leasehold interest in the sites

During the year, we achieved planning consent
on, and cansequently also completed the
purchase of Aldgate Place, a potential 365 000
sq ft residential development programme

We have committed to Phase 1 st Aldgate
Place ajointventure with Barratt Homes,

in a fast changing area close to the City

for 220,000 sq ft of residential including

154 private units
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Our sales activity was primarily focused on the
residential development programme bothwithin
our mixed-use and residential-led schemes
where we have continued to actively recycle
capital and crystallise development profits
During the year we sold a further £41 rillion

of residential uruts 31% ahead of book value

DEVELOPMENT

Within aur 2010 development programime

the office space 1s now 73% let or under offer
with a weighted average lease length of

159 years Having sold 114 units and with

a further three under offer we now have 9%
sold or under offer We also have a significant
pipetine of potential development projects

both from sites we have acquired in the last
two years and from within our existing portfolio

Over the year, we completed 820 000 sq ft of our
West End developrments including 10-30 Brock
Street 10 Portman Square Marble Arch
House and 39 Victoria Street, generating an
overall profet on cost of over 65% In the City

the Leadenhall Building 1s on track to reach
completion in the summer We were pleased
with our recent letting of Level 30 to Servcorp
onarent of £72 50 psf and with a further 13,500
sq ft under offer, we remain positive about

the letting prospects for the remaining upper
and smaller floor plates 5 Broadgate was
successfully topped out at the end of March

and will be ready for UBS to take delivery

of the building in early 2015 subject to fit-qut

We made good progress on our recently
cemmitted development projects having
secured planning fer Clarges Mayfarr,

Yalding House and residential schemes at
The Hempel and Aldgate Place The majority
of this development is residential and we

will Limnst any fuiure residential development
until we have rnade furiher inroads with

our forward sales Althoughitis early days
we are seeing encouraging levels of interest
Demolition 1s progressing at Clarges Mayfair
with construction expected to start early

in the summer Following a successful planning
application we also committed to Yalding
House, a refurbishment of 29 000 sq ft of
office space in the West End and have recently
started on site

Interms of our near-term pipeline we are
progressing with planning to put ourselves

in the position to be able to start as early as
possible while retaining the aptionality on
whether to commit At Paddingten, we have
made iImprovements to the design of 4 Kingdom
Street and anticipate being on site by the end of
the year On 5 Kingdom Street as part of awider
master planning exercise for the whole campus
we are looking to resubmil planning for an
improved, larger scheme next year At Blossom
Street Shoreditch, we have appeinted four
architects to develop the design and we expect
to submit 3 planning application in the Autumn




FINANCIAL REVIEW

2014 was another active

year for British Land as

we continued to deliver our
strategic objectives both
driving strong results during
the year as well as building
more growth and opportunity
Into our portfolio for tomorrow
Lucinda Bell

Finance Director

ACCOUNTING RETURN

20.0%

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

688p

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

27.0p

NET RENTAL INCOME

£562m

UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£297m

UNDERLYING EPS

29.4p

LTV

40%

AVERAGE WEIGHTED INTEREST RATE

4.1%

NEW FINANCE RAISED

£1.5bn

AVAILABLE FACILITIES

£2.0bn

Retail and Leisure
=4 P47-48

Office and Residential
- P49-50

S Mare detail on British Land properties
www bniuishland com/our-properties

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

We generated total accounting returns of

20 0% for the year which was significantty
driven by our decisions and acticns, not just

at the property level but also financially

And here we benefited both from our capital
structure as well our ability to access
competitively priced finance Our NAV, which
was up 15 4% at 488p, was driven by an 8 3%
increase In our valuation and our dividend was
2 3% ahead at 27 0 pence per share 1n line with
our previcus announcements It 1s measure

of the Beard s confidence in the prospects

of the business that we are announcing our
intention to Increase the dividend by 2 5%

for the 2014/15 financial year

Over the year we continued to develop our
financial and deal management and skills
both in pricing property risk and managing
complex situations This enabled us to access
transactions with few other competitive
bidders We successfully deployed the
proceeds of our March 2013 equity placing
ahead of the schedule we set ourselves

Thus was accretive to our earnings and net
asset value performance during the year after
taking into account the dilutive effects of the
share placing Rental income from our 2010

development programme where all of our
West End cffice projects completed during
the year significanily offset the income we
have forgone through the sale of Ropemaker
Place at the end of the 2013 financial year

By selling more mature assets and investing
in ones with better long-term prospecis, we
have deliberately given up near-term income
for longer-term total returns This 1s likely

to continue as we further reshape our

Retal portfolio

Despite this significant actwity all our financial
metrics rernain robust Our LTV 15 unchanged
over the year at 40% at the bottom of our
range and our average weighted interest rate
1s lower at 4 1% We have taken advantage of
improving debt markets to raise £1 5 billion of
new finance at competitive rates This included
a £785 million revolving facility our largest
single bank facility with the lowest marginin
the last 7 years, which is a great example of
both our capabilities and the strength of our
banking relationships Our financing structure,
which s flexible and low cost, continues o
provide the business with the resources and
liguidity to deliver its sirategy

INCOME STATEMENT

The group financial statements are prepared
under IFRS where the after tax results of
joint ventures and funds are shown as a single
line item on the ncome statement, and the
net investment in joint ventures and funds

1s shown as a single line on the balance sheet
Management reviews the performance of

the business principally on a proportionally
consolidated basis [1 e on a line-by-line basis)
and comments on movements in the iIncome
statement provided in the financial review
below are made on this basis Income
statements and balance sheets which show
British Land s interests on this basis are also
included in Table A within the supplementary
disclosures {pages 159 and 160)

Net rental income including our share of joint
ventures and funds, increased by £21 millien
to £562 million for the year 2013 £541 million]
The £690 million of investment in income
producing assets following the placing added
£31 mitlien to full-year rent This was offset
by a reduction of £26 million due to disposals
made in the last financial year principally
Ropemaker All our West End 2010
developments completed during the year

and contributed matenally to our income,
adding £13 rmillion during the year

INCOME STATEMENT
2014 2013
Joint taint
ventures  Preportionally ventures Proportionally
Graup' and funds’ consolidated Group and funds consclidated

Yearended 31 March £€m £m Em £m Em £m
Gross rental income 331 264 597 294 273 567
Properly oulgoings (21} (14} (35) 13) n3) (26)
Net rental income 310 252 562 281 240 541
Net financing costs (791 (123] {202 (80) [128] [204)
Net rentalincome less finance 231 129 360 20m 134 335
Fees and other income 15 15 15 15
Joint ventures and funds undertying profit 123 130
Administrative expenses 172) (8) 178 172 (4] (74
Joint ventures and funds underlying profit 123 130
Underlying profit before tax 297 297 274 274
Underlying EPS 294p 2% 4p 30 3p 303p
Dividend per share 270p 270p 24 4p 264p

1 2014 Group and jont ventures and funds results are presented after elimination of HUT non-controlling interest
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Net rentalincome increased by 2 2% on a
like-for-Uike basis, adding £6 mullion The retait
portfolio like-for-like growth was 3 0%, driven
by asset management initiatives and letting

of units which became void following prior year
adrmurustrations Lettings in the year increased
occupancy rates from 97 4% to 98 5%

In offices like-for-like rental income tncreased
0 4%, reflecting new lettings in the City offset
by the impact of lease extensions generating
long-term income streams

Net financing costs on 2 propor tionally
consolidated basis were £202 miltion,
adecrease of £4 mitlion compared to the prior
year The sale of Ropemaker and associated
swap close-outs reduced our interest charge
by £8 million and interest on completed West
End developments added £5 millien Underlying
profit before tax increased by £23 million,

or 8 4%, to £297 millien The increase In
underlying profit before tax s surnmarised

in the table below

MOVEMENT IN UNDERLYING

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Em
Year ended 31 March 2013 274
Placing investments 30
Cornpletion of 2010 developments a
Like-far-like rental iInceme [
Oisposal of Repemaker (18)
Other movements 3
Year ended 31 March 2014 297

Recycling was neutra! to profits in the year,
despue being active in reshaping our retail
portfolio We sold high yielding ex-growth
assets and invested 1n assets which offer
opportumty to sdd value through asset
management initiatives ar develepment

We have a competitive advantage with our
efftcient operating model Qur EPRA cost

ratio [including direct vacancy costs| for the
year was 146 2% (2013 15 3%] This EPRA metric
1s substantially the same as the cost ratto the
group has previously presented Our EPRA
cost ratio [exeluding direct vacancy costs) for
the yearwas 13 9% {2013 12 8%| The increase
was driven by the sale of Ropemaker and

our continued investment in our pecple and
infrasiructure

Underlying profits from joint ventures and
funds for the year were £124 million During
the year we increased our ownership of
Hercules Unit Trust (HUT] to 58 6% as at

31 March 2014 and to 59 8% post our financial
year-end Asaresult HUTstreated asa
subsidiary and fully consolidated 1n British
Land s accounts 1n line with international
accounting standards This includes HUT s
debt all of which is non-recourse to British
Land We therefore now include 100% of its
results and financial position on a line by line
basis in the financial statements A deduction
1s then made for the equity In the subsidiary
not attributable to the Group (e the non-
controtling interest The change in bass of
consalidation has had no impact on our KPls

Underlying diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2014 was 29 4 pence
(2013 30 3 pence) based on underlying profit
after tax of £295 mullion [2013 £273 mullion) and
weighted average diluted number of shares of
1,004 mulbon 12013 901 million) As expected
the relative dilution of EPS inthe yearis a
conseguence of the sale of Ropernaker at the
end of the prioryear The equity placing was
been accretive to earnings by 0 5 pence per
share inthe current year after taking into
account of the addiienal shares inissue ahead
of the target set at the time of the placing

IFRS profit after tax for the full-year was

£1116 mitlion {2013 £284 million), including
£377 millien from investments in joint ventures
and funds (2013 £67 miltion] In addition to
undertying profits the most significant item
impacting IFRS profit was the net valuation
increase of £580 million for the Group and
£258 mullion fer our share of joint ventures

and funds

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

CASHFLOW

Net cash inlow from operating actmities for

the year was £249 million on a proportionally
consolidated basis The table below provides
a summary of the increase in EPRA net debt

on the same basis for the year

MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT

Year ended 31 March 2014 Em
Opening net debt 4,266
Investment acquisitions 1,009
Disposats {592}
Development and other capital expenditure 292
Net cash frorm operations 249)
Dwidend paid 159
Other 5
Closing net debt 4,890

Acquisttions absorbed £1,009 million,
significant purchases being the investment

of the placing praceeds at Paddington Central
and the acquisition of SouthGate, Bath
Disposals generated £392 mullion, with retail
recycling 2t Bon Accerd Aberdeen and
Basildon Eastgate Centre, in addition to the
sale of Puerto Yenecia, Zaragoza

£292 million was utiised on development and
capital expenditure, reflecting spend enour
commutted development prograrnme and

on replenishing the development pipeline

We anticipate prospective development spend
of £399 million over the next three years an
our 2010 and recently commutted development
pregrammes and £307 million on aur near
term prospective programme Our investment
portioho has strong rental growth potential
gving a platform for future growth which the
table below summarises

ANNUALISED GROSS RENTS

Cashilow Accounting
basis basis
£m £m

Current passing rent 557
Expiry of rent-free periods 51 584

Fixed rimimum uplifis i3
2010 non-completed developments pre-let 28 25
Recently commuiited developments pre-let 7 5
Total contracted 556 814
Developments - 2010 committed developments to let 28 23
Developments - recently committed n 9
Developments - near-term to let kil 25
Investments - RPl and rent review uplifts i2 12
Invesiments - letting of expiries and vacancies 21 i8
Potential rent in frive years 759 701
Increase 6% 20%
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

Current cash rent s £557 million with potential
to grow by around £200 millien over ihe next
five years We already have around £100 mullton
of further rent contracted and when fully let
the balance of the 2010 programme wilt add
£28 million to rents Recently commitied
developments and the near term pipeline

of the Scrip Dividend Alternative via the
Regulatory News Service and on our website
twww britishland com) no later than four
business days before the ex-dividend date

of 2 July 2014 The Board expacts to announce
the split between PID and non-PID income at
that ttme In respect of the 2014 third quarter

On thus basis our net investrment at 31 March
2014 was £2 634 rullion up from £2,463 medlion
at the previous year-end reflecting the
increase tn the property portfolio valuations
and our Investment in developments

MOVEMENT IN EPRA NET ASSET

should add a combined further £42 million dvidend of & 75 pence pershare totalling VALUE PER SHARE'
of rent The investment portiolic benefits £68 million 30% of shareholders elected for o
1}
frocr;-; at:oundfm % ol rents llalelrd\g z;!;;ectuto RPI the rs\cdnpc;a\Ltedrnaltlve 1}:1 llgu odeLS r:wtllmn ;r;] At 3% March 2013 96
and letting of vacancies will a mitlion cash dividends It1sthe Board s intention that Valuation mavement
for the 2014/15 financial year the dividend will Dffices 36
DIVIDENDS be increased 2 5% to not less than 6 92 pence Retail 29
The quarterly dividend was increased to per share per quarter reflecting confidence Developments 27
6 75 pence per share in the year, bringing the in future cash flows Underlying prefit atter tax 29
total dividend declared for the current finangial g'{:}'gfnds l?;:
year to 27 0 pence per share Thisisinline BALANCE SHEET
with the announcement made by the Soard At 31 March 2014, EPRA Net Asset Value per At 31 March 2014 488
in July 2003 The dividend paid in the financial share was 88 pence per share, an increase
year was 24 7 pence [2013 26 4 pence] The of 15 4% compared to the prior year (2013 1 EPRAnetassets exclude the mark-to-market
fourth quarter dividend of 6 75 pence pershare 596 pence per sharel °; elfective cash ﬂ"‘l"' he:gf"s and related gebt
totalllng £48 million was approved by the adjustments, as well as deferred taxation on
At 31 March 2014 40% of the property porifolio revaluations
Board on 13 May 2014 and 1s payable on
and 41% of net debt was held within jaint
8 August 2014 to shareholders cn the register
ventures and funds The IFRS balance sheet
at the close of business on 4 July 2014
shows our iInvestment in jomnt ventures and
The Board will announce the availability
funds grouped together and shown net
BALANCE SHEET
Asat31 March2014 As at 1 March 2013
Joint Joint
ventures  Prepartionally ventyres  Proportionally
Group and funds consolidated Group and funds consqlidated
£m £m £m £m £€m £m
Properties at valuation' 7194 4846 12040 5554 4945 10 499
Investment in jaint ventures and funds 2634 2463
Other non-current assets 262 168 194 7% [23) 53
10 0%0 4778 12234 8093 4,922 10,552
Other net current biabilities (1kall M3) 1304} [158) [118) [274]
Net debt [2877) (2 013) (4 890] 1963} [2303) [4 266)
Other non-current labilites 5 118) (13 (51 140] (45}
Jointventures and funds netassets 2,634 2,463
EPRA net assets 7,027 7.027 5,967 5967
Non-controlling interest? n
EPRA adjusiments? [281] {280
IFRS net assets? 7117 5,687
EPRANAV per share 688p S96p

1 Includes European portlolio of £89 million and UK partfolio of L1495t mitlion
2 The EPRA net asset figures are presented after eliminabion of HUT nan-controlling interest

3 EPRAnetassets exclude the mark-to-market on effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjustments as well as deferred taxation on revaluaticns
{talse includes trading properties at fair value and 1s diluted for the impact of share options
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The 15 4% ncrease in EPRA NAV reflects the

8 3% valuation increase and 1s spread almost
equally across developments, offices and retail
and evenly split between the impact of our
actions and yield compression Standing
investment delivered 7% uplift, development
21% The robust NAV growth and increase

in the dividend in the year have translated into
a strong total accounting return for the year
ended 31 March 2014 of 20 0%

NET DEBT AND FINANCING

QOur balance sheet metrics remain strong
Net debt (EPRA] at 31 March 2014 was

£2 9 billion for the Group and £4 9 billion
including our share of joint ventures and
funds The principal value of gross debt
excluding cash short-term deposits and
Liguid investments was £3 0 billien for the
Group and £5 2 billon on a proportienally
consolidated basis The strength of the
Group s balance sheet has been reflected
1n British Land s senior unsecured credit
rating which remains rated by Fitch at A-

Our weighted average interest rate at 4 1%

on a proportianally consolidated basis 1s lower
than the previcus years 4 6% and 4 2% at

30 September 2013 Average debt maturity
has decreased from the prior year s 99 years
in part due to our choosing to draw on lower
cost facilities which are towards the end of
their agreed terms The progortionally
consolidated LTV held at 40% at 31 March 2014
[40% at 31 March 2013), at the bottom of our

40 to 50% range

FINANCING STATISTICS

We continue to achieve attractive financings
whichimprove liquidity We have raised over
£15 billion of debt finance in the last 12 months,
on competitive terms from a broad range of
sources adding further flexibility and term to
our already strong and well diversified debt
portfolio Most recently in April 2014 we signed
a £785 mullion unsecured revolving credit
facility with a syndicate of 14 banks at an iutial
margin of 115 bps per annum The facility has a
maturity of five years which may be extended to
a maximurm of seven years on our request and
on each bank s appraval for its participation

At the end of March 2014, we drew down as
scheduled on the 12-year £200 million USPP
fixed rate notes, swapped to an effective floating
rate of 103 bps per annum cver LIBOR, which
we had signed 1n August 2013 In May 2013 we
signed a £310 million unsecured revolving credit
facility with an iniial margin of 135 bps per
annum All these unsecured borrowings
include our standard financial covenants

British Land has £2 6 billion of cornmitted
banking facilittes, including the £785 matlion
facility signed in April 2034 and £142 million
of cash and shert-term deposits Of these
facilities, £2 3 bilion have maturities of
more than two years

We cantinue to manage our interest rate
exposure In accordance with our policy and
currenily an average 73% of projected net

debt {including our share of joint ventures

and funds} over the next five years is fixed

This significantly rmitigates the potential Impact
of increasing interest rates while retaining
valuable flexibility

Full-yearto 31 March 2014

EPRA net debt*

Principal value of gress debt!

Loan tovalue?

Weighted average interest rate of drawn debt
Interest caver?

Weighted average debt maturity

Proportionally

Group consotidated
£2877m £4 890m
£2990m £5198m

29% 40%

35% 41%

32 25
B 2years 87 years

i Group EPRA net debt and principal value of grass debt presented alter elimination of HUT non-controlling interest

2 Debtto property and investments
3 Underlying profit before interest and tax/net interest

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

In preparing these financial statements,
the key accountiing judgement relates

to the carrying vatue of the properties and
investments which are stated at fair value
The Group uses external professional
valuers to determine the relevant amounts
The primary source of evidence for property
valuations should be recent, comparable
market transactions on an arms-length
basis However, the valuation of the Groups
property partfolio is inherently subjective
as itrs made on the basis of assumptions
made by the valuers which may not prove
to be accurate

REIT status the Company has elected for
REIT status To continue to benefit from

this regime, the Group 1s required to comply
with certain conditions as defined in the
RE!T legislatien Management intends that
the Group should cantinue as a REIT for the
foreseeable future

Accounting for joint ventures and funds

an assessment Is required to determine

the degree of control or influence the Group
exercisesand the form of any control to
ensure that financral statement treatment

1s appropriate Interestin the Group s joint
ventures is commonly driven by the terms

of the partnership agreements which ensure
that control 1s shared between the partners
These are accounted for under the equity
methad, whereby the consolidated balance
sheet incorporates the Group s share of the
net assets of Its joint ventures and associates
The consolidated income statement
incorporates the Group s share of joint
venture and assoclate profits after tax

upon elimination of upstream transactions

Accounting for transactions property
transactions are complex i nature and

can be materal to the financial statements
Assessment 1s required to determine the
most appropnate accounting treatment of
assets acquired and of potential contractual
arrangemenis in the legat documents

for both acquisitions and disposals
Management consider each transaction
separatelyand when considered appropriate,
seek independent accounting advice

Lucinda Bell
Finance Director
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES

We focus on having sufficient
competitively priced and flexibte
borrowings available to deliver
our property strategy

DEBT FINANCE

The scale of our business combined with the
quality security and stability of our rental
income means that we are attractive to a bread
range of debt providers and able tc arrange
finance on attractive terms Good access

to the capital and debt markets 1s a competitive
advantage both reducing our cost of funding
and allowing us to take opportunities when
they arise

Debt financing invaolves risk from adverse
changes in the property and financing markets
In arranging and monitoring our financing we
include important nisk disciplines, ensuring
that relevant risks are fully evaluzated and
rmanaged We choose the appropriate gearing
level and follow five guiding principles
explained on the opposite page that govern

the way we structure and manage our debt

Managing risk
< P36-41

GEARING

In deciding our gearing level we weigh up the
potential increased returns obtainable from
greater leverage (through berrowing to buy
property) against the risks of having more
debt We use a loan to value ratio (debt as

a percentage of the value of our assets, |.TV]
to measure our gearing and settle an an

LTV range which reflects the strangth of our
operational business and rebability of cash
flows where we are comfortable that overall
returns will be enhanced without exposing
the Group to undue risk

Cur preferred LTV range 15 between 40% and
50% on a propartionally consolidated basis

1 e including our share of joint ventures and
funds At 31 March 2014 this ratio was 40%
From time to ime we may fall below this

as a result of phasing of recycling actvity or
valuation increases we would not Increase
leverage as a result of market improvements
Ininvestment yields

Overall, and subject to transaction activity

we aim to manage the level of gearing aver the
property cycle such that when values are rising
from the low part of the cycle, LTV will be at a
higher level in the range, while when values are
around the high point of the eycle, LTV will be

in the lower level of the range It1s in the nature
of real estate that transactions are often large
in size which can cause significant mevements
in LTVwathin our range

We leverage our scale through joint veniures
and funds which are hnanced with debt,

in securihisations and loans which are non-
recourse to British Land In doing so, the LTV
at 40% on a proportionally consolidated basis
15 higher than the Group measure for our
unsecured lenders, which 1s around 30%
Accordingly we can operate with a higher level
of gearing on a proportonally consolidated
basis without putting pressure on the British
Land credit profile

GROUF BORROWINGS

Unsecured financing for the Group 1s raised
through hilateral and syndicated unsecured
revolving bank facilities, most with terms of iive
years US Private Placements with maturities
up to 2027 and the convertible band maturing
in 2017

Secured debt (s provided by debentures with
longer maturves up to 2035 at fixed rates
of Interest

Unsecured borrowings
The same unsecured financial covenants apply
across each of the Group s unsecured facilites

These covenants which have been consistently
agreed with all unsecured lenders since 2003
are

* Net Borrowings not to exceed 175%
of Adjusted Capital and Reserves and

* Net Unsecured Borrowings not to
exceed 70% of Unencumbered Assets

COVENANT RATIO

2000 20010 2052 2013 2014
AL31 March % % % % %
Net borrowings 37 36 44 31 40
to adjusted
capitaland
reserves'

Met unsecured 14 25 34 23 k1l
berrowings to

unencumbered

assets?

Highest during the year te 31 March 2014
1 43% and
2 36%

No income/interest cover ratios apply to these
faciliies and there are no other unsecured
debt financial covenants in the Group

The Unencurmbered Assets of the Group, not
subject to any secunity, stood at £5 1 bilbion as
at31 March 2014

Although secured assets are excluded irom
Unencumbered Assets for the covenant
calculations unsecured lenders benefit from
the surplus value of these assets abave the
related debt and the free cash flow from them
During the year ended 31 March 2014 these
assets generated £44 rmullion of surplus cash
after payment of interest In addition while
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investments in jaint ventures do not form part
of Unencumbered Assets our share of profits
generated by these ventures are regularly
passed up to the Group

Secured borrowings

Secured debt with recourse to British Land 1=
provided by debentures at fixed interest rates
with long rmaturities and no armortisation
These are secured against a single combined
pool of assets with commen covenants the
value of those assets is required to cover the
amount of these debentures by a minimum of
1 5 times and net rental iIncorne must cover the
interest at least once We use our rights under
the debentures to withdraw, substitute or add
properties [or cash collateral] in the securnity
pool, in order toc manage these cover ratios
effectively and deal with any asset sales

Debentures without recourse to British Land
and secured by specific properties comprise
two fixed rate debentures of £73 million in total

Borrowings in our joint ventures and funds
Our joint ventures and funds are each financed
in ring-fenced structures without recourse to
British Land for repayment and secured on the
assets of the relevant entity where gearing can
often be satisfactorily maintained at a higher
level than Group debt

External debt for these entities has been
arranged through long dated secunitisations
or bank debt, according to the requirements
of the business of each venture

Hercules Unit Trust has term loan facilities
maturing in calendar years 2016 and 2017
arranged for its business and secured on Its
property portfolios without recourse to British
Land These loans include value and income
based covenants

The secunitisations of the Broadgate Estate
[£7,765 million) Meadowhall [E747 million)

and the Sainsbury s Superstores portfolio
(£589 million) have weighted average
maturities of 13 3years, 11 6 years, and 80
years respectively The enly financial covenant
applicable to these securiisations 1s that
income must cover interest and scheduled
amaortisation (1 times| there are no loan to
value covenants These secunitisations previde
for quarterly principal repayments with the
balance outstanding reducing to approximately
20% to 30% of the original amount raised

by expected final maturity, thus mitigating
reftnancing risk

Other debt arrangements with banks and
other lenders include loan to value ratio
covenants with levels ranging from 40% to
90%, and most have rental income to interest
or debt service cover requirements There

15 no obligation on British Land to rernedy any
breach of these covenants and any remedy
needed would be considered by the parties
on a case-by-case basis




OUR FIVE GUIDING PRINCIPLES

DIVERSIFY
OUR SOURCES
OF FINANCE

MAINTAIN
LiauipiTy

EXTEND AND
STRETCH
MATURITY
OF DEBT
PORTFOLIO

MAINTAIN
FLEXIBILITY

MAINTAIN
STRONG
BALANCE
SHEETMETRICS

We monitor the finance markets and seek to access
different types of finance when the relevant market
conditions are favourable to meet the needs of our business
The scale and quality of the Group s business enables

us to access a broad range of secured and unsecured
recourse and non-recourse debt We arrange our finance
across different types of debt to meet our own and where
appropriate, our partner s needs

We enjoy and encourage long-term relationships with banks
and debt investers We aim to avaid rebiance on particular
sources of funds and borrow from a large number of
lenders from different sectors in the market and a range

of geographical areas, with a total of 41 debt providers

In addition to our drawn term debt we aim always ta have

a good level of undrawn, committed unsecured revolving
bank faciliies These facilities provide financial Liquidity,
reduce the need to hold resources in cash and deposits,
and mimmise costs arising from the difference between
borrowing and deposit rates whule reducing credit exposure
We arrange these revolving credit facilities in excess

of our cornmitted and expected requirements to ensure

The maturity profile of our debt 1s managed by spreading
the repayment dates and extending or renewing facitities
We monitor the various debt markets so that we have the
ability to act quickly to arrange new finance as opportunities
arise Maturities of different types of debt are well spread
taking into account term debt and undrawn revolving
facilties reducing our refinancing risk in respect of iming
and market conditions As a result of our financing activity

We negotiate flexibility into our debi facilities ta support the
operatians of our business acress investment development
and asset management Qur bank revolving credit facilities
pravide full flexibility of drawing and repayment land
cancellation if we require] at short notice without additional
cost These are arranged with standard terms and financial
covenants and are committed for terms of generally five
years Operational flexibility 1s ma:ntained with our

British Land s operational metrics are strang The strength
of our property portfolio 1s emphasised by the quality of cur
cash flows, high occupancy (96 1% the in-built growth of our
portfolio (28 3% with fixed or RPI inked uplits) low levels

of lease expiries over the next three years (12 4% of income}
and managed levels of development risk [with £64 2 million
already contracted future income from pre-lets|

The strength of our debt porifolic and low refinancing risk
15 tlustrated by the range of debt maturities the diversified
pool of finance confirrming our aveidance of reliance on

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

of bank facilities and private placements alone We also
aim to ensure that potential debt providers understand our
business and we adopt a transparent approach so that
lenders can understand the level of thetr exposure within
the overall context of the Group These factors increase our
attractiveness to debt providers, and since 1 April 2011 we
have arranged £4 billion [British Land share £3 5 billion] of
new finance in unsecured and secured bank loan facilities
US Private Placements and convertible bonds

TOTAL DEBT PORTFOLIO

£7.2bn

we have adequate financing availability to support business
requirements and opportuniiies

UNDRAWN COMMITTED FACILITIES

£2.0bn

we are comfortably ahead of our preferred two year
re-financing date horizan The range of debt maturities
1s one to 21 years

AVERAGE DEBT MATURITY

8.7 years

combination of this unsecured revolving debt and secured
term debt with good substitution rights, where we have
the ability to move assets in and out of our debentures

REVCLVING CREDIT FACILITIES

£2.6bn

single debt sources our efficiency with a weighted average
Interest rate of 4 1% ourinterest cover af 25 times
proportionally consclidated our use of nen-recourse debt
and the operational ilexibility, supported by our continued
success at raising debt at competitive prices

LTV [PROPORTIONALLY CONSOLIDATED)

40%
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PERFGRMANCE REVIEW

FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES

CONTINUED

MONITORING AND CONTROLLING

OUR DEBT

We monitar our projected LTV and our debt
requirement using several key internally
generated reports focused principally on
borrowing levels debt maturity covenant
headracm and interest rate exposure We also
undertake sensitivity analysts to assess the
impact of propesed transactions, movernents
in Interest rates and changes in property
values on the key balance sheet liquidity

and profitability ratios

In assessing our ongoing debt requirements,
including those of our development
programme, we consider potential downside
scenarios such as an unexpected fall in
valuations and the effect that might have

on our covenants

MANAGING INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

We manage our interest rate risk independently
from our debt The Board sets an appropriate
rmaxirmurm level of sensitimity of underlying
earnings and cash flows to movements in
market rates of interest over a rolling five-

year period The proportion of fixed rate

debt required to remain within the target
sensitivity varies with the levels of gearing
andinterest cover

Our debt finance is raised at both fixed and
variable rates Derivatives [primarily interest
rate swaps) are used to achieve the desired
interest rate profile across proportionally
consolidated net debt Currently 73% of
projected net debt [including our share

of joint ventures and funds) s at fixed

rate over the five year policy time period

The use of derivatives is managed by a
Derwvatives Comrnittee The interest rate
rmanagement of Joint veniures and funds

1s addressed by each entity for its business

COUNTERPARTIES

We monitor the credit standing of our
counterpariies to minimise our risk exposure
in respect of placing cash deposits and
derivatives Regular reviews are made of the
external credit ratings of the counterparties

FOREIGN CURRENCY

Our policy is to have no material unhedged
net assets or liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies

When attractive terms are available the
Group may choose to borrow in freely available
currencies other than sterling, and will fully
hedge the fareign currency exposure

TAX

British Land 1s a Real Estate investrnent Trust
[REIT} and does not pay tax on its property
income or gains on property sales provided
that we distribute as a dividend at least 90%

of our property iIncome to sharehclders

which becomes taxable in their hands

In addition, we have to meet certain conditions
such as ensuring our praperty rental business
represents mare than 75% of our ictal profits
and assels We are subject to tax on averseas
properties depending on the requirements

of each jurisdiction Any UK income that

does not qualify as property incorne within

the REIT rules [such as fees and interest|

15 subject to tax in the normal way We also
collect VAT and withholding tax on the
dividends, as well as employment taxes

on behalf of HMRC

We administer the tax compliance for 466
companies covering Group and joint ventures
and funds (377 UK companies and 89 overseas
compantes} details of which are shown inour
annual return filed with Companies House

on 28 February 2014

HMRC continue to award us a Low Risk tax
rating which is in part a reflection of aur REIT
status together with our transparent approach
where we keep themn informed Also, we
maintain 3 regular dialague with HMRC and
in complex areas where there ts a range

of ways in which a transaction could be
undertaken, we seek clearance from HMRC
for what we do We also discuss with HMRC
potential or propased changes in the taxation
system that might affect us, particularly
those relating to REIT legislation

In the year to 31 March 2014, British Land pand
and collected rmore than £200 million across
alt taxes to HMRC
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GOVERNANCE ANO REMUNERATION

CHAIRMAN'S GOVERNANCE REVIEW

DEAR SHAREHGLDER,

Welcome to the Corporate
Governance section of our
Annual Report

This Annual Report marks the end of my

first {ull-year as Chairman of British Land
During the year | have visited a wide range

of the Company s assets and developments,
including the Grade A office space of the
Leadenhall Building, scheduled to achieve
practcal completion in mid-2014 and the
opening of Whiteley Shopping, witnessing
ourvision of next generation retail come to life
| have also had the opporturity to meetwith a
number of our majer shareholders ta discuss
Briush Land s perfermance, strategy and
objectives, and take on board thewr comments

The Board has continued ta apply good
gavernance practices throughout the year
operating in cormpliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code [the Code) and embracing the
changesto the Code that have come into force,
including stating the Board s Diversity Policy
Ipage 79), enhanced disclosures in the

Report of the Audit Committee [page 74] and
confirmation from the Board that they believe
that this Annual Repert s fair, balanced and
understandable The process undertaken to
enable the Board o provide this confirmation
to shareholders 1s described in the
Accountability section on page 71

This year s Remuneration Report has been
prepared in accordance with new regulations
and includes a specific staterment of our
Remuneration Policy whichwall be presented
to shareholders for approval at the 2014 AGM
We have endeavoured to provide a clear and
in-depth description of our approach to
Directors remuneration and explain how the
different elements are carefully designed to
support our strategic objectives and reward
performance that will benefit sharehclders
over the long-term

Goced governance 1s sbout much mere

than siting 1n a boardroom While the

Chief Executive and Executive Directors take
responsibility for day-to-day management,
the entire Board must have sufficient
engagement with the business io allow

us to lead the Company with an in-depth
understanding of its strengths and
capabilities and the challenges it faces

&0 The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Delegation of respansibilities to Board-level
and Management Commiitees within our
governance structure ensures that the Board
has sufficient oversight of all key aspects of
the bustness, with well-established reporting
lines allowing all necessary infarmation

to flow from the Committees to the Board

Our governance framework and each
Committee s responsibitities are regularly
reviewed to monitor therr effectiveness ang
ymprovements are made as necessary to meet
the changing requirements ai the Company
The financial year ended 31 March 2013 saw
the establishment of the Risk Committee
reporting into the Audit Committee with the
specific remit of focusing on the management
of strategic and operational rnisk This year

a new management cornmittee the Operations
Commuttee has been formed to improve the
How of information between the Executive
Committee and the wider Company, to
improve the strategic and tactical decisions
that are made

The design of our governance structure
ensures that the right people have accessto
the right informabion Internally this means
that matters can be discussed and agreed

at the appropriate level of the business

in the appropriate level of detail allowing the
business to operate with maximum efiiciency
Stringent systemns of control are in place to
ensure that decisions are taken by people with
the appropniate authority to do so and that all
relevant information |s reported to the Board

Majcr decisions taken by the Board during

the year include the acquisiticn of the majority
of Paddington Central which increased our
exposure to London and replenished our
developrment pipeline and the sale of our stake
in Puertc Venecia Zaragoza a sigrificant part
of our exit from Europe - both of which are
fully aligned with the Company s strategy

It 1s essenttal that our strategy Is understood
throughout the Company, to enable our people
towork to source and deliver opportunities
such as these Manthly Company meetings
presented by Executive Directors and senior
executves tailored trawing sessions and an
annual Company conference are all used to
share our vision and ohjectives with employees




These opportunities are also used ic seek
employees 1deas and feedback, which help
the Board further develop the Company vision
and improve the running of the business

We re proud to employ highly-skilled indwiduals
throughout British Land with the competencies
and expertise necessary to implement the
Board s strategy to its maximum effect During
the year a number of inibiatives have been
implemented which focus on developing and
growing tatent within the Company, detailed

in the Report of the Nomination Committee
cnpage 81 Thisis particularly impartant from
the perspective of succession planning, as

the Board and Nomination Commuitee identify
people with the potential to fill Board, senior
executive and executive vacancies which may
arise inthe future

Externally, our governance structure facilitates
open, two-way dialogue with shareholders
This1s ancther key element in the successful
development of our vision, shareholder views
and preferences set the boundaries in which
the Board constructs strategy Conversation
with shareholders 1s ongoing throughout the
year and shareholder views are conveyed to
the Board as awhote The Executive Directors
regularly communicate with iInvestors through
meetings and conference calls, with the Chief
Executive relaying shareholder opinions back
to the full Board both pesitive and negative
Together wath the rest of the Board | look
forward to addressing shareholders at the
AGM and responding o any comments
orquestiens they may have in person

The AGM also presents an opportunity for

all shareholders to meet Tim Score wha

was appointed a Non-Executive Director

of British Land on 20 March 2014 Details

of Tim Score s appaintment process can

be found in the Report of the Normination
Committee on page 80

Communication with other key stakeholders

1s another important aspect of our governance
framework Thisincludes maintaining a regular
and open dialogue with aur lenders ta help

us understand their appetite and investment
criteria, and building close relationships

with our occupiers to develop a deeper
understanding of thetr requirements This
accumulation of knowledge and experience

1s fundamental If we are to create places people
prefer and meet our cbjective of generating
long-term sustainable total returns for our
shareholders

On a final note, Tony Braine whao has been with
British Land since 1987 and has been Group
Secretary since 1995, will be retiring in July
2014 The Board wishes Tony a long and happy
retirement with sincere thanks for his support
and dibgent service over the years

John Gildersleeve
Non-Executive Chairman

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION
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&1

The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Z%-7 Hoday aiBajeng

B01-46 UONEIIUNWAL PUR 3IUBLIANOE §G-£7 MIIADI FIULLLIO}IA,

081401 UONELLIDI JYI0 pue SIUSWIALES |eI3uRUI4




GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

OUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

THE BOARD THE BOARD

_|

Develops strategy and leads British Land to achieve long-term success

Compnises the Chairman, the Chief Execubive sixindependent Non-Executive Directors and three

further Executive Directors

The Board delegates certain respansibilities to Board-level and Management Commitlees Defined
terms of reference fer Board-level Commuittees formal documentation of powers delegated to Executive
Directors and clear reporting ines ensure that the Board recenves all relevant information about the
business and that decisions are made by pecple at the right level with the authority to do so

JEN Board biographies &« Business model &« Delivering our strategy

Pob-67
|

PI4-15

P30-35

/\

/\

Reports on activities tothe Beard

Reports on activities to the Board

BOARD-LEVEL COMMITTEES AUDIT COMMITTEE —I EMUNERATIDN COMMITTEE I

Oversight of financial and narrative
reporting, internal control, risk
management systerns, internal

and external audi processes
Comprises independent Non-Executive Directors

Tim Score (Committee Chairman) Aubrey Adams
and Simon Borrows

Report of the Audit Commitiee
P74-78

m Terms of Reference

www britishland com/about-us/
governance/committees

/\

Sets the remuneration of the
Chairman, Chief Executive and
Executive Directors

Comprises independent Non-Executive Direclors
Lord Turnbull {Committee Charman] Dido Harding
and Willam Jackson |

Remuneration Report
F82-107

m Terms of Reference
www britishland com/abeut-us/

governance/committees

Biannual reports ta the
Audit Committee

Supportsthe
Executive Committee

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES (RISK COMMITTEE

| IOPERATIONS COMMITTEE J

Manages strategic and operational
risk in achieving the Company s
perfermance goals

Comprises Executive Directors
Chaired by Lucinda Bell

& Managing risk tn delivering our strategy
P35-37

Principal risks
< P38-41
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Supports the Executive Committee
with operational matters

Comprises Executive Committee members
and senior individuals who head specific
functions within the Retail Offices Investment
Development Finance Residential Strategy
Investor Relations Corporate Communications
and Information Systems departments
Chaired by Chris Grigg



/\

Reports on activities ta the Board

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Leads the process for Board
appointments and evaluates
composition of the Beard
Comprises the Chairman John Gildersleeve
[Commttee Chairman! and independent

Non-Executive Directors Lord Turnbull and
Dido Harding

Report of the Nomination Committee
P79-81

ﬂ Terms of Reference
www britishland com/about-us/
gevernance/committees

GOYERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

AN Responsibilities of the Beard and
Management Commuttees are outlined
on the following pages

—

/\

/\

1

/\

Chief Executive presents a regular Management
Report on Management s activities to the Board

Recommends transactions
for Board approval

Presents quarterly CR updates to the Board plus
an annual review of CR strategy

| EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

} i INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

J [ CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Deals with the ongoing management
of the Group

Comprises Executive Directars and five senior
exacutves NigelWebb Head of Developments
Jean Marc Vandevivere Head of Residentiat
Siman Carter Head of Strategy, Tony Braine
Group Secretary and Joff Sharpe Human
Resources Director

Chaired by Chris Grigg

Executive Committee biographies
www britishland com/about-us/
leadership/executive-committee

Reviews and approves capital
transactions

Comprises Executive Directors
Chaired by Chris Grigg

Attended by senior executives fram the Executive
Committee and the executives responsible for the
transaction under consideration

Investment Sticking to our strategy
- Pé&?

Acts as a custodian for corporate
respensibiity strategy

Cornprises Lucinda Bell Committee Chair and
four executives with defined areas of respensibility
JustinSnaxall Head of Business Group
responsible for our managed portfelioand
reperting, Sarah Cary Sustainable Developments
Executive responsible for developments

Anna Devlet Head of Community responsibte

for our community programme and Helen Wyeth
Group Reporting Manager responsible for
financial control

Corporate responsibility at British Land
< P42

m www britishland com/responsibility
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

OUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
CONTINUED

OVERVIEW OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
THE BOARD l lTHE CHAIRMAN

'NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS J

" Nan-Executive Directors work with and
challenge the Executive Directors in the
develepment of the Company s strategy

s The Chairman leads the Board and
ensures that It operates effectively,
this includes setting appropriate agendas
for Board meetings and ensuring that
all matters are given due cansideration

a The Board develops British Land s
strategy and leads the Company with
the aim of achieving long-term success

® The Board determinas the nature
and extent of the significant risks
it1s willing to take in achieving its = The Chairman maintains a culture of
strategic objectives openness and debate n the boardroom

and builds constructive relaticnships

between Executive and Nen-Executive

Directors to allow in-depth discussion

to take place with participation from

all Directors

= Non-Executive Directors provide an
independent, external perspective on the
business and contribute a broad range
of experience and expertise to the Board

®* The Board establishes control
mechanisms to ensure that the
business s effectively managed

= Board-level Commuttees, each of
which has been delegated specific
responsibilities by the Board and
operates In accordance with defined
terms of reference, are formed
of Non-Executive Directors

= The Board presents an accurate
representation of the Company s
performance and future plans to
sharehalders in away that s farr,
balanced and understandable,
and ensures that a satisfactery
level of dialogue with shareholders
takes place

» The Charman ensures effective dialegue
takes place between shareholders
and the Board, with the full Board being
made aware of shareholder views

THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS -

= The Chief Executive 1s responsible for the
day-to-day management of the business
and for ensuring that the Beard s strategy

Certain decisions may be made by the
Executive Directors or by the Management
Committees onwhich they sit

= Executive Directors areas of
responsibility within the business
are shown below

s implemented = The Chief Executive and Executive Directors

are responsible for updating the Board and

Board-level Committees on the overall |
performance of the Company and on specific

aspects of the business, as required

= The management of the business is
undertaken by the Chief Executive and
the Executive Directers exercising
powers delegated to them by the Beard

CHRIS GRIGG LUCINDABELL CHARLES MAUDSLEY TIMROBERTS

« Corporate performance * Finance * Retal portfolio s Office portfolio

* implementing strategy ' Risk = Leisure portfolio » Residential portfolio
= Communications = Investor relations = Investments = Investments

= Public affairs = Corporate responsibility » Developments s Developments

= Human resources * Health and safety = Property performance = Property performance

V \ v Y
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OVERVIEW OF MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

Executive Committee

The Executive Commuittee generally meets

twice each manth and its purpose 1s to deal
with the ongong management of the Group

The Committee considers day-to-day
eperational matters {or running the business
and reviews the performance of the Group s
assets and development programme
Internal procedures and cost cantrol are

also considered by the Commitiee

Matters are often considered and discussed
by the Executive Comrruttee before being
recornmended to the Board or Board-level
Committees {or approval in accordance
with the schedule of delegated authorities
Princtpal matters relating to planning,
directing and controlling activities are
reserved for Board approval

The Commuittee receives and reviews reports
from across the business and discusses
emerging trends These reports include

key performance metrics for Retall, Offices
Residential Leisure and Finance

Dperations Committee

The Operations Committee was established
during the year and now meets at least
quarterly to assist the Executive Commitiee
with operational matters arising in the day-
to-day management of the business

The Operations Committee forms a link
between the Executive Committee and wider
teams of employees at British Land Heads
of business functicns are mermbers of the
Operations Committee and act as conduits
for information between their teams and the
Executive Cornmittee members This helps
increase the flow of information throughout
the Company [both upwards and downwards)
to improve overall understanding of the
business and the reasoning behind

and impacts of the strategic and tactical
decisions that are taken

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee meets at least quarterly
and reports io the Audit Commitiee twice
ayear

The Committee manages strategic and
operational risk in achieving the Company s
performance goals and recommends
appropriate risk appetite levels to the Board

The Committee monitors the Company s
risk exposure against the Board s target risk
appetite and reviews the effective operation
of risk management processes Including
risk tdentification, monitoring and mitigation

Health and Safety Committee

A Healih and Safety Committee compnising
staff with relevant responsibilities frem across
the business and chaired by Lucinda Bell
meets quarterly to review performance against
targets and drive forward actions in pursuit

of the Company s health and safety goals The
Health and Safety Committee reports health
and safety performance to the Risk Committee
and contributes to the Management Report to
the Beard

Investment Committee

The Investment Commuttee meets as required
ta review, approve or recommend capital
transactions

* acquisition and disposal of assets

= investment in other companies, partnerships
and joint ventures, and

* proposed capital expenditure above
£20 million

Major transactions require approval of the
Board following the iniual recommendation

for approval by the Investrment Committee in
accordance with the approval imits established
by the Board

Other {ormal Board approvals may also be
required, for exarnple for proposed joint venture
expenditure

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

& Our Board and Commuttee structure
is detailed on the previous page

Corporate Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Responsibility {CR) Committee
provides quarterly updates on CR to the Board
alongside an annual review of CR strategy
Ouring ihe year Lucinda Bell was appointed
as Charr of the Commitiee

The Commuittee acts as a custodian for

CR strategy reviewing performance and
monitering progress against targets and key
titiatives The Committee assesses emerging
social environmental and ethical issues to
determine whether a response Is required
and considers social environmental and
governance risks and the mitigating actions
that are in place The Committee also reviews
CR communications activity Any proposed
changes in CR strategy are presented

to the Executive Committee for approval

Corporate Responsibility Panel

A separate Corporate Responsibility Panel,
comprising four independent experts and
chaired by Chris Grigg, meets twice annuzlly
alongside relevant internal representatives
from British Land The Panel recenes

and provides expert comment on emerging
social environmental and ethical issues

and challenges British Land s CR strategy

The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014 &5
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUBREY ADAMS
Non-Executive Director

Appointment to the Board Aubreywas
appointed a Non-Executive Director of the
Company in Septemnber 2008

Committee membership Audit Committee

External appointments Aubrey s Head of
Property within RBS s Global Restructuring
Group and Non-Executive Chairman of
Max Property Group PLC He 1s Chairman
of the Beard of Trustees of Wigmore Hall

Previous expenence Untl May 2008,
Aubrey was Chief Executive of Sawlls PLC
He was formerly a Non-Executive Qirector
of Pinnacle Regeneration Group Limited
Senior independent Director of Assaciated
British Ports PLC Non-Executive Chairman
of Unitech Corporate Parks PLC and
Non-Executive Chairman of Air Partner PLC

WILLIAM JACKSON
Non-Executive Director

Appaintment to the Board Willlam was
appointed a Non-Executive Directer of the
Company in April 2011

Committee membership Remuneration
Committee

External appointments Willam i1s Managing
Partner of Bridgepoint, a leading private equity
firm William has served on a number of
Bridgepoint portfolio Boards He s currently
Chairman of Pret A Manger and President of
Dorna Sports SL

Previous experience William began his
career In NatWest s investment banking arm
before working extensively on private equity
transactions in Europe He was appointed
Managing Partner of Bridgepoint, formerly
NatWest Equity Partners 1n 2001

LUCINDABELL
Finance Director

Appointment to the Board Lucinda joined the
Executive Cammittee in 2010, joined the Board
in March 2011 and became Finance Director
in May 2011

Committee membership Executive
Commiuttee, Investment Committee, Operations
Commuittee and Chair of the Risk Cornrittee
and Corporate Responsibility Cemmitiee

Previous experience Lucinda is a Chartered
Accountant with over 20 years of industry
experience She has held a range of roles
in real estate finance including Director of
Financial Planming Tax Director and Head
of Accounting [with HR responsibibity for a
quarter of the Company s people] In 2006
she was the only company representative
onthe HM Treasury appointed working
party which designed the successful
implementation of the REIT regime

CHARLES MAUDSLEY
Head of Retail and Leisure

Appointment to the Board Charles joined the
Board in February 2010 He has responsibility
for the Retail and Leisure sectors of the
Company s portfolio

Committee membership Executive
Committee Investment Commuttee Operations
Committee and Risk Committee

Previous experience Charles joined British
Land from LaSalle Investment Management
where he was Co-Head of Europe Managing
Director of the UK business a member of the
Mznagement Board and an International
Director Priar to joining LaSalle he was with
AXA Real Estate Investrment Managers for
seven years where he was Head of Real Estate
Fund Management in the UK
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SIMON BORROWS
Non-Executive Director

Appointment to the Board Simonwas
appointed a Non-Executive Director of the
Company in March 2011

Committee membership Audit Committee

External appointments Smonis Chief
Executive of 31 Group plc and 3 Non-Executive
Director of Inchcape ple

Previous experience Before joining 31 Simon
worked for 28 years in the banking and finance
industry most recently as Chairman of
Greenhidl & Co International LLP, having
previously served as Co-Chief Executive Officer
of the firm and Co-President Priorto Greenhill
Simon held the position of Chief Executive
Officer of Baring Brothers International Limited
the carporate finance division of ING Barings

TIM ROBERTS
Head of Offices and Residential

Appointment to the Board Tim was appointed
to the Executive Commitiee in August 2005
and elected as an Executive Director in July
20046 He has responsibility for the Office and
Residential sectors of the Company s portfelio

Committee membership Executive
Committee Investment Committee
Operaticns Committee and Risk Cormmittee

External appointments Tim Is a Trustee
and Board Member of LandAid the property
industry chanty

Prevtous experience Before joining British
Landin 1997 Tim was a partner at Drivers
Jonas in the Investment Agency team




JOHN GILDERSLEEVE
Non-Executive Chairman

Appointment to the Board John became a
Non-Executive Directar in September 2008
He was Senior Independent Director fram
November 20i0 until he was appointed
Chatrman of the Company on 1 January 2013

Committee membership Chairman of the
Nomination Committee

External appointments John s Deputy
Charman of Carphone Warehouse Group PLC
and a Non-Executive Director of TalkTalk
Telecom Group PLC

Previous experience Until 2004, Jehn

was a Director of Tesco ple He was formerly
Chairman of New Look Retail Group

Limited, EMI Group Gallaher Group and
Carphone Warehause Group and was also

a Non-Executive Director of Lloyds TSB
Bank PLC and Vodafone Group

TIMSCORE
Non-Executive Director

Appointment to the Board Tim was appointed
a Non-Executive Director of the Company
on 20 March 2014

Commmittee membership Chairman of the
Audit Commuittee

External appointments Tim s Chief Financial
Officer of ARM Holdings PLC, a position he
has held since joining the company in 2002

Previous experience Priorto joining ARM, Tim
held senior financial positions at Rebus Group
Limited, Willam Baird ple, Lucas Vanity plc and
BTR ple From 2005t0 2014 Tun was a Non-
Executive Director of National Express Group
PLC Hewas Chairman of the Audit Committee
and also a member of the Remuneration and
Safety Commitiees Timwas interim Chairman
of Nationat Express from December 2008

to April 2009 and was Senior Independant
Director of National Express from 2008 to 2014

CHRIS GRIGG
Chief Executive

Appointment to the Board Chris joined British
Land as Chief Executive n January 2009

Committee membership Chairman of the
Executive Commutiee, the Investment
Committee and the Operations Committee
and member of the Risk Committee

External appointments Chrisis a member

of the Executive Board of EPRA the European
Public Real Estate Association a Non-
Executive Director of BAE Systerns plc and

a Board member of the British Property
Federation

Previous experience Chriswas Chief Executive
of Barclays Commercial Bank untit Novernber
2008, having Joined the bank in 2005 as Group
Treasurer Priorto Barclays he hetd a broad
range of leadership positions at Goldman
Sachs, where his career spanned 20 years
rising to partner Chris held the position of
President of the British Property Federation

for the year ended July 2013

LORDTURNBULL
Senior Independent Director (SID)

Appointment to the Board Andrewwas
appeinted a Non-Executive Director in April
2006 and became SI0 in January 2013

Committee membership Nomination
Committee and Chairman of the Remuneration
Commuttee

External appointments Andrew s a
Non-Executive Director of Prudential PLC and
Frontier Economics Ltd He entered the House
of Lords in 2005 as a Crossbench Life Peer

Previous experience Andrew retired as
Secretary of the Cabinet and Head of the Home
Civil Service in July 2005 He had previously
hetd the posittons of Permanent Secretary of
HM Treasury and Permanent Secretary at the
Depariment of the Environment Andrew was
a Non-Executive Director of the Arup Group
from 2006-07 and Chairman of BH Global
Limited for five years until January 2013

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

DIDO HARDING
Non-Executive Director

Appointment to the Board DOido was appointed
a Non-Executive Director of the Company
in January 2010

Committee membership Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee

External appointments Dido 1s Chief Executive
Officer of TalkTalk Telecorn Group PLC and

1s also a trustee of charity Go ON U, which
auns to make the UK the most digstally skilled
natior in the world

Previous experience Prior to joining
TalkTalk in early 2010, Dido was Sainsburys
Convenience Dhrector and a member of
JSainsbury plc s Operating Board

Dido previously held senior management
positians within Tesco ple Kingfisher Plc
and Thomas Cook Ltd

ANTHONY BRAINE
Group Secretary

Tony joined Brissh Land in 1987 as Assistant
Secretaryand became Group Secretary
in 1995 He s retiring in July 2014

There are four additional members of the
Executive Comrmittee that are not on the Board
please see the website for full information

Executive Committee biographtes
www britishland com/about-us/leadership/
executive-committee
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The 2012 UK Corporate
Governance Code [the Code]
Is the standard against which
we were required to measure
ourselves during the year

This section of the Corporate
Governance Report outlines
how we have applied the Code s
principles and provisions,

a copy of the Code I1s available
to view at www frc arg uk

The Board considers that the
Company has fully complied
with the Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2014

KEY ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD 2013/14

LEADERSHIP

The Board s core responsibiities include setting
British Land s strategic aims and leading the
Company as 1t works to achieve these aims and
attain long-term, lasting success The Board
focuses on strategy throughout the year the
annual Strategy Days, described inthe boxon
the facing page, provide a principal opportunity
to do this Progress against, and the
appropriateness of, the agreed strategy are
considered at Board meetings during the year
in light of Cernpany performance and changes
to the external environment

To ensure that no one Individual has
unfettered powers of decision there s a
written dwision of responsibilities between
the Chairman [responsible for leading the
Board) and the Chief Executive [responsible
far running the business) which has been
approved by the Beard

Responsibilities of the Board
< Pb4

The Executive Directors, led by the Chief
Executive areresponsible for ensuring that the
businessis run in accordance with the Board s
strategy The relatively small number of
employees at British Land means that the
Executive Directors are involved in or aware
of, all major activities of the Group - hence they
are extremely well placed to ensure that actions
are aligned with the Board s strategy Thisis
exemplified in the process by which investment
oppertunities are appraised, see Investment
sticking to our strategy on the facing page

Regular agenda items included

= Qutcomes of the Board Strategy Days
and feedback

= Reports of the activities of the Audit
Remuneration and Nomination
Committees

« Chief Executive s Management Reports,
quarterly updates on the business

» Updates on the portfolig, including
developments, acquisitions and disposals

* Updates on financing
&« Risk appetite

= Results of the Board perforrmance
appraisal and feedback

= Reappointment of Directors at the
2013 AGM

» Conflicts of interest

= Approval of year-end resuits the Annual
Report and Accounts the AGM Circular
and dividends

® Succession planning

Key agenda items also considered
n the year included

= Acquisitions, including
- the majonity of Paddington Central, and
- 50% of SouthGate Shopping Centre Bath

Sales including
- Puerto Venecia, Zaragoeza,

- BonAccord and St Nicholas Shopping
Centre Aberdeen, and

- Eastgate Shopping Centre, Basildon
= Financingscf £15 bithon
~ US Private Placements, and

- syndicated bank facilities, including
£785 million revolving credit facility
signed in April 2014

» Future-preofing the Retal portfolio
= Launch of Whiteley Shepping Hampshire
= Develepment pipeline

= Corporate responsibility
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The Board sets the parameters and controls
inwhich the Company s management may
operate when undertaking the day-to-day
running of the business These controls ensure
that decisions are taken by peaple with the
correct authority to do so

The division between majer decisions reserved
for Board approval and other decisions
delegated ta the Executive Directors 1s formally
documented The Executive Directers make
decisions within these predefined parameters
Decistons that would normatty fall within

these parameters may still be taken to the

full Board for approval where such decisions
relate to actvities outside the ordinary course
of business Specialised Management
Committees deal with their specific areas of
responsibility, before making decisions (where
they have authority tc do sol, or recommending
actions for Board-level approval, if this s
reguired A key consideration when making
each decision hinges on whether the proposed
action 15 aligned with the strategy the Board
has developed

Management Committees
< P&3 ’

The Chairman meets with individual Directors
outside of formal Board meetings, as part of
each Director s continuing contribution to the
delivery of the Company s strategy to achieve
superior returns for shareholders This process
also allows for cpen, two-way discussion about
the effectiveness of the Board, its Committees
and individual Directors, both Executive and
Non-Executive By these means, the Chairman
15 conttnually aware of the views of individual
Directors and can act as necessary to deal
with any issues relating to Board effectiveness
before they become a risk to the Company

CULTURE AND COMPOSITION

OF THE BOARD

The compositicn of any Board 1s fundamental
ifit1s to provide strong and effective leadership,
our Non-Executive Directors prowide a breadth
of knowledge, skills and experience, as
detalled in their biographies The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the
compoesition of the Board and Board-level
Committees toassess whether the balance

of skills, experience, knowledge and
independence 1s appropriate and enables them
to operate effectively During the year the
Committee identified the need to appoint a new
independent Non-Executive Director to take

on the role of Chairman of the Audit Committee
leading ta the appointment of Tim Score The
procedure for the appaintrnent of new Directers
1S rigorous and transparent more detail on
Tim Score s appointment can be found inthe
Report of the Normination Committee




Board biographies
< Po6-57

Tim Score s appointment
- P80

Non-Executive Directors are appointed

for specified terms and all Directars olfer
themselves for election or re-election by
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
each year, if the Board, on the recommendation
af the Nomination Committee deems it
apprepriate that they remain in office

We continue to have a strong mix of
experienced individuals on the Board with the
majority being Non-Executive Directors who
are independent and can offer an external
perspective on the business and constructively
challenge the Executive Directors particularly
when developing the Company s strategy

The Non-Executive Directors scrutinise the
performance of managernent in meeting their
agreed goals and objectives and maonitor the
reporting of performance They satisly
thermselves of the integrity of financial
information and that financial controls and
systemns of risk management are robust and
defensible

THE STRATEGY DAYS

The Board culiure 1s one of openness and
construciive debate the Directors voice

thetr opinions in a relaxed and respectful
envirenrment allowing coherent discussion
The Chairman s responsible for maintaining
this culture He does so by ensuring infermation
of an appropriate quality 1s provided in

a timely manner before Board meetings

the opportunity to properly consider such
information in advance leads to focused
discussion in the boardroom When runmng
Board meetings the Chairman maintains a
collaborative atmosphere and ensures that all
Directors contribute to debates The Chairman
arranges Informal meetings and events
throughout the year to help build canstruciive
relationships between the Board members

The high calibre of debate and the participation
of all Directors, Executive and Non-Executive
Is a quality that was hughlighted in cur most
recent external Board evaluation and
reiterated in the two subsequent internal Board
evaluations These characteristics allow the
Board io utilise the experience and skills of the
indmdual Directors to their maximum potential
and make well-considered decisions that are
inthe best interest of the Company

The annual Strategy Days are attended by
the full Board and the Executive Commuttee

The Executive Direciors and senior executives
deliver a number of presentations to the
Board providing an in-depth analysis on

all aspects of the business and the external
envirenment The Strategy Days are an
opportunity to discuss challenge and develop
the Company s strategy

As well as considering the Group as a
whole and the overall corporate strategy
consideration (s given to each part of the
Groups current and prospeciive partfolio,
and to Group financing

The days are carefully structured to achieve
a balance between presentations and time
for debate and discussion

The Strategy Days also provide an opportunity
for the full Board to consider succession
planning at Board-level and cascaded down
through the senior executive and executive
tevels of the Company

Areas focused on at the February 2014
Strategy Days included

= Corporate strategy performance,
progress and pace

* Finance strategy

* |ondon strategy performing
in a cormpetitive rmarket

- Offices
- Residential
» Development

- replenishing the developrent pipeline

Retail strategy
- future-proofing the retail portfolio

* Developing people at British Land

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

OVERVIEW OF MATTERS RESERVED
FOR FULL BOARD APPROVAL

= Transactions and financing arrangements
over £100 mittion

= Employee share and option schemes
* |ssue of securities

s Documents for distribution to shareholders
and the Annual Report and Accounts

= Diwvdends

= Establishing authority levels below those
of the Board

INVESTMENT
STICKING TO OUR STRATEGY

Executive Directors are
involved throughout the
investment process and
alignment with the Board s
strategy 1s considered from
the initial discussion of a
transaction, right through
to final approval

1.

All new investment opporiunities are discussed
at weekly deal sourcing meetings, attended by
Exacutive Commuttee members and investment
executives Attractive deals thatare inline

with strategy are setected to be investigated
and analysed in detail by project teams

V

2.

Project teams assess whether investment
opportunities should be pursued conducting
detailed property and corporate due diligence,
ongoing dialogue with relevant Executive
Committee members takes place throughout
the process

V

3.

Investment opportunities with potential are
presented for Investment Cammittee approval
Depending on the size and nature of a transaction,
the Investment Committee can approve the
proposed transaciion gutright or recommend
itforapproval by the full Board if this 1s required

V

4.

Irvestment opportunities are presented
to the full Board for approval when required
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

GOVERNANCE REVIEW
CONTINUED

The Beard considers that Aubrey Adams
Stmon Borrows Dido Harding Willam
Jackson Tim Score and Lord Turnbutl are
independent In making this determination
the Board has considered whether each
Director 1s independent in character and
Judgement and whether there are relationships
or circumstances which are Likely to affect,
or could affect, the Director s judgement

The Board believes that the Non-Executive
Birectors biographies demonstrate that they
are of the stature and experience required to
properly pertorm their roles as independent
Non-Executive Directors Following this year s
Board evaluation the Board believes each
Non-Executive Director standing for election
ar re-election at the next AGM continues

to effectively fulfil and remain committed to
their role within British Land The terms and
conditions of appointment of Non-Executive
Directors are available for inspection at the
Company s registered office and at the AGM

EFFECTIVENESS

Regular Board and Board-tevel Committee
meetings are scheduled throughout the year
and the Directors ensure that they allocate
sufficient time to discharge their duties
effectively Board meetings may be held at
short notice, when Board-level decisions

of a tme-critical nature need to be made
Non-Executive Directors letters of
appointment set out the time commitments
expected and each Director s attendance
record shown on page 71 1s considered when
assessing whether they should stand for
reappointment by shareholders Fees payable
to Non-Executive Directors are dependent

on their level of attendance at Board and
Committee meetings

The Chairman considers that all the Directors
continue to devote sufficient time to discharging
thewr duties to the required high standard and
remain cormitted to their roles British Land s
policy i1s to allow Executive Directors to take
one non-executive directorship at another
FTSE 100 company subject to British Land
Board approval With the approval of the
British Land Board, Chris Grigg was elected
as a non-executive director of BAE Systems ple
on 1 July 2013 The Chairman believes the
appontment 1s beneficizl to the Board by
increasing Chris Grigg s wider experience
particularly in relation to the applbication

of advanced technology and in relation to
government-level relationships around the
waorld, which are critical to British Land s

current and future business prospects
The Chairman does not believe that the
appointment has had an adverse effect on
Chris Grigg s ability fo discharge hus duties
as Chief Executive of British Land Other
external appointments of the Directors are
disclosed in their biographies

The Direclors are required to notify the
Company of any potential conflicts of interest
that may affect them in their roles as Directors
of British Land All potential conflicts of interest
are recerded and reviewed by the full Board

at least annually Any conflicts of interest that
materialise in the course of the Company s
business are therefore identified and addressed
appropriately

The Non-Executive Directors are kept well
informed of the key developments in the
business by bath the Executive Direciors and
other sentor executves, through regular
reports and presentations Reports include
Management Reports delivered by the Chief
Executive and updates from the Risk
Commuttee and Corporate Responsibility
Commuttee

Throughout the year presentations and reports
on specific aspects of the business and specific
assets are also delivered, along with updates
on the regulatory and external environment,
provided by external speakers

Care 1s taken to ensure that infarmation 1s
airculated in good time before both Board and
Committee meetings whenever passible, and
that reports are presented clearly and contain
the appropriate teve! of detail to allow valid
conclusions to be drawn The Group Secretary
ensures goad infarmation flows within the
Board and its Committees, and between senior
managemenit and Non-Executive Directors,
and 15 responsible for advising the Board onall
governance matters through the Chairman

The Non-Executive Directors are therefore able
to monitor the management of the business
and the implementation of the strategicaims
effeciively, and are able to assess the sutability
of the current strategy and the performance of
the Chairman and Executive Directors

BOARD EVALUATICN

The effectiveness of the Board is reviewed
annually, with an independent, externally
facilitated review being conducted at least once
every three years The latest external review
was conducted in 2011, with the next due to
take place in 2014/15
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The internal review conducted in 2013/14
took the format of an anonymous survey,
inwhich the Directors were required to
respond io0 a series of statements covering
the following areas

= role and organisation of the Board,
= agenda,
= corporate governance,

= Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors

information

monitoring Company performance,
= Board leadership and culture, and
= Board appraisal process

The results of the 2013/14 Board evaluation
were marginally improved from the previous
year showing strong agreement with the
statements and cencluding that the Board
was functioning effectively

In addition to the survey, peer reviews took
place at a number of private meetings between
the Directors The Chairman met each Non-
Executive Director indmidualty to discuss thetr
contribution to the Board and the Senior
Independent Directar met with the other Non-
Executive Directors to discuss the performance
of the Chairman The Remuneratiocn Commitiee
was provided with a written appraisal of the
Chief Executive s perfarmance by the
Chairman, and was provided with a2 written
appraisal of the performance of the Executive
Directors by the Chief Executive

BOARD TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
British Land provides fer all Directors a
tallored and thorough inducuan wncluding the
opporiunity to meei with senior execuiives

to be given an averview of their specific areas
of responsibilty within the business, and

the oppertunity to visit the Company s key
properties and developments

The Company also offers Directors
opporiunities to update and refresh their
knawledge on an cngoing basis, to enable them
to continue fulfilling their roles as Board
members and Committee members effectively
This includes training opportunities and further
visits to the Company s assets asrequired
Regulatory and environmental updates are
delivered to the Board and relevant committees
by external speakers, including corporate
governance updates




REMUNERATION

The Company s Remuneration Policy 1s
designed to attract and retain the best people to
the Company allowing us to maintain a strong
and effective Board and leadership team

The Policy 1s also structured to complement
our strategy, linking a sigruficant proportion of
Exacutive Directars remuneration to corporate
and indwidual performance The Policyis
developed by the Remuneration Comrmittes and
will be presented to sharehclders for approval
atthe AGM in 2014

Remuneration Policy
= P84-93

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board 1s responsible for prepanng the
AnnualReport and Accounts and as confirmed
inthe Directors Responsibility Statement, the
Board believes that this Annual Report and
Accounts taken as a whole, 1s fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the
infermation necessary to assess British Land s
position and prospects The basis on which the
Company creates and preserves value over the
long-term Is described in the business model

Directors responsibility statement
- P10

Bustness model
< P14-15

The Annual Report and Accounts 1s compiled
by the relevant responsible individuals
across the Company Specific sections

are reviewed by Department Heads and
Executive Committee members as appropriate,
ensuring that all key stakeholders across
the business are involved The Executive
Cirectors are closely involved in drafting and
reviewing their relevant sections of the
Report, before formally signing them off
Finance and Company Secretariat teams
conduct a robust due diligence process,
verifying key statements made within the
Report The full Report 1s then reviewed
thoroughly by the Audit Committee, before

it 1s presented to the Board for approval

The procedure undertaken to enable the

Board to provide the fair balanced and
understandable confirmation to shareholders
has been reviewed by the Audit Committee

The process has been enhanced this year with
the addition of a specific meeting between the
Finance Director Head of Investor Relations and
the Group Financial Controller to review and
document the key considerations undertaken to
ensure that nformation presented s fair
balanced and understandable Areportdetalling
those considerations was reviewed by the Audit
Committee alongside both a summary of the
detailed procedures undertaken and the Annual
Report and Accounts

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board determines the nature and extent
of the significant risks it 1s willing to take in
achieving the Company s strategic objectives

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND BOARD-LEVEL COMMITTEE
MEETINGS DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Director ) Main Baard AHM Re"l:u“ra‘::g bt‘:l::'ulv?:rrr':tt:gz
Jahn Gildersleeve 8/8 11
Chris Grigg 8/8

Lucinda Bell 8/8

Charles Maudsley 8/8

Tim Roberts 8/8

AubreyAdams 78 6/6

Simon Borrows 8/8 &/6

Dido Harding Bf8 4i4 11
Wiltiam Jackson' 7/8 3/3 414

Tim Score? 0/0 0/0

Richard Pym? 2/3 313

Lord Turnbull B/8 4/4 11

resignation and Tim Score s appointment

William Jackson was appointed a member of the Audit Commuttee for the interim penod between Richard Py s

2 Tim Score was appointed a Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee on 20 March 2014
No Board or Audit Committee meetings took place between his appaintment and the year-end

3 Richard Pym resigned as a Non-Executwve Director and Charman of the Audit Committee on 5 September 2013

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

The maintenance of the Company s risk
management and internal control systems is
the responsibility of the Board, as 1s ensuring
that they centinue to operate effectively

The Board cembines a top-dawn risk review
with a complementary bettom-up appreach to
ensure that risks are fully considered Aswell
as complying with the Code the best practice
recommendations in Internal Control
Guidance to Directors have been adopted
Internal control and risk management
processes apply equally to all entsties which
British Land administrates, including all
material joint ventures and funds

British Land s approach to risk, including the
roles of the Board and the Risk Committee
In setting risk appetite and monitoring risk
exposure, Is described in Managing risk in
delivering our strategy

pa Managing risk in delivering our strategy
P36-37

Formal and transparent arrangements exist
for considering how corporate reporting nisk
rnanagement and internal controt principles
are applied and for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the Company s auditor

The Group s internal control system is built
on the following fundamental principles,
and is subject to review by Internal Audit

» 3 defined schedule of matters reserved
for approval by the full Board,

® adetalled authorisation process no matenal
commitments are entered into without
therough review and approval by more than
one authorised person,

= formal documentation of all significant
transactions

® 3 robust system of business and financial
planning includes cash flow and profitability
ferecasting and scenario analysis performed
on major corparate, property and financing
proposals

= arobust process for property investment
zppraisals,

= monitoring of key outcomes particularly
expenditure and perfarmance of significant
investments, against budget and forecast,

= clearly defined policies and review of actual
performance against policies

= benchmarking of property performance
against external sources such as the
Investment Property Databank,

= key controls testing

= acomprehensive property and corporate
nsurance programme, and

= aformal whistle-blowing policy
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

GOVERNANCE REVIEW
CONTINUED

The Report of the Audit Committee provides
more detail on the internal control system that
operated through the year, including the
approach to internal audit

> Report of the Audit Committee
P74-78

The Board reviews lhe effectiveness of the
Group s system of internal cantrol over financial
reparting annually, including that of material
jointventures and funds During the course of
its review of the sk management and internal
control systems over financial reporting, the
Board has not identified, nor been advised of

a failing or weakness which it has determined
to be significant Therefore a confirmation

in respect of necessary actions Is not required

A number cf policies are In place tc ensure
that the Company not only meets its legal
obligations but also behaves ethically acts
with Integnity and protects its assets from the
unlawful activities of others These include
an Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy, 2
Competition Policy and 2 Fraud Policy and
investigation protocol All employees are made
aware of the policies and procedures in place
with understanding enhanced by staff
cammunications and training The need for
and appropriateness of policies guiding the
conduct of business is regularly reviewed

GOING CONCERN

The Group s business activities together
with the factors Likely to affect its future
performance and position are set out In the
Strategic Report The financial position of the
Group, its cash flows Liquidity position and
borrowing facilities, together with the Group s
financing policy, are described in the
Performance Review

&« Performance Review
- Financial review P51-55
- Financial policies and principles P56-58

The Group currently has considerable undrawn
debt facilities and cash deposits which are
expected {o be sufficient to meet its financing
requirements for severalyears The Group s
recentrecord of raising £1 5 billion of financing
over the last 12 months gives the Directors
confidence In the Group s ability tc raise further
finance as and when required

The Group has substantial headroom against
covenants on unsecured banking facilities ang
1s not overly reliant on any single lender It also
benefits from a secure income stream from
leases with long average lease terms, and

1s not over reliant on any single occupier or
Industry group

Covenantratio
<& P56

As a consequence of these factors the
Directors believe that the Group 1s well placed
to manage its financing and other business
risks satisfactorily in the current economic
environment The Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Group
have adequate resources to continue in
operaticnal existence for the foresesable
future and therefore continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the Annual
Report and Accounts

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHDLDERS

The Board remains committed tc maintaining
open channels of communication with
shareholders It 1simportant to us that
sharehclders understand the Cornpany s
strategy and objectives these must be
explained clearly and shareholders feedback
must be heard and the 1ssues and questions
raised properly considered

British Land has a dedicated Investor Relations
tearmn which reports to the Finance Director

Communication with tnvestors and analysts

Is an ongoing process throughout the year

This includes regular scheduled Investor
Relations events summarised in the box

beloew one-to-one and group meetings with the
Chairman and Executive Directors and tours of
our properties, as well as regular contact with
the Investor Relations department Ouring the
year, the Chairman, Chief Executive, Finance
Director and our Investor Relatiens team met
with representatives from over 170 institutions
The Chairman s meetings are part of a continuing
programme to build a strong twe way dialogue
with our biggest shareholders The full Board
plansto attend the Annual General Meeting
which provides an opportunity for all
sharehotders to guestion the Directors in persen

Lord Turnbull has been appointed Senior
Independent Director and 15 available to
address concerns shareholders may wish
to raise other than via the usual channels
of the Chairman, Chief Executive or other
Executive Directors

Significant emphasis is placed on the
impertance of feeding sharenclder views,
both positive and negative, back to the Board
Awritten investor relations report which
includes direct market feedback on activity
during the period I1s presented at each
scheduled Board meeting for discussion

by the full Board Shareholder opinions are
also given due consideration throughout

the annual Strategy Days

KEY INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR INCLUDED

May 2013 = Full-year results presentation for 2012/13
= Full-yearroadshow London and US

June 2013 = Roadshow including private client lunch, Scotland
= Roadshow, Netherlands
= |nvestor conference Londan

Juty 2013 = Q1interim management statement — invester call
= Annual General Meeting

Prwvate client meetings, London

September 2013 » Investor conference New York
= |nvestor day showcasing key retail assets
= Propertytour London
November 2013 = Half-year resulis presentation
® Half-year results roadshow, London
December 2013 ® Investor conference London
January 2014 * Q3 intertm management statement - investor call
® Praopertytour, London
February 2014 = Roadshow, Netherlands
= Investor lunch with Head of Retail London
March 2014 = Investor conference Miarmi

= Roadshow Mid-Atlantic, New York, Boston
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Investor conference, London




The British Land website was re-launched
in May 2013, with the aim of making it more
informative and accessible for shareholders
Results and other key announcements are
now accompanied by shart videos, providing
information on a timely basts to bath retail
and institutional shareholders A number

of case studies covering topics that range
fram profiles of our key assets to carporate
responsibility activities are also available
toviewonline Afacilty on the website allows
all shareholders to ask guestions directly
atany time

Contact British Land
www britishland com/contacts

We are pleased with the level of engagement
with shareholders achieved during the year
particularly in relation to the new Leng-Term
Incentive Plan recommmended for adoption by
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
112013 Following detailed consultatiens

the new plan was adopted by shareholders
with over $6% votes cast in favour

The Board also recogruses the important
contribution of providers of capital other than
shareholders, namely our lenders and bond
holders We maintain a regular and open
dialogue with our lenders to help us understand
their investrent appetite and criteria

EMPLOYEES

Having expert people at British Land 1s one of
the four core focuses of our business model
This applies both to the indwviduals on the Board
with the responsibility for leading the Company,
and the employees who work throughout
British Land

Expert people
& P28-29

We encourage a high degree of employee
invalvement in the Company and provide
regular information on business actimties and
explanations of strategy through Company
meetings training sessions, internal
communications and an annual company
conference Employee feedback is also
strongly encouraged

During the year a new management commitiee
the Operations Comrrutiee cornprising the
Executive Cornmitiee and heads of specific
business functions, was established to assist
the Executive Committee with operationat
matters arising in the day-to-day management
of the business The Committee formsa link
between the Executive Committee and wider
teams of ernployees enhancing the flow of
information around the Company both
upwards and downwards to improve the
strategic and tactical decisians that are made

Following the Board s appointment of a new
HR Director in July 20i3 Briish Land has
implemented a number of iniiatives to help
develop our employees and grow internal
talent, reinforeing the Cormpany culture of
exceltence and embedding values and
behaviours to drive a high performance culture
As a relatively small Company in terms of
number of employees we are proud 1o be able
1o mvestin our people on an individual basis
taking time to understand specific
requirements to progress careers and enhance
experiences across the Company More
wnformatien Is prowided in the Repart of the
Nomination Commiitee

Developing people at British Land
=4 P81

Wellbeing
< P28

We have well-established all-employee share
schemes to incentivise employees at all levels
in the Company and align their interests with
those of shareholders by butlding a holding

of British Land shares In the UK, separate
pension fund reports are made available

to members

STAFF TURNOVER

2013/14 201213 2011/12
Kead office 32(15%) 28(13%] 24012%]
Broadgate Estates  42{20%) 3106%)  14(8%]
Total {average) T60117%) 59 [146%)  40(10%)
REPORTABLE ACCIDENTS
ACROSS OUR PORTFOLIO

2013114 2012/13 2011112
British Land 3 - 2
occupled
demises'
At our managed 32 &7 54
properties
Rate per 100 000 0812 024 0335
hours worked on
our developments?

t BntishLand occupied demises refers to space
accupied by Brtish Land Broadgate Estates Ltd
and The Source

2 On our developments there were six reportable
acadents across 5 148 238 working hours in
2013/14 compared to 15 repartable accidents
across é 215 235working hoursn 2012/13

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

The benefit of diversity both on the Board and
throughout the Company, coniinues to be a key
censideration when searching for candidates
for Board and other appointments In addition
the Company continues to support the
Pathways to Property programme, whichams
to increase diversity within the property
industry as a whole by attracting students from
diverse backgrounds into the property sector

Diversity Pokicy
> P79-81

FUNDING TO CHARITY AND GOOD CAUSES
British Land has a Charity and Community
Funding Pelicy which states that giving 1s
focused onyoung people, education traming,
employment and tocal regeneration

Chanty Funding Policy
www britishland cem/crpolicies

We allocate funding to national, regional and
local community causes with most funds going
to support initiatives around our properties

and developments

The Charity and Cormnmunity Committee, which
approves all spend under the Chanity and
Communmity Budget 1s chaired by Edward Cree
Senior Retail Asset Manager and repartsto
the Executive Commuitee on an annual basis

The Executive Committee approves the
Company s Chanty and Community Funding
Policy and the annual Budget Donations during
the yeartotalled £1 120 699 compared with
£1,079 305 in the previous year British Land
does not make any donations te politicat
orgamsations
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GOYERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REPORT OF THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE

DEAR SHAREHOLDER,
Welcome to the Report of the
Audit Committee

We are committed to
monitoring the integrity of

the Group s reporting and to
developing and maintaining
sound systems of risk
management and internal
control Key initiatives adopted
by the Committee this year
included tendering the external
audit, enhancing our review

of valuer effectiveness and
heightening procedures

to ensure the Annual Report
and Accounts is fair, balanced
and understandable

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE

At the start of the year the Committee
comprised Richard Pym [Committee
Chairman), Aubrey Adams and Simon Borrows
The Committee 5 composition changed during
the year Following Richard Pym standing down
as a Non-Executive Director of British Land in
Septernber Aubrey Adams took on the role of
Chairman of the Committee on an interim basis
and Willlam Jacksen joined the Commitiee as

a member | was appointed a Non-Executive
Director of British Land and Chairman of the
Audit Cormmittee on 20 March 2014 atwhich
point Aubrey once again became a Committee
member and Willam Jackson stepped down
The Committee now comprises myself, as
Commuitee Chairman Aubrey Adams and
Siman Borrows

| am now the member of the Committee
nominated as having recent and relevant
financial experience, as required by the UK
Corporate Governance Code Aubreywas
the norminated member during his time as
Chairman of the Committee, as was Richard
before him |would like to thank Aubrey

and William for their contribution during

the transition period, and look farward

to leading the Commiitee

ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE

The Cemmittee operates within defined Terms
of Reference, which were reviewed during

the year and can be found on the Campany s
website at www britshland com/about-us/
gavernance/committees

During the year the Commuttee has undertaken
each of its principal responsimlities receiving
relevant reporis from the valuers, the internal
and External Auditors the Risk Committee and
management and challenging assumptions
and judgements made The table on page 76
details the respensibilities of the Cormmittee
and its activities throughout the year

The Committee performs a detailed review of
the content and tone of the annual and hali-year
press releases and the Annual Report and
Accounts, as well as interim management
statements The Committee has satisfied itself
that controls over the accuracy and consistency
of information presented in the Annual Report
and Accounts are robust, and has confirmed

to the Board that 1t believes this Annual

Report and Accounts Is fair balanced and
understandable Anassurance opinionis
obtained for the Company from PwC cver

the Corporate Responsibility Statement

and a verification exercise is performed

by management tc ensure consistency

and accuracy of infoermation presented
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The allocation of time spent on the Committee s
principal responsibilities 1s shown in the
chart on page 77 Significant additional time
continues to be spent by members of the

Audit Committee meeting with executive
management to understand the keyissues

The Committee regularly meets with the
External Auditor and Internal Auditor without
management being present to ensure honest
and challenging conversations take place

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Followang best practice and In accordance
with 1ts Terms of Reference, the Audit
Committee annually reviews the audit
requirements of the Group both for the
business and in the context of the external
environment and considers whether or not
to undertake a formal tender There are no
contractual obligations which would restrict
the selection of a different auditor

When conducting the annual review, the Audit
Committee constders the performance of the
Externat Auditor as well as their independence
compliance with relevant statutory, requlatory
and ethicai standards and abjectivity

The Commuttee concluded that the findings of
this year s review were satisfactory However,
following 12 years of external audit from
Deloitte 1t was decided that the external audit
should be put out to tender for the year ending
31 March 2015 the tender process s described
In the box on the facing page This complies
with new governance requirerments, and
facilitated an evaluation of the ment of different
audit approaches

There are no matters in connection with
Deloitte s prospective resignation as Auditor
which in the view of the Board, need to be
brought to the attentien of shareholders

SIGNIFICANTISSUES

The Audit Committee pays particular altention
te matters it considers te be impertant by virtue
of their size, complexity level of judgement and
potential iImpact on the financial statements
and wider business model ldentification

of the 1ssues deerned to be significant takes
place following open, frank and challenging
discussion between the Committee members
with input from the Finance Director, External
and Internal Auditors external experts and
other relevant British Land employees

The significant 1ssues considered by the
Committee during the year ended 31 March
2014 are detailed in the table on page 77,
alongside the actions taken by the Commuttee
to address these Issuss




EXTERNAL AUDIT TENDER

Inthe 2012 Annual Report the Audit
Committee indicated that once there was
clarity an auditor appomntment guidance
from the Financial Reporting Council

and European Unian, it would tender the
external audit and that this was expected
to be within the next two years

In the 2013 Annual Report the Audit
Commuittee confirmed that # would tender
the audit 1n the coming year for the financial
year ending March 2015

A number of firms were approached to tender
for the audit, including mid-tier firms as well
as members of the Big Four The Ust of firms
was selected based upen their experience,
industry skills and knowledge, their ability

to perform the audit to a high standard,

and any pre-existing business relaiionships
that might affect their independence

Itwas agreed that in light of the longevity
of Deloitte s appointment they would
nat be Invited to tender for the audit

Over a number of months sentor
management within Finance built
relationships with each selected firm,
assessing their performance in a range
of competencies On this basis two firms
were shortlisted and each was requested
to submut a tender Each shortlisted firm
was given access ta personnel across
the business before presenting their
audit proposal to the Management Panel
and Selection Panel

The Management Panel consisted of audit
stakeholders from across Finance and
the wider business The Selection Panel
consisted of the Audit Committee, Chris
Grigg Chief Executive Lucinda Bell,
Finance Director and Rob Hudson, Group
Financial Controller

The Board accepted the Selection Panel s
recormmendation that PricewaterhouseCoopers
be selected as the new External Auditor
Deloitte will resign as the Company s auditor
after completing the audit of this Annual
Reportand Accounts The Board mtends

to appaint PricewaterhouseCoopers

to fill the casual vacancy created and will
recommend the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers to shareholders

at the 2014 Annual General Meeting

POLICY ON THE AUDITOR PROVIDING
NON-AUDIT SERVICES

With respect to other services provided by
the External Auditor, the following framework
was in place during the year and will continue
to apply on the appointment of the new
External Auditor

* audit related services audit related
servicesinclude formal reporting relating to
borrowings shareholder and other circulars
and various work In respect of acquisitions
and disposals Where the External Auditor
must carry out the wark because of their
office or because they are best placed to

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

do so, the External Auditar is selected
In other circumstances the selection
depends on which firm 1s best suited

tax advisory the selection depends
onwhich firm s best suited in the
circumsiances and

general consulting the External Auditor is
nat selected to provide general consultancy
services except in certarmn circumstances,
and then only after consideration that they
are best placed to prowide the service

and that their independence and objectivity
will not be compromised

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Tim Score’ Chairman of the Audit Committee

Aubrey Adams’ Member

Simon Borrows Member

AUDIT COMMITTEE ATTENDEES

Delonte Atlends as independent External Auditer to the Group

Knight Frank and CBRE

Attend twice a year to present their valuatiens

as the Group s external valuers

John Gildersleeve
Attends by invitation

Chairman of the Company

ChrisGrigg
Attends by invitation

Chief Executive

Lucinda Bell
Attends by invitatien

Finance Director

Anthony Braine
Attends by invitation

Group Secretary

Rob Hudson
Attends by iInvitation

Group Financial Controtler

Marc Furlanger
Attends by invitation

Head of Financial Forecasting and Financial Reporting

RachelWagg
Attends by imitation

Head of Reporuing

Nicota Thomas
Attends by invitation

Head of Property Valuation

Sally Jones
Attends by invitation

Head of Investor Relations

Charles Middleton
Attends by invitation

Head of Tax

Jonathan Rae
Attends by invitation

Secretary to the Risk Comrmittee

Chris Dicks
Aitends by invitation

Head of Internal Audit KPMG

Stephen Spellman
Attends by invitatian

Internal Audit Partner KPMG

1 Rechard Pymwas Chairman of the Audit Commitiee until 5 September 2013 when he stoad down as a Non-
Executive Director of British Land Subsequently Aubrey Adams previously a member of the Committee, was
appainted Chairman of the Cammuttee and Willlam Jackson was appointed as a member of the Committee
Tim Score was appointed Chairman of the Commuttee on 20 March 2014 at which point Aubrey Adams became
a member of the Commuttee and William Jackson stood down from the Commuttee
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

KEY AREAS FORMALLY DISCUSSED AND REVIEWED

PRINCIPAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE BY THE COMMITTEE DURING 2013/14 INCLUDE

76 The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014

REPORTING * Monitoring the integrity of the Company s = Results cormmentary and announcements
AND EXTERNAL financial statements and all formal = Keyaccounting policy jJudgements, inctuding valuations
AUDIT annauncements retaling to the Companys |, Impact of future financial reporting standards
financial performance reviewing financial . G
reporting judgements contained within oing concern
them » External Auditor effectiveness
= Making recommendations to the Board = External sudittender
regarding the appontrent of the External » Selection and recommendation of new External Auditor
Auditor and approving the External Audrtor s | | 4 Hali-yearly External Auditor reports on planning conclusions and
remuneration and terms of engagement final cptnion
* Monitoring and reviewing the Exiernal » Exlernal Auditor management letter containing observations arising
Audrtor sIndependence objectmty and from the annual zudit leading to recommendations for control or
effectiveness financial reporting improvement
» Developing and implementing policy on = External Auditor s remuneration and level of non-audit fees
the engagement of the External Auditor
1o supply non-audit services taking
into account relevant ethical guidance
VALUATIONS = Monitoring and reviewing the valuation = Annual repert on the effectiveness of our valuers, which considers the
pracess qualrty of the valuation process and judgement with a half-yearly update
= Valuer presentations to the Committee
RISK AND = Reviewing the Company sinternal financial | | = The outputs of the risk register process including identification
INTERNAL controls its compliance with the Turnbull of the Group s pringspal nsks and movement in the exposure to these
CONTROL guidance and the effectiveness of its rizks tn the year
internal control and risk management » Qversight of the Group s risk management pracesses and their
systems effectiveness, including activities of the Risk Committee
s Assessing the principal risks of the » Anannuzl report on the effectiveness of internal control systems
bﬁs'”ess |n<l:ludmg thlose ;hat would = Planning internal audit reviews to map the principal risks znd a
threaten solvency orliquidity commitment te review transaction procedures
® Reviewing disclosures on our approach ® Focus on Issues relating to Jont Ventures
to risk in (nterim and Annual Reports
= Anannual fraud nisk assessment and an independent fraud
resilience review
= |nsurance programme for property development and corporate risks
» Credit limits of counterparties
INTERNAL = Mantaring and reviewing the » Manutaring KPMG s execution of the internal audit
AUDIT effectiveness of the Company s Internal » Internal audit effectiveness
Audit function including its plans » Internal audit charter defining its role and responsibilities
level of resources and budget
. R ) Laudit » Internal audit programme of review of the Group s processes and
sviewing '2 ‘:ma audl reports, controls to be undertaken, and an assurance map showing the coverage
recommencalions and progress aof audit work over three years against the principal risks
in implementation of those d
recommendations = Implementation status reparts on Internal Audit recommendations
s The Group s internal audit function reports, including those on
- IT Governance Benchmarking Tax REIT Compliance, Retall Managing
Agents Risk Management Processes, Sustainability Acquisitions Brief,
Business Continuity, Governance review of Eden Walk, Full scope
review of the Hercules Unit Trust, Governance review of SauthGate
Bath Technical Information Security review Tax reputation risk,
Fraud restlience review, and Annual key financial contrels testing
OTHER ® Reviewing the Commuttee s Terms of * Review of the Audit Committee s Terms of Referance
Reference and monitering its executien = Review of the effectiveness of the Audit Commuttee
* Considering compliance with legal = Maintenance of the Group s REIT status
:ﬁqfremer;slaccountmg standards and = Compliance with changes ta the UK Corporate Gavernance Code,
e Listing Rules including the farr, balanced and understandabte concept
* Reviewing the whistle-blowingpolicyand || ¢4 14ance with changes in accounting standards icluding IFRS 13
operation Fair Value Measurement
= Annual tax update and Tax Policy
» Mandatory carbon reporting
= Rewview of PwC Corparate Responsibility Assurance Repart
® Treasury policy




SIGNIFICANT ISSUES CONSIDERED
BY THE COMMITTEE DURING THE YEAR

The follewing cornmitment protocol operated
throughout the year and applied to any
engagement of other work [excluding audtt
and half-yearly reporting) performed by the
External Auditor

= Audit Commuttee approvalis required where
there are any doubts as to whether the
External Auditor has a conflict of interest,
and

= approval by the Audit Committee Chairman
on behalf of the Commuttee 1s required
for each additional project over £0 1 million
in value where cumulative fees for other
work performed by the External Auditor
are projected to exceed 75% of the combined
fee for audit and hali-yearly reporting
review work

During the year no project appravals by the Audit
Committee Chairman were required however
as a precaution approval was requested and
obtained for two non-audit engagements

BY THE COMMITTEE

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

NON-AUDIT WORK CARRIED OUT BY THE
EXTERNAL AUDITOR DURING THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Deloitte Real Estate [formerly Drivers Jonas

Celoitte| provides advice on the masterplanning

of the 7 acres of potential development land
around Meadowhall Shepping Centre together
with occasional advice or services on other
matters |t was appointed to this role prior

to its acquisition by Deloitte The Committee
considered and agreed that this and other
nen-audit related services provided by
Deloitte could be prowided during the year,
subject toappreval by the Committee where
expendiure was above the established
appraval imits

As shownn note 5 to the financial statements,
total fees payable to Delaitte in the last
financial year amounted to £0 8 million

of which £0 2 million was for non-audit related
services provided by Deloitte Real Estate

HOW THESE ISSUES WERE ADDRESSED

EXTERNAL As confirmed in the 2013 Annual Report A detailed description of the tender process is provided in the box
AUDITTENDER the Audit Commuttee tendered the external on page 75
audit for the March 2015 financial year
VALUATIONS Although conducted by external, independent | [ The Audit Committee reviews the methadology and outcomes of the
valuers the valuation of the investment valuations and compares those of CBRE and Knight Frank The exterpal
property portfolio 1s inherently subjective valuers present to the Committee and are asked to highlight any significant
a5 1t 1s made on the basis of assumptions judgements or disagreements with management The Committee
made by the valuer which may not prove assesses the independence of both external valuers Knight Frank and
to be accurate The outcome of this CBRE More information on this can be found on page 78 Furthermore,
Judgement is significant to the Group In the External Auditor challenges the independent valuations as part
terms of its investment decisions, results of their audit procedures and report thewr findings to the Audit Committee
and remuneration
ACCOUNTING FOR Increased risk 1s encountered through The Committee reviews management papers on key jJudgements as well
TRANSACTIONS transactions, as large and non-standard as the External Auditor s repart presented following their detailed review

accounting entries are often required of accounting entries

GOING CONCERN

Risks to the Campany s ongoing solvency
and Lquidity and the appropriateness of
preparing the Group financial statements
for the half-year and the full-yearon a
golng concern basis

The Committee considers the financing requirements of the Group in the
centext of avallable committed facilities and the diversity and longevity
of existing debt In addition a paper 1s provided to the Committee covering
customer concentration financing options and covenant headroom

The External Auditor shares their review of these papers and their
assumptions with the Committee

REIT STATUS Maintenance of the Group s REIT status The Audit Committee reviews compliance with the REIT tests annually
through compliance with certain conditions Management present the methodology and results of the REIT tests,
has a significant impact on the Group s highlighting any change in long-term trends and the current tevel of
results headroom

FAIR, Under the UK Corporate Governance Code Enhanced procedures and documentation were adopted during

BALANCED AND the Board should establish arrangements the year, as detailed in the Accountability section of the Governance

UNDERSTANDABLE | | to ensure the Annual Report presents a far, Review on page 71

balanced and understandabie assessment
of the Company s position and prospects

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee
considered what enhancements were
necessary to current procedures to ensure
that this statement could be made
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company s Internal Audit function has been
outsourced to KPMG, who reports regutarly to
the Cornmittee, as detailed in the table on page
76 The Comrmittee monitors the performance
of the Internal Audit function throughout the
year, as well as performing an annual review

of its effectiveness The Committee believes
KPMG continues to discharge its internal

audit duties effectively

VALUATIONS

The external valuation of British Land s
portfclio is a key determinant of the Groups
balance sheet, performance and senior
management remuneration Inaccordance
with its Terms of Reference the Commitiee
undertakes a rigorous approach to menitoring
and reviewing the valuation process and the
effectiveness of the Group s valuers Knight
Frank and CBRE The Committee performed
a detailed review of the effectiveness of the
valuers in the current year, based upon a series
of qualitative and quantitative measures which
consider the quality of the valuation process
and judgements, with comparison against
actual transactions

The valuers present directly to the Audit
Committee at the half-year and year-end
review of results including confirmation cf
their valuation process market conditions and
significant jJudgements made The Company s
External Auditor reviews the valuations and
valuation pracess and reports its findings

to the Audit Committee having full access

to the valuers and exchange of information to
determine that due process has been followed
using appropriate informaticn The valuation
process s also subject to regular internal
audit review, the most recent being undertaken
by KPMG on behalf of the Company in 2013

For the valuation cf the Group s wholly-

owned assets, the Company has fixed fee
arrangements with Knight Frank and CBRE n
line with the recommendations of the Carsberg
Comrmittee Report Copies of the valuation
certificates of Knight Frank and CBRE can be
found on the website at www britishtand com/
investorsfoperational-performance

IDENTIFICATION AND EVALUATION OF
COMMERCIAL RISKS AND RELATED
CONTROL OBJECTIVES

The Audit Commitiee holds respensibility
for overseeing the effectiveness of sound risk
management and internal control systems

It fulfils this role by monitoring the activities
of the Risk Commuttee, the risk management
processes In place and the activities of the
Internal Audit function, including its
reporting on the effectiveness of controls

Risk Committee
Pt

Managing risk indelivering our strategy
P36-37

Principal risks
P38-41

The Risk Committee minutes are circulated
to the Audit Committee for review with

any significant matters highlighted for Audit
Committee discussion Twice yearly the
principal nisks, which are derwved from the risk
register process, are presented to the Audit
Commuttee, along with commentary on how
the exposure to these risks has moved inthe
period, for cversight and discussion Annually,
a report on the effectiveness of internat
controls is prepared by Internal Audit for
presentation to the Audit Committee as well
as a fraud risk assessment Internal Audit
and the Risk Committee work closely together
to ensure that identified risk areas inform

the internal audit programme and similarly,
findings of internal audit reviews are taken
inte account in identifying and evaluating risks
within the business British Land maintains a
framework of controls related to key financial
processes and management of the associated
risks The effectiveness of such controls

1s reviewed by Internal Audit annually either
through dedicated procedures or in the
course of other Internal Audit reviews

Tim Score
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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REPORT OF THE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

DEAR SHAREHOLDER,
Welcome to the Report of the
Nomination Committee The
principal responsibilities of the
Committee and the key areas
discussed in the year ended

31 March 2014 are highlighted
In the box on the page 81

CHANGES TO THE BOARD AND
BOARD-LEVEL COMMITTEES

During the year the Nomination Commuttee
has spent significant time discussing and
recornmending changes to the Board and
Board-level Committees outside of formal
meetings including consulting other Board
members and working with Russell Reynalds
Assocrates, an external search agency

On 5 September 2012 Richard Pym stocd down
as a Non-Executive Director of British Land
{ollowing his appointment as Chair of The Co-
Operative Banking Group and The Co-
Operative Bank Richard Pym was Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee before standing down
The Nomination Commitiee identified the
need to appoint a new Non-Executive Oirector
to broaden the Board s collective experience
and add a fresh perspective to boardroom
discussions regarding the Company s strategy,
position and prospects The time commitment
required by the Company from the Chairman
of the Audit Commuttee is such that the
Nomination Commitiee decided thatan
external candidate would be best placed to
devote sufficient ime ta the role in the long-
term The Committee alsc considered that

the new appointee should have the appropriate
degree of financial experience and expertise

to fulfil the role of Chairman of the Audit
Committee effectively

Follewing a rigerous selection process,
detailed in the box on the next page Tim Score
was appointed a Non-Executive Director

of British Land and Chatrman of the Audit
Committee on 20 March 2014 Tim Score s
biography on page 67 details his financial
experience working at companies ina
range of different sectors, he 1s a chartered
accountant and has nine years experience
of chairing the Audit Commuttee at National
Express Group PLC

The Nemination Committee recommended

a number of changes to Board-level committee
memberships following Richard Pym s
resignatian {o maintain an appropriate

talance of skills, knowledge, expenience

and independence on each Committee and

to remain cormpliant with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

Aubrey Adams undertook the role of Chairman
of the Audit Commuttee between Richard Pym s
departure and Tim Score s appomntment, and
Williarn Jackson joined the Audit Commuttee

as a member for the period between Richard
Pym s resignattion and Ttm Score s appointment
Dido Harding was appotinted a member of the
Nomination Commuttee replacing Richard Pym
Throughout the year the membership of each
Board-level Committee has comprised
independent Non-Executive Direciors to the
extent required by the Code R

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Committee considers that the Board
consists of individuals with the right balance
of skills, experience and knowledge to provide
strong and effective leadership of the Company
The majonity of the Board, excluding the
Chairman are independent Non-Executive
Directors and the Board s collective
experience covers a range of relevant sectors
as llustrated in the Maintaining a Balanced
Board boxon the next page Aswellasa
breadth of property and financial experience
the Board members have personal experience
of working in the retail and corporate
environments that are typical of many of cur
occuplers

Board biographies
& P&6-67

Board evaluation
< P70

Tim Score will stand for election and all

of British Land s other Directors will retire
and submit themselves for re-election by
shareholders at the 2014 Annual General
Meeting The Commuttee believes that all
the Directors continue to demonstrate
commitment to their roles as Board and
Committee members, continue to discharge
their duttes effectively and each make
avaluable contribution to the leadership
of the Company

DIVERSITY POLICY

British Land pays {ull regard to the beneiits

of diversity, including gender diversity both
when the Nomination Commitiee is searching
for candidates for Board appointments and
when the Company 1s searching for candidates
for other appointments

NOMINATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS

John Gildersleeve
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Lord Turnbull
Member

Dido Harding'
Member

1 Richard Pymwas a member of the Committee until
5 September 2013 when.he stood down as a Non-
Executive Directar of Britush Land and Dido Harding
was appointed as a member of the Committee
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

APPOINTMENT OF TIM SCORE AS
A NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the year the Nomination Commitiee
wdentified the need to appoint a new Non-
Executive Director to the Board of British
Land with the appropriate experience and
available time cormmitment to take on the
role of Chairman of the Audit Commitlee

» The Nomination Committee was chaired
by John Gildersleeve Chairman of the
Company, during the selection process

= Russell Reynolds Associates', an external
search agency, was engaged by the
Commuittee o assist with the selection
process The role of Russell Reynolds
Associates included

- preparing a detalled role specification,
incorporating the expected time
commitment and duties to be performed
as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company and as Chairman of the Audit
Cormnrnittee

- searching for and benchmarking
candidates for the role and

- producing detailed profiles of the
candidates to be considered by the
Committee

During the Committee s search candidates
from a range of bustness backgrounds
were considered including both male and
fernale candidates

= The Committee consulted with British
Land s advisers throughout the process
and tcak detailed references

Following this rigorous selection process,
the Nominatien Committee recommended
that Tim Score be appointed to the role
The Board accepted the recornmendation,
and Tim Score was duly appointed on

20 March 2014

1 Russell Reynolds Associates have been engaged
by the Campany in a search consultancy capacity
inthe past they do not provide any other services
for the Company
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The Beard agrees with the conclusions of the
Davies Review of Women on the Board that
greater efforts should be made inimpraving
the gender balance of corporate boards and
that quotas for female Board representation
are not the preferred approach The Company
currently has two female directors Dido
Harding whowas appointed as a Non-
Executive Director 1n January 2010, and
Lucinda Bell, who was appointed Finance
Director in May 2011 This currently represents
18% fernale Board membership

The promotion of women to Board and

other senior posttions within the Company

15 dependent on the recruitment, development
and retention of wormen m the workforce,

both within the Company and more widely
througheut the business and professional
community

Our recruitment practices have long included
a commitment tc diversity and gender eguality,
and wilt continue to do so throughout the
Company Asof 31 March 2014 British Land s
employees comprised 96 females and 127
males of the employees considered to be
executives 39 are fermale and 98 are male
Senior Executives comprising the Executive
Committee and Operations Commuttee,
cansisted of six females and 26 males These
are full ime equivalent figures The head
count at 31 March 2014 was 242

To encourage and help mothers return to work
after childbirth, we offer enhanced maternity
leave payments and support flexible working
patterns, currently 25 of our female employees
iake advantage of this facility We also offer
enhanced paternity leave payments and
support flexible working patterns for all
parents and other employees whose personal
circumstances may make this beneficial
Currently five men work ilexibly and nine men
took advantage of enhanced paternity leave
during 2013/14 Training and mentering
programmes are provided to ensure that all
our employees achieve thewr potential taking
account of their diverse development needs

It 1s pteasing that our Finance Dhrector Lucinda
Bell was an internal appointment reflecting
the development of our own people

The Nemination Committee seeks to Increase
the percentage of female Board members as
quickly as we are able The speed atwhichwe
can achieve this will be subject to the availability
of surtable candidates and compliance with the
requirements of the Equality Act the Board

has a fundamental obligation to ensure that
appointments are of the best candidates to
promote the success of the Company and we

do not consider that it would be to the long-term
benefit of the Company If appointments were
made on any other basis Subject to these
requirernents we have an ongoing commitment
to further strengthening female representation
at Board and top management level




PRINCIPAL RESPONSISILITIES
OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

» Regular review of the structure size
and composition of the Baard

= Recommendations to the Board with
regard to Board changes and Board-level
Committee membership changes

Succession planning for Directors and
other senior executives

* Identifying suitable candidates for Board
vacancies, to be norminated for Board
approval

= Reviewing the leadership needs of the
Company

* Reviewing ime commitments required
from Non-Executive Directors

s Non-Executive Directors letters of
appointment and recormmmendations
for re-election

KEY AREAS FORMALLY DISCUSSED
AND REVIEWED BY THE COMMITTEE
DURING 2013/14 INCLUDE

= Review of Board and Committees
- structure, size and compgosition, and

- skills, knowledge and experience
to ensure that they remain able
to discharge their duties and
responsibilities effectively and
to the required high standard

Richard Pym stepping down as a
Non-Executwe Director of the Company

- consequent changes to Board-level
Committee membershigs and

- the selection and appaintment of Tim
Score as a Non-Executive Director
and Chairrnan of the Audii Committee

» Succession planning including
identification of potential internal
candidaies for seniar vacancies which
may arise on a crisis, short medum
or long-term basts

* Recornmendations to the Board regarding
Directors retiring far re-election by
shareholders at the 2014 AGM

*» Recommendations to the Board for the
renewal of the letters of appointment
of Simon Borrows Wiltiamn Jackson
and Aubrey Adams

The policy thraughout the Company 1s

to employ the best candidates available in
every position regardless of sex, race

[ethruc origin nationality, colour], age, religion
or philosophical belief sexual arientation
marriage or cwvil partnership pregnancy
maternity gender reassignment or disability
Applications for employment by disabled
persons are always fully considered bearing n
mind the aptitudes of the applicants concerned
In the event of members of staff becoming
disabled everyeffortis made to ensure

that their employment continues and that
appropriate training 1s arranged The policy
provides that the training career development
and promotion of disabled people should,

as far as passible, be 1dentical to that of

other employees

SUCCESSION PLANNING

Succession planning is a key area of focus
for the Nominatioen Committee and for each
role potential successors have been identified
for crisis, short, medium and long-term
timescales Successors for Board, senior
executive and executive positions are
considered by the Comrmiitee The annual
Strategy Days are an oppartunity for the
Committee to discuss succession planning

in conyunction with the full Board of Directors

DEVELOPING PEOPLE AT BRITISH LAND
The Board recognises the importance

of developing people at British Land,
particularly in relation to successien planning
for senior positions within the Company

People development was a core topic discussed

at the Board s Strategy Days in February
2014, aswell as being considered by the
Nomination Commuttee Having expert
people (s one of the four core focus areas
of our business model

Expert people
< P28-29

During the year a new Director of Human
Rescurces, loff Sharpe, was appointed and a
number of new iniiatives are being developed
to recognise and grow internal talent including

* the introduction of a formal talent review
process to strengthen the Company s
approach to identifying high-potentiat
employees and tailoring development
plans for therm

* People Management and Leadership
Development programmes being rolled out

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

= a Coaching and Mentoring programme
being introduced, which particularly
facuses on supperting female employees
as they develop their careers and

= biannual Chairman and CEQ Awards to
recognise employees contributians ta the
business n areas ranging from ¢ciizenship
to commercial acumen Winnersare
selected afler a comprehensive peer
normination process, which encourages
positive feedback to, and recognition of,
employees at all levels of the business

John Gildersleeve
Chairman of the Nemination Committee
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION REPORT

DEAR SHAREHOLDER,

It 1s my pleasure to introduce
our new format Remuneration
Report

This year you are asked to vate separately
on our Remuneratien Policy and our
Remuneration Implementation Report

Our Remuneration Policy 1s set out first

on pages B4 tc 93 and the Remuneration
Implementation Report that shows pay for
2013/14 follows this Both parts are in the
format required by The Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups [Accounts and
Reports] [Amendment) Regulations 2013
The vote on the Remuneration Policy 1s
binding and the vote on the Rernuneration
Implementation Report I1s advisory

REMUNERATION PHILOSOFPHY

At British Land, our olyjective 1s to deliver
superior total shareholder returns

to achieve this we must produce consistent
outperformance of cur peers over a sustainad
period of ime, through focusing our efforts
on the activities that we believe will be most
value-enhancing to shareholders We dothis
by creating places people prefer Pages 30
to 37 in our Strateqic Report describe how
we delver this strategy and manage risk

We 2nsure that we have strong alignment of
management ncentives with our stated
strategy, thereby matching the interests of the
Directors with those of the sharehclders The
different elements of Directors remuneration
packages at Briush Land have been carefully
chosen so that they are suppertive of and
relevant to the four focus areas of our business
model right places, customer orientation,
capital efficiency and expert people Pages 31
to 35 describe the link between our focus
areas and our key Inceniive measures These
measures are regularly reviewed by the
Commuittee to ensure that this crucial ink

1s maintained

As partof this pay policy should provide
effective ncentives for exceptional Company,
team and Individual perfermance with
significant upward and downward variability
The Company targets a high-performance
open and merttocratic culiure where people
are mativated individually and as a team

to outperform competitors subject to
maintenance of guality and secunity The
business model 15 people-light and asset-heavy
-1t leverages the work, skill and judgement
of a relatively small tearn over & large

value of assets This means British Land s
expectations of staff are high and there

15 a scarcity value on proven performers
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When setting pay the Committee also bears

in mund that as well as providing metivation

to perform pay plays animportant role in
attracting and retaining the most talented
employees Cur Policy needs to be competitive
with zlternative employment opportunities

In the current environment the Commitiee
recognises that a listed company s
remuneration pelicy can be a contentious
Issue, as such consultation with shareholders,
regular policy reviews and clear, transparent
reporting are essential to ensure that British
Land s Remuneration Policy meets the
requirements of its shareholders

This approach has led us tc use two main
structures within each Directar s rernuneration
package Firstly, we have basic salary and
benefits that are fixed annually at norms broadly
conststent with the Company s FTSE position
with appropriate vanance for specialist
positions Secondly each Director s Annual
tncentive and share scheme awards [under the
Matching Share Plan IMSP] and Long-Term
Incentive Ptan (LTIP)) are variable, their
magnitudes reflect both Company performance
and the performance of the Director s specific
areas of responsibility These variable elements
can move total pay above medsaninto the upper
quartile, but anly for upper quartile
performance The amount received 1s strangly
linked to outperformance of our peers hiting
our challenging goals, share price performance
and meeting the Company s strategic targets
over ong and three-year time horizons

Full details of the approach including the
performance measures and maximum
amounts are set out in the Remuneration Policy

SUBSTANTIAL CHANGES MADE

DURING THE YEAR

Our LTIP expired in July 2013 and we asked
you to approve a new LTIP After detailed
consultation with shareholders and
shareholders adwisory bodies the following
changes were introduced

® the LTIP performance condition was
changed so that 50% will be measured
by comparing British Land s annual Total
Property Return against IPD s ennual UK
Total Property Return as thus best measures
our business strategy of targeting property
outperformance The other 50% of the
condition will measure our Total Accounting
Return against 16 FTSE 350 peers as this
best measures our business strategy of
producing outperformance at the return
on capital level and takes inte account
NAV per share and dividends




to support the One Team appreach the
Chief Executive s maximum Annual Incentive
award was reduced from 180% of basic
salary to 190%, and his LTIP maximum
award value was reduced from 250%

of basic salary to 200% - these changes
brought the Chief Executive in line with

the other Executive Directors

= to reflect shareholder views, the vesting
percentage for median performance under
the MSP was reduced from 35% to 25%

= the number of companies within the
MSP total shareholder return measure peer
group was Increased from five to 16 This
Is the same peer group used under the LTIP
Total Accounting Return measure, and

clawback provisions were introduced within
the new LTIP and the MSP Awards

The new LTIP and the Remuneration Repert
received overwhelming support from you at
the AGM in July 2013 with votes in favour of

aver 96% and $8% respectively The detailed
results of the voting are set out on page 107

Salaries for Executive Directors were not
increased on 1 April 2013

CONTEXT OF DECISIONS MADE IN 2013/14
As you will see from our financisl results the
Company has performed strongly throughout
the financial year, meeting or exceeding all
but one of its targets Details of British Land s
performance and the targets set for the next
financial year can be found en pages 97 and
94 respectively

No salary increases for Executive Directors
were givenon 1 April2014 as the current
salary levels remain correctly positioned

in the market around the median of cur
comparater group

Following the detailed consultation and
changes made 1n 2013/14 it 1s not proposed
that any further changes be made to our
Remuneration Policy at the present time

We very much valued your comments and
support for our Remuneration Policy last
year and hope that you will continue te be
supportive of our Remuneratian Palicy and
our Remuneration Implementation Report
at our AGM in July

Lord Turnbull
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

KEY ACTIVITIES OF THE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE 2013/14

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATICN

REMUNERATION REPORT 82-107

» Approval of the 2012/13 Remuneration
Report

= Review of Company perfermance
against targets for 2012/13

Approval of Company and Directors
performance objectives for 2013/14

s Review of
- Chef Executive s Remuneration

- Executive Directors salaries and
bonuses

- employees salares and benuses and

- the Committee s response te the

Financial Reporting Council s Directors

Remuneration Consultation

Approval of discretionary share scheme
grants and vestings

» Approval of all-ernployee share scheme
grants

= Consideration of the new regulations
applying to the 2013/14 Rermnuneration
Report and the binding shareholder vote
on Remuneration Policy at the 2014 AGM

REMUNERATIGN COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Chairman of the
Remuneration
Committee and
Seniar Independent
Director

Lord Turnbutl

Dide Harding Member

William Jackson Member

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ATTENDEES

Alan Judes’
Attends by invitation

Strategic
Remuneration
Committee s
Independent Advisor

Anthony Braine
Attends as Secretary
to the Commuittee

Group Secretary

Chairman of the
Company

John Gildersleeve
Altends by invitation

Chris Grigg Chief Executive

Attends by invitation

Human Resources
DOirector

Joff Sharpe
Attends by invitation

1 The Committee has appointed Alan Judes as its

Independent Adviser Further detailis provided in the
Consideration by the Directars of matters relating
to Directors remuneration paragraph on page 107

Remuneration Policy 84
Remuneration Implementation Report 94
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION POLICY

The following Remuneration
Policy 1s designed to attract
the right people to British L_and
and to reward the Executive
Directors for performance
that supports British Land’s

strategy

The Policy witl take effect from 18 July 2014,
pursuant to shareholder approval of the Policy
at the Annual General Meeting on that day

The elements contained in Directors usual
remuneration packages are summarised

to the night

Chairman Non-Executive Executive Directors
Directors
| Fixed I I Variable J
Chairman s fee Fees Basic salary Annuat Incentive

Benefits

Matching

Share Plan

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

COMPONENT AND PURPOSE

OFPERATION

Benefits Pension/pension
allowance
Long-Term
All-empleyee share || Incentive Plan
schemes
MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Basic salary

The purpose of basic salary s to
attract the right people for the jab

The level of salary offered is
intended to attract and retain
high-calibre indwduals,
with an appropriate degree
of expertise and experience

Salaries are reviewed annually
by the Remuneration Committee
with any Increases taking effect
on 1 April for the following year

Levels of bastc salaryare
posttioned araund the median of
the chosen comparator group,
which consists of FTSE 100
companies with broadly similar
market capitalisations When
setting the level of basic salary

the Commmittee will take into
account the Executive Director s
respansibilities and, when
reviewing the salaries of the
Executive Directors, the Committee
will also take into account the
employment conditions and salary
Increases awarded to employees
throughout the British Land Group

in addition to their basic satary,
Executive Directors may be
eligrble to receive fees for
sitting on the boards of certain
subsidiary companies

Maximum levels of salary will not
be greater than the upper guartile
of the chosen comparator group
Typically increases f required
will be in line with inflation and
general salary increases across
the Company

Executive Directors fees for
sitting an the boards of certain
subsidiary companies are capped
at a maximum of £1,500 per
annum In aggregate forall
qualifying appointments

Net applicable

Taxable benefits

The purpose of the taxable
benefits recevable by the
Executive Directors is to form
part of a remuneration package
whichwill attract and retain the
best people for the Company

The Company s Policy s to pay

a car allowance in beu of providing
a Company car The Executive
Directors are alsa provided with
private medical insurance covering
themselves their spouses and

any children under the age of 25,
access te independent actuarial
financial and legal advice when
necessary the optiontotake up
gym membership, which 1 paid far
in part by the Company and certain
other benefits on substantially

the sarme basis as for all other
employees

The maximum car allowance
permitted under the Policy is
£20 000 per annum

The maximurm cost of the other
taxable benefits perrmitted under
the Policy 1s the amount required
for the Company to continue
providing these benefits at a
simiar level year-on-year

Not applicable
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

COMPONENT AND PURPOSE

OPERATION

MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Annual incentive

The purpose of the Annual Incentive
award s to reward performance
that supports the Company s key
strategic priorities

The level of Annual incentive
award reflects both Company
perfermance and the Director s
individual centribution over the
preceding year against annually
tallored targets

Annual Incentive awards are
made annually by the Committee
to the Executive Directors Levels
of award are dependent an bath
individual and Company
performance over the financial
year against measures determined
by the Cornrnitiee Awards are
granted after the end of the
financial year when actual
performance has been measured

One third of each Executive
Director s Annual Incentive I1s
deferred and used to purchase
shares [MSP Bonus Shares]
under the Matching Share Plan
as detalled below

The Committee may require some
or all of the MSP Bonus Sharesto
be forfeited at any time before the
three-year holding period elapses
if 1t1s discovered that the Annual
Incentive with which they were
purchased was granted on the
basis of matenally misstated
accounts or other data

The maximumn level of Annual
Incentive which may be awarded

1s equivalent to 150% basic salary,
the Cormmittee may choose to
award no Annual Incentive if the
performance of the Company and/
or the indvidual has not met the
required standards to warrant

an award being made

Targets retate to the Company s
strategic focus areas aswell as
each Director s indmvidual areas

of respansibility Tailored Company
and individual targets are set by
the Committee at the beginning

of the financial year over which
performance will be assessed The
Annual Incentive targets are not
strictly weighted when determining
the level of a Direcier s Annual
Incentive award the Cammittee
will take intc account performance
against all of the quantitative and
qualitative Company targets as
well as the Indvidual s targets

over the year and make an
assessrment in the round

If actual performance averaged
over all targets 1s equal to the
median level of performance the
AnnualIncentive award granted
will be equivalent to 37 5% of basic
salary Up to 75% of basic salary
1s payable for performance thatis
in Line with expectations If average
performance Is below the median
level of performance no Annual
Incentive award will be granted

Matching Share Plan [MSP)

The MSP 15 designed to ensure
that participants are focused

an long-term performance
aligrung their interests with those
of shareholders

The MSP has two performance
measures one measures total
shareholder return and one
measures gross ncome growth

The Cempanysaims to

deliver superior total returns

to shareholders over tirne

The MSP total sharehaolder return
performance measure directly
links the level of remuneration
received by participants with

the level of returns delivered

to shareholders

Having the right assets in our
portfolio and managing them

the right way creates enduring
occupier dernand for our
properties This delivers long-term
growth in our rental income, which
Inturn drives value creation

The MSP gross income growth
performance measure links the
level of remuneration receved to
the degree of growth in Incorne,
thereby rewarding the creation

of value

One third of the Annual Incentive
award s deferred and used to
purchase MSP Bonus Shares
which are deferred for a period

of three years from grant before
being released, during which time
the Executive Directors receve
any dividends paid on the MSP
Bonus Shares

The Company makes a canditional
award of MSP Matching Shares,
which matches the MSP Bonus
Sharesona?21basis The MSP
Matching Shares are held fora
three-year performance period
following grant and the proporticn
vesting if any, 1s dependent on both
Company perforrmance against the
MSP performance measures and
the MSP Bonus Shares being held
far the requisite three-year period
Shares are immediately transferred
to the individuals upon vesting along
with payments equivalent to the
dividends accrued on those shares

During the three-year performance
period the Committee may require
some or 2!l of the MSP Matching
Shares that have been granted but
have not yet vested to be forferted

if it1s discovered that they were
awarded on the basis of materially
rmusstated accounts or other data

The maximurn nurmber of MGP
Matching Shares receivable s
dictated by the size of the Annual
Incentive award

The maximurm face value of the
MSP Matching Shares is equivalent
to two thirds of the value of the
Annual Incentive award, which
would equate to 100% of the value
of basic salaryf the maximurn
permitted level of Annual Incentive
was granted

MSP perfarmance 15 assessed
against two equally weighted
performance measures One
performance measure assesses
the Company s total shareholder
return [TSR] against that of a
comparator group the other
assesses the Company s gross
income growth [GIG] aganst
that of the Investment Property
Databank (IPD) UK Annual
Property Index

The comparator group against
which TSR 1s measured s
determined prior to each
performance period and consists
of FTSE 350 property companies
[t may be amended during 2
performance period If there

Is a corporate event affecting

any mernber of the Group

The MSP vesting hurdles are
stepped, requiring high levels of
cutperformance for 100% of the
MSP Matching Shares to vest 25%
of the MSP Matching Shares will
vestif the runimum performance
threshold 1s et Performance
below the minimum threshold

will result in the entire award

of M5P Matching Shares lapsing
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTINUED

’EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

COMPONENT AND PURPOSE

OPERATION

MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Long-Term Incentive Plan [LTIP)

The LTIP is designed to ensure
that participants are focused on
long-term performance, aligning
their interests with those of
shareholders

The LTIP has two performance
measures, one measures total
property return and one
measures total accounting return

The LTIP total property return
performance measure rewards
streng performance at the
property level, assessing British
Land s performance against the
Investrment Property Databank
UK Annual Property Index (the
Index] The Index has been
chosen as 1t contains property
valued at £154 billion, representing
294 entities and funds as at

31 December 2013, so provides
a large encugh sample to be a
statistically relevant benchmark
against which to assess our
property performance The level
of remuneration recewved under
this performance measure Is
linked to the degree that British
Land outperforms the Index

Briish Land aims to deliver
superior totat returns to
shareholders aver time We
believe that concentrating on
achieving strong total accounting
returns will translate into
delivering strong total shareholder
returns in the long-term

The LTIP total accounting return
performance measure links the
level of remuneration received
to the level of tetal accounting
return achieved thus rewarding
performance which we believe
will lead to superiar shareholder
returns over time

Both LTIP perfermance measures
assess the Company s ability to
choose the right sectors to invest
In and are apprapriate measures
in fluctuating property markets

as the vesting hurdles use
guartiles not fixed percentage
outperformance of the median

LTIP awards are made annually
by the Commuttee to the Executive
Directors and may consist of
performance shares and/or
options Each Director can
indicate a preference as to the
proportions of the award they
wish to receve as performance
shares [le condiional nights

to receive shares) and market
value options

The value used to determine the
number of performance shares
andfor optiens granted is the fair
value, as described in the next
colurmn The fairvalue of an
option 1s based on the accounting
cost and expected life of an
option The cost to the Company
of an award s the same
regardless of whetherit1s
comprised of options or
performance shares, and
allowing the Director to indicate
a preference as to the propoertions
of options and performance
shares they receve increases the
perceived value of the Incentive
The exarcise price of any options
comprised In the award will be
the average market value of the
Company s shares aver the three
dealing days immedrately
preceding grant

LTIP awards are held for a three-
year perfarmance period
following grant and the
proportien vesting, if any, I1s
dependent on Company
performance agamnst the LTIP
performance measures Any
vesting performance shares will
immediately be transferred to the
Directors, along with payments
equivalent to the dividends
accrued on those performance
shares and the interest on those
deferred dividends Any vesting
options can be exercised at any
potnt during the sevenyears
following vesting the exercise
price being paid by the Director

The Committee may require
some or all of the performance
shares or options that have been
granted but have net yet vested or,
In the case of options, have vested
but have not yet been exercised,
to be forfeited if it 1s discovered
that they were awardad on the
basis of materially misstated
accounts or other daia

The maximurm value of LTIP
award which may be granted 1s
equivalent to 200% of basic salary
the actual value of award granted
within this imitis determined

by the Commuttee Forthese
purposes thevalus of an LTIP
award 1s the aggregate fair value
of the relevant parformance
shares and/or options at the date
of grant

The fair value of a performance
share 1s the average market value
of the Company s shares over the
three dealing days immediately
preceding the grant date and the
fair value of an option 1s such
fraction of that average market
value as the Committee sets
from time to time This fraction
1s currently one quarter but the
Commititee may change the
fraction as it sees fit to reflect
the economic models used by
the Cornpany for the valuation

of options

LTIP awards are discretionary,
therefore the Commuttee 1s
under no obligation to grant
an LTIP award to a Director

Twe equally-weighted
performance measures are used
tc assess LTIP performance

The first performance measure
assesses the Cormnpany s total
property return against that

of the Index

The second performance
measure assesses the Company s
total accounting return (TAR]
[which measures change in NAV
plus dividends paid] against the
total accounting return of a chosen
peer group of FTSE 350 property
companies The comparator
group against which the

TAR condition 1s measured 1s
determined prior to each
performance period and may be
amended during a performance
period if there 1s a carporate

event affecting any member

of the group

The LTIP vesting hurdles are
stepped requiring high levels

of outperformance fer 100%

of the LTIP awards to vest 25%

of the LTIP award will vest if the
minimum performance threshold
is met Performance below the
mimmum threshold will result

in the entire LTIP award lapsing
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY
COMPONENT AND PURPOSE OPERATION MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY PERFORMANCE MEASURES
Other items in the nature Executive Directors participaste The maxirmurm opportunity under Not applicable

of remuneration

Executive Directors are eligible
to participate in the Company s
two HMRC-approved, all-
employee share schemes, the
Share Incentive Plan [SIPl and
the Sharesave Scherne Bath
schernes encourage employees,
including Executive Direciors

to buld a helding of shares

in the Company

Executive Directars are also
eligible to receve non-taxable
kenefits, designed to form part
of a remuneration package
which will attract and retain the
best people for the Company

inthe SIP and the Sharesave
Schemne onthe same basis as
ather eligible employees

Executive Directors are eligible
to receve non-taxable bensfits
including life assurance cover
under which a lump sum of four-
times basic salary will be paid
out on the event of death in
service, permanent health
insurance under which 79%

of basic salary will be paid to

the Director in the event of long-
term absence due to certain
medical reasens annual
medical checks any relevant
professicnal subscription fees
and certain other benefits on
substantially the same basis

as for all other employees

the SIP and Sharesave Scheme

1s set by the rules of the Schemes
and I1s determined by the statutary
Umits To achieve the maximum
opportunity permitted by the
rules of each scheme, the
Director must contribute the
maximum permitied monthly
amount {deducted from salary]

to purchase shares or fund
options under the scheme

The maximum cost of the non-
taxable benefits permitted under
the Policy 1s the amount required
for the Company to continue
providing these benefits at a
similar level year-on-year Such
benefits zre prowided on similar
terms to all eligible employees

Pension

The Company aims to provide
the Executive Directors with
an appropriate level of pension
onretirement as part of a
remuneration package that
will attract and retain the best
people for the Company

Executive Directors who joined
the Company before 2006 accrue
benefits under the defined
benefit scheme, which 13 now
closed to new members Their
accrual rates are determined

by the rules of the scheme and
are dependent on the age at
which they joined the Company
Benefits up te the hmit permitted
by the tax legislatien are
provided In a registered plan
Benefits over that imit are
provided in an empleyer financed
retirernent benefit scheme
[EFRBS| EFRBS participants
can choose annually whether
they wish to be EFRBS
members, or to receve a

cash payment in lieu

Directors who joined or join
the Cornpany after 2006 are
eligible ta be members of the
defined contribution scheme
Directors may choose whether
contributions are made into the
Company s defined contribution
scheme ar into their own
personal pension plan or may
elect to take all or part as cash
in lieu of pension contributions

The maximum accrual rate

for a defined benefit member
1s that which will give the target
benefit at age 60, subject to the
accrual rate being no greater
than one thirtieth and no less
than one sixtieth of salary

The target benefit 1s the pensien
that can be provided by the

£1 8 milicn Lifetime allowance
at 31 March 2012, uplifted by
RPI from that date

Employer pension contributions
to Executive Directors eligtble for
the defined contribution scheme
are made at a fixed percentage
of salary between 15% and 35%

Not applicable
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

| CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

COMPONENT AND PURPOSE OPERATION MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY PERFORMANCE MEASURES
Chairman s annual fee The annuat fee of the Chairman The maximum annual fee will not Not applicable
The lavel of the Chairman s annual | | 'S @ matter for the Remuneration be greater than the upper gquartile
fee 1s (ntended to attract and retam | | CoOMmittee and is reviewed of the chosen comparator group
a high calibre indwidual with an annuatly The level of the Typically increases if required,
appropriate degree of expertise Chairman s annuzl fee 1s will be in line with Inflation
and experiance positioned around the median

of our chosen comparator
group, which consists of FTSE
100 companies with broadly
simiar market capitalisations
Chairman s benefits The Chairman is provided with The maximum opportunity is the Not applicable
Benelils are provided to facilitate a car and chauffeur cost to the Company of providing
the Chairman s travel in the this grossed-up taxable benefit
fulfitment of fus or her duties atasimilar level each year
Non-Executive Directors fees The remuneration of the Non- The maximum aggregate Not applicable

Fees are set to take into account
the level of responsibility,
experience and abiliies required,
aswell as to reflect attendance at
Board and Commmittee meetings

88

Executive Directors isa matter
for the Executive Directors

and fees are reviewed annually
MNon-Executive Directors receve
a basic annual fee along with
additional fees if they hold the
position of Senicr Independent
Director or Commuttee Chair,
plus a fee for each Board or
Committee meeting attended

The Company s Policy 1s to
deliver a total fee ata levelin
line with similar positions at our
chesen comparater group, which
consists of FTSE 100 companies
with broadly similar market
capitalisations The Non-
Executive Directors fee
structure is designed so that
fullatiendance at Board and
Committee meetings 1s required
to achieve a total fee that 1s1n
ne with our comparator group

The Company may reimburse
expenses reasonably incurred
by the Non-Executive Directors
in fulfilment of the Company s
business, togetherwith any
taxes thereon

The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014
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NOTES TO THE REMUNERATION
POLICY TABLE

Remuneration Policy for other employees
Salary reviews across the Group are carried
out on the same basis as salary reviews for
the Executive Directors, consideration s given
lo the individual s role, duties experience

and performance, along with consideration

of typical salary levels cf employees in similar
roles incomparabte companies, where the
data 1s available

Employees are entitled to taxable and non-
taxable benefits with executives being entitled
to substantially the sarme benefits as the
Executive Directors

All ernptoyees are eligible to recerve an Annual
Incentive the level of which will be dependent
on both individual and Company performance,
as for the Executive Directors

Senicr executives may be invited to take part

in the Matching Share Plan Executives may
be granted Long-Term Incentive Plan awards
and executives with responsibilities for the unit
trusts and Retail and Office portfolios may be
eligible for awards under the Fund Managers
Performance Plan (FMPP] The FMPP 15 not
offered to Executive Directors

All new employees join the Company s defined
contribution pension scheme, on the same
terms as the eligible Directors other than the
Chief Executive The Company s all-employee
share schemes [the SIP and the Sharesave
Scheme] are also open ta eligible employees

Long-Term Incentive Plan awards granted
prior to 2013

The current Lang-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP}
was approved by shareholders:n 2013 LTIP
awards granted in 2012 and earlier are
assessed against a different performance
measure underthe rules cf the previous LTIP
awards Performance 1s measured over the
three years following grant and vesting 1s
dependent on performance of the Company s
net asset value per share compared to the
capital growth component of the IPC UK Annual
Property Index Vesting s stepped requiring
stretching outperformance for 100% of the
performance shares and/or options granted to
vest These performance hurdles are detailed
on page 98

Pre-existing cbligations and commitments
[t1sa provision of this Policy that the Company
can honour all pre-existing obligations and
commitments that were entered into prior to
this Remuneration Policy taking effect The
termns of those pre-existing obligations and
cormmitments may differ fram the terms of the
Remuneration Policy and may include (without
limitation] obligations and commitments
under service contracts long-term incentive
schemes, pension and benefit plans

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

HOW THE VARIABLE ELEMENTS OF DUR POLICY OPERATE

AnnualIncentive and Matching Share Plan

Long-TermIncentive Plan

performance aver year

Annualincentive award magnitude
dependent on Company and indwidual

v

S

LTIP award granted consists of performance
shares and/or market value options

v

Two thirds paid as cash
on award

One third deferred to
purchase MSP Bonus
Shares Canditional
award of MSP
Matching Shares
granted subjectto
performance
measures

Performance measures assessed

\

three years

Pertormance measures assessed over

overthreeyears
Number of Number of options
performance shares vesting dependent

released dependent
on performance

on performance
Exercssable fora
further seven years

Y

an parfermance

MSP Bonus Shares released Number of
MSP Matching Shares vesting dependent
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

CONSICERATIONS WHEN SETTING
REMUNERATION POLICY

In drawing up the Remuneration Palicy, the
Committee took into account views expressed
by shareheolders during meetings and
cormmunicated in writing to the Company

The Company engaged with its shareholders
via consultation meelings with invester bodies,
and by writing te its top 20 shareholders,
offering each a meeting to discuss
rermuneration proposals

The main topics that the Company discussed
with its shareholders in 2013 when drawing up
the current Policy were the intreduction of a
general clawback arrangement for deferred
variable pay, changing the performance targets
for the LTIP and reducing the Annual Incentive
and Long-Term Incentive entitlements of the
Chief Executive The shareholders reactions
to these changes were favourable There have
been no changes in Remuneration Policy
since then However, we have discussed

our draft Policy with investor bodies and
sharebolders during the preparaticn

of this Remuneration Report

Each year the Remuneration Committee
takes into account the pay and employment
conditions of employees In the Group, neting
the general increase in salary proposed

for ail employees and levels of Incentive
payments and performance before

setting the remuneration of the Directors
The Commuttee did not consult with the
Company s employees or use remuneration
comparison measurements when drawing
up the Directors Remuneration Policy

APPROACH TO RECRUITMENT
REMUNERATION

Executive Directors

Basic salary 1s set ata level appropriate to
recruit a suitable candidate taking inte account
external market competitiveness and internal
equity The tevel of basic salary may initially

be positioned below the median of the chosen
comparator group, with the intention of
increasing 1t to around the median of the
comparator group after an initial period of
satisfactory service

Where a recruit s forfeiting incentive awards
granted by his or her existing employer
compensation in the form of a Restricted Share
Plan [RSP] award may be made (in accordance
with Listing Rule 9 4 2], the maximum value

of which will be that which the Committee,

In 1ts reasonable cpinion, considers to be equal
to the value of the awards which have lapsed
Dividends paid on the RSP shares during the
vesting period are paid directly to the Directar

Vesting of the shares granted under the

RSP award will be subject to the Director
completing a minimum period of qualifying
service so the award will not be released until
this condition has been satisfied The vesting
of the RSP award may be subject to additional
performance measures being met over the
same pericd, the Committee will determine
the mast relevant measures to use at the time
of award bearing in mind the responsibilities
of the individual being appointed and the
Company s strategic priorities at the time

The Committee may choose to offer a
Co-Investrnent Share Plan [CIP] award 1o

a new Executive Director on recruitrent

(in accordance with Listing Rule 94 2], to assist
the Director in building a holding of British
Land shares with the aim of further aligning
the Director s persenal interests with those

of British Land s shareholders
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Under the CIP a director may Iinvest a maximum
of 125% salary (200% salary for & Chief
Executivel to purchase British Land shares
these Limits being determined by the Director s
minimum shareholding guideline The
Company will match the purchased CIP shares
ona 11basis Allthe CIP shares are then
deferred for three years subject to the Director
remaining employed by the Group and holding
the shares for this time Should the Director
leave the Group befcre the qualifying period 1s
completed, all of the matching shares will lapse
and the purchased shares will be released to
the Directar Dividends paid on the purchased
CIP shares during the vesting period are pad
directly to the Director, a dividend equivalent
payment 1s made on vesting to compensate

for dividends accrued on matching CIP shares

The Committee willimpose performance
measures on CIP awards, which must be
achieved over the three-year holding period

for the matching shares to vest The Committee
will determine the most relevant measures

to use at the time of award bearingin mind

the responsibiities of the individual being
appainted and the Company s strategic
priorities at the time

The Company s Policy Is to give notice periods
of no longer than 12 months However, when
recruiting an external candidate it may be
necessary to give an imitial notice period

of up to 24 months, this reduces at the end

of 12 months work to 12 months

The remainder of the package offered to a new
Executive Director would be in line with the
Company s ongoing Remuneration Policy




Chawrman and Non-Executive Directors

On recruitment the Chairman wall be offered
an annual fee and benefits In accordance with
the Policy The level of the annual fee may
initially be positionad below the median of the
chosen comparator group with the intention
of increasing 1t to around the median of the
comparator group after an intbal period of
satisfactory service

Mon-Executive Directors will be offered
MNon-Executive Directors fees in accordance
with the Policy

Appointment of Internal Candidates

If an existing employee of the Group I1s
appointed as an Executive Director, Chairman
or Non-Executive Director, any obligation or
commitment entered into with that individual
prier to his or her appaintment can be honoured
In accordance with the terms of those
obligations or commuitments, even where

they differ from the terms of the Policy

POLICY ON LOSS OF OFFICE

Executive Directors

The Executive Directors service contracts can
be lawfully terrninated by either party giving

12 months netice or by the Company making

a lurnp sum payment in lieu of notice [PILON]
equal to the Executive Director s base salary
for the notice period Additionally when the
Company makes a PILON, it may either pay a
lump sum equal to the value of any benefits for
the nctice period or continue to provide benefits
until the notice period expires or the Executive
Director starts new employment [whichever

is the earlier] These lawful termination
mechanisms do not prevent the Company,

in appropniate eircumstances, from terminating
an Executive Director s employment in breach
of his or her service contract and seeking to
apply mitigation in determining the damages
payable The Company s Policy, where possible
Is to structure any settlement arrangements in
such a way that the termination payment 1s paid
ininstalments and {o reduce the instalments
byan amount equal to any earnings receved
fram the outgoing Director s new employment,
consultancy or other paid work

The circumnstances of the loss of office dictate
whether the indwvidual 1s treated as a good
leaver or otherwise n accordance with

the Company s Policy The Remuneration
Commitice uses its discretion to form a view
taking into account the circumstances

Geod leavers typically receive pro-rata Annual
Incentive and Long-Term Incentive awards,
subject to performance measurement, and
other leavers forfeit their entitlements

In the event of a change of cantral the rules
of the share plans generally provide for
accelerated vesting of awards, subject
[where applicable] to tme apportionment
and achievernent cf performance targets

All of the Company s Executive Directors have
contracts that pre-date 27 June 2012 but these
do not contain contractual provisions that
could impact on the amount of any payment for
loss of office and which fall outside the Policy
Detaits of the Executive Directors service
contracts and notice periods are given in the
table below

Normal
nauce Notice
Length Date of pericdto  periedta
of sarvice sarvice  begivenby begmvenby
Director contract contract  Compary  Director
Chris 1Zmths 191208 1Z2mths 12mths
Grigg
Lucinda  12mths 100311 12mths 12 mths
Bell
Charles 12mths 031109 12mths 12mths
Maudsley
Tim 12mths 141106 12mths 12mths
Roberts

The Company may terminate a Oirecter s
appointment with iImmediate effect without
notice ar payment in lieu of notice under certain
carcumstances, prescribed within the Director s
service contract

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The letters of appointment of Nan-Executive
Directors are subject to renewal on a trienmnial
basis [naccordance with the UK Carporate
Governance Code all Directors stand for
election or re-election by the Company s
shareholders on an annual basis The
Directors service contracts and letters of
appointment are available for inspection during
narmal business hours at the Cormpany s
registered office and at the Annual General
Meeting The unexpired terms of the
Charrmans and Non-Executive Directors
letters of appointment are shown below

Unexpires term

Date of letter of af appointment at

Dhrector appointrment 31 March 2014
John 013113 21 mths
Gildersleeve

[Chairmar]

Aubrey Adams g109m Smths
Simon Borrows 170314 36 mths
Dide Harding 010113 21 mths
Willam Jackson 1104 14 36 mths
Tim Score 200314 346 mths
Lord Turnbutl 010412 12 mths

1 Lelter of appointment renewed post year-end

Although the Chairman s and Non-Executive
Directors appointments are for fixed terms
their appointments may be terminated
immed:ately without notice if they are not
reappornted by shareholders or if they are
remaoved from the Board under the Company s
Articles of Association ar if they resign and do
not offer themselves for re-election tn addition
their appointments may be terminated by either
the individual or the Company giving three
months writien notice of termination {or

for the Chairman, six months written notice

of termination) Despite these terms of
appomntment neither the Charrman nor the
Non-Executive Directors are entitled to any
compensation [other than accrued and unpaid
fees and expenses for the perniod up to the
termination] for loss of office for any reason
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

ILLUSTRATIONS OF APPLICATION

OF REMUNERATION POLICY

The following bar charts lustrate the levels
of remuneration recevable by the Executive
Directors under the Remuneration Policy
These illustrations have been prepared in
accordance with The Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
[Amendment] Regulations 2013 and do not
allow for share price appreciation between
grant and vesting of awards

The scenarios given represent remuneration
recewvable for minimum performance for
performance that s in Une with expectations
and for maximum performance

For each scenario the percentage that each
remuneration element represents of the total
remuneration package 1s shown along with
the total value of the remuneration package
Further detall an the underlying calculations
15 shown (n the tables on the facing page
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

Minimum performance
For minimuim performance no Annual Incentve or Long-Term tncentive awards will be made, each Director will receive only the minimum
remuneration, as detailed in the table betow
Annual
Minimum remuneration’ Incentive® Total Long-Term Incentrves?
MSP Matching
Salary Benefits® sIpe Pension® Share Awards LTIP awards

Director £ € £ 4 € C €
Chris Grigg 800,000 44160 7.200 280,000 - - -
Lucinda Bell 465,000 29,857 7,200 47805 - - -
Charles Maudsley 425,000 30 645 7.200 63,750 - - -
Tim Reberts 425,000 30333 7,200 76 3%6 - - -

Performance in line with expectation

For performance 1n line with expectations, Annual Incentive awards will be granted at a level equivalent to 75% basic salary MSP Matching Share
awards are expecled to vest at a level equivalent to 25% basic salary and LTIP awards are expected to vest at a level equivalent to 100% basic salary
as detaled in the table below

Annual i
Minlmum remuneration! Incentive? Totat Long-Term Incentivas?
MSP Matehing
Salary Benefits* siP* Pension® Share Awards LTIF awards

Director £ £ C £ £ [ £

Chnis Grigg 800 000 44160 7200 280,000 600 000 200,000 800,000

Lucinda Bell 445000 29857 7,200 57805 348,750 116 250 465,000

Charles Maudsley 425000 20,645 7200 63,750 318750 104,250 425,000

Tim Roberts 425000 30,333 7,200 76 394 318,750 106 250 425,000

Maximum performance

For maximum performance the Annual Incentive will be granted and long-term incentive awards will vest at the maximum levels permitted by the
relevant schemes Annual Incentive awards will be granted at a level equivalent te 150% basic salary MSP Matching Share awards are expected to vest
atalevel equivalent to 100% basic salary and LTIP awards are expected to vest ata tevel equivalent to 200% basic salary, as detailed in the table below

Annual
Miumum remuneration’ tncentve? Total Long-Term Incentives®
MSP Matching
Salary Benefits* sIP? Pens:won* Share Awards LTIP awards
Director c £ € £ £ £ £
Chris Grigg 800 000 44 160 7,200 280000 1,200,000 800 000 1,600,000
Lucinda Bell 465000 29857 7200 47,805 497500 465000 930,000
Charles Maudsley 425000 30645 7,200 463750 437500 425,000 850,000

Tim Roberts 425000 30,333 7,200 76,396 637500 425000 850,000

Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Campany s all-employee Sharesave Scheme The Sharesave options have notbeen included in the above bar charts
Detarls of the Directors current Sharesave inierests are pravided on page 103 Any profits onvestings under the Sharesave Scheme are included within the single total
figure of remuneration table
2 Onethird of the Annual Incentive award value shown will be used to purchase shares deferred for three years under the Company s M58
3 Figures include the fair values of LTIP awards granted as described on page 86 Figures do not allow for share price appreciation or dmdend equivatent payments
4 It hasbeen assumned that the values of taxable and non-taxable benefits recevable will be equal to those receved in 2013/14 asthere has been no change to the Policy

In practice the values may varyimmaterially due to external factors such as changesin the cost of providing Ufe assurance or permanent health insurance

The Directors differing pension arrangements are represented in the same manner as in the single total figure of remuneration table
5 Under the Company s all-employee Share Incentive Plan each Director will be entitled to recenve matching shares at il cost awarded by the Company conditional on them
continuing to purchase shares under the SIP The Directors may be entitled to receve free shares at nil cost awarded annually by the Company should this award be made
to all ebgible employees These figures assume the maximurm permitted levels of malching and free shares are awarded during the year
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION
IMPLEMENTATION REPORT

PROPOSED APFLICATION OF THE POLICY DURING

THE YEAR COMMENCING 1 APRIL 2014

The Committee intends to apply the Policy as foltows during the year
commencing 1 April 2014

Executive Directors basic salartes
Basic salaries have been set at the following levels for the year
commencing t April 2014 no increases have been made to basic salaries

Basic salary
Director £
Chris Grigg 800000
Lucinda Belt 465000
Charles Maudsley 425000
Tim Roberts 425000

Chatrman and Non-Executive Directors’ fees

The following levels will apply for the Chairman s and Non-Executive
Directors fees paid during the year commencing 1 April 2014 no
Increases have been made to the Chatrman s or the Non-Executive
Directors fees

Chairman

Annual fee £351750
Non-Executive Directors )
Basic annual fee £34 250
Senior Independent Director fee per annum £9450
Committee Chair fee per annum £5775
Attendance at Board meeting \n person L4200
Attendance at Committee meeting In person £1890
Attendance at Board or Committee meeting by telephone £840
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Annual Incentive award

The targets against which Annuat Incentive performance will
be assessed during the year are

Quantitative targets
= accounting return total NAV-based return plus dividends relative
to property majors and IPO [total returns basis),

» unlevered property capital returns relative to IPD,

= rental growth above ERVand IPD and

= operating costs as a percentage of rents and assets against
budget and preperty majors

Qualitative targets

= successful progress on developments,

= successful execution of targeted acquisitions and disposals

» successful execution of debi financings

® progress on strengthening the dividend

= guality of people and management renewal, and

= Company repatation with all stakeholders

All Executive Committee members in¢luding the Executive
Directors) have a corporate responsibility target linked ta their
Annual Incentive award




Matching Share Plan [MSP)

The MSP 15 assessed agamnst two equally weighted performance
measures As each performance measure relates to half of the total MSP
award no more than half of the total MSP award canvest if one of the
performance measures does not meet its mimimum vesting threshold
The performance thresholds are detailed in the tables below

The Total Shareholder Return [TSR] Part

25% of the TSR Partii e 12 5% of the total MSP award] will vest f
British Land s TSR performance s equal o the median TSR of the
comparator group A further 18 75% of the TSR Part will vest for
each 1% by which British Land s TSR exceeds the median TSR

of the comparator group, up te a maximum of 100% of the TSR Part
{1 e 50% of the total MSP awardl vesting

The Gross Income Growth [GIG] Part

25% ofthe GIG Part 1 e 12 5% of the total MSP award) will vest if British
Land sGIG performance is equal to the Growth Requirement [the Growth
Requirement being GIG over the three-year performance period that1s
equal ta that of the Investment Property Databank UK Annual Property
Index) Afurther 25% of the GIG Part wilt vest for each 0 5% [in absolute
terms) by which British Land s annualised GIG exceeds the Growth
Requirement, up to a maximum of 100% of the GIG Part [l e 50%

of the total MSP award] vesting

The comparator group against which performance will be sssessed
for the TSR performance measure consists of Great Portland Estates
plc, Hammerson ple Intu Properties ple Land Securities Group PLC
SEGRO ple, Big Yellow Group PLC Capital & Countres PLC, Derwent
London plc, Grainger ple Hansteen Holdings plc, Helical Bar plc,
LondonMetric Property ple, St Modwen Properties PLC Shaftesbury
PLC, The UNITE Group plc and UK Commercial Property Trust Ltd

The Committee has not changed the compasition of this comparator
group since the 2013 MSP award, when it was expanded to include
2 broader range of property companies

Percentage
British Land s TSR relative to the comparator group vesting
atthe end of the performance period
Below median 0
Median 25
Further vesting per each 1% TSR exceeds median 1875
{to mawmum of 100% matching shares)

Parcentage
British Land s GIG rental growth relative to the vesting
IPD benchmark at the end of the performance period
Below Growth Requirement 1]
Equal to Growth Requirement 25
Further vesting per each 0 5% per annum 25

GIG exceeds Growth Requirement
[te a maximum of 100% of matching shares)

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

Long-Term Incentive Plan [LTIP)
The thresholds against which the LTIP performance will be assessed
are detailed in the tables below
Per:entage-
vesting
170 Total Property Return
Below median 0
Median 25
Top quartite 100
Percenxage-
vesltng
Total Aceounting Return
Below median 0
Median 25
Tep guartile 100

Each LTIP performance measure relates to half of the total award
For both LTIP performance measures there will be straight-line vesting
between median and top guartile performance

The cemparator group against which periormance will be assessed
for the TAR performance measure Is the same group as that against
which MSP TSR performance will be assessed, and has not been
changed since the 2013 LTIP award
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT

AUDITED INFORMATION

CONTINUED

APPLICATION OF POLICY DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
The following pages detail how British Land s Remuneration Policy has been implemented throughout the year ended 31 March 2014

SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION TABLE

All elernents of remuneration receved by the Directors during 2013/14 are disclosed in the following table, alongside the comparative figures from
2012/13 The Directors have confirmed to the Company, in writing, that they have not received any other items in the nature of remuneration beside

those detailed below

Salaryfiess

Taxable venefi Antust Inten we Long-Tesm tncenties Athertems Pansion Total

200314 201213 201314 2012113 201314 201213 201314 201213 2013/14  MN2A3 20134 2012N3 2013114 2012113
Executive Directers £ £ € £t £ £ T £ £ £ £ £ £
Chris Grigg 800000 800000 20253 19802 1080000 1080000 2715766 2401859 29907 28370 280000 280000 4925926 481001
Lucinda Bell 465000 465000 20153 19702 465000 445000 1261081 260476 15706 2264 A1 746 61 66T 2,288,686 1,294,456
Charles 425000 425000 21041 20032 505,000 505,000 1432613 1179382 15606 14754 43750 63750 2,463,010 2207918
Maudsley
Tim Roberts 426500 426500 204N 19502 505000 505000 1154192 1121138 15924 23543 70764 69817 2,192,791 2165500
Stephen Smith' £25 000 20132 300 000 1358547 16 894 43750 2,184,323
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
John 351750 147593 31398 8,688 383,146 154,281
Gildersleeve?
[Chairmanl
Chris Gibson- 263812 39328 303,140
Smith?
Aubrey Adams 71244 89320 7,244 69320
Simon Borrows 70702 60920 70,702 40520
Dido Harding 49530 67640 69530 67,640
Willam Jackson 72 470 68,480 72,470 48 480
Richard Pym* 30,313 B2 445 30,313 82,445
Tim Score® 1210 1,210
Lord Turnbull 85808 81%46 85,808 81946

Mmoo =

Stephen Smuth resigned as a Director of the Company on 31 March 2013
John Gildersleeve was appointed as Chairman of the Company on & January 2013
Chris Gibsen-Smith resigned as a Directar and Chatrman of the Company on 31 December 2012
Richard Pym resigned as a Director of the Company on § September 2013
Tim Score was appeinted a Director of the Company on 20 March 2014
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

Notes to the single total figure of remuneration table

Notes to the single total iigure of remuneration table Taxable benefits
The figures shown i the Taxable benefits column are comprised as follows [alt figures being gross values including tax)

Chaufteur casts Car atlowance Priva.e medical insurance Dtrertaxable banefits' Total taxable benefits.

2013114 201213 2013444 201243 2003114 2213 2013414 2012113 213/14 2012/13
Dwrector £ £ £ € 3 £ £ £ £ €
John Gildersleave? 313% 8488 31,396 8,688
Chris Gibson-Smith? 39328 39,328
Chris Grigg 16 800 i6 800 3452 igo2 20,252 19,802
Lucinda Bell 16 700 18,700 3453 3002 20,153 19,702
Charles Maudsley 16 700 16,700 31753 2902 588 430 21,041 20,032
Tim Raberts 16170 16170 3453 2502 588 430 20,411 19502
Stephen Smith* 15700 3002 430 20132

1 Othertaxable benefits includes Company contributions te gym membership

2 John Gildersleeve was appointed as Chairman of the Company on 1 January 2013

3 ChrisGibson-5mith resigned as a Director and Chairman of the Company on 31 December 2012
4 Stephen Smith resigned as a [hrector of the Company on 31 March 2013

Notes to the single total figure of remuneration table Annual Incentive

The level of Annual Incentive 15 determined by the Remuneration Comrmittee based on the Company s performance and the individual s
cantribution during the preceding year The assessment for the year ended 31 March 2014 was undertaken with reference to perfermance
agatnst the following quantitative and qualitative targets, using data avallable at the year-end

2013/14 targets 2013/14 performance

Quantitative targets

Accounting return - total MAV-based return Accounting return was above the average of the praperty majors and total property return

plus dmidends relative to preperty majors outperformed IPD

and IPD {total return basis]

Unlevered property capital returns relative ta IPD The Company outperformed [PD at all property levels

Rental growth above ERV and [PD Both sectors performed well with rental growth ahead of both ERVand IPD

Operating costs as a percentage of rents and assets Qperating costs have decreased as a percentage of asset values but Increased as a percentage of rents

agatnst preor year and property majors operating cosis were stll below budget The Company maintained its market leading operating costs
ratic compared to other property majors

Qualitative targets . ’

Successful progress on developrments The 2010 development pregramime has seen completion of four major developments during the
year and delivered £608 million of profit to date The development pipeline has been replenished
ten significant retail projects are underway or approaching completion and planning consent has
been secured for a number of developments including Clarges and The Hempel

Successful execution of targeted acquisitions £1 033 million of acquisitions and £710 milbon of disposals {British Land share) during the year

and disposals to 31 March 2014 including strategic disposals of European assets

Successiul execution of debt financings £15 billion of new debt finance arranged during the year to 31 March 2014

Progress on strengthening the dwvidend Full-year dividend increased by 2 3% for the year ended 31 March 2014

Quality of people and management renewal Strengthened the Human Resources funciion including appointing a new HR Director
New strategies and priorities agread for the coming year

Company reputation with all stakeholders Retained our 1* Times 100 rating for employee satistaction Over 77% of head office staff supported
community volunteering projects during the year and over £1 million was donated to good causes

Corporate responsibility CR successes include retaining our Dow Jones Sustamnability Index score of 70 remaining as a member

of the DJS| World and Europe Indices, being ranked joint éirst in the FTSE 350 Carbon Disclosure Project
Performance Leadership Index being recognised as the leading REIT for Community and Environmental
Responsibility in the Management Today s Most Admired Companies i Britain

The maximum Annual Incentive award achievable 15 150% of base salary Taking into account the above performance, the Remuneration Committee
set the aggregate Annual Incentive received by the Executive Directors for the year ended 31 March 2014 at 80% of the maximum {121% of base salaryl
las compared with 70 5% of the maximum 1in 2012/13)

One thurd of each Executive Director s Annuat Incentive award shown zhove was deferred and used to purchase MSP Bonus Shares, subjecttoa
three-year holding requirement under the Company s Matching Share Plan No further performance measures apply to these deferred shares
The MSP 1s described on page 85
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT |
AUDITED INFORMATION |
CONTINUED |

|

Notes ta the single total figure of remuneration table Leng-Term Incentives

The figures for the Long-Term Incentives colurnn are comprised of award vestings under three share schemes the 2011 Long-Term Incentive Plan

(LTIPI the 2011 Matching Share Plan [MSP] and for Charles Maudsley and Stephen Smith s 2012/13 comparative figures only, the Charles Maudsley |
2010 Co-Investment Share Plan and the Stephen Srith 2010 Co-Investment Share Plan \

The performance measure attached to awards under the 2011 LTIP measures the growth in the Company s net asset value (NAV] per share

against the capital growth component of the Investment Property Databank UK Annual Index [the Index), over a performance period of three years

commencing at the start of the financial year in which the awards were granted Growth in the Comnpany s net asset value per share has to exceed
that of the Index for a minimum proportion of the award to vest Stretching outperformance 1s required for the entire award to vest as detailed below !

Percentage by which the average annual growth of British Land s net assetvalue per share exceeds Perc::;:?\; ‘
the average annualincrease in the capital growth component of the Investment Property Databank UK Annual Index % ‘
4 5% or more 100 1
3 5% or more but less than 4 5% 80
2 5% or more but less than 3 5% 60
1 5% or more butlessthan 2 5% 40 |
0 5% or more but less than 1 5% 20 |
More than 0% but less than D 5% 10
0% orless 0

The vesting values of the 2011 LTIP awards due to vest an 28 June 2014, bave been calculated using the average MMQ for the period from 1 January
2014 to 31 March 2014 [667 7143 pence] as the vesting share price Aon Hewitt has calculated that the 2011 LTIP will vest at a rate of 100%, reflecting
British Land s growth in NAV of 6 7% per annum during the performance period, compared to the Index increasing by 1 4% per annum This produces
the following estimated values on vesting

Estimated
drdend
Estimated equvalent
Number of Percentage value of payment due
Award price perfarmance Number of of award award on ncluding
|exarcise pricel shares opticns vesting vesting interest
Director LTIP awar d date p awarded' awarded' % £ £
Chris Grigg 2804 201 575 173913 495 652 100 1806211 138834
Lucinda Bell 28 04 201 575 147826 100 987055 118 00%
Charles Maudsley 2806 2011 575 147826 100 987055 118 009
Tim Roberts 2804 201 575 73913 295452 00 767639 59004
|
|

1 For the 2011 LTIP award Chris Grigg and Tim Roberts received their awards as mixtures of options and performance shares Lucinda Bell and Charies Maudsley recerved
their entire awards as performance shares

The MSP performance 1s assessed using two equally-weighted For the second MSP performance measure, the Company s gross

performance measures, each relating to half of the total MSP Matching incorne growth during the three-year performance period needed ,
Share award Forthe 2011 MSP Matching Share award one performance  to at least equal that of the Investment Property Databank UK Annual

measure was based on Total Shareholder Return [the TSR Part], the Index [the Growth Requirement) for any MSP Matching Shares to vest

other on the Company s gross income growth [the GIG Part] The table as shown below

above shows the performance reguired by the Company s TSR compared -
f 1 r - Fercentage cf

to @ comparator group of companies acress the three year performance British Land s GIG relative to the Investment Property Databank award which vests

period for any Matching Shares to vest under the TSR performance UK Annuat Index at the end of the performance period %

condition Forthe 2011 MSP Award the comparator group consisted of

Below Growth Requirement 0
Great Portland Estates PLC Hammerson PLC Land Securities Group quireme
PLC Intu Properties PLC and Segro PLC Equal to Growth Requirement 35
Fercentage:l— Further vesting per each 0 5% per annum 2167
British Land s TSR retative to the comparatar group awardwhich vests GIG exceeds Grawth Requirement
at the end of the performance period % {to a maximum of 100% of Matching Shares)
Below median 0 B
Medran 35
Furthervesting per each 1% TSR exceeds median 1625

{to a maximum of 100% of Notional Shares)
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The vesting values of the 2011 MSP award due to veston 24 May 2014 have been calculated using the average MMQ for the period from 1 January 2014
to 31 March 2014 [667 7143 pencel as the vesting share price Aon Hewitt has confirmed the TSR performance of the comparator group which walt
result in vesting at a rate of 76 9%, as British Land s TSR over the performance period was 40% compared to a median of 37 5% for the comparator
group Itis estimated that the GiG part will vest at a rate of 78% the actual vesting rate will be catculated once the relevant figures are published by

the Index This produces the following estimated values onvesting

Percentage Estimated Estima ea dwvidend

Number of of award value of award eguwvalent

ma ching shares credicied ovest onvesting paymertdue

Director M5SP award date awarded % £ [
ChnisGrigg 2405201 133222 T745 588,751 81770
Lucinda Bell 2405201 26968 7745 139 464 16 553
Charles Maudsley 2405201 56 618 7745 292797 34752
Tim Roberts 2405201 56 618 7745 292797 34752

The 2012/13 Long-Term Incentives comparator figures for Charles Maudsley and Stephen Smith include the vestings of their respective Co-lnvestment

Share Plan awards [the Charles Maudsley 2010 Co-lnvestment Share Plan and the Stephen Srmith 2010 Co-lnvestment Share Plan] The vestings

of these awards are detailed on page 107 of the 2013 Annual Report

Stephen Smith siood down as a Director of the Company on 31 March 2013 and remained tn the Company s employment until 30 June 2013
his termination payment provisions are detailed on page 101 of the 2013 Annual Report The 2012/13 Long-Term Incentives comparator figure for
Stephen Smith includes the vesting of his 2010 LTIP Award which consisted of 190,156 performance shares and vested at 60%, as scheduled before
he left the Company s employment The 2012/13 comparator figure also Includes the vesting of his 2010 MSP Award The MSP Award was pro-rated
torefiect departure date, as disclosed in the 2013 Annual Report resulting in 10,262 matching shares vesting and 604 matching shares lapsing

Dwdend equivalents accrued on all vesting Long-Term Incentwe share swards are also included within the Long-Term Incentives column, along

with the Interest accrued on dvidend equivalents paid on vesting LTIP shares

Notes to the single total iigure of remuneration table other items in the nature of remuneration

The values shown in the Other items column comprise the Executive Directors interests under the Company s all-employee share schemes [the
Share Incentive Plan {SIP] and the Sharesave Schemel and non-taxable benefits recewed by the Directors during the year as shown in the table below
These share schemes are offered on the same terms to all eligible employees of the Company The figures shown are the values of free and matching
shares awarded under the SIP during the year and the notional gain on the vesting cf any Sharesave options during the year Further details of the

Executive Directors Sharesave Scheme interests can be found on page 103

Matchung and free

Permanent health Other non-taxable shares awarded Vest ngof Total
Life assurance Insurance benefits’ urder the SIP snaresave opbions other ltems

2013114 2012/13 2013fi4 201213 2015114 2002113 2013114 2012113 2013112 2002413 2013414 02113
Director £ £ £ £ £ £ € £ € £
Chris Grigg 10047 9303 13335 12873 525 500 4000 599 29907 28370
Lucinda Bell 2238 2267 6941 & 241 525 840 6002 5994 7249 15,706 2261
Chartes Maudsley 2360 237% 6113 5690 1,131 695 6002 5994 15,606 14,754
Tim Roberts 2,360 2375 6344 3704 1,218 3672 6002 599 5798 15924 23543
Stephen Smith? 4710 54890 500 5994 146 894

1 Other non-taxable benehits include annual medical theckups and relevant professional subscription fees
2 Stephen Smith resigned as a Director of the Cempany on 31 March 2013

Notes to the single total figure of remuneration table pension

The figures shown in the Pension column represent the diifering pension arrangements of the Executive Directers Chnis Grigg receives 35%
of basic salary as cash in ieu of pensian Charles Maudsley receves a pensicn allowance of 15% of basic salary, of which £13 750 was paid as cash

in liew of pension contribution over the £30,000 annual allowance for the year ended 31 March 2014

Lucinda Bell and Tim Roberts earned pension benefits in defined benefit schemes sponsored by the Company during the year, the increase in
value over the year of their respective pensians 1s shown in the single total figure of remuneration table and further detarlis provided on page 101
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT

AUDITED INFORMATION

CONTINUED

SCHEME INTERESTS AWARDED DURING THE FINANCIALYEAR

Awards granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan
The total fair value of each Director s LTIP award for the year ended 31 March 2014 was equivalent to 200% basic salary at grant At granteach
Director can indicate a preference as 1o the proportion of the award that they wish to recerve as performance shares and the proportion that they
wish to recewve as market-value aptions The share price used to determine the face value of performance shares and fair value of options - and
therefore the number of performance shares and/or options awarded - 15 the average market value of the Company s shares over the three dealing
days mmedately prior to the day of award The proportion of the award that vests, if any 1s dependent on Company performance against the LTIP

performance measures over the three years following grant These are detailed on page 95

Performance shares
) ) "’ ) Percentage
vesung on
achievement
of rrsmimum
Number of End of pericrmance
performance Facavalue pertormance thresheld
Director Grant date shares granted' periog Vesting date %
Chris Grigg 0508 2013 266222 1599994 3103 2015 05 08 2016 25
Lucinda Bell 05 08 2013 116056 697497 3103 2016 0508 2016 25
Charles Maudsley 05 08 2013 141 430 BLAF994 3103 2015 0508 2014 25
Tim Roberts 05 08 2013 141430 B499% 3103 2015 05 08 2016 25

Options

Percentaga
ves ingon
achievement
o minmum
Number of End of pe-fermance
aptions Facevalue Fair value? Exereise price? per‘armance threshold
Directar Grant date granted' £ 4 period Yesting date %
Lucinda Bell 05 08 2013 154 742 929999 232500 601 31032016 0508 2016 25

shares

Lucinda Bell received her award as a mixture of performance shares and market-value options The other Executive Directors received their enlire awards as performance

2 Options are currently valued at one quarter of the value of a performance share [see note 9 to the accounts page 129) therefore the fair value of each option awarded (s one

quarter of the face value of the aption

3 Theopuons awarded under the LTIP are market-value options therefore the exercise price lwhich is the average market value of shares sver the three dealing days immediately

prior te the day of award) must he paid by the iIndividual on the exercise of each option

Awards granted under the Matching Share Plan
The total face value of each Director s MSP Matching Share award for the year ended 31 March 2014 was equal to two thirds of therr Annual Incentive
award for the year 2012/13 equivalent to 0% basic salary at grant for Chris Grigg, 67% for Lucinda Bell and 79% for both Charles Maudsley and
Tim Roberts The share price used to determine the number of Matching Shares awarded 15 the market valug of the Company s shares on the day
the proportion of Annusl Incentive (s deferred The proportion of the award that vests, if any, 1s dependent en Cermpany performance against the
MSP performance measures over the three years following grant These are detalled on page 95

Matching shares

Percentage

vasting on

achievement

of minmum

Number of £nd of pericrmance

Vatehing Shares Face value performance threshold

Director Grant date granted' £ perioa Vesung date %
Chris Grigg 0208 2013 127096 719999 31032016 02 08 2014 25
Lucinda Belt 02082013 54720 309,989 31032016 02082016 25
Charles Maudsley 0208 2013 57428 336 660 31032016 02 08 2016 25
Tim Roberts 0208 2013 59428 336 660 31032016 0208 2016 25
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Awards granted under the Sharesave Scheme
The following options were granted to Directors during the year under the all-employee Sharesave Scheme The exercise price Is set ata 20%
discount to the average market price of the Company s shares over the three dealing days immediately preceding invitatron to the scheme
The cost of exercise is met entirely by the Director and 1s accumulated by deductions frem salary over the period between grant and vesting
Options
i Totalto be )
deducted from
salarytocaver Number
exercise cost af gplions Face value Exercise crice Earliest
Director Grant da e £ granted £ p exercise date Expiry date
Tim Roberts 1906 2013 12,000 2 348 11998 m 010% 2018 28022019
DIRECTORS’ PENSION ENTITLEMENTS
Total pension entitlements for each Director under the defined benefit scheme
The below table details the defined benefit pension accrued by participating Directors at 31 March 2014
Defined benefit Narmal
pansion accrued retirement
Director at 31 March 2014 date
Lucinda Bell 90 36} 01102024
Tim Roberts 70377 0108 2024

1 The accrued pension is based an service ta the year-end and final pensionable salary at that date
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT

AUDITED INFORMATION
CONTINUED

DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS AND SHARE INTERESTS

Executive Directors interests inthe Company s shares and total outstanding share scheme

interests at 31 March 2014

The table directly below summarises the Executwve Directors British Land shareholdings and outstanding share and option awards under the
Company s share schemes as at 31 March 2014 The following tables detail the movermnents in these shareholdings and share scheme interests

during the year ended 31 March 2014

Unvested Performance Shares subject to performance measures

MSP Matching Shares LTIF Performance Shares
End of End of

perfzrmance Vesting parformance Vesting
Director Shares held by Director Number penad date Number penad sate
Chris Grigg 734 855 133222 31032014 24 052014 173913 3103 2014 28062014
144000 3103 2045 05092015 185873 3103 2015 14 0% 2015
127096 3103 2016 0208 2016 266 222 31032016 0508 2016
Lucinda Bell 113 898 26968 3103 2014 24052014 147826 3103 2014 28062014
61332 31032015 0509205 138 289 31032015 14 092015
54720 3103 2006 0208 2014 116 056 31032018 05082016
Charles Maudsley 214153 55618 3103204 24052014 147826 31032014 2806 2014
61332 3103 2015 05092015 157992 3103205 14 092015
59428 3103 2016 02 08 2016 141 430 31032016 0508 2016
Tim Roberts 123314 56 618 31032014 240520014 73913 31032014 28052014
67,332 3103 2015 05092015 157992 31032015 14092015
59428 3103 2016 02082016 141 430 31032016 0508 2016

1 Includes shares held by connected persons MSP Bonus Shares and shares held under the Company s Share Incentive Plan Allinterests are beneficial

Movements in Executive Directors interests in the Company s shares during the year ended 31 March 2014
Directors interests in fully paid ordinary shares including shares held by connected persons Matching Share Plan Bonus Shares and shares held

under the Company s Share Incentive Plan All interests are benehicial

Total at Tetal at

31 March 18pnl

Director 2014 2013
Chris Grigg 734 855 631792
Lucinda Bell 1n3g98 88121
Charles Maudsley 214153 133942
Tim Roberts 193 314 134221
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Unvested options subject to performance measures

Unvested options not subject to performance measures

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

Vested but unexercised oplions

LTIP options Sharesave oplions LTIP options
Option End of Jpuion Option

price  performance Vestng Exercisable price Vesting Exercisable price Exercisable

Number [ period date uvnul Number P date until Number p untl
695,652 575 31032014 28062014 27046202 1908 473 01092014 28022015 1033591 387 28062019

743 494 538 31032015 14092015 13092022 1073825 447 1006 2020

138 289 538 31032045 14092005 13092022 2295 392 092015 2902 2016 25326 660 28112014

154 742 601 31032016 0508207 04082023 14036 727 30052015
11557 824 04122015

50 387 387 28062009

36434 446 20122019

47952 447 1006 2020

11764 510 13122020

295 652 575 31032014 28062004 2706 2021 1033 301 01092014 28022015 13 210 727 300652015
2348 511 01092018 28022019 17483 824 04122015

Beneficial interests of the Directors under the Sharesave Scheme
Number o* Number Number Number }
umber og 1GNS of opuons of op 1ens of opticns. Numeer of
of op wns granted vesling exercised lapsed ©p Ions at Exercise Earliest

at1apri during during during during 31 March price exercise Espiry

Dirgctor Date of grant 2013 theyear the year tneyear theyzar 235 [ gate date
Chris Grigg 01072011 1908 1908 473 01092014 28022015
Lucinda Bell 26 06 2012 2295 2295 392 01092015 29022015
Tim Roberts 3006 2009 1033 1033 301 Di0%2014 28022015
1906 2043 2348 Z 348 511 01092018 28022019
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT
AUDITED INFORMATION

CONTINUED

Beneficial interests of the Directors under the Long-Term Incentive Plan ~ Options

Number Number Number
Number of Number of pptions of opticns of optians. Number of
options at of options vesting exercised lapsed options at Exercise Earliest
1Aprit  granted during during during suring JiMarch price exercise
Oirector Date af grant 2013 theyear the year? the year the year 2014 p date Expiry date
Chnis Grigg 2906 2009 1033 591 1033591 387 29062012 28062019
1104 2070 1,789 709 1073,825° 715,884 1073825 447 1106 2013 10 06 2020
28 06 2011 695 652 695 652 675 28062014 27062027 ‘
14 092012 T43 494 743 494 538 140920i5 13092022 ;
Lucinda Bell 29112004 25326 25328 660 29112007 28112014 ‘
3105 2005 14 036 14 036 727 31052008 30052015
05 i2 2005 11 557 11557 824 05122008 Q4122015
2906 2009 50 387 50 387 387 290562012 2806201%
2112 2007 34 434 36434 446 21122002 20122019
1106 2010 113255 679523 45303 &7952 447 11062013 1006 2020
1412 2010 19 607 117544 7843 1764 510 14122013 13122020
¥4 092012 138 289 138 289 538 14092035 13072022
0508 2013 154 742 154 742 601 05082016 04082023
Tim Roberts 2911 2004 22513 22 513 660 29112007 281204
31052005 i3210 13210 727 31052008 30052015
0512 2005 17 483 17 483 824 05122008 04122015
2906 2009 426873 426 873% 387 29042012 28062019
1106 2010 380313 2281877 2281877 152 126 447 1106 2013 1006 2020 ‘
281056 201 299 452 295 652 575 2806204 2706 2021
1 The numbers of optians at 1 April 2013 are the maximum awards achievable under the LTIP on maximurm autperformance of the Plan s performance conditions |
excepl options granted in 2004 2005 2009 and 2010 which have already vested |
2 Vesung options are included in the 2012/13 long-term incentives column of the single total figure of remuneration Lable on page 96 :
3 These options vested at 0% an 24 July 2013 the remaining opticns lapsed The relevant performance candition i1s detailed on page 98
4 These options vested at 50% on 17 December 2013 the relevant performance condition 1s detailed on page 98
5 Exercised on 25 February 2014 The market price on the day of exercise was 699p realising a notional gain of 39p per share
& Exercised on 24 July 2013 The market price on the day of exercise was 611 S5p realising a notional gain of 224 Sp per share
7 Exercised on 25 February 2014 The market price on the day of exercise was 699p realising a notional gain of 252p per share
Beneficial Interests of the Directors under the Long-Term Incentive Plan - Performance Shares
) Number of Number of shares Number of shares Number of shares Number of )
shares al granted during vesting during lapsed during shares al Earliest
Directar Dateo grant 1 Aprl 2013 the year® theyear 1he year 31 March 2014 vesting date
Chris Grigg 2804 2011 173913 73913 28062014
14 072012 185873 185873 14 092015
0508 2013 266222 266 222 0508 2016
Lucinda Bell i1 06 2010 28313 16997 11326 1106 2013
1412 2010 4901 2 940° 1961 1412 2013
2806 2011 147826 147826 28 06 2014
14 09 2012 138 289 138,289 14 092015
0508 2013 114 056 1146 056 05 08 2016
Charles Maudsley 1106 2010 190156 134 093¢ 76 063 1106 2013
2804 2011 147825 147824 2806 2014
14 092012 157992 157992 14 092015
05082013 141430 141 430 05 08 20146
Tim Reberts 1106 2010 55078 570464 38032 10562013
28 04 2011 73N3 73913 28 046 2014
14 092012 157992 157992 14092015
0508 2013 141430 141 430 05 08 2014
1 The numbers of shares at 1 Aprit 2013 are the maximum achievable under the LTIF on maximum outperformance af the Plan s performance conditions
2 On5August 2013 the date of grant the market price was 556p
3 Vesungshares and accrued dividends are included in the 2012/13 long-term incentives column of the single tatal figure of remuneration table on page 9¢
4 These sharesvested at 60+ on 24 July 2013 the remaining shareslapsed The relevant performance condition s detailed on page 98
5 These shares vested at 60% on 17 December 2013 the remaning shares lapsed The relevant performance condition 1s detaited on page 98
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Beneficial interests of the Directors under the Matchtng Share Plan - MSP Matching Shares

Number Number Number
Number of Matching cf Matching otMa ching Number
of Matching Shares Shares Shares of Maiching
Shares granted vesting lapsed Sraras
a 1Apnl during during during at 31 March Earliest
Director Date of grant 2013 the year: theyear? theyear 2014 vesting date
Chris Grigg 02 092010 133028 133028 02092013
2405201 133222 133222 24052014
05092012 144 000 144000 0% 092015
02082012 1270%6 127096 02 08 2016
Lucinda Bell 24 0520m 26968 26968 24052014
05092012 61332 61332 05 092015
0208 2013 54720 54,720 02 08 2016
Charles Maudsley 02 092010 73460 7340 02092013
2405201 56 618 56 618 24052014
05072012 61332 61,332 05 092015
02082013 59428 59 428 02 08 2016
Tim Roberts 02 092010 55 428 55428 02092013
2405 2011 56 618 56 618 24052014
05 09 2012 67,332 67332 05092015
02082013 59428 59428 0208 2016
4 The numbers of shares at 1 April 2013 are the maximum achievable under the MSP on maximum outperformance of the Plan s performance conditions
2 On2August 2013 the date of grant the market price was 597 5p
3 These shares vested at 100% on 6 September 2013 on satisfaction of the performance canditions The relevant performance conditions are detailed on page 78
Vesting shares and accrued dividends are included in the 2012/13 lang-term incentives column of the single total figure of remuneraton table on page %4
Executive Directors Minimum Shareholding Guideline Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ interests in the
The Executive Directors Minimum Shareholding Guideline requires Company s shares
approximaiely 200% of basic salary to be held in vested and exercised Interests in fully paid ordinary shares, including shares held
shares by the Chief Executive and 125% for other Executive Directors by connected persons
There 1s no set timescale required to reach the target but it should be -
achieved threugh the reqular additions anticipated by Matching Share Directar 1 Mar::‘;é?; 1 Aplﬁl;é:;
Plan and Long-Term Incentive Plan vestings No purchases are required
either ta reach the level or to respand to share price falls but Executive John Gildersleeve 307 507
Directors are expecied to increase their holding of shares each year until Aubrey Adams 20000 20 00O
the target s attamned The number/value of shares required as the target
15 fixed ance a year Shares included are those uniettered and beneficially ~ 5imen Borrows 300000 300000
owned by the Director and by hus or her connected persons Dido Harding 11045 809
Shown below are the guideline shareholdings fixed for the year William Jackson 38,588 24144
to 31 March 2015
Percentage Unfenered Richard Pym 11 500! 9722
o f:;:::l‘:lr: Guideline gn'll:"i:?':!: Tim Score 0 0
Director ves ed shares holding 2014
Lord Turnbult 16,884 14520
Chris Grigg 200% 244 64T 4633326 -
1 On5Septernber 20i3 date of restgnatton
Lucinda Bell 125% 88877 75387 2 0On20March 2014 date of appaintment
Charles Maudsley 125% sz 168 V18 Purchases after the year-end up to one month before the AGM notice
Tim Roberts 125% 81231 144884  On 14 Apnl 2014, Lord Turnbull, Dido Harding and William Jackson were

1 Inaccordance with guidelines issued by the ABI the Directors unfettered holdings
de notinclude MSP Bonus Shares and locked-in SIP Shares

Although there 1s no gu:deline holding for Non-Executive Directars, they
are encouraged to hold sharesin British Land The Company faciltates
this by offering Nan-Executive Directors the ability to purchase shares
using their post-tax quarterly fees Dido Harding, Witliarm Jackson Lord
Turnbull and Richard Py receved s proportion of their fees in the farm
of shares during the year

allotted 376,542 and 1304 shares respectively, at a price of 664 7016
pence per share as part of ther standing instructions to recewve shares
as satisfaction of their Directors fees Alsoon 14 April 2014 Chnis Grigg
purchased 20 shares and Lucinda Bell, Charles Maudsley and Tim
Roberts each purchased 19 shares all at a price of 647 4379 pence per
share underthe Partnership element of the Share Incentive Plan [SIP]
Accordingly Chris Grigg was awarded 40 Matching shares and Lucinda
Bell, Charles Maudsley and Tim Roberts were each awarded 38
Matching shares, all at a price of 647 4379 pence per share On 2 May
2014 Chnis Grigg, Lucinda Bell, Charles Maudsley and Tim Roberts
acquired 47, 127, 32, and 117 Dividend shares respectively under the SIP,
all at a price of 6895024 pence per share On 2 May 2014, Lord Turnbull
recewved 171 shares under the Company s Scrip Dividend Scheme
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT
CONTINUED

FURTHER DISCLOSURES REGARDING IMPLEMENTATION
OF POLICY DURING THE YEAR

Five-year total shareholder return and Chief Executive’s remuneration
The graph to the right shows the Company s total shareholder return for
the five years from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2014 against that of the FTSE
Real Estate Investment Trusts (REIT} Total Return Index for the same
period The graph shows how the total return on a £100 investment in the
Company, made on 1 April 2009, wauld have changed over the five-year
period measured, compared with the total return on a £100 investment
in the FTSE REIT Total Return Index The FTSE REIT Total Return Index
has been selected as a suitable comparator because it s the indexin
which the Company s shares are classified The 2009 base point
required by the regulations was close to the bottorn of the property cycle
Our share price had not fallen as much at that time as the average share
price of the FTSE REITs Sector thereby setting a higher base peint for
subsequent growth The table below details the total remuneration of
the person undertakeng the role of Chief Executive over the same period
calculated on the same basis as the single total figure of remuneration
table and the annual incentive pay-outs and long-term incentive vesting
rates as a percentage of the maximum opportunity

Chris Grigg was appointed as Chief Executive of the Company tn January 2009 The rules of the LTIP and MSP schemes stipulate that awards are
subject to three-year performance periods before vesting Hence none of Chris Grigg s LTIP and MSP Matching Share awards were eligible to vest
in 2009/10 0r 2010/

200910 2010411 20112 201213 20314

Chief Executive Chris Grigg Chris Grigg Chris Grigg ChrisGngg  Chris Grigg
Chief Executive s single total figure of remuneration [£) 2082180 2329047 5352840 481000 4925926
Annual Incentive payout against maximum opportunity {%) 67 83 75 75 90
Long-Term Incentives vesting rate against maximum opportunity (%} nfa nfa 99 43 97

Chief Executive s remuneration compared to remuneration of British Land employees
The below table shows the percentage changes in different elements of the Chief Executive s remuneration, relative to the previcus financial year
and the average percentage changes in these elements of remunaration for British Land employees

Value of Value of Average % change

Chief Executive Chief Execulive % Changein In remuneration

ramuneration Fefnuneraticn Chief Executive elemen, of

element element remuneration Briish Land

201314 2012713 element employees

Remuneration element £ € % %
Salary 800000 800 000 0 364
Taxable benefits 20253 19802 228 802
Annual Incentive 1080000 1080000 1} 575
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The graph below shows the amecunt the Company spent on the
remuneration of all employees including Executive Directors], relative
to the amount spent on distributions to shareholders, including ordinary
and scrip dvidends during the financial year The split between Property
Income Distnibutions (PID) and non-Property Income Distributions
{non-PID)1s shown Equivalent amounts are provided for the previous
financial year, for comparison

Executive Directors external appointments

Executive Directors may take up one non-executive directorship at
another FTSE 100 Company subject to British Land Board approval
Chris Grigg was appomted a Non-Executive Director of BAE Systems plc
on 1 July 2013 During the year to 31 March 2014 Chris Grigg received
afee of £56 250 from BAE Systems plc which he retained in full

Statement of voting at Annual General Meeting

The table below details the results of the shareholder votes on
resolutions relating to remuneration at the 2013 AGM The Committee
was pleased to note the high levels of shareholder support for

both the 2013 Remuneration Report and the introduction of the new
Long-Term Incentive Plan

Resolutians % Vo es %
at 2013 AGM Yotes for for 2gainst agans.,

Votes
wi hheld

Total
voles cast

Approval of 678,005 079 9887 7752198 113 485757277 2643 404
Directors
Remuneration

Report

Adoption 6594 692847 9639 24507477 361 679160 319 9240362

of new
Long-Term
Incentive Plan

GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating

to Directors remuneration

Throughout the year the Remuneration Committee was chaired by
Lord Turnbull Dido Harding and William Jackson were members
of the Comrmittee during the year The following persons assisted
the Committee during the year Chris Grigg [Chief Executive]

Joff Sharpe [Human Resources Director), Tony Braine [Group
Secretaryl and Alan Judes

The Committee appointed Alan Judes, of Sirategic Remuneration as

its independent advisor for the year He also gave advice to the Company
cn personnel and share plan matters The Commiitee 1s satisfied there
15 no conflict in him praviding such services to the Cormnpany Strateqgic
Remuneration 1s a member of the Remuneration Cansultants Group
and adheres to the Remuneration Consultants Group s Code of

Conduct Strategic Rernuneration was appointed by the Chairman

of the Remuneration Committee following a competitive tender process
The Committee assesses the advice given by Strategic Remuneration

to satisfy itself that the advice receved Is objective and independent
Alan Judes has a private meeting with the Chairman aof the Remuneration
Committee once ayear in accordance with the Code of Conduct

of the Remuneration Consultants Group Feescharged by Strategic
Remuneration for the year amounted to £118,208 excluding VAT
[£124,400 excluding VAT for 2012/13) and are charged on a time basis

This Report was approved by the Board on 13 May 2014

Lord Turnbull
Chairman of the Rernuneration Commuttee
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

REAPPOCINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors Listed on the Board of Directors pages [66 and 671
constituted the Board during the year save that Richard Pym resigred
from the Board on 5 September 2013 and Tim Score was appointed

as a Non-Executive Director on 20 March 2014 In accordance with best
practice under the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012, Tim Score
will offer imself for election by shareholders at the AGM and all the
other Directors will retire at the AGM and will offer themselves for
annual re-election

PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES

The Company was granted authority at the AGM in 2013 to purchase

Its awn shares up to a total aggregate value of 10% of the 1ssued norminal
capital That authority expires at this year s AGM and a resoluticn will

be proposed forits renewal During the year the Company made ne
purchases of its own shares

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has one class of ordinary share and all shares rank
equally and are fully paid [25p each] There are naither restrictions
an the transfer of shares nar on the size of a holding There are no
significant agreements to which the Company I1s party that take
effect alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company

The1ssued share capital has been increased during the year by fully
pald 1ssues as follows

Number of ordinary
shares of 252

T Aprl 2013 to Shares in leu of Directors fees 11302
10 January 2014

18 April 2013 to On exercise of options under the 2592250
26 March 2014 Long-Term Incentive Pian [LTIP]

13 June 2013 to Onvesting of shares under the 494 836
4 February 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

30 May 2013 to Onvesting of shares under the Fund 612743
13 September 2013 Managers Performance Plan

2April2013to Onexercise of options under the 53 047
3 March 2014 Sharesave Scheme

10 May 2012 to Scrip dividend allotment 17885985
14 February 2014

23 August 2013 Share Incentive Plan Free Share 168156

Award allotment

9 September 2013 Onvesting of Matching Shares under 256 4654

the Matching Share Plan [MSP)

PAYMENTS POLICY

We recegnise the importance of good supplier relationships to the
overall success of our business We manage dealings with suppliers
in a fair, consistent and transparent manner and have signed up to
the UK Government s Prormipt Payment Code At the year-end there
were 32 (2012/13 29) suppliers days outstanding

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There were no reportable events after the balance sheet date
DIRECTORS INTERESTSIN CONTRACTS

No contract existed during the year in relation to the Company s
business in which any Director was materially interested
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DIRECTORS LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged insurance cover in respect of legat action
against its Directors To the extent permitted by UK law, the Company
alse indemnifies the Directors

SUBSTANTIALINTERESTS
As at 13 May 2014 the Company had been nctified cf the following major
interests In its issued ordinary share capital

Number % o‘issued
of shares capital
Norges Bank 62598 618 619
Blackrock Inc 57 861598 523
APG Algemene Pensioen Groep NV A4 622 274 441
Government of Singapore Investment 39473204 390
Corporation Pte Ltd
AUDITOR

The external audit for the financial year ending March 2015 was tendered
during the year as detailed on page 75 Having not been invitad to

tender Deloitte LLP intends to resign as the Company s auditer following
completion of the audit of this Annual Report and Accounts Following
the tender, and on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Board intends to appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to fill the casual
vacancy created on Deloitte s resignation The Audit Committee have
recommended resclutions to appoint PricewaterhouseCoocpers as the
Company s auditor and to authorise the Directors to agree the auditor s
remuneration at the 2014 Annual General Meeting

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR
Each of the persons who Is a Director at the date of approval of this
Report confirms that

» 5o faras the Director s aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the Company s auditor 1s unaware, and

s the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken
as a Director in order to make himselffherself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company s auditor1s
aware of that information

This canfirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 20046

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of The British Land Company PLC will be held at

The Ocean Rcom The Cumberland Hotel Great Cumberland Place,
Londen W1H 70L on Friday 18 July 2014 at 11 00am

This Report was approved by the Board on 13 May 2014

Anthony Braine
Group Secretary
13 May 2014
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the
financial staternents in accordance with applicable taw and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statermnents for
each financial year Under that law the Directors are required to prepare
the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards [IFRSs| as adopted by the European Umon and
Articte 4 of the IAS Regulation and have elected to prepare the parent
company financial statements in accardance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice [United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable lawl Under Company law the Directors must
not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit

or loss of the Cornpany for that period

In preparing the parent company financial statementis, the Directors
arerequired to

» select suitable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently

= rmake judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

n state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matenial departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements, and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
it1s inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in
business

In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accounting
Standard 1 requires that Directors

» properly select and apply accounting policies,

= present information, including accounting policies, in a manner
that provides relevant reliable comparable and understandable
information

= provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions other events and conditions
on the entity s financial pasition and financial performance and

= make an assessment of the Company s ability to continue as a
goIng concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position

of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
camply with the Companties Act 2006

They are alsc respansible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reascnable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the Company s website
Legistation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissermination of financisl statements may differ from legistation

In other jurisdictions
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

u the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant
financial reporting framework give a true and fair view af the assets
liabiities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and
the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,

= the Strategic Reportincludes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and
the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertanties
that they face, and

= the Annual Report and financial statements taken as a whole
are fai, balanced and understandable and prowide ihe information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company s performance
business model and strategy

The process for preparing reviewing and approving the Annual
Report and financial statements 15 set out In the Governance Review
on page 71

By order of the Board

Lucinda Bell
Finance Directar
13 May 2014




REPORT OF THE AUDITOR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLC

Opinion on financial statements of The British Land Company PLC
In our opinton

= the financial staternents give a irue and fair view of the state of the
Group s and of the parent company s affairs as at 31 March 2014
and of the Group s profit for the year then ended

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards [IFRSs|
as adopted by the European Urvon,

the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared
In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice and

the financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2004, as regards the Group
financial statements Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

The financial statements comprise the Consolidated Income Staterment,
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income the Consolidated
and Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes

1 to 27 for the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes
Ato K for the parent company financial statements

The financral reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial staternents is applicable law and IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial
statements s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
[United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice]

Going concern

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the Directors
statement contained on page 130 that the Group rs a going concern
We confirm that

= we have concluded that the Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financizl statements
15 apprepriate, and

» we have not identified any material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt on the Group s ability to continue
as a going concern

However because not all future events er conditions can be predicted
this staterment I1s not a guarantee as to the Group s abibity to centinue
as a going concern

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

The assessed risks of materral misstatement described below are those
that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy the allocation of
resources (n the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team

Risk

How the scope of our audit
responded Lo the risk

Valuation of investment
property

The valuation of the

Group s Investment
properties involves significant
Judgements made by
management using the
advice of the external valuers,
particularly those around
current market conditions
and development property
milestones

The valuation exercise
alsorelies on the accuracy
of the underlying lease
and financial information
provided to the valuers

by management

= We tested the key controls
implemented by management
to review and challenge the work
of {he external valuers Knight
Frank and CBRE

= We metwith Kmight Frank and CBRE
to challenge the valuation process,
the performance of the portfolio
and the significant assurnptions and
cnitical jJudgement areas including
future lease income and yields
and development appraisals

= We reviewed the yield assumptions
used by Knight Frank and CBRE
in performing their valuations
to assess their reasonableness
in compartson to relevant market
evidence, benchmarkrng the yields
aganst specific properiy sales
comparables and other external data

* We assessed the competence
Independence and integrity of
Kright Frank and CERE

= We performed aud:t procedures
to test the key controls in place
and the integrity of the information
provided to Knight Frank and CBRE,
including agreement on a sample
basis back to underlying leases

Please see note 11 of the Financial

Statements

Accounting for complex
property transactions
The sale and purchase
agreements for property
acquisitions and disposals
may have complexity such
as deferred consideration
arrangements rental top-up
payments or joint venture
contractual obligations,
which require judgernenit
from management to
consider the correct
application of the relevant
accounting standards

® We challenged management s

Judgements by reviewing the sale
and purchase agreernents and
other related documents and by
assessing each transaction against
the recognition measurement

and classification criteria per the
Group s accounting policies and
the applicable IFRSs

» We tested the accuracy and

completeness of the disclosure
of the transactians in the financial
statements

The Audit Commuttee s consideration of these risks 1s set out on

page 77

Our audit procadures relating to these maiters were designed in the

context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and not to
express an epinion an individual accounts or disclosures Our opinion
on the financial statements 15 not modihied with respect to any of the

risks described above and we do not express an apinion on these

indvidual matters
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFQRMATION

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR
CONTINUED

Our application of materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstaternent in the financial
statements that makes It probable that the economic decisians of

a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced
We use mateniality both in planning the scape of our audit work and

in evaluating the results of our work

We determined rateriality for the Groug to be £55m which 1s below
1% of shareholders equity

In addition to shareholders equity we recognise that underlying profit
before tax 1s an iImportant measure in the Group s income statement
In order to suitably plan and evaluate our work for items affecting this
measure we have applied a lower threshold which equates to 6 7%

of underlying profit before tax

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would repart ta the
Commuttee all audit differences in excess of £1 million aswell as
differences below that threshold that 1n our view, warranted reporting
on qualitative grounds We also report to the Audit Commuttee on
disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall
presentation of the financial statements

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group
and its environment including Group-wide control, and assessing the
risks of material misstatement at the Group level Audit work to respond
to the risks of material misstaternent was performed directly by the audit
engagement tearn with the exception of three significant companents
where {ull audit procedures were performed by other Delaitte UK offices
Full audst precedures have been performed on components representing
88% of the Group net assets

As Group auditors we also included the component audit partners and
teams In our team briefings, discussed their risk assessment and also
reviewed documentation of the findings from their work

At the parent entity level we also tested the consolidation process and
carried out analytical procedures to confirmi our conclusion that there
were no significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated
financial information of the remaining components not subject to audit
or audit of specified accaunt balances

Opinon on other matters prescribed by the Cornpanies Act 2006
In our apinign

= the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Compames Act 2006, and

= the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors Report
far the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
15 consistent with the financial statements

112 The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if,
1IN QU opINIoN

= we have not received all the information and exptanations we require
for cur audtt, or

adequate accounung records have not been kept by the parent
company or returns adequate for our audit have not been recewved
fromn branches not wisited by us, or

the parent company financial statements are not In agreement
with the accounting records and returns

We have nolhing io report in respect of these matters

Directors remuneratton

Under the Companies Act 20046 we are also required o reportif in our
opinion certain disclosures of Directors remuneration have not been

made or the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited
15 nat In agreement with the accounting records and returns We have
nothing to report arising from these matters

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company s compliance
with nine provisions of the UK Carporate Governance Code We have
nothing to report arising from our review

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report

Under International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland} we are
required to report to you if inour apinien, iInformation in the Annual
Reportis

= aterially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial
statements, or

apparently materially incorrect based on or materiaily iInconsistent
with, our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of performing
our audit or

& otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identfied
any Inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired during the audit
and the Directors staternent that they consider the Annual Report

15 fair, balanced and understandable and whether the Annual Repart
appropriately discloses those matters that we communicated to the
Audit Cornmitiee which we consider should have been disclosed

We confirm that we have not identified any such inconsistencies or
misleading statements




Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Staternent,
the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statemnents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view
Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland} Those standards regquire

us 1o comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards
for Auditors We also comply with International Standard on Quality
Control 1 [UK and Ireland] Our audit methodology and tools aim to
ensure that our quality control procedures are effective, understood
and applied Qur quality controls and systems include our dedicated
professional standards review team strategtcally focused second
partner reviews and independent partner reviews

This repart i1s made solely tc the Company s members, as a body,

in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2004
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company s members thase matters we are required to state to them
in an Auditor s Report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitited by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company s members as a body

ior our audit work, for thus Repors, or for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures
In the financial siatements suffictent to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from material misstatement whether
caused by fraud or errer This includes an assessment of whether

the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group s and the parent
company s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness cf stgnificant accounting
estimates made by the Directors and the averall presentation

of the financial statements |n addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial informatien in the Annual Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify

any nformation that 1s apparently materially sncorrect based on, or
matenally inconsistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the course
of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or Incansistencies we consider the implications for

our report

Richard Muschamp (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audior
Londen United Kingdem

13 May 2014

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
Underlying Capital Underlying Capital
pre-tax' and other Totat pre-tax’ and other Total
Note Em fm €m Em Em fm
Gross rental and related income 3 384 - 384 329 - 329
Net rental and related income 3 313 - 313 281 - 281
Fees and otherincome 4 15 - 15 i5 - 15
Joint ventures and funds (see also below) 124 253 377 130 [63) &7
Admintstrative expenses (72) - (72) (72) - (72]
Netvaluation movement lincludes result on disposals) b - 615 615 - 88 88
Financing costs - financing income 7 g 3 12 A 2 23
- finaneing charges 7 (90} 150} (150] 101) (41 (142
(81) 57} (138) (80) (3% (1191
Profit [loss) on ordinary activittes before taxation 299 a1 1,110 274 (14) 260
Taxation - current tax iIncome 8 3 3 8 8
- deferred tax income 8 3 3 14 16
[} ] 24 24
Profit for the year after taxation 1,116 284
Attribuiable to non-cantrolling interesis 2 8 10 - - -
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 297 809 1,106 274 10 284
Earrmings per share - basic 2 1107p N7
- diluted 2 10 2p 315p
1 Asdehined in note 2
All results derive from continuing operations
2014 2013
Underlying Capital Underlying Capital
pre-tax! and other Total pre-tax and other Tatal
Note £€m £m £m £m Em £m
Share of results of joint ventures and funds
Underlying profit before taxation 124 - 124 130 - 130
Net valuation movemnent [includes result on disposals} - 258 258 - [62] (62
Non-recurring Hems - - - - [4) (4]
Current tax incorne [expensel - {5) {5) - 2 2
Deferred tax income - - - - i 1
12 124 253 377 130 (63) &7

1 Asdefinedin note 2
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 March 2014

2014 M3
£m £m
Prefit for the year after taxation 1116 284
Other comprehensive income
items that will not be reclasstfied subsequently to profit or loss
Net actuarial loss on pensicn scheme (2) (2]
(21 (2]
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Gains [losses] on cash flow hedges
- Group 14 {16]
- Jointventures and funds 48 (6]
62 (22}
Transferred to the income staterment [cash flow hedges)
- Foreign currency derivatives 8 (5l
- Interest rate derivatives 15 26
23 2
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
- Hedging and transtation 2 (4)
- Other 1 6
3 2
Deferred tax taken to equity 5 -
5 -
Other comprehensive profit (loss) for the year 91 1l
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company 1,207 283
Attributable to nen-controlling interests 10 -
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 1,197 283
The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014 115

Zy-z 1Joday 3ibateng

BG-CY MBIAR 3OUBLLIOYIAY

B0L-45 UDIEIBUNLLZ.I PUE 3JUBUIAADL

il

081-40 UCHEULIOUI 13U10 PUB SJUBLLIBIE]S |BIdULUIS




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

A1 31 March 2014

2014 2013
Note £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investrent and development properties 1 7,272 5,488
Owner-occupied property L 47 42
7319 5,530
Other non-current assets
Investments in joint ventures and funds 12 2,712 2336
Other investments 13 262 74
Interest rate derivative assets 18 32 92
10,325 8034
Current assets
Trading properties 1 M 40
Debtors 14 41 40
Cash and short-term deposits 18 142 135
454 235
Total assets 10,779 8,269
LIABILITIES
Current babilities
Shart-term borrowings and averdrafts 18 1495) [44]
Creditors 15 1263) (259
Corporation tax (8} 17)
(766) (320)
Non-current Uabilittes
Debentures and loans 18 12,803) [2134)
Other non-current liabilities 16 (321 (26)
Deferred tax Labilities 17 (4) [16])
Interest rate dervative liabibties 18 (57) (86l
(2,896) [2,262)
Total Liabilities [3,642) (2,582}
Net assets N7 5687
Equity
Share capital 22 255 249
Share premium 1,257 1,242
Merger reserve 213 213
Other reserves (70] (163)
Retained earnings 5,001 4146
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company 6,746 5,487
Non-controlling interests n -
Total equity 17 5487
EPRA NAV per share! 2 688p 5%p

1 Asdefinedin note 2

John Gildersleeve Lucinda Bell
Chairman Finance Director

Approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 13 May 2014

Company nurmber 621920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2014

FINANCEAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

2014 20013
Note €m £m
Rental incorme recerved from tenants 312 266
Fees and other income received 19 19
Operating expenses paid to suppliers and employees [88) (88)
Cash generated from operations 243 197
Interest paid 18] (113)
Interest received 29 3
UK corporation tax recerved - 1
Distributions and other recewvables from joint ventures and funds &3 74
Net cash inflow from operating activities 219 190
Cash flows from investing activittes
Development and other capital expenditure (175) (230)
Purchase of investment properties (569) [442)
Sale of investment properties 352 699
Purchase of investments (84) -
Sale of Investments 8 ?
Deferred consideration receved 5 18
Acquisition of Hercules Unit Trust 21 1145] -
Cash acquired an acquisition of subsidiary 21 18 -
Purchase of joint ventures and funds (113 -
Sale of joint ventures and funds 179 -
Investment in and loans to joint ventures and funds 162) (318]
Capital distributions and loan repayments from joint ventures and funds 28 72
Indirect taxes [paid) receved in respect of investing activities (2) 3]
Net cash outflow from investing activities {660) |202)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary shares n 493
Dividends paid 20 159) (203)
Closeout of Interest rate dervative 16) 4
Movemnent in other financial liabilives (8 2
Disposal of liquid investments 18 - 210
Decrease In bank and other borrawings 149) 1889
Drawdowns on bank and other borrowings 669 -
Proceeds on convertible bond 1ssue - 393
Net cash inflow from financing activities 448 10
Net increase (decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 7 (2]
Cash and cash equivalents at t April 135 137
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 142 135
Cash and cash equivalents consists of
Cash and short-term deposits i8 142 135
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Hedging and Non-
Share Share translation Revaluation Merger Retained controlling Total
capitall  prermium reserve’Z  reserve’  reserve’ earnings Total interest equity
£m £m £m £m €m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 April 2013 249 1,242 7l 192} 213 4,146 5,687 - 5.687
Profit for the year after taxation - - - - - 1,106 1,106 10 116
Losses on cash flow hedges - - 14 - - - 14 - 14
Revaluation through statement of changes - - - - - 1 1 - 1
In equity
Jontventures and funds revaluations - - - 48 - - 48 - 48
Reclassification of gains (losses)
on cash flow hedges
- Foreign currency derivatives - - 8 - - - 8 - 8
- Interest rate derivatives - - 15 - - - 15 - 15
Exchange differences on translation - - 2 - m 2 - 2
of foreign operatians
Net actuarial loss on pension schemes - - - - - (2) (2) - 12}
Deferred tax taken to equity - - - 5 - - 5 - 5
Other comprehensive income (loss) - - 39 54 - (2) 21 - 1
Tatal comprehensive iIncome for the year - - 39 54 - 1,104 1,197 10 1,207
Share issues 6 15 - - - (8 13 - 13
Nen-centrolling interest on acguisition - - - - - - - 374 374
of subsidiary
Purchase of units frarn non-controlling interast - - - - - - - (3] n3l
Adjustment for share and share optton awards - - - - - 10 10 - 10
Dividends payahle inyear (24 7p per share) - - - - - [266) (266) - (265)
Transfer - - - - - - - - -
Adjustment for scrip dividend element - - - - - 108 105 - 105
Balance at 31 March 2014 255 1,257 132) (38] 213 5,091 6,746 an mz7
Balance at 1 April 2012 225 1237 (721 (92 - 3,806 5,104 - 5104
Profit far the year after taxation - - - - ~ 284 284 - 284
Losses on cash flow hedges - - (18] - - - (18] - él
Joint ventures and funds revaluations - - - {6 - - 16} - (8]
Reclasssfication of gains (losses)
on cash flow hedges
- Foreign currency derivatives - - (5) - - - 15) - (5}
- Interest rate derivatives - - 26 - - - 26 - 25
Exchange differences on translation - - (4] 4 - - 2 - 2
of foreign operations
Net actuarial loss on pension schemes - - - - - [2) (2) - 2)
Other comprehensive income [loss} - - 1 - - (2) (1) - (1
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1 - - 282 283 - 283
Share 1ssues 24 - - 464 - 493 - 493
Adjustment for share and share option awards - - - - 9 9 - 9
Dwidends payable i year {26 3p per share) - - - - - (234) {234} - [234)
Transfer - - - - i251) 251 - - -
Adjustment for scrip dvidend element - - - - - 32 32 - 32
Balance at 31 March 2013 249 1242 [71) [92) 213 4146 5,687 - 5.487

1 Refertonote 22

2 Thebalance at the beginning of the period includes £2m relating to translation and (£73ml relating to hedging
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2014 have
been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation
of properties investments and derivatives The financial staiements
have also been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards [IFRSs] as adopted by the European Union and
therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation

In the current financial year the Group has adopted the amendments to
IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income, IFRS 13
FairValue Measurerment and IAS 19 [revised] Employee Benefits

» The amendments to [AS T require items of other comprehensive
income to be grouped by those items that will be reclassified
subsequently te profit or loss and those that will be never be
reclassified, as well as their asscciated iIncome tax The amendments
have been applied retrospectively and hence the presentation of items
of comprehensive income has been regrouped accordingly

[FRS 13 impacts the disclosure of investrent and owner-occupied
properties as setoutnnote 11

[AS 19 [revised) and the related conseguentizl amendments have
impacted the accounting for the Group s defined benefit pension
scheme, by replacing the interest cost and expected return on plan
assetswith a netinterest charge on the nat defined benefit izbility
The impact af adopting IAS 1% [revised) 1s not considered material

Otherwise the accounting policies used are consistent with those
contained in the Group s last Annual Report and Accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2013

Standards and interpretations 1ssued but not effective for the current
accounting pericd were

» [FRS% - Financig! Instruments,

» |AS 32 [amended) - Financial Instruments Presentation,

1 |[FRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements,

* [FRS 11 - Joint Arrangements,

s [FR$12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

v |AS 12 [amended) - Deferred Tax recovery of underlying assets,

» |AS 27 [revised) - Separate Financizl Statements,

» JAS 28 [revised) - Investments 1n Associates and Joint Ventures, and
s [AS 36 - Recoverable Ameunt Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards listed
above will have a material impaci on the financial statements of the
Group i future pertods except as follows

» |FRS 7 willimpact both the measurement and disclosures of financial
instruments and 1s effective for the Group s year ending 31 March 2018
The Group has net yet completed its evaluation of the effect of
adoption

Critical accounting judgements are disclosed in the relevant section
of the Annual Report see page 55 The key source of estimation

and uncertainty relates to the valuation of the property pertfolio and
investments where an external valuation i1s obtained Inaccounting
for netrentalincome, the Group 1s required to judge the recoverability
of any income accrued and provides against the credit risk on these
amounts

Other less significant assumptions include the actuarial assumptions
used In calculating the Group s retirement benefit ebligations,

the valuation of fixed rate debt and interest rate derwatives, and the
share-based payment expense The potential for management to make
Judgements or estimates relating to those items which would have

a significant impact on the financial staternents (s considered, by the
nature of the Group s business to be imited

GOING CONCERN
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis
as explained in the Corporate Governance section on page 72

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

(INCLUDING FUNDS])

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of The British Land
Company PLC and all subsidiaries (entiues controlled by British Land]
Control 1s assumed where British Land has the power to govern

the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to gain
benefits from its activities

The results of subsidiaries, joint ventures or assoclates acquired
or disposed of during the year are inciuded from the effective
date of acquisition or to the effective date of disposal Accounting
practices of subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates which differ
from Group accounting policies are adjusted on consolidation

Business combinztions are accounted for under the acquisition
method Any excess of the purchase price of business combinations

over the fair value of the assets, Liabiities and contingent labilities acquired

and resulting deferred tax thereon s recognised as gocdwill Any discount
recewved Is credited to the income statement in the period of acquisition

Allintra-Group transactions balances income and expenses
are elminated on consolidation

Jointventures and associates, including funds, are accounted for under
the equity method whereby the consolidated balance sheet incorperates
the Group s share [investor s share| of the net assets of its joint ventures
and associates The censolidated income statement incorporates the
Group s share of joint venture and associate profits after tax upon
elimination of upstream and downstrearn transactions Their profits
include revaluation movements on investment properties Interest
income, management fees and performance fees are propertionately
eliminated

PROPERTIES

Properties are externally valued on the basis of fairvalue at the balance
sheet date Investment and owner-occupied properties are recorded
atvaluation whereas trading properties are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value

Any surplus or defreit arising on revaluing investment properties is
recognised In the Income staterment

Any surplus arising on revaluing owner-occupied preperties above
cost 15 recognised Iin equity, and any deficit arising in revaluation
below cost for owner-occupied and trading properties 1s recogrised
in the Income staternent

The cost of preperties in the course of develepment includes atiributable
interest and other associated outgoings Interest I1s calculated on the
development expenditure by reference to speciiic borrowings where
relevant and otherwise on the average rate applicable to short-term
toans Interest s not capitalised where no development activity 1s taking
place Aproperty ceasesto be treated as a development property on
practicat completion
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

PROPERTIES continued

Disposals are recognised on completion profits and losses arising
are recognised through the Income statement the profit on disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset at the commencement of the accounting
periad plus capital expenditure in the period

Where properties held for investrent are appropriated to trading
stock, they are transferred at market value If properties held for trading
are appropriated to investment they are transferred at book value

In determining whether leases and related properties represent
operating or finance leases consideration 1s given to whether the tenant
or landlord bears the risks and rewards of ownership

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Trade debtors and creditors are intially recognised at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost and discounted
as appropriate

Other investments include loans and receivables held at amortised cost
and investments held for trading classified as fair value through prefit
or loss Amortised cost of loans and recervables (s measured using the
effective interest method, less any impairment Interest is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate Investments held for irading are
initiatly recorded at fair value and are subsequently externally valued
onthe same basis at the balance sheet date Anysurplus ordeficit
arising on revaluing investments held for trading 1s recogrised in the
income staterment

Where an investment property ts held under a head lease the head
lease 1s initially recognised as an asset as the sum of the premium paid
on acquisition and the present value of minimum ground rent payments
The corresponding rent Liability to the head leaseholder is included In
the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation

Debt instruments are stated at their net proceeds on ssue Finance
charges including premiums payable on settlement er redemption
and direct1ssue costs are spread over the period to redemption,
using the effective interest method

Convertible bonds are designated as fair value through profit or loss

and so are presentad on the balance sheet at fair value with all gaing

and losses, including the write-off of 1ssuance costs, recognised in the
income statement within the capital and other component of net financing
costs The interest charge in respect of the coupon rate on the bonds

has been recogrised within the underlying component of net financing
costs on an accruals basis

As defined by IAS 39, cash flow and fair value hedges are carried at far
value in the balance sheet Changes in the fairvalue of dervatives that
are designated and qualify as effective cash flow hedges are recognised
directly in the hedging reserve Changes in the fairvalue of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as effective fair value hedges are recorded
I the iIncome statement, along with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged item that s attributable to the hedged risk Any ineffective portion
of all derivatives i1s recognised in the income statement

Cash equivalents are imited to instruments with a maturity of less
than three months
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NET RENTAL INCOME

Rentalinceme 1s recagnised on an accruals basis A rent adjustment
based on open market estimated rental value 1s recognised from the rent
review date In relation to unsetiled rent reviews Where a rent-free period
15 included in a lease the rental :ncomne foregone 1s allocated evenly

over the peried from the date of lease commencement to the earliest
termination date

Rental incomne from fixed and mimimum guaranteed rent reviews

1s recognised on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the entire lease
term or the period to the first break option Where such rental income

1s recognised ahead of the related cash flow, an adjustment 1s made

to ensure that the carrying value of the related property including the
accrued rent does not exceed the external valuation Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging a new lease are amaortised on a
straight-line basis over the period from the date of lease commencement
to the earliest termination date

Where a lease incentive payment, including surrender premia paid
does not enhance the value of a property, itis amortised on a straight-
line basis aver the period from the date of lease commencement to the
earliest termination date Upan receipt of a surrender premium for the
early determination of a lease, the profit, net of dilapidattens and non-
recoverable autgoings relating to the lease concerned, 1s Immedately
reflected in iIncome

MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES

Management and performance fees recevable are recognised in the
period towhichthey relate Performance fees are recogrused at the
and of the performance period when the fee amount can be estimated
reliably and 1t 1s virtually certain that the fee will be received
Management and performance fees recevable from joint ventures
and funds are proportionately eiminated Performance fees are
discounted for any element subject to subsequent clawback, on
acase-by-case basis

TAXATION

Current tax s based on taxable profit for the year and 1s calculated

using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

Taxable prefit differs from net profit as reported in the iIncome statement
because it excludes items of Income or expense that are not taxable

lor tax deductible]

Deferred tax is provided on items that may becorne taxable at a later date,
on the difference between the balance sheet value and tax base value,

on an undiscounted basis On busingss combinations the deferred tax
effect of fair value adjustments 1s incorporated in the consolidated
balance sheet

EMPLOYEE COSTS

The tair value of equity-settled share-based payments to employees
is determined at the date of grant and Is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group s estimate of shares
or options that will eventually vest In the case of options granted, fair
valueis measured by a Black-Schales pricing model Compensation
linked to performance fees accrued by the Group 1s amertised over
the vesting period




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

EMPLOYEE COSTS continued

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured using fair vatues,
pension scheme liabilities are measured using the projected unit credit
method and discounted at the rate of return of a high-quality corporate
bond of equivalent term to the scheme liabilities The net surplus
iwhere recoverable by the Group] or deficit 1s recogrused in full in the
consolidated balance sheet Any asset resulting frem the calculation s
limited to past service costs plus the present value of available refunds
and reductions in future contributions to the plan

2 PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The current service cost and gains and losses on settlernent and
curtatlments are charged to operating profit Past service costs

are recognised in the iIncome statement if the benefits have vested or,
if they have not vested are amertised on a straight-line basis over the
period until vesting cccurs Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
in full in the periad in which they occur and are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Contributions to the Group s defined contribution schemes are
expensed on the basis of the contracted annual contribution

204 2013

Earnings Pence per Earnings Pence per
Earnings per share [diluted unless otherwise stated) £m share £m share
Underlying pre-tax profit attributable to shareholders of the Company - income statement 297 - 274 -
Tax charge relating to underlying profit 2 - (" -
Underlying earnings 295 294 273 303
Mark-to-market on/profit on disposal of Liquid investments [held for trading assets) - - 9 -
Mark-to-rmarket adjusiment on convertible bond - - (7) -
Non-recurring items’ - - (7] -
EPRA earnings - diluted 295 294 268 297
Rernove diluton of share options 01 02
EPRA earnings - basic 295 299
Profit for the year after taxation 1,106 102 284 315

1 Mon-recurring items for the year ended 31 March 2013 of £7m relate to issue costs of the convertible bond

The Eurcpean Public Real Estate Association [EPRA] has issued Best Practices Recommendations, the latest update of which was 1ssued in January
2014, which give guidelines for perfarmance measures EPRA earnings is the profit after tax excluding investment and development property
revaluations and gains or losses on disposals, changes in the fair value of financial instruments and associated close-out costs and their related
taxation Asummary of the EPRA Perfermance Measures Is provided in Table B within the Supplementary Disclosures, see page 161

Underlying earnings consists of the EPRA earnings [diluted) measure with additional Company adjustments Adjustments include mark-to-market

adjustments on held-for-trading assets

The weighted average number of shares in 1ssue for the yearwas basic 799m [2012/13 895m), diluted for the effect of share options 1004m
[2012/13 901m) Basic undiluted earnings per share for the year, calculated using profit for the year after taxation of £1 106m (2012/13 £284ml,
was 110 7p [2012/13 31 7p) Earnings per share shown in the table above are diluted

31 March 31 March

2014 2013

Net asset value [NAY] (diluted] €m £m
Balance sheet net assets 7117 5,687
Less non-controlling interests {371 -
Deferred tax arising on revaluation moverments 6 14
Mark-to-market on effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjustments 173 198
Surplus ontrading properties 63 10
Dilution effect of share options 39 58
EPRA NAV 7,027 5,947
EPRA NAV per share 488p 596p

The EPRA NAV per share excludes the mark-to-market on effective cash flow hedges, related debt adjustments and the corwertible bond, deferred
taxation on revaluations and surplus on trading properties and 1s calculated on a fully diluted basis The EPRA Best Pracuices Recemmendations
additional guidance, issued in January 2014 has adjusted the treatment of mark-to-market valuations on convertible bonds for the calculation of NAV
per share This update has provided a 1p increase in EPRA NAY per share in the current year

At3i March 2014 the number of shares in 1ssue was basic 1008m [2012/13 986mi, diluted for the effect of share optiens 1 021m(2012/13 1001m)

Total accounting return per share for the year ended 31 March 2014 of 20 0% includes dividends of 27 Op |see note 20) 1n addition to the Increase
in EPRA NAV of 92 Op Total accounting return per share for the year ended 31 March 2013 was 4 6%
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND GTHER INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

3 GROSS AND NET RENTAL AND RELATED INCOME

2014 2013

£m £fm

Rent receivable 310 269
Spreading of tenant Incentives and guaranteed rent Increases 20 24
Surrender premia A 1
Gross rental income 334 294
Service charge income 50 35
Gross rental and related income 384 329

Service charge expenses (50] [35]

Property operating expenses (21] (13
Net rental and related income 313 281

The cash element of net rental incerme recognised during the year ended 31 March 2014 from properties which were not subject to a security

interest was £189m [2012/13 £75%m] Property operating expenses relating to investment properties that did not generate any rental income were

E1m [2012/13 €1m) Contingent rents of £1m (2012/13 £1ml|were recognised In the year

4 FEES AND OTHER INCOME

2013

2014

£m £m
Management and performance fees [from joint ventures and funds} 10 10
Cther fees and commissions 5 4]

15 i5

5 OTHER INCOME STATEMENT DISCLOSURES

2014 2013
(1) Total revenue Note £m Em
Gross rental and related income 3 384 329
Fees and other income 4 15 15
Financing income 7 12 23
Proceeds on property trading 6 109 -
Total revenue in the year 520 347

2014 2013
(] Auditor remuneration - Deloitte LLP £m Em
Audit fees
Fees payable tc the Company s auditor for the audit of the Company s annual accounts 03 02
Fees payable tc the Company s auditor for the audit of the Company s subsidiaries, pursuzant to legislation 02 D3
Total audit fees 05 05
Audit-related assurance services 01 01
Total audit and audit-related assurance services 06 06
Other fees
Tax advisary services 01 01
Other services 01 02
Total other fees 02 03

o8 09

{m) Exchange gains recagnised in the consolidated income statement total £3m (2012/13 £2m)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

& NET REVALUATION GAINS ON PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS
2014 2013
Em Em
Consolidated income statement
Revaluation of properties 580 N
Result on property and investment disposals X]| 8
Revaluation of nvestments 4 9
615 88
Share of valuation movements of joint ventures and funds 258 (62]
Net revaluation gains on property and investments 873 26
Profit on trading property
Sale proceeds 109 -
Cost of sales (95) -
Profit on trading property 14 -
7 NET FINANCING COSTS
2014 2013
fm Em
Interest payable on
Bank loans and overdrafts 29 37
Otherloans 77 75
Obligations under finance leases 1 1
107 113
Development interest capitalised 17) (171
90 96
Interest receivable on
Deposits securities and liguid investments (3 m)
Loans to jaint ventures () (3)
i9) [14]
Other finance (iIncome] costs
Expected return on pension scheme assets - {7l
Interest on pension scheme liabilities - 5
Valuation movements on translation of foreign currency debt 9] 5
Hedgtng reserve recycling 9 (5]
Net financing costs — underlying 81 80
Capital and other
Valuation movernents on {air value debt (62) 18
Valuation movements on fair value dervatives 62 (14]
Net capital movement on conver tible bond S0 14
Recycling of fair value movement on close-out of derivatives 10 20
Valuation movement on translation of foreign currency net assets 13 (2)
Fair value movement on non-hedge accounted derivatives - 3
Net financing costs - capital 57 39
Net financing costs 138 1ne
Total financing tncome 12) (23t
Total financing charges 150 142
Net financing costs 138 19
Interest on development expenditure 1s capitalised at a rate of 3 80% (2012/13 4 00%)]
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

8 TAXATION

2014 203
£m £m
Tax expense [income)
Current tax
UK carporation tax 23% (2012/13 24%| 2 1
2 1
Adjustments in respect of priar years 5 (9]
Total current tax income (3) (8
Deferred tax on revaluations (3 1é)
Group total taxation {net) (6) [24)
Atiributable ta joint ventures and funds 5 (3]
Total taxatton income 1] (27
Tax reconciliation
Profit on ordinary actvities before taxation 1,105 257
Less profitattributable to joint ventures and funds’ (382) [64)
Group profit on ordinary activities before taxation 723 193
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at UK corporation tax rate of 23% (2012/13 24%) 146 46
Effects of
REIT exempt income and gains 160] (£1)
Tax losses fA] (6}
Adjustments in respect of priar years (8l (23]
Group total taxation Income (6 [24)

1 Acurrenttax charge of £5m [2012/43 credit of £2ml and a deferredtax credit of £nil [2012/13 credit of £1m] arase on profits atiributable to joint ventures and funds

The low charges reflect the Group s REIT status

Tax expense attributable to underlying prefits for the year ended 31 March 2014 was £2m (2012/13 £1m) The underlying tax rate for the year ended

31 March 2014 was 0 7% (2012/13 0 5%)
Corporatian tax payable at 31 March 2014 was £8m {2012/13 £17m] as shown on the balance sheet

9 STAFF COSTS

STAFF COSTS [INCLUDING DIRECTORS)

2014 2m3

£m Em

Wages and salaries 46 43
Social security costs 5 ]
Pension costs 6 5
Equity-settled share-based payments 12 i2
69 65

The average monthty number of employees of the Company during the year was 231 (2012/13 217] The average monthly number of Group employees

including those employed directly at the Group s properties and their costs recharged to tenants, was 594 (2012/13 514)

The Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are the key management personnel Their emoluments are summarised below and furiher

detail 1s disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages B2 to 107
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

9 STAFF COSTS continued
DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS
2014 013
£m Em
Short-term employee benefits 56 b4
Termination payments 02 -
Service cost In relation to defined benefit pension schemes 02 01
Share based payment 52 31
1n2 24

STAFF COSTS
The Group s equity-settled share-based payrnents comprise the Long-Term [ncentive Plan [LTIP} the Matching Share Plan {MSP), the Fund
Managers Performance Plan (FMPP] the Share Incentive Plan [SIP) and various Savings Related Share Option Schemes

The Company expenses an estimate of how many shares are likely to vest based on the market price at the date of grant taking account of expected

performance against the relevant performance targets and service pericds

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN [LTIP]

Under the LTIP the Company may award employees a combination of performance shares and options Both components have the same performance
targets based on total property return total accounting return and a three-year service period For both LTIP components the Company estimates

the number of shares or options Likely to vest and expenses that estimate over the relevant period Performance shares are valued at the market value
at the date of the award The options are valued using a Black-Scholes model adjusted for dividends see table below Volatility has been estimated by
taking the historical volatility In the Company s share price over a four-year period and adjusting where there are known facters that may affect future

volatility No other features of the option grant were incorporated into the measurement of fairvalue

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN 2013 AWARDS

5 December 5 August

2013 2012

Share price and exercise price at grant date &00p &01p
Expected option lfe in years 7 7
Risk free rate 23% 18%
Expected volatility 35% 35%
Expected dwvidend yreld 5% 5%
Value per option 133p 132p

MATCHING SHARE PLAN [MSP)

The MSP allows eligible employees tc receive one third of their annual bonus in shares, held in trust which followsng performance targets based
on Total Shareholder Return and like-for-like rental growth being achieved over a three year period, will be matched two-far-one by the Company

The Company expenses the estimated number of shares likely to vest over the three-year period based on the market price at the date of grant

FUND MANAGERS PERFORMANCE PLAN (FMPP)

Under the FMPP the Company may award employees a combination of ¢ash [20% of the award] and shares based on a maximum of 30% of the annual
performance fee awarded by the Unit Trusts and, as agreed by shareholders in 2008 i respect of a comparative notional pool for British Land-owned
portfolios The cash is awarded following the performance year under review with the shares released over the following three years subject to clawback

due to subsequent property underperformance The Campany expenses an estimate of the fair value of the award over the periad to full vesting

OTHER SHARE PLANS

Under the SIP the Company gives eligible employees free shares of up to £3 000 a year They can also purchase partnership shares for up to £1,500
ayear that are matched two-for-one by the Company The free and matching shares are either purchased at fair value in the market or allotted and

expensed at the tme of allocation

Under the Savings Related Share Option Scheme eligible employees can save up to £250 a month over a three or five-year period and use the savings
to exercise an option granted at the outset at a 20% discount to the then prevailing share price The fairvalue of the various options 15 expensed over

the service period, based on a Black-Scholes model

Movernents in shares and options are given in note 22
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

10 PENSIONS

The Britsh Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme [the schemie] 1s the principal pension scheme in the Group It 1s a defined benefit scheme
which 1s externally funded and not contracted out of SERPS (State Earnings-Related Pension Scheme] The assets of the scheme are held in a trustee-
adrministered fund and kept separate from those of the Company Itis not ptanned to admit new employees to the scheme Existing entitlements will
be retained by the members, with freedom to transfer to a new Defined Contribution Scheme Contributions to this scherne are at a flat rate of 15%

of salary and are paid by the Company In certain circumstances it may be necessary to pay higher contributions when recruiting senior executives

The Group has three other smail pension schemes The total net pension cost charged for the year was £6m (2012/13 £5ml, of which £3m (2012/13
£3m)] relates to defined contribution plans

Afull actuarnial valuation of the scheme was carried out at 31 March 2012 by consulting actuaries, AON Hewitt Associates Ltd The empleyers
contributions will be paid n the future at the rate recommended by the actuary of 54 4% per annum of basic salaries The best estimate of employer
contributions expected to be paid during the year to 31 March 2015 1s £3m The major assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were

2014 203 2012 201 2010
% pa % pa % pa % pa % pa
Discount rate 44 41 56 55 55
Salary inilation 52 47 47 52 54
Pensions increase 35 31 31 37 39
Price inflatian 37 32 32 37 39

The martality assumptions are based on standard mortality tables which allow for future mortality imprevernents The assumptions are thata
member currently aged 60 will live on average for a further 29 7 years if they are male and for a further 30 9 years if they are female For a member
who retires in 2034 at age 60 the assumptions are that they will live an average for a further 31 3 years after retirement (f they are male and for a
further 32 é years after retiremnent if they are female

COMPOSITION OF SCHEME ASSETS

2014 2003

£m Em

Equities 51 48
Dwversified Growth Funds {DGF) 77 70
Other assets 3 2
Total scheme assets 13 120

The vast majority of the scherme assets are guoted in an active market

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group s obligations in respect of its defined benefit scherne 1s as follows

2014 2013 2012 z2on 2010

£m £m Em £m Em

Present value of defined scherme abligations {125) 1119] [107) [99) (95)
Fairvalue of scheme assets 13 120 109 1a 98
Irrecoverable surplus &) {1 (2] m (3

Asset [lahility] recognised in the balance sheet - - - - -

IAS 19 [revised) and the related consequeniial amendments have impacted the accounting for the Group s defined benefit scheme, by replacing the
interest cost and expected return on ptan assets with a net interest charge on the net defined benefit kability The impact of adopting IAS 19 [revised)
1s not considered matertal

HISTORY OF EXPERIENCE GAINS AND LOSSES

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
£m Em Em Em £m
Total actuarial loss recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income’
Amount? 2 (4) (3] (2) (2]
Percentage of present value on scheme liabilities 16% 31% 27% 20% 15%
Pension scheme movement for the year? 2) (4) 13 (2) f2}

1 Movernents stated after adjustment for irrecoverability of any surplus
2 Cumulative loss recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive income s £31m [20§2/13 £29m)
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- w—
10 PENSIONS continued g
Movermnents in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows A
-3
014 w3 g
€m £m n
A
At 1 April {19 Gon ™
Current service cost 3 (2)
Interest cost (5) {5)
Actuanial gains [losses)
Gain loss] from change in demographic assumptions - 3)
Gain lloss| from change in financial assumptions {3l 6]
Gainllossl on scheme Liabilibes arising from experience 3 2
Benefits paid 2 2
At 31 March 125) (119) L
o—
Amounts recognised In the Income statement in respect of the defined benefit scheme are S“‘
- 3
2014 w13 3
£m £m i
g
Administrative expenses current service cost (3) 2] 2
Interest on net defined benefit Liability (asset] - 2 B
1
(3) - 8
The actual return on scheme assets was £9m [2012/13 £10m]
Movements In the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows
2014 2013
Em Em
At 1 April 120 108
Interest Income on scheme assets 5 7 a5 -
Contributions by employer 4 4 2
Actuarial gains {losses] 4 3 3
Benefits paid 12) 2 2
[+1]
At31 March 131 120 2
o
3
Through its defined benefit plans the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of whichare =
3
Assetvolatiity The Liabilities are calculated wsing a discount rate set with a reference to corporate bond yields f assets underperform g
this yield this will create a deficit The Scherne holds a significant portion of growth assets (equities and dversified %1
growth funds) which, though are expected to outperiorm corporate bonds in the long-term create votatility and risk P
in the shart-term The aliocation to growth assets 1s monitored to ensure that it remains appropriate given the Scheme s =
tong-term objectives
Changes inbond yields A decrease in corporate bond yrelds witl increase the value placed on the Scheme s babilities for accounting purposes
although this will be partially ofiset by anincrease in the value of the Scheme s bond holdings
Inflation risk The majority of the Scheme s beneiit cbligations are {inked to inflation and higher inflation will lead to higher Liabilities

{although 1n most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect against extreme inflation]
The majarity of the assets are either unaffected by or only loosely correlated with inflation, meaning that an increase
in inflation will also increase the deficit

Life expectancy The majarity of the Scheme s obligations are te provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy
will result In an increase in the liabiliies

0BL-401 USHELLIOMI J3L10 PUE SILBLUAIRIS |I3URUI]
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

11 PROPERTY

PROPERTY RECONCILIATION 12 MONTHS TO 31 MARCH 2014

Investrment
Oftfices and
UKRetall Residential  Developments Sub total
Level3 Level 3 Level 3 Leveld Tetal
£m £m £m £m £m
Carrying value at 1 Aprit 2013 3340 1,267 861 5,488 5,570
Additions - property purchases 53 428 83 564 564
- acquisiticn of Hercules Unit Trust 1006 - - 1,006 1,006
- developrment expenditure 10 30 40 100 138
- capitalised interest - ) 4 10 17
- capital expenditure on asset
management inriatives 25 4 - 29 29
1,094 448 147 1,709 1,754
Depreciatian - - - - {1
Disposals (234) (1 - [245) (342)
Reclassifications (5l 538 (816) (283) -
Revaluastions included in income staterment 240 270 45 575 580
Revaluation included in SOCIE - - - - 1
Movement in tenant incentives and contracted
rent uplift balances ] 18 4 28 28
Carrying value at 31 March 2014 & 461 2,550 261 7,272 7,590
Head lease liabilities [note 18] (32)
Surplus on trading properties 58
Totat Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2014 7,616
Nor-controlling interest 422)
Total Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2014 attributable to shareholders 7194
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11 PROPERTY continued

The different valuation method levels are defined below
Level 1 Quoted prices [unadjusted) in active rmarkets fordentical assets or liabilities

Level2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability either directly
lie asprices] or indirectly | e derved from prices)

Levet 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data funchservable inputs]

These levels are specified in accordance with IFRS 13 Fair Vatue Measurement On the following page of this note within the section Valuation our
properiyvaluation approach and process is set out As noted in Significant 1ssues considered by the Audit Commuttee during the year on page 77,
propertyvaluations are inherently subjective as they are made on the basis of assumptions made by the valuer which may not prove to be accurate
For these reasons, and consistent with EPRA s guidance, we have classified the valuations of our property partfolio as Level 3 as defined by IFRS 13
Some of the Inputs ta the valuations are defined as unobservable by IFRS 13 and these are analysed In a table on the following page

The Group s policy Is to recognise transfers between fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transter There have been no transfers during the period

At31 March 2014 the Group hoak value of properties of £7 614m [2012/13 £5,554m] comprises freebolds of £4 855m (2012/13 £3,502m,
virtual freeholds of £495m (2012/13 £709m) and long leaseholds of £2,066m {2012/13 £1343m] The histerical cost of properties was
£5,574m [2012/13 £4 229m)

The property valuation does not include any investment properties held under operating leases [2012/13 £nill

Properties valued at £1 741m [2012/13 £1,724m) were subject to a secunity interest and other properties of non-recourse companies amounted
to €1 0646m (2012/13 £40m]

During the year te 31 March 2014, a gross amount of £286m of investment properties were reclassified to trading properties, as since planning
consent has bean granted (t15 the Group s Intention to redevelop and sell these properties Some of these trading properties were subsequently
sold in the period

Included within the property valuation 1s £100m (2012/13 £91mlin respect of accrued contracted rental uplift income, against which the Group
holds a provision of £5m (2012/13 £5m) The balance arises through the IFRS treatment of leases centaining such arrangements which requires
the recognition of rental income on a straight-Une basis over the lease term, with the difference between this and the cash receipt changing the
carrying value of the property against which revaluations are measured

Cumulative Interest capitalised against investment praperties amounts to £73m {2012/13 £56m|
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

11 PROPERTY continued

VALUATION
The Group s total property portfolio was valued by external valuers on the basis of fair value inaccordance with the RICS Valuation - Professtonal
Standards 2012 eighth edition, published by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

The information provided to the valuers, and the assumptions and valuations models used by the valuers are reviewed by the property partfolio team
the Head of Offices, the Head of Retaill and the Finance Director The valuers mestwith the External Auditors and also present directly to the Audit
Committtee at the interim and year-end review of results Further details of the Audit Committee s responsibilities in refabion to valuations can be
found in the Report of the Audit Committee (page 78]

Investrnent properties excluding properties held for develapment are valued by adopting the investment rethod of valuation This approach invalves
applying capitalisation yields to current and esumated future rental streams net of income voids arising from vacancies or rent-free periods and
associated running costs These capitalisation yields and rental values are based on comparable property and leasing transactions in the market,
using the valuers professional judgemnent and market observation Other factors taken into account in the valuations include the tenure of the
property tepancy details and ground and structural conditions

In the case of ongoing developments and properties held for development the approach applied s the residual method of valuation which s the
investment method of valuation as described above, with a deduction for all costs necessary to complete the development including a notional finance
cost together with a further atlowance for remaining risk Properties held for devetopment are generally valued by adopting the higher of the residual
method of valuation, allowing for all associated risks or the investment method of valuation for the existing asset

Copies of the valuation certificates of Kmight Frank LLP and CBRE can be found on the website at www britishland com/investorsfoperational-
performance aspx

A breakdown of valuations split between the Group and its share of joint ventures and funds is shown below

2014 2013

Jaint Joint

ventures ventures
Graup and funds Total Group and funds Total
£€m £m £m Em £m fm
Knight Frank LLP 6,036 2,903 8,939 5084 2,680 7764
CBRE 1,580 21 3Mm 470 2265 2,735
Total property portfolio valuation 7,616 5,034 12,650 5,554 4945 10,499
Non-contrelling interest share of property (422) (188) (6100 - - -
Total property portfolio valuation attributable to shareholders 7,194 4,846 12,040 5,554 4945 10 499

INFCRMATION ABOUT FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS USING UNOSSERVABLE INPUTS (LEVEL 3}

ERV persqft Equivalent yield
Fair value at

3% March Weighted Weighted

2014 Valuation Minimum Maximum average Mintmum Maximum average

£m technique £ £ £ % % %

Investment

UK Retall! 4,535 Investment 2 60 20 41 168 59
methodolgy

Offices and Residential? 3 2,593 Investment 4 80 46 13 101 51
methodolgy

Developments? 251 Investment 17 93 37 43 50 54
methodolgy

1 Includes the underlying properties within the investment held far trading as drsclosed innote 13 discounted for the dale of the freehold reversions
2 Including ewner-occupied

3 Includes Residential with an average capital value per sq ft of £877 including developments at end value and mixed-use
All other factors being equal, a higher equivalent yield or discount rate would lead to a decrease in the valuation of an asset and 2n increase in the

current or estimated future rental stream would have the effect of Increasing the capital value, and vice versa However there are interrelationships
between the unohservable inputs which are partially determined by market condittons, which would impact on these changes
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11 PROPERTY continued
The prior year mavement 1s shown below
Investment
and Owner-
development Trading oreupled Total
Em Em £m Em
Carrymgvalueat 1 April 2012 5346 47 43 5434
Additions - property purchases 453 - - 453
- development expenditure 2 5 - 206
- capitalised interest 15 [ - 16
- capital expenditure on asset management initratives 28 - - 28
697 ) - 703
Depreciation - - 1] i
Disposals (451) (13 - [664]
Revaluations included in income statement 72 - 2 74
Movement in tenantincentives and contracted rent uplift balances 24 - - 24
Carrying value at 31 March 2013 5488 40 42 5570
Head lease lrabilities [note 18] (26)
Surplus on trading properties 10
Total Group property portfolio valuation 31 March 2013 5554
12 JOINT VENTURES AND FUNDS
SUMMARY MOVEMENT FOR THE YEAR OF THE INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND FUNDS
doint
ventures Funds Total Equity’ Loans' Total
Em Em £m Em Em £m
At Apnil 2013 1.884 450 2,336 1843 493 2,336
Additions 175 445 620 569 51 420
Disposals {199) {436 (535} (481) {154] (535)
Share of profit after taxation 370 7 377 377 - 377
Distributions and dividends capital - {1 il m - 1l
revenue 71 (31 {102) {102] - ozt
Reclassification of amounts owed from joint ventures 44 - 44 - 44 44
Hedging and exchange movements &9 4 73 73 - 73
At 31 March 2014 2,274 438 2,N2 2278 434 2,712

| Comparatives have been re-presented between equity and loans to better reflect the nature of historical investments

PREF, a fund owning a portfolio of retail property in Europe (in which British Land has a net invesiment of £54m)| has its properties externally

valued by CBRE CBRE have included a market uncertainty clause in the valuation report of the Portuguese and Spanish properties, due to the lack
of transactional evidence and uncertainty over the economic situation in those markets In 2013 PREF made partial early repayments of debt totalling
€18m InMarch 2014, following the sale of its ltalian asset €44m of debt was repaid PREF now has €37m of bank loans that are due lo mature in
the calendaryear 2015 In December 2013 a one-year extension of the fund to 26 March 2015 was approved

Distributions in the year included the receipt of £6m from the Broadgate joint venture, £2m from the Meadowhall joint venture £4m from the
Sainsbury s jointventure £17m from Tesco joint ventures and £23m from HUT

At31 March 2014 the valuation of the Group s share of jont ventures and funds properties was £5 034m (2012/13 £4 945m) surplus on the Groups
share of joint ventures and funds trading properties was £5m [2012/13 £nill, external net debt was £2 113m (2012/13 £2,427m) and the mark-to-
marketadjustment for external debt was £123m liability [2012/13 £193m Lability)

At 31 March 2014, the investment in joint ventures included within the totalinvestment in joint ventures and funds was £2,658m [2012/13 £1889m)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFCRMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

12 JOINT VENTURES AND FUNDS continued

Adetailed breakdown of the Group s share of results of specific joint ventures and funds for the year ended 31 March 2014 1s set out on this and
facing page below and across All disclosures have been restated to British Land accounting policies under IFRS eliminating all profits and losses
resulitng from upstream and dewnstream transactions with the Group

In the prior year the detailed breakdown centained 100% of the results of the specific joint ventures and funds It1s considered that the change
In presentation, to aur share, results ina more understandable disclosure

JOINTVENTURES AND FUNDS SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (BRITISH LAND SHARE]

MSC Praperty

Bluebutton Intermediate BL Sainsbury Tesco
Properties Ltd Holdings Ltd Superstores Ltd JointVentures'
Partners Eura Claver Norges Bank
Private Ltd Investment
(GIC) Management  J Sansbury plc Jesco PLC
Property sector City Offices  Shopping Centres
Broadgate Meadowhall Superstores Superstores
Group share 50% 50% 50% 50%
Summarised iIncome statements £m £€m fm Em
Gress rental and related income 108 46 32 51
Net rental 2nd related inceme 81 38 32 47
Other income and expenditure - - - (1
Net interest payable 145] 119) (5] {28]
Underlying profit before taxatian 36 19 17 8
Surplus [deficit] on revaluation 143 4 3 43
Disposal of fixed assets - - - -
Non-recurring items - - - -
Profit [loss] on erdinary activities before taxation 179 23 20 61
Current tax - - - ()
Deferred tax - - - _
Profit [loss) on ordinary activities after taxation (British Land share) 179 23 20 40
Summarised balance sheets fm Em Em £Em
Inveslment properties 1712 770 604 898
Currenl assels [ 1 - 1
Upstream loans to joint venture shareholders - - - -
Cash and deposits 135 14 10 16
Gross assets 1,851 787 614 215
Current liabilities (63) [21) (18] 160)
Bank/other debt (165] - - (504)
Securitised debt (8s1) {372) [294) -
Obligations under finance leases - (2} - -
Deferred tax 5 - 1 91
Gross liabilities (1104} {395) (309} 15731
Net externat assets (British Land share) 757 392 305 342
Represented by
Sharehatder toans® 52 105 4 52
Ordinary shareholders funds/partners capital® 695 287 3 290
Total tnvestment {British Land share} 747 392 3065 342

1 Tesco joint ventures include BLT Holdings [2010) Limited the Tesco British Land Property Partnership Tesco BL Holdings Limited Shopping Centres Lirnited and the Tesco Aqua
Lirmited Partnership

2 LSS joint ventures mclude the Eden Walk Shopping Centre Limited Partnership and the Fareham Property Partnership

3 On i7 February 204 Hercules Unit Trust (HUT] became a subsidiary of the Group [nate 21] The incame statement results for HUT includes the Group s share of the results of the
HUT consolidated group up to and including 17 February 2014 Thereafter only the Group s share of results from the HUT joant ventures and sub-fund are shown Thisincludes
50% of the results of Deepdale Co-Ownership Trust, Speke Unit Trust Gibraltar Limited Partnership and Valentine Co-Ownership Trust and 41 25% of Birstall Co-Ownership
Trust The balance sheet shows our ewnership of the assets of these joint ventures and sub-funds detailed above

4 Included in the column headed Other joint ventures and funds are contributions from the following BL Goadman Limited Partnership BL Gazeley Lirited Eurofund
Investments Zaragoza S L [disposed of during the year) The Scottish Retal Property Limited Partnership [disposed of during the year] The Aldgate Place Ltmited Partnership
Bluebutton Property Management UK Limited BL Residential Limited Partnership Pillar Retadl Europark Fund IPREF) and City of London Otfice Unit Trust [CLOUT) The Group s
ownership share of PREF 15 5% however as the Group does not exercise control over signifticant decisions of the fund the Group equity accaunts foriis interest in PREF
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The Southgate Leadenhall Other Total Total
Limited uss Holding Co Hercules Joint ventures Group share Group share
Partnership JointVentures? {Jersey| Lid Urit Trust? and fundsé 2014 2013
Universities
Superannuation Oxford
Aviva Investors Scheme Properties
City Offices Retail
Shopping Centres  Shopping Centres Leadenhall Parks
50% 50% 50% Various
Em Em £m Em £m £€m £m
4 5 - 40 21 307 306
2 4 - 34 15 253 260
- - - (1] (4] (6} (4]
- - - (12) (4} 123) (128}
2 4 - 21 7 124 130
2 10 67 6 (16) 262 161
- - - (4} - 14] 1]
- - - - - - (4)
4 14 &7 23 9} 382 -1
- - - - 4} 15) 2
- - - - - - 1
A 14 67 23 (13] 377 &7
£m Em Em £m Em £m £m
103 99 265 456 124 5,031 4949
2 - 1 2 20 3 42
- - - - 4 4 4
2 4 1 4 9 199 215
107 103 247 464 157 5,265 5,230
(3 (21 (3 {5) [44) 217) (3401
- - - (75) (39 (783) (955)
- - - - - 11,5471 i1592)
- - - - 1l 3 15
- - - - - K] {2)
3 (2] 131 (8o {84) (2,553) (2894)
104 m 264 384 73 2712 2336
- 7 157 - 57 434 493
104 % 107 384 16 2,278 1843
104 10 264 384 73 272 2336

5 2013 comparatives have been re-presented te better reflect the nature of our historical investments

These financial statements ;clude the results and financial position of the Group s interest in the Tesco British Land Property Partnership the Tesco Agua Limsted Partnership
the Scottish Retail Property Limited Partnership the Fareham Property Partnership the Aldgate Place Limited Partnership the BL Goodman Limited Partnership Auchinlez
Partnershig and the BL Restdental Lirmited Partnership Accordingly advantage has been taken of the exernptions provided by Reguiation 7 of the Partnerships and Unumited
Companies (Accounts] Regulations 1993 not to attach the partnership accounts to these financial statements

The borrowings of joint ventures and funds and therr subsidianies are non-recourse to the Group Alljointventures areincorporated in the United Kingdom with the exception
of Bluebutton Properties Limited the Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust and Leadenball Holding Ce [Jersey] Lirmited which are domiciled in Jersey Of the funds Hercules
Unit Trust [HUT) 1s dormiciled in Jersey and PREF in Luxembaurg
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND CTHER INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

12 JOINT YENTURES AND FUNDS continued

OPERATING CASH FLOWS OF JOINT VENTURES AND FUNDS [GROUP SHARE]

2014 2013
£m £m
Rental income recewed from tenants 274 264
Operating expenses paid to suppliers and employees 133) [22]
Cash generated from operations 241 242
Interest paid 135) (133)
Interest received 1 -
UK carperation tax paid (8) (7)
Foreign tax paid (3) -
Cash inflow from operating activities 98 102
Cashinflow from operating activities deployed as
Surplus cash retained within joint ventures and funds 35 28
Revenue distributions to British Land 63 74
98 102

13 OTHER INVESTMENTS

2014 2013
Investment Jnvestment

held for Loans and held for Loans and
trading receivables Total trading receivables Total
£m £m £m £€m £m £m
At 1 April - 76 76 - 28 28
Additions 83 104 187 - 53 53
Disposals - 10] nol - 14) (4]
Revaluation 9 - 9 - - -
Cepreciation - - - - 1] 1"
At 31 March 92 170 262 - 76 76

The investment held for trading comprises interests as a trust beneficiary The trusts assets comnprise freeheld reversions in a pool of commercial
preperties, comprising Sainsbury s Superstores

The investment has been categorised as level 3 n the fair value hierarchy (see note 11] Fairvalue of the interest has been determined by the
Directors supported by an external valuation from CBRE The superstere assets are subject to the same assumption ranges and sensitivities
disclosed in nete 1

Included within addition to loans and recevables s £92m [2012/13 £53m}in relation to a loan to Bluebutton Properties Limited (see note 25] a joint
venture company
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

204 2013

£m £m

Trade and other debtors! 35 15
Amounts owed by joint ventures - 40
Prepayments and accrued income 6 5
41 60

1 Included within this balance is deferred consideration of £1m [2012/13 £4m) arising on the sale of investment properties for which the iming of the receipt 1s contingent

and therefore may fall due after one year

Trade and other debtors are shown after deducting a provision for bad and deubtiul debts of £15m [2012/13 £11m] The charge to the Income

staternent was £rul (2012/13 £1m)

The Directers consider that the carrying amount of trade and other debtors 1s approximate to their fairvalue There 1s no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade debtors as the Group has a targe number of customers who are paying their rent in advance

As at 31 March, trade and other debtors outside their payment terms yet not provided for were as follows

Outside credit terms but not impaired

Within credit Maore than

Total terms 0-1 menth 1-2 months 2 months

£m £m £€m £m £m

2014 35 22 9 - 4

2013 15 9 6 - -
15 CREDITORS

2014 2013

£m £m

Trade creditors a5 94

Amounts owed to joint ventures 4 4

Other taxation and social security 21 24

Accruals and deferred income 153 137

263 259

Trade creditors are interest-free and have seitlement dates within one year The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other

credstors is approximate to their fair value
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FINANCFAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

16 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

204 2013
£m Em
Head leases 32 26
32 26
17 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Deferred tax 1s calculated on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 20% (2012/13 23%]
The movernent on deferred tax s as shown below
Transferred
1April Credited tojoint 31 March
2013 toincome ventures 2014
€m €m Em £m
Property and investment revaluations 12 (3) [9) -
Other timing differences 4 - -
16 (3) 9
Transferred
1 Apnil Credited tojoint 31 March
2012 toincome ventures 013
Em £m 2} £m
Property and investment revatuations 28 (18] - 12
Other timing differences 4 - - 4
32 (18] - 16

Under the REIT regime developrent properties which are sold within three years of completion do not benefit from tax exernption At 31 March 2014
the value of such properties s £455m (2012/13 £nil} and if these properties were to be sold and tax exemption was not available the tax anising would

be £34m (2012/13 £nil)

The deferred tax charge for the year ended 31 March 2014 includes a credit of £2m to reflect reduced deferred tax liabilities arising from the
forthcoming reduction in the UK cerporation tax rate to 20% leffective frem 1 April 2015]

Deferrad tax assets of £3%m (2012/13 £40m] arising on losses from previous years have not been recognised in the financial year
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18 NET DEBT :,_:n‘t,
0% 03 5
Footnote €m £m §
Secured on the assets of the Group ?m
9125% first mortgage debenture stock 2020 13 36 Y B
6 125% first mortgage debenture stock 2014 11 44 45
5 264% first mortgage debenture bonds 2035 344 345
5 0055% first mortgage amortising debentures 2035 100 im
5 357% first morigage debenture bonds 2028 327 334
475% first mortgage debenture bonds 2020 176 181
Bank loans 12 523 -
Loan notes 2 5
1,552 1,048
Unsecured pei
5 50% senior notes 2027 98 98 =
6 30% senior US dollar notes 2015 2 92 Mmoo 3
3 895% senior US dollar notes 2018 3 25 28 5
4 635% senior US dollar notes 2021 3 136 158 3
4 166% semor US dollar notes 2023 a 83 97 g
5 003% servor US dollar notes 20246 3 52 62 5
3 81% senior notes 2026 99 - g
397% seniar notes 2026 10 -
15% convertible bond 2017 458 407
Bank loans and overdrafis 602 17%
1,746 1,130
Gross debt 4 3,298 2,178
Interest raie derivative liabilities 57 84 |
Interest rate derivative assets (32) 92  H—
3,323 2172 &
3
Cash and short-term deposits 54 142 (1350 2
Total net debt 3,181 2037 =
T
Net debt attributable to nen-controlling interests (204) - g
Net debt attributable to shareholders of the Company 2977 2,037 ﬁ
Total borrowings where any instalments are due after five years are £102m [2012/13 £103m) ?n
-0
1 These are non-recourse borrowings with no recourse for repayment te other companies or assets in the Group g
2014 2013
£m £m
11 BLD Property Holdings Ltd 80 82
12 Hercules Urit Trust 523 - —
603 82

2 Principal and interest on this borrowing was fully hedged into sterling at the time of 1ssue
3 Principal and interest on this borrowing was fully hedged into sterling at 3 floating rate at the time of issue

4 The principal amount of gross debt at 31 March 2014 was £3 209m [2012/13 €2 063m)] Included in this is the principal amount of secured
borrowings and other borrowings of non-recourse companies of £1.509m, of which the propertion of the borrowings of the partly-owned
subsidiary Hercules Unit Trust not beneficially owned by the Group, 15 £219m

5 Included within cash and short-term deposits 1s the cash and short-term deposits of Hercules Unit Trust, of which £14m1s the properticn
not beneficially owned by the Group

& Cashand deposits not subject to a security interest amount to £93m (2012/13 £106ml
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

18 NET DEBT continued

MATURITY ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT

2014 2013

£m £m

Repayable within one year and on demand 495 44
Between one and two years 90 188
two and five years 1,084 522

five and ten years 4465 441

ten and fifteen years 783 602

fifteen and twenty years 4 5

twenty and twenty-five years 375 374

2,803 2134

Gross debt 3,298 2178
Interest rate and currency derivatives 25 &)
Cash and short-term deposits 142 (135])
Net debt 3,181 2037

The amount due within ene year reflects the use of our lower margin bank faciliies which are now towards the end of their agreed terms
These borrowings can be repaid using the £1 790m total undrawn committed facilities shown on the table on page 145, which do not include the
new £785m five-year syndicated facility signed on 2 April 2014 which will replace the maturing £620m facility

BRITISH LAND UNSECURED FINANCIAL COVENANTS
The two financial covenants applicable to the Group unsecured debt including convertible bonds are

NET BORROWINGS NOT TO EXCEED 175% OF ADJUSTED CAPITAL AND RESERVES

At31 March 2014 the ratiowas 40%

» net borrowings were £2,896m, being the principal amount of gross debt of £3 209m less the relevant propertion of borrowings of the partly-owned
subsidiary of £219m, plus amounts owed to joint ventures of £4m [see note 15) plus TPP Investments Ltd of £30m [see note 26) less the beneficially
owned cash and depasits of £128m [being £142m less the relevant proportion of cash and deposits aof the partly-owned subsidiary of £14m), and

= adjusted capital and reserves were £7 301m being share capital and reserves of £6 746m [see balance sheet] adjusted for £ém of deferred tax

(see note 2], £63m trading property surpluses (see notes 11 and 12, £313m exceptional refinancing charges [see below] and £173m fair value

adjustments on financial assets and babilities [being €£115m mark-to-market on interest rate derivatives and £58m adjustment on the convertible bond)

NET UNSECURED BORROWINGS NOT TO EXCEED 70% OF UNENCUMBERED ASSETS

At 31 March 2014, the ratio was 31%

= netunsecured barrowings were £1 615m, being the principal amount of gross debt of £3 209m plus ameunts owed ta joint ventures of £4m

[see note 15] less cash and deposits not subject to a security interest of £93m less the principal amount of secured and non-recourse borrowings

of £1,505m, and

= unencumbered assets were £5,125m, being properties of £7,616m [see note 11) plus investments in joint ventures and funds of £2 712m [see balance
sheet] and other nvestments of £262m (see balance sheet] less investments in joint ventures of £2 658m [see note 12 and encumbered assets

of £2,807m [see note 11)

In calculating adjusted capital and reserves for the purpose of the unsecured debt financial covenants there is an adjustment of £313m to reflect

the cumulative net amortised exceptional items relating to the refinancings In the years ending 31 March 2005, 2006 and 2007
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18 NET DEBT continued

CONVERTIBLE BOND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

On 10 September 2012 British Land [Jerseyl Limited [the Issuer] issued £400m 1 5% guaranteed convertible bonds due 2017 [the bonds] at par
The Company has uncenditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due and punctual performance by the Issuer of all of its ebligations (including
payments] In respect of the bonds and the obligations of the Company as guarantor, constitute direct, unsubordinated unconditional and unsecured

chligations of the Company

Subject to their terms, the bonds are convertible into preference shares of the Issuer which are automatically transferred to the Company in exchange
for ordinary shares in the Company or, at the Company s election any combination of ordinary shares and cash The bonds can be converted from

22 October 2012 up to and including 24 September 2015 if the share price has traded at a level exceeding 130% of the exchange price for a specified
period and from 25 September 2015 to [but excluding] the 20th dealing day before 10 September 2017 the matunity date} at any time

The initial exchange price was 693 07 pence per ordinary share Under the terms of the bonds, the exchange price 15 adjusted on the happening
of cerian events including the payment of dividends by the Cormpany above 26 4 pence in any year

Onor after 25 September 2015 the bonds may be redeemed at par at the Company s option subject to the Company s ordinary shares having traded
ata price exceeding 130% of the exchange price for a specified period, or at any time once 85% by nomnal value of the bonds oniginally 1ssued
have been converted, redeemed or purchased and cancelled If not previously converted redeemed or purchased and cancelled the bonds will

be redeemed at par on the maturity date

RECONCILIATION OF MOYEMENT IN GROUP NET DEBT TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2013 Cashflow Non-cash 2014
Em £€m £m €m
Per cash flow statement
Cash and short-term deposiis (135) 7 - (142)
Cash and cash equivalents (135) (7) - 1142)
Term debt [excluding overdrafts) 2178 620 500 3,298
Fair value of interest rate derivatives (6] 16) 47 25
Net debt 2,037 597 547 3,18

The Group loan to value [LTV) ratio at 31 March 2014 was 29%, being the principal value of gross debt of £3 209m, less the relevant portion of
borrowings of the partly-owned subsidiary of £219m less cash and short-term deposits of £128m (being £142m less the relevant proportion of cash
and deposits of the partly-owned subsidiary of £14m|, divided by total Group property of £7 616m [see note 11], plus investments i joint veniures

and funds of £2 712m (see balance sheet] and other investments of £262m [see balance sheet] less the relevant portion of property and investments

of the partly-owned subsidiary of £581m

202 Cash flow Non-cash 203
Em £m Em Em

Per cash flow staternent
Cash and short-term depasits 137 2 - [135)
Cash and cash equivalents 137] 2 - [135)
Term debt excluding overdrafts) 262 (496} 53 2178
Farr value of interest rate derivatives 19 - (25} [6)
Liguid investments (200) 210 (10} -
Net debt 2303 (284} 18 2037
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFCRMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

18 NET DEBT continued

COMPARISON OF MARKET VALUES AND BOOK VALUES

2014 203
Market Book Market Book

value value Ditference value value Difterence
Level £m €m £m €m £m £m
Debentures and unsecured bonds 2 1,722 1,713 9 1622 1587 35
Convertible bond 1 458 458 - 407 407 -
Bank debt and other floating rate debt 2 1,138 1,127 11 189 184 5
Cash and short-term deposits 1 (142) (142) - (135] (135) -
3,176 3,156 20 2083 2043 40

Other financial [assets] lablities
— interest rate derivative assets 2 [32) (32) - (92] (92 -
- interest rate dervative liabilities 2 57 57 - 86 86 -
25 25 - (6] (6) -
Total 3,201 3181 20 2077 2,037 40

Short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the disclosures

The fair values of debt, debentures and the convertible bond have been establishad by obtaining quoted rmarket prices fram brokers The bank debt
and loan notes have been valued assurning they could be renegotiated at contracted margins The derivatives have been valued by calculating the
present value of expected future cash flows, using appropriate market discount rates, by an independent treasury advisor

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by the valuation method The different levels are defined as follows

Level 1 Quoted prices [unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or liability either directly [ e as prices) or indirectly

[l e derived from prices]

Level3 Inputs for the assat or Lability that are not based on ohservable market data [uncbservable inputs)

2014 2013
Level1 Level 2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Interest rate and currency - 132) - {32) - (92) - 192)
derivative assets
Assets - 132 - (32) - 92) - (92)
Interest rate and currency - 57 - 57 - 86 - 8BS
dervative liabilities
Convertible bend 458 - - 458 407 - - 407
Liabilities 458 57 - 515 407 86 - 493
Total 458 25 - 483 407 [6) - 401
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

18 NET DEBT continued
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2014 2013
£m £m
Financial assets
Fair value through income statement
Other investments - held for trading 92 -
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting relationships 32 92
Loans and receivables
Trade and other debtors 35 15
Amounts owed by joint ventures - 40
Cash and short-term deposits 142 135
Other tnvestments — loans and receivables 170 76
47 158
Financial labiiities
Fair value through inceme statement
Cenvertible bond (458] [407)
Held for trading - derivatives - [7)
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting relationships (57} (79)
Amortised cost
Gross debt 12,840} 771
Finance lease payable (32) (26}
Trade and other creditors (85) [74)
Amounts owed to joint ventures (%) [4)
{3,474) [2388)
Tatal (3,005]) (2,030)

Bains and losses on financial Instruments as classed above, are disclosed in note 7 [net financing costs) note 14 [debtors), note & [net revaluation gains
on property and investments), the consolidated income statement and the consolidated staternent of comprehensive income The Directors consider that
the carrying amounts of other investments and finance lease payables are approximate to their fair value, and that the carrying amounts are recoverable
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCQUNTS
CONTINUED

18 NET DEBT continued

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt and equity attributable to the eguity holders of The Briush Land Company PLC, comprising
1ssued capital reserves and retained earnings Risks relating to capital structure are addressed within managing risk on pages 36 to 41 The Groups
objectives, policies and processes for managing debt are set out In the financial pelicies on pages 54 to 58

INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group uses Interest rate swaps to hedge exposure to the variability in cash flows on floating rate debt, such as revolving bank facilities and floating
rate bonds caused by movements In market rates of interest At 31 March 2014 the market value of these derivatives, which have been designated

as cash flow hedges under IAS 39,15 a net Liability of £45m [2012/13 Lability of £80m)

The cross currency swap of the 2015 US Private Placement which fully hedges the foreign exchange exposure of the Issuance, has been designated
as a cash flow hedge The market value of thisis a lability of £5m [2012/13 asset of E5m}

The ineffectiveness recogrused in the iIncome statement on cash flow hedges in the year ended 31 March 2014 was £ml(2012/13 £nil]

The cash flows occur and enter into the determination of profit and loss until the maturity of the hedged debt The table below summarises variable
rate debt and fereign currency denominated debt hedged at 31 March 2014

CASH FLOWHEDGED DEBT
2014 2013
£m Em
Outstanding at oneyear 1,293 874
at two years 1,225 874
at five years 350 250
at{enyears 250 250

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge exposure on fixed rate financial liabilites caused by movemnents in market rates of interest At 31 March
2014 the market value of these derivatives, which have been designated as fair value hedges under |AS 39, was a net asset of £25m [2012/13 £84m)

The cross currency swaps of the 2018/2021/2023/2026 US Private Placemnents fully hedge the foreign exchange exposure at an average floating rate
of 146 basis points above LIBOR These have been designated as fair value hedges of the US Private Placements

INTEREST RATE PROFILE - INCLUDING EFFECT OF DERIVATIVES

2014 2013

£€m . Em

Fixed rate 2,208 1,848
Variable rate [net of cash] 973 189
Netdebt 3,181 2037

All the debt 15 effectively sterling denominated except for £68m [2012/13 £185m| of euro debt of which £68m 1s at a fixed rate (2012/13 £165m fixed)
At 31 March 2014 the weighted average interest rate of the sterling fixed rate debt was 517% (2012/13 5 01%) The weighted average period for which
the rate 1s fixed is 8 5 years [2012/13 11 é years) The weighted average interest rate for the euro fixed rate debt s 5 20% (2012/13 4 44%) and the
welghted average period for which the rate 1s fixed 1s 1 $years [2012/13 31 years| The floating rate debt is set for periods of the Company s choosing
at the relevant LIBOR [or similar] rate

The proporticn of et debt at fixed or capped rates of interest was 69% at 31 March 2014 Based on the Group s interest rate prefile at the balance
sheet date a 576 bps increase in Interest rates wauld decrease annual profits by £56m [2012/13 £11m decrease] Similarly, a 52 bps reduction would
increase profits by £5m (2012/13 £1m increase] The change In interest rates used for this sensitiity analysis 1S based on the largest annual change
in three month sterling LIBOR over the last ten years The impact assumes LIBOR does not fall below 0%

Upward movements in medium and long-term interest rates associated with higher Interest rate expectations increase the value of the Group s
interest rate swaps that provide protection against such moves The converse 1s true for downward movements in the yield curve The majority of the
Group s interest rate swaps which provide such protection qualify as effective cash flow hedges under IAS 39 therefore movements in their fair value
are recognised directly In equity rather than the income staternent A 204 bps shift represents the largest annual change in the seven-year sterling
swap rate over the last tenyears At 31 March 2014 a 204 bps parallel upward shift in swap rates would increase the value of these interest rate swaps
by €£136m (2012/13 £117m) A 204 bps downward shift In swap rates would reduce the value of the intarest rate swap portfolio by £164m (2012/13
£138m| Because the interest rate swaps are matched by floating rate debt the overall effect on Group cash flows of such movements 1s minimal

The 1 5% convertible bond 15 designated as fair value through profit or loss Principal cormnponents of the market value include Briish Land s share
price and its velatiity and market interest rates The faur value at 31 March 2014 was £458m At 31 March 2014 a 204 bps parallel upwards shift in
Interest rates would reduce the fair value by £30 8m and a 204 bps downward shift in interest rates would increase the value by £33 4m
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

18 NETDEBT continued

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group s policy 1s to have no material unhedged net assets or Lishibties denominated in foreign currencies The currency risk on overseas
Investrents 15 hedged via foreign currency denominated borrowings and derivatives The Group has adopled net investment hedging in accordance
with I1AS 39 and therefore the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised directly
in equity The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument 1s recognised immediately In the income statement

The table below shows the carrying amounts of the Group s foreign currency denominated assets and liabillities Provided contingent tax on overseas
investments I1s not expected to occur Itwill be ignored for hedging purposes as will the requirement to fair value interest rate swaps Based on the
31 March 2014 position a 33% appreciation (largest annual change over the last ten years] in the euro relative to sterling would result ina £nit change
(2012/13 £nill in reported profits

Assets Liatwlities
2014 2013 2014 2013
£&m Em £m Em
Euro denominated 69 203 68 203

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group s approach to credit risk management of counterparties 1s referred o in the financial policies on pages 56 to 58 and the risks addressed
within managing resk on pages 35 to 41 The carrying amount of financtal assets recorded in the financial stalements represents the Group s maximum
exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained

Cash and short-term deposits at 31 March 2014 amounted to £142m (2012/13 £135m] Deposits and interest rate derivatives were placed with
financial instituttons with A- or better credit ratings

At 31 March 2014 the fair value of all interest rate derwative assets was £32m [2012/13 £92m

At31 March 2014 prior to taking into account any offset arrangements the largest combined credit exposure to a single counterparty arising
from money market deposits Liquid iInvestments and derivatives was £71m [2012/13 £44m) This represents 07% [2012/13 0 8% of gross assets

The deposit exposures are with UK and international high street banks and branches
The Group s exposure {o credit risk in respect of its trade recewvables is analysed in note 14

Provisions are made taking account of histortc credit losses and the creditworthiness of debtors

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group s approach to liquidity nsk management is discussed in the financial policies on pages 56 10 58, and the risks addressed within managing
risk on pages 36 to 41

The fallowing table presentis a maturity profile of the contracted undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay The table includes both tnterest and principal flows Where the interest payable is nat fixed, the amount disclosed
has been deterrmined by reference to the prajected interest rates implied by yield curves at the reporting date For dervative hnancialinstruments
that settle on a net basis fe g interest rate swaps! the undiscounted net cash flows are shawn and for derivatives that require gross settlement

leg cross currency swaps] the undiscounted gross cash flows are presented Where payment obligations are in forergn currencies the spot
exchange rate ruling at the batance sheet date 1s used Trade creditors and amounts owed to joint ventures, which are repayable within ane year,
have been excluded from the analysis

The Group expects to meet 1ts inancial Liabilities through the various available iguidity sources, including a secure rental income profile, asset
sales, undrawn committed barrowing facilities and, in the longer-term, debt refinancings
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OQTHER INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

18 NET DEBT continued

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT continued

The Group leases out all its investment praperties under operating leases with a weighted average lease length of 10years This secure Income
prefile 1s generated from upward only rent reviews, long leases and high occupancy rates The future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases 1s also shown in the table below Incomne from jaint ventures and fundsis not included below Additional iquidity
will arise from letting space in properties under construction as well as from distributions received from joint ventures and funds

2014
Within Following Threeto Over
one year year five years fiveyears Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m
Debt 495 93 1,024 1,579 37
Interest on debt 114 13 279 676 1,182
Derivative payments 25 19 67 380 5
Finance lease payments 2 2 5 195 204
Total payrments 636 327 1,375 2,830 5,168
Derwvative receipts (29] 171 (84) 13371 (567)
Net payment 607 210 1.2 2,493 4,601
Operating leases with tenants [see note 191 351 342 947 2,549 4,189
Liquidity surplus [deficit] (256 132 (344) 56 (412)
Cumulative bquidity deficit (256] (124} (468) (412)
2013
Within Following Threeto Over
ane year year five years five years Total
£m £m Em Em £m
Debt’ 47 184 505 1,345 2,081
Interest on debt 89 87 238 678 1092
Derivative payments 30 31 144 399 604
Finance lease payments 1 1 4 170 176
Total payments 167 303 891 2592 3953
Dervative receipts {27) {251 (163] 1407) (622}
Net payment 140 278 728 2185 3,331
Operating leases with tenants [see note 19} 281 278 764 2,496 3821
Liquidity surplus 141 - 38 an 490
Cumulative bquidity surplus 141 141 179 490

1 Grossdebtof £3 298m [2012/13 £2 178m| represents the total shown less unamorbsed 1ssue costs of £21m [2012/13 £15m)] plus fair value adjustments to debt of £128m

[2012/13 £112m]

Any short-term liguidity gap between the net payments required and the rentals recevable can be met threugh other Lquidity sources avallable

to the Group The Group currently holds cash and shert-term deposits of £142m of which £93m 1s nol subject to a security interest [see footnate 6

to net debt table on page 137) Further iquidity can be achieved through sales of property assets or investmants and debt refinancings The Groups
property portfolio 1s valued externally at £7,616m and the share of joint ventures and funds property is valued at £5 034m {see note 11) The undrawn
commutted borrowing facilities available to the Group are a further source of liquidity The matunity prafile of commutted undrawn borrowing facilities

15 shown overleaf
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

18 NET DEBT continued

MATURITY OF COMMITTED UNDRAWN BORROWING FACILITIES
2014 2013
€m £m
Maturity date more than five years 150 -
between four and five years 310 108
between three and four years 140 870
Total facilities available for more than three years 610 978
Between two and three years 942 -
Between one and two years - 757
Within cne year 410 369
Total 1,962 2,104

The above facilities are comprised of Briish Land undrawn facilities of £1,790m including the maturing £628m facilty and excluding the Aprit 2014
£785m facility, plus undrawn facibiies of Hercules Umit Trust totalling £172m

19 LEASING

OPERATING LEASES WITH TENANTS

The Group leases out all of its iInvestment properties under operating leases with a weighted average lease length of 10years (2012/13 12 years)
and the average effective borrowing rate was 3 5% [2012/13 4 4%] The future aggregate mimmum rentals recervable under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows

2014 2013
£m £m
Less than one year 351 281
Between one and twoyears 342 278
Between three and five years 947 766
Between six and ten years 1,130 1.002
Between eleven and fifteen years 650 597
Between sixteen and twenty years 433 452
After twenty years 336 445
Total 4,189 38
The Group s leasehold investment properties are typically under non-renewable leases without significant restrictions Finance lease Labilities
are payable as follows no contingent rents are payable in either period
2014 2013
Mimmum Minimum
lease lease
payments Interest Principal payments Interest Principal
£m £m Em Em £m £m
Less than one year 2 2 - 1 i -
Between one and two years 2 2 - ] i -
Between two and five years 5 5 - 4 4 -
More than five years 195 163 32 YA 145 26
Total 204 172 32 177 151 26
Less future finance charges (172) (151}
Present value of lease obligations 32 26
Within one year - -
Within twao to five years - -
Mare than five years 32 24
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

20 DIVIDENDS

The fourth quarter dwidend of & 75 pence per share, totalling £48m [2012/13 6 6 pence per share totalling £65m] was approved by the Board on

13 May 2014 and is payable on 8 August 2014 to sharehalders on the register at the close of business on 4 July 20i4

The Board will announce the availability of the Scrip Dividend Alternative via the Regulatory News Service and on its website [www britishland coml,

no later than four business days before the ex-dividend date of 2 July 2014 The Board expects to announce the split between Property Income

Distribution [PID) and non-PI0 income at that time Any Scrip Dividend Alternative will not be enhanced PID dvidends are paid, s required by REIT
legislation after deduction of withholding tax at the basic rate [currently 20%] where appropriate Certain classes of shareholders may be able to

elect to receve dwidends gross Please refer to our website (www britishland cornl for details

Pence 2014 2003

Payment date Dvidend PID Nan-PID per share £m £m
Currentyear dividends
0808 2014 2014 Lthinterim 675 675
0205204 2014 3rd interim 475! 675
1402 2014 2014 2nd interim 675 473 68
08 11 2013 2014 1stinterim 475 675 47

2700
Prior year dividends
0% 08 2013 2013 4thinterm 6 601 6460 65
1005 2013 2013 3rd interim 4 60 640 66
1502 2013 2013 2nd Interim 460 660 59
09112032 2013 1stinterim 480 660 59

26 40
10082012 2012 4thinterim 330 330 660 58
0905 2012 2012 3rd interimm 650 650 58
Dividends in censolidated statement of changes in equity 266 234
Dividends settled in shares (108) (32)
Divdends settled 1n cash 161 202
Timing difference relating to payment of withholding tax 2) 1
Dividends in cash flow statement 159 203

1 Scrip alternative treated as non-PID for this dividend

21 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (BUSINESS COMBINATION]

On 17 February 2014, the Group acquired additional units of the Hercules Unit Trust a Unit Trust registered in Jersey which 1s engaged in property

nvestment resulting in a cumulative ownership of 57 2% of the outstanding units and control of the underlying entity Management determined

that the acquisition of control should be accounted for as a business combination in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations Following this

transaction additional units were purchased bringing cumulative ownership to 58 4% at 31 March 2014

Subseguent to 31 March 2014 further purchases resulted ina cumulative ownership of 59 8%

The fair value of the Group s 49 2% equity interest in the Hercules Unit Trust held before the business combination amounted to £430m No gain or

loss was recognised as a result of measuring the equity interest at fair value

The acquired subsidiary has contributed net revenues of £12m and profit of £18m to the Group fer the period from the date of acquisition to 31 March
2014 If the acquisitron had eccurred on 1 April 2013, with all other variables held constant, Group net revenue for 2014 would have increased by £49m,

and underlying profit for 2014 would have increased by £23m
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21 ACQUISITION OF A SUESIDIARY (BUSINESS COMBINATION) continued
Details of the assets and bargain purchase arising are as follows
Attributed fair value
£m
Investment property 1,006
Investments i1 joint ventures and funds 376
Other net current Liakilities {4
Cash and cash eguivalents 18
Debenture and loans (522)
Fair value of acquired interest in net assets of subsidiary 874
Bargain purchase [negative goodwill} 13)
Total purchase consideration 871
Less fairvalue of previously held interest (430}
non-centrolling interest (374)
Cash consideration &7
Additional units purchased in the year 78
Total acquisition of Hercules Unit Trust 145

The purchase consideration disclesed above comprises cash and cash equivalents paid te the acquiree s previous owner of £67m The bargain purchase
15 a result of urut acquisitions trading at a discount in the secondary market The gain on bargain purchase 1s recognised in net valuation movement

The non-controliing interest (42 8% ownership interest in Hercules Umit Trust] recognised at the acquisition date was measured by reference to
the present ownership Interest s proportionate share in the acquiree s recegnised amounts of the identifiable net assets and amounted to £374m

The valuation of Investment property at the acquisition date was performed by an external professional appraiser with experience of the relevant
market The fair value of cash and cash equivalents was considered equal to the carrying value representing the entity s bank deposits, fair value
of borrowings and trade and other paysbles was calculated based on discounted cash flow madels The acquired bank loans and overdrafts have

no recourse to other companies or assets in the Group

22 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

2014 2013
Number of ordinary shares in 1ssue at 1 April 997,691,488 900,199 638
Share 1ssues 22,074,993 97,491,850
At31 March 1,019,764,481 997 691488

Of the issued 25p ardinary shares 169,990 shares were held in the ESOP trust [2012/13 275 497] 11266 245 shares were held as treasury shares
{2012/13 11,264 245) and 1 008 330,246 shares were in free 1ssue [2012/13 986 149 746] No treasury shares were acquired by the ESOP trust during
the year All 1ssued shares are fully paid The rights, preferences and restrictions of the share capital are detailed on page 108

HEDGING AND TRANSLATION RESERVE

The hedging and translation reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow and foreign currency
hedging Instruments, as well as all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations
The foreign exchange differences also include the translation of the biabilities that hedge the Company s net investment in a foreign subsidiary

REVALUATION RESERVE

The revaluation reserve relates to owner-occupied properties and investments in joint ventures and funds

MERGER RESERVE

This comprises the premium on the share placing in March 2013 No share premium is recorded in the Company s financial statements thraugh

the operation of the merger relief provisions of the Companies Act 2006
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

CONTINUED

22 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES cantinued

At 31 March 2014, options aver 9 454 680 erdinary shares were outstanding under employee share aption plans These options had a weightad
average life of 6 25 years Detalls of outstanding share options and shares awarded to employees including Executive Directers are set out below

and on the following page

At Vested At Exercise Exercise dates
1 April but not Exercised/ 31 March price
Date of grant 2013 Granted exercised vested Lapsed 2014 pence From To
Share Options Sharesave Scheme
300408 6,794 - - (5.536) {1258 - 51703 010913 310314
3006 09 602 - - [602) - - 3moo 010912 280213
300609 135943 - - [7631] (1 667 124,645 30100 010914 280218
280610 44,200 - - (38,463) (4,278) 1,459 37000 010913 280214
280610 38,994 - - - - 38,994 37000 010915 290216
01071 18 572 - - ~ [4,081] 14,491 47300 010914 280215
a1o7n 13,693 - - (835 121 11,737 47300 010916 280217
260612 10895 - - - (7,030] 103,845 39200 0109195 290216
260612 66,264 - - - (10178) 56,088 39200 010917 280218
240613 - 58 350 - - (4,472) 53,878 51100 010916 280217
240613 - 17,550 - - (1,174} 16,374 51100 010918 280219
435977 75,900 - (53,067 {35,257} 423,553

Long-Term Incentive Plan - options vested, not exercised
250903 119,45% - - (119,455] - - 41395 250906 240913
251103 15358 - - 115 358) - - 45738 251106 26113
280504 314,409 - (57083) [242,903] - 14,423 54935 280507 270514
291104 392288 - - (104,976) 114,482 270,830 49955 291107 281114
310509 351,352 - - - (7,265l 344,087 726 66 310508 300515
0517205 198,632 - - - (960) 197,672 82360 051208 041215
290609 2239533 - - 1008 602} - 1,230,931 38700 0107Mm 280619
251109 23,431 - - (4,400] - 19,031 47500 251112 261119
211209 467,500 - - [304,621) - 162,879 44600 211212 201219
110610 17,496 2083806 - 540,029 - 1,661,273 44700 01071 100620
141210 - 326 251 - (143,727) - 182,524 510 00 0710 M 270412
2806 M 405 21,225 - [21225) [405) - 57500 280614 1N0413
19121 - 24,654 - (21,947] - 2,707 45100 191214 110413
14 0912 - 4102 - [4,102) - - 53800 14 0915 14922
201212 - £222 - 16,222] - - 56300 201215 201222

4,239,859 2,466,260 [57083] [2,53%,557) (23112) 4,086,357
Long-Term Incentive Plan - unvested options
110610 3 473085 - (2083804 - 1,389,279 - 44700 110613 110620
141210 559933 - {24,130 [302,721) (233 682) - 51000 141213 141220
2806 1 1,640 4660 - (15,501 [14,299] (28,167 1,582,699 57500 280614 2804 21
191211 531,510 - (17 434) (7.220) (52,433) 454,423 45100 191214 191221
140912 1732 574 - (1,509) (2,593 (413,732 1,314,742 53800 140915 140922
201212 577940 - - (6,222) (346 180) 225,538 56300 201215 201222
050813 - 834903 - - (5.323) 829,580 40100 050816 050823
051213 - 537,788 - - - 537,788 40000 051216 051223

8 515,704 1372691 12,142,380 [332.455) 12 468,790 L344TTD
Total 13,191,540 3,914 851 (2,199443] (2,925,089 (2527159 9,454,680
Weighted average exercise 492 508 451 452 487 s21

price of options [pence)
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22 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES continued
Share
At At price at
1 April Exercised/ 31 March grant date Vesting
Date of grant 2013 Granted vested Lapsed 2014 pence date
Performance shares Long-Term Incentive Plan
110610 661 4672 - (396,982 (244 690) - 44700 110613
141210 140,721 - {82,070} {b8,451] - 51000 141213
28 06 11 713 754 - (4,353} (7117] 702,284 57500 280614
1912 11 117,751 - [6 620} (14,551] 96,580 45100 191214
140912 1188053 - 13,632) {244 034) 940,387 53800 14 091%
203212 299049 - {t 7951 {178 295) 118,979 56300 201215
050813 - 1,205,738 - (2,328] 1,203,410 601 00 050814
051213 - 290,577 - - 290,577 50000 051214
3,121,020 1496,315 [495 452) (769 666 3,352,217
Fund Managers Performance Plan
280510 325454 - [325454) - - 43500 280513
210611 97 485 - (97 485) - - 58190 210613
21060 97,484 - - (1,827 95,657 58190 21 0614
120912 192,025 - (189811] (2 214) - 53700 12 0913
120912 192,026 - - [3952) 188,074 53700 120914
120912 192,026 - - (4,004) 188,022 53700 12 0915
020813 - 217 683 - (2,784} 214,899 59500 020814
020813 - 217 685 - 12784) 214,901 59900 020814
020813 - 217621 - [2,787) 214,834 59900 020814
1096 500 652,989 |612 750) (20352] 1,114,387
Matching Share Plan
010910 256 654 - (256,654} - - 479 60 010933
26051 320,608 - - - 320,608 40050 240514
050912 386,994 - - - 384,994 50000 050915
020813 - 375,338 - - 375,338 609 66 020816
964 256 375,338 (256 654) - 1,082,940
Total 5,181,774 2,524,642 (1,364,884 (790,018) 5,551,544
Weighted average exercise 523 602 477 511 572

price of shares [pence)

23 SEGMENT INFORMATION

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group allocates resources to investment and asset management according to the sectors it expects to perform over the medium-term

lis two principal sectors are currently offices and retail The Office sector includes residential as this is often incorparated into Office schemes
and Retail includes leisure for a simitar rationale The prioryear comparatives have been updated to reflect these changes

The relevant revenue, net rental iIncome operating result, assets and capital expenditure, being the measures of segment revenue segment result
and segment assets used by the management of the business, are set out below Revenue is derved from the rental of buildings Operating result
15 the net of net rental income fee income and administration expenses No customer exceeded 10% of the Group s revenues in either year
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER {NFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

CONTINUED

23 SEGMENT INFORMATION continued

SEGMENT RESULT
Offices Retait Other/unallocated Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2004 2013
€m Em Em £m €m £m £m £m
Revenue
British Land Group 99 88 235 206 - - 334 294
Share of joint ventures and funds 84 83 168 17 15 19 267 273
Total 183 171 403 377 15 19 601 567
Net rental income
British Land Group M 85 222 196 - - 33 281
Share of joint ventures and funds 81 80 160 145 12 15 253 250
Total 172 145 382 381 12 15 566 541
Operating result
British Land Group 80 76 218 190 (42) [42] 256 224
Share of joint vertures and funds 80 80 157 162 10 14 247 256
Tatal 160 156 375 352 (32} (28 503 480
Reconciliation to underlying profit before taxation
British Land Group
Total operating result 503 480
British Land Group net financing costs (81) (80}
Share of joint ventures and funds net financing costs (123) (128)
Capital and other 81 [14]
Total profit on ordinary activities before tax 1,110 260
Df the total revenues above, £15m [2012/13 £19m) was derived from outside the UK
SEGMENT ASSETS
Offices Retan Other/unallocated Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
€m £m £m £m £m £m Em Em

Property assets
British Land Group 3,082 2179 4,534 3373 - 2 7.616 5554
Share of joint ventures and funds 2,017 1684 2928 3005 89 258 5,034 4,945
Total 5,099 3,863 7,462 6378 89 258 12,650 10,499
Segment assets
British Land Group 3,034 2175 4,554 3,393 477 3465 8,067 5933
Share of joint ventures and funds 2,153 1839 2997 3116 98 263 5.248 5218
Total 5,189 4014 7,551 6,509 575 628 13,315 11151
Other assets
British Land Group - - - - 477 363 477 363
Share of joint ventures and funds 14 155 Y 107 9 7 217 269
Total 141 159 &7 107 486 370 &34 632
Capital expenditure
British Land Group 607 391 1,140 315 - 47 1,747 753
Share of joint ventures and funds 86 109 13 26 29 - 128 135
Total 693 500 1,153 341 29 &7 1,875 888
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23 SEGMENT INFORMATION continued
RECONCILIATION TONET ASSETS

2014 2013

£m Em

British Land Group
Segment assets
British Land Group 8,047 5933
Share of joint ventures and funds 5,248 5218
Total 13,315 11,151

Share of funds and joint ventures biabilities

12,536] 2882)

Current ltabilites {766) [320)
Non-current babilities (2,896) (2,262
Net assets YALYS 5,687

Other assets include other invesiments of £262m [2012/13 €76m] debtors of £41m (2012/13 £60m) Lguid investments of Eml{2012/13 £nil), cash

and short-term deposits of £142m [2012/13 £335m] and dervatives of £32m (2012/13 £92m|

24 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The aggregate capital commitments to purchase construct or develop investment property, fer repairs, maintenance or enhancements, orfor the

purchase of investments which are centracted for but not pravided, are set out below

2014 M3

Em Em

British Land [includes share of development loan facility see note 25} 19 221
Share of joint ventures 13 176
Share of funds 5 1
237 398

25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company is providing a development loan facility of up to £320m to the Broadgate joint venture, secured against the development, 5 Breadgate
The loan which 1s assignable and on commercial terms, includes an interest cost af 3% per annum above LIBOR and market based fees As at

31 March 2014, £145m [2012/13 £53m] has been drawn by the joint venture

Details of transactions with joint ventures and funds are given in notes 4, 7 and 24 During the year the Group recognised management and
performance fees recevable frem funds of £3m (2012/13 £4m) and joint venture management fees of £7m [2012/13 £6m] Interest and commuitment

fees earned on the commercial loan to Bluebutton Properties Ltd was £5m [2012/13 £4m)

Details of Directors remuneration are given in the Remuneration Report on pages 82 to 107 Details of iransactions with key management

personnel are provided in note 9

Details of transactions with The British Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme, and other smaller pension schemes, are given in note 10

During the year, the Company entered into transactions in the narmal course of business, with other related parties as follows

John Gildersleeve 15 Deputy Chairman of Carphone Wareheuse Group ple Rental income of £2m (2012/13 £2ml was earned from Carphone
Warehouse Group plc and there 1s an associated debtor balance at 31 March 2014 of £nil [2012/i3 £0 2]

tord Turnbull is a Non-Executive Director of Prudential plc Rentalincome of £1 5m {2012/13 £nill was earned from Prudential ple

Aubrey Adams is head of property in Royal Bank of Scotland s Global Restructuring Group Royal Bank of Scotland are British Land s principal

bankers Rentalincome of £7 2m [2012/13 £7 2m) was earned from Reyal Bank of Scotland

Willam Jacksan 1s the Managing Partner of Bridgepoint and serves on a number of Bridgepoint portiolio boards A number of Bridgepoint s

investments are tenants Rental income of £2 5m (2012/13 £19m} was earned from these cempanies
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has contingent labilites in respect of legal claims, guarantees and warranties arising in the erdinary course of business Itis not

anticipated that any material babilisies wall arise from contingent liabiliies

TPP Investrments Limited, a wholly-owned ring-fenced, special purpose subsidiary 15 a partner in The Tesco British Land Property Partnership
and, in that capacity, has entered inte a secured bank loan under which its lability 1s irmited to £30m [2012/13 £30m] and recourse is only to the

partnership assets

27 AUDIT EXEMPTIONS TAKEN FOR SUBSIDIARIES

The following subsidiaries are exemnpt frem the requirements of the Companies Act 20046 relating to the audit of Individual accounts by virtue

of Section 479A of that Act

Companies House

Companies House

Current company name Registered number  Current company name Registered number
BF Propco (No 19] Limited 5270113  Regis Property Holdings Limited 891470
The Liverpool Exchange Company Limited 490255  Tweed Premier 1 Limited 2847978
Mezdowbank Retail Park Edinburgh Limited 548980% Tweed Premier 2 Limited 28479859
Pillar [Beckton) Limited 2783376 London and Henley [UK) Limited 3576158
Broadgate ([PHC 8} Limited 3707220  Cavendish Geared Il Limited 2847571
Blaxrill [Twenty-nme] Limited 5279010 London and Henley Limited 3074917
Blaxrmull [Thirty] Limited 5282747  Ivorydell Subsidiary Lirmited 55200710
FRP Group Limited 2844685  United Kingdom Property Cornpany Limited 266486
Pillar Hercules No 2 Lirmited 2839069  Pillar Nugent Limited 25467031
BL European Holdings Lirnited 3044033  Pillar Developments Lirited 2850421
British Land Hercules No 4 Limited 3108851 35 Basinghall Street First Limited 3902915
Ivarydell Limited 3264791 British Land Hercules No 1 Lirmited 3527580
Finsbury Avenue Estates Limited 1526447 Briish Land Hercules No 3 Limited 2947308
Broadgate Court Investments Lirmited 2048475  British Land HIF Limited 2774183
BLSSP [Funding] PLC 4104074 Renash {Unlimited] 5489776
Wates City Property Management Limited 1085036  Ritesol (UnUimited] 5489811
Pillar Retail Parks Limited 2725143  Number 80 Cheapside Limited 634498
Pillar Speke Limited 3074360 Broadgate Square Limited 1797326
PillarStore No 3 Limited 3589118  Six Broadgate Limited 1881641
Wates City of London Properties Lirmited 1788526 WK Holdings Limtted 2487591
Caymall Limited 51893468  Pilar Estates Limited 3044028
Dinwell Limited 5035303 PillarStore Limited 2850422
Cavendish Geared Limited 2779045 Vintners Place Limited 2149495
Pillar Auchinlea Limited 2641047  Wates City Point Limied 2973114
Hyfleet Limited 2835919  BL West [Watling Housel Limisted 4087234
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

Prepared 1n accordance wath UK GAAP as at 31 March 2014

2014 2013
Nate £&m Em
Non-current assets
Investrments and loans to subsidianes b 25,477 24 459
Investments in joint ventures D 802 814
Intangible assets D - 3
Other investments D 159 119
Interest rate derivative assets E 3z 92
26,470 25489
Current assets
Debtors G 48 273
Cash and short-term depaosits E 61 108
109 381
Current Liabilities
Short-term berrowings and overdrafts E 420) (55)
Creditors H 89) {98)
Amounts due to subsidiaries [18,786) (19,270
(19,295) [19413)
Net current labilities 19,184) [19032]
Total assets less current Labilities 7,284 6457
Non-current Labilities
Debentures and loans E 11,895) (1681)
interest rate derivative Labilities E (54) {84)
(1,949) 17671
Net assets 5,335 4,690
Equity
Called up share capital ! 255 249
Share premium J 1,260 1245
Otherreserves J {24) (61
Merger reserves J 213 213
Retained earnings 1 3,631 3044
Equity shareholders funds 5335 4,690
John Gildersleeve Lucinda Bell
Chairman Finance Oirector
Approved by the Board and authorised for 1ssue on 13 May 2014
Company number 621920
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
CONTINUED

Prepared in accordance with UK GAAP as at 31 March 2014

(Al ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ACCOUNTING BASIS
The financial statemenis are prepared in accordance with applicable

United Kingdom law and Accounting Standards (UK GAAP} and under

the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of

investment properiies and fixed asset nvestments and Lguid
investments [not in accerdance with International Financial Reporting
Standards [IFRS) which are applied by the Group]

The major accounting policies of the Company are set out below and have

been applied consistently throughout the current and the previous year
The policies that differ from those applied by the Group [as stated in
note 1 of the consolidated financial statements) are for nvestments and
deferred taxatton

= Gaing concern
The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis
as explained in the carporate governance section on page 72

» Intangible assets
Intangible assets, such as fund management contracts, acquired
through business combinations are measured initially at fair value
and are amortised on a straight-Uine basis aver their estmated useful
lives and are subject to regular reviews for impairment

= |nvestments
Investrments in joint ventures are stated at cost less provision for
impairment Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost or
Directors valuation less provision for impairment

s Deferred taxation
Deferred tax 1s not recognised when fixed assets are revalued unless
by the balance sheet date there 1s a binding agreement te sell the
revalued assets and the gain or loss expected to arise on the sale has
been recogrwsed In the financial statements Adeferred taxassetis
regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the
basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more lkely than
not that there will be sustable taxable profits from which the future
reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted
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(B) DIVIDENDS

Details of dvidends paid and proposed are included in note 20 of the
consolidated financial statements

{C) COMPANY PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
AFTER TAX

The Company has not presented its own profit and loss account as
permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 The profit after
tax for the year was £749m (2012/13 profit £257m)

The average monthly number of employees of the Cormpany duning
the year was 231 (2012/13 217)

Employee costs include wages and salaries of £30m (2012/13 £29m),
social security costs of £4m {2012/i3 £4m) and pension costs of £5m
[2012/13 £4m] Details of the Executive Directors remuneration are
disclosed in the Remuneration Report

Audit fees in relation to the parent company only were £0 3m
[2012/13 €0 2m)




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

(D) INVESTMENTS AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES

Invesiments
Shares in Loansto 1n jont Intangible Other

subsidiaries subsidiaries ventures assets  Investments Total

£m £m Em Em £m Em

At1 April 2013 18 078 6,381 816 3 19 25,397
Additions - 2,274 I - 93 2,380
Disposals (576) [1479] 1871 13) (1) 12,146)
Reallocations - - 51 - (51 -
Write back of [provision for) impairment 797 - " - {1 807
At31 March 2014 18 299 7178 802 - 159 26,438

Shares in subsidiaries are included at cost or Directors valuatton in 1977, 1995, 1997 and 1999 to 2010 inclusive, their historical costis £19563m
[2012/13 £22 089m) The amount of £802m (2012/13 £81ém)includes £250m (2012/13 £227m) of loans te joint ventures by the Company The
Cempany has a 50% interest in Bluebuttan Properties Limited [Jersey) MSC Property Intermediate Holdings Limited and Shopping Centres Limited
which are registered and operate in England and Wales Results of the joint ventures are set out in note 12 of the consolidated financial statements
The historical cost of other investments s £155m (2012/13 £128m])

The Group comprises a large numbar of companies so has taken advantage of the exemption under Section £10{2) of the Companies Act 2006 in
providing information only 1n relation to subsidiary undertakings whose results or financial positien in the opinion of Directors, principally affect
the financial statements The principal subsidianies, wholly-owned and, except where stated, registered and operating in England and Wales, are

Executive Property Property
The British Land Corporation Limited 20 Triton Street Limited
1 & 4 & 7 Triton Limited
Finance, Investment and Management 10 Brock Street Limtted
British Land Property Management Limited 10 Portman Square Unit Trust [Jersey)
BLD Property Holdings Limited Stockton Retail Park Limited
BL Furopean Fund Management LLP Drake Circus Limited Partnership [United States]
British Land [Joint Ventures) Limited Euston Tower Limited
Linestarr Limited BF Propco [Na 10 Limited
British Land Investrnent Netherlands Holdings BY [Netherlands) British Land Ealing BV (Netherlands]

Paddington Central IV Unit Trust

BL Piccadilly Residential Limited

York House W1 Limuted

British Land Retall Warehouses Limited
The Mary Street Estate Limited
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFQRMATION

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
CONTINUED

Prepared in accordance with UK GAAP as a1 31 March 2014

(E) NETDEBT

2014 2013
£€m £m
Secured on the assets of the Company
5 264% first mortgage debenture bonds 2035 344 345
5 0055% first mortgage amortising debentures 2035 100 10%
5 357% first mortgage debenture bonds 2028 327 334
6 75% first mortgage debenture bonds 2020 185 194
956 974
Unsecured
5 50% senicr notes 2027 98 98
& 30% senior US dellar notes 2015 92 101
Series A 3 895% serior US dollar notes 20182 25 28
Series B 4 635% semior US dollar notes 20212 136 158
Series C 4 766% senwor US dollar notes 20232 83 98
Sertes D 5 003% senior US dollar notes 20262 52 62
Fair value of options to issue under 1 5% canvertible bond 2017 72 28
Bank loans and overdrafts 601 179
3 81% senior notes 2026 99 -
3 97% sentor notes 2026 101 -
1,359 752
Gross debt 2,315 1726
Interest rate derivatives lLiabilities 54 86
Interest rate derivatives assets 32} (92)
2,337 1,720
Cash and short-term deposits (61} {108]
Net debt 2,276 1612

1 Principal and interest on this borrewing was fully hedged into sterling at the time of issue
2 Principal and interest on these borrowings were fully hedged into sterlng at a floating rate al Lhe ime of 1ssue

On 10 September 2012 Briish Land [Jersey) Limited [the lssuer] - a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company - 1ssued £400m 1 5% guaranteed
convertible bonds due 2017 [the bonds) at par The proceeds have been loaned to the Company and the Company has uncanditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed the due and punctual performance by the Issuer of all of its cbligations (including paymenis| in respect of the bonds and the obligations
of the Company as guarantor constitute direct, unsubordinated unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Company

Subject to their terms, the bands are convertible into preference shares of the Issuer which are automatically transferred to the Company in exchange
for ordinary shares in the Comnpany or, at the Company s election, any combination of ordinary shares and cash

The inter-company loan between the Issuer and the Campany arising from the transfer of the loan proceeds was initially recegrised at fair value
net of capitalised 1ssue costs and 1s accounted for using the amortised cost method

In addition to the inter-company loan, the Company has entered into a derivative contract relating to its guarantee of the obligations of the Issuer in
respect of the bonds and the commitment to provide shares or a combination of shares and cash on conversion of the bonds This derivative contract
15 included within the balance sheet as a bability carried at fair value through profit and loss

See note 18 1n the cansolidated financial statements for further detaits about the convertible bond
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(E] NETDEBT continued

MATURITY ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

2014 2013

£m Em

Repayable within one year and on demand 420 45
Between oneand two years 92 145
twe and five years 174 145

five and tenyears 465 407

ten and fifteen years 783 403

fifteen and twenty years ] ]

twenty and twenty-five years 375 375

1,895 1681

Gross debt 2,315 1,726
Interest rate derivatives 22 (6]
Cash and short-term deposits l61) (o8}
Net debt 2,276 i612

(F) PENSION

The Company s penston scheme s the principal pension scheme of the Group and details are set out in note 10 of the consolidated financial statements

(G) DEBTORS

2014 03

Em Em

Trade and other debtors’ 45 4
Amounts owed by subsidiaries - 216
Amounts due from joint ventures - 40
Corporation tax - 0
Prepayments and accrued income 3 3
48 273

1 Included within this balance 1s deferred consideratron of EmiL{2012/13 £4m) anising on the sale of investment properties The timing of the receipt 1s uncertain and may fall due

after one year

(H) CREDITORS

204 2013
£m Em
Trade creditors 14 29
Amounts due to joint ventures - -
Corparation tax 19 2
Other taxation and socral security b i7
Accruals and deferred income 35 S0
89 98

Interest rate derwative babilities are presented on the face of the balance sheetin 2014
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
CONTINUED

Preparedin accordance with UK GAAP as at 31 March 2014

{1} SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares

£m of 25p each
Issued, called up and fully patd
At 1April 2013 249 997 691,488
Issued & 22,074993
At 31 March 2014 255 1,019,766,481
In March 2014, the Company 1ssued ordinary shares Refer to note 22 of the consclidated financial statements
(J) SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share Share Other Merger Frofit and
capital premium reserves reserve  lossaccounl Total
£m Em Em £m Em £m
At 1 Aprit 2013 249 1245 161) 213 3044 4,690
Share 1ssues & 19 - - - 21
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - -
Adjustment for scrip dividend element - - - - 105 105
Dividend pard - - - - (266 (268
Adjustrment for share and share option award - - - - 1 1
Pension scheme movements - - - - (2) 2)
Retained profit [loss) - - - - 749 749
Dervative valuation mavement - - 37 - - 37
Exchange movements on net investments - - - - - -
At 31 March 2014 235 1,260 (24 2i3 3,631 5,335

The value of distributable reserves within the profit and loss account 1s £2,299m (2012/13 £1751m]

[K) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has contingent Liabilities in respect of legal claims guarantees and warranties arising in the ordinary course of business It s not
anticipated that any material babiliies will arise frem the contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2014, the Company had £93m of capital commitments [2012/13 £172m)]

The Company has chosen to provide a development loan {acility of up to £320m to the Broadgate joint venture secured against the development
5 Broadgate The loan which s assignable and on commercialterms includes an interest cost of 3% per annum above LIBOR and market based
fees Asat 31 March 2014, £145m had been drawn by the joint venture [2012/13 £53m]

Related party transactions are the same for the Companiy as for the Group Fer details refer to note 25 of the consolidated financial statements

The Cornpany has used the exemption under FRS 8 where disclosure 1s nat required of transactions with fellow subsidiary undertakings 100%
of whose voting rights are centrolled within the Group The Company has utiised the exemptions provided by FRS 1 [Revised] and has not presented
a cash flow statement A consolidated cash flow statement has been presented in the Group financial statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES
UNAUDITED

TABLE A. SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT AND BALANCE SHEET

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT BASED ON PROPORTIONAL CONSOLIDATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

The fallowing pro forma information 1s unaudited and does not form part of the consolidated primary statements or the notes thereto |t presents the
results of the Group with its share of the results of joint ventures and funds included on a line-by-line, 1e proportional, basts The underlying praofit

before taxation and underlying profit after taxation are the same as presented in the consolidated income statement

Year ended 31 March 2014

Year ended 31 March 2013

Joint Less non- Joint
ventures controlung Proportionally ventures Proportionally
Group and funds interests  consolidated Group andfunds  consolidated
£€m £m £m €m Em Em Em
Grossrental income 334 267 (4 597 294 273 547
Property operating expenses (21 14} - {35) (13) 13) (26)
Net rentalincome 313 253 (4) 562 281 260 541
Adrministrative expenses (721 (8 - (78) (72] [4) (78]
Fees and other incecme 15 - - 15 15 - 5
Ungeared income return 254 247 (4) 499 224 256 480
Net interest (81} (123) 2 {202] (80} (126} (208)
Underlying profit before taxation 175 124 (2) 297 144 130 274
Underlying tax 2) - - (2) ] - (1l
Underlying profit after taxation 173 124 (2) 295 143 130 273
Underlying earnings per share - diluted basis 29 4p 303p
Valuatian movement 873 26
Other capital and tax inet)! 53 (4]
Capital and other 926 22
Total return 1.221 295
The underlying earnings per share 1s calculated on underlying profit before taxation of £297m, tax attributable to underlying profits of £2m and
1004m shares on a diluted basis for the year ended 31 March 2014
1 Includes cther comprehensive income movement in ditution of share options and the movement in items excluded for EPRA NAY
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

UNAUDITED
CONTINUED

TABLE A continued

SUMMARY BALANCE SHEET BASED ON PROPORTIONAL CONSOLIDATION AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
The fotlowing pro forma information i1s unaudited and does not form part of the consolidated pnimary statements er the notes therete It presents
the composition of the EPRA net assets of the Group, with its share of the net assets of the jaint venture and fund assets and liabilities included

ona line-by-line 18 proportional, basis and assurming full ditution

Mark-to-
market on
elfective
Share of cash flow Valuation
Joint Lessnon- hedges and surplus on EPRA EPRA
ventures controlling Share  Oeferred  related debt Head trading net assets net assets
Group and funds interests  ophions tax  adjustments leases properties 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m Em £m Em £m £m £m
Retall properties 4,554 2530 (610] - - - [22) - 6,852 5,378
Office properties 3,036 2012 - - - - 2] 63 5,099 3,863
Other properties - 89 - - - - - - 89 258
Total properties 7590 503 [&10] - - - (34) 63 12,040 10 499
Investments in joint 2712 (2,712) - - - - - - - -
ventures and funds
Other investments 262 [68) - - - - - - 194 53
Other net [labiliies] assets [268) [138] 8 39 6 - 34 - 3171 [319)
Net debt [2181] 213 231 - - 173 - - (4,890} (4,266)
Net assets 7117 - (371) 39 6 173 - 63 7,027 5,967
EPRA NAV per share [note 2] 688p 5%6p

Praperty segments have been re-presented in line with note 23

EPRANET ASSETS MOVEMENT

Year ended 31 March 2014

Year ended 31 March 2013

Pence Penca

Em per share £m per share

Opening EPRA NAY 5,967 596 5381 595
Income return 295 29 273 30
Capital return 926 90 22 2
Dividend paid in cash 141 (27} (202} (27]
Dilubion due to 1ssues of shares - - 493 {4)
Closing EPRA NAY 7,027 488 5,947 594

160 The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2004




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

TABLE B: EPRA PERFORMANCE MEASURES
EPRAPERFORMANCE MEASURES SUMMARY TABLE
2014 2013
Pence per Pence per
£€m share Em share
EPRAearnings - basic 295 295 268 299
- diluted 295 294 268 297
EPRANAY 7,027 688 59467 596
EPRA NNNAV 6,700 656 5.522 852
EPRA net imitial yeld 4 8% 55%
EPRA topped-up netintial yield 5 3% 57%
EPRAvacancy raie 5 2% 34%
CALCULATION OF EPRAEARNINGS AND EPRA EARNINGS PER SHARE
M4 2013
£m Em
Profit for the year after taxation 1,106 284
Exclude
Group - non-underlying current tax (5l (9]
Group - deferred tax 3l 16l
Joint ventures and funds - nen-underlying current tax 5 (2]
Joint ventures and funds - deferred tax - (1
Group - net valuation movement (including result on dispesals) (615) (79]
Joint ventures and funds - net valuation movement (in¢cluding result on dispasals] (258) 62
Amortisation of :ntangible assets - 1
Changes in fair value of financial instruments and associated close-out costs 57 28
Nan-controlling Interest in respect of the above 8 -
EPRA earntngs! 295 2468
Mark-to-market en/profit on disposal of liquid investments (held for trading assets] - (91
Mark-to-market cn convertiole bond - 7
Nen-recurring items? - 7
Underlying earnings after taxation 295 273
2014 2013
Number Number
rrullion mullion
Weighted average number of shares 1,010 907
Adjustment for treasury shares nm {11
Adjustment for ESOP shares - (1
Weighted average number of shares (basic) 999 895
Dilutive effect of share options 2 2
Dilutive effect of ESQP shares 3 4
Weighted average number of shares [diluted] 1,004 901
2014 2013
Pence Pence
Earnings per share [basic] noy nz
Earnings per share [diluted 102 315
Underlying earnungs per share (diluted} 294 303
EPRA earnings per share — basic 295 299
- diluted 294 297
1 Comparatives have been re-presented in ine with updated EPRA guidance
2 Non-recurring items for the year ended 31 March 2013 relate to £7m of issue costs for the convertible bond
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

UNAUDITED
CONTINUED
TABLE B continued
NETASSETS PER SHARE
2014 2013
Pence per Pence per

tm share £m share
Balance sheet net assets m? 5687
Deferred tax arising on revaluation movernents 6 14
Mark-to-market on effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjustments 173 198
Diluticn effect of share options 39 58
Surplus on trading properties &3 10
Less nan-controlling Interests (371 -
EPRA NAV 7,027 688 5947 596
Deferred tax arising on revaluation movements (6) (14}
Mark-to-market on effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjustments (173) (198}
Mark-te-market on debt (148) (233]
EPRA NNNAY 6,700 656 5,522 552

EPRA NNNAV Is the EPRA NAV adjusted to reflect the fair value of the debt and derivatives and to include the deferred taxation on revaluations

EPRANET INITIAL YIELD AND TOPPED-UP NETINITIALYIELD

2014 3
£€m Em
Investment property - wholly-owned 7194 5554
Investment property - share of joint ventures and funds 4,757 4945
Less developments, residential and land (1,192) {1.340)
Completed property portfolio 10,759 9159
Allowance for estimated purchasers costs 639 552
Gross up completed property portfolio valuation 11,398 971
Annualised cash passing rental income 554 541
Property outgoings (8 m
Annualised net rents 544 530
Rent expiration of rent-free periods and fixed uplifts! 53 27
Topped-up’ net annualised rent 599 557
EPRA netinihal yield 4 8% 5 5%
EPRA topped-up’ netimtial yield 53% 57%
Including fixed/muninum uplifts receved 1in lieu of rental growth 26 25
Total topped-up netrents 625 583
Overall topped-up net mnttial yield 55% 60%
Jopped-up net annualised rent 599 557
ERVvacant space a3 19
Reversions 1] nal
Total ERV 623 963
Net reversionary yield 5 5% 58%

1 The period over which rent-free periods expire 15 2 years [2012/13 2years)

The current pericd above I1s stated far the UK partfolio anly
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TABLE B continued

EFPRANET INITIAL YIELD (N1Y) BASIS OF CALCULATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ANC OTHER INFORMATION

EPRANIY 15 caleulated as the annuslised net rent [on a cash flow basis) divided by the gross value of the completed property portfolic The valuation
of our completed property portfolio was determined by our external valuers as at 31 March 2014, plus an allowance for estimated purchaser s costs
Estimated purchaser s cosis are determined by the relevant stamp duty Liability, plus an estimate by our valuers of agent and legalfees en notional
acquisition The net rent deduction allowed for property outgoings 1s based on our valuers assumptions on future recurring non-recoverable revenue

expenditure

In calculating the EPRA topped-up NIY, the annualised net rent is increased by the total contracted rent from expiry of rent-free periods and future
contracted rental uplifts where defined as not in Lieu of growth Overall topped-up NIY 1s calculated by adding any other contracted future uplift

tothe topped-up netannualised rent

The nel reverstonary yield 1s calculated by dividing the tatal estimated rental value ([ERV] far the completed property perifolio, as determined
by our externalvaluers by the gross completed property partfolio valuation

The EPRA vacancy rate s calculated as the ERV of the un-rented, lettable space as a proportion of the total rental value of the completed property

portfolio
EPRAVACANCY RATE
2014 2013
£m £m
Annualised potential rental value of vacant premises 33 19
Arnualised potential rental value for the comgpleted property perifolio 626 543
EPRAvacancyrate 5 2% 34%
The current period above 15 stated for the UK portfolio anly
EPRA COST RATIOS
2014 2013
£m £m
Property autgeings 21 13
Administrative expenses 72 72
Share of joint ventures and funds expenses 20 17
Less management and perfermance fees {from joint ventures and funds) (10) [10)
cther fees and commission (5) i5)
ground rent costs (2} i
EPRA costs (including direct vacancy costs) {A) 96 86
Direct vacancy costs (13} (14)
EPRA costs [excluding direct vacancy costs] {B) 83 72
Gross rental income less ground rent costs 330 294
Share of joint ventures and funds (GRI less ground rent costs) 265 273
Total gross rentalincome (C) 595 567
EPRA cost ratio including direct vacancy costs} [A/C) 16 2% 15 3%
EPRA cost ratio lexcluding direct vacancy costs)] [B/C) 139% 12 8%
Overhead and operating expenses capitalised [including share of joint ventures and funds) - -
No overhead or operating expenses including employee costs are capitalised
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES
UNAUDITED
CONTINUED

TABLE C- GROSS RENTAL INCOME AND ACCOUNTING RETURN

CALCULATION OF GROSS RENTAL INCOME

Year ended Year ended

31 Mareh 31 March

2014 2013

£m £m

Rent recewable 574 538

Spreading of tenant incentives and guaranteed rent increases 23 28

Surrender premia 4 1

Gross rental iIncome 4601 547
TOTAL ACCOUNTING RETURN

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2014 n3

% %

Total accounting return 200 4
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OTHER INFORMATION
UNAUDITED

Portfolio valuation
Portfolio yield and ERV movements
Total property return
Portfolio net yields
Annualised rent and estimated rental value [ERV]
Gross rental income
Annualised rent and estimated rental value [ERV)
Rent subject to lease break or expiry
Rent subject ta open market rent review
Major holdings
Occuplers representing over 0 5% of total contracted rent
Investment activity
Acquisitions
Disposals
Development
Near-ume pipeline
Medium-time pipeline
Recently completed and committed developments
Ervironmental performance measures
Ten year record

Shareholder information
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

OTHER INFORMATION
UNAUDITED

PORTFOLIO VALUATION
Change?

Total! Hi H2 FY
At 31 March 2014 Em % % %
Retail?
Retail parks 2,767 11 27 37
Superstores 1,321 20 07 28
Shopping centres 1862 03 18 21
Department stores 964 65 11 183
Leisure 338 20 84 105
All Retail 6,852 15 29 44
Offices?
City 2038 34 81 18
West End 2720 &0 100 1564
Provincial 94 40 66 09
All Offices 4,854 50 21 144
Residential® 245 264 132 54
All Cffices and Residential 5.099 49 93 145
Total 11,951 28 585 83

Table shows UK total, excluding assets held in Europe Total portfolio valuation including Europe of £12 Obn at year-end, +8 0% valuation movement

1 including Greup s share of properties in joint ventures and funds

2 Valuation movement during the periad (after taking account of capital expenditure] of properties held at the balance sheel date including develepments
lclassified by end use] purchases and sales

3 Including developments
4 Stand-alone residential

PORTFOLIO YIELD AND ERV MOVEMENTS

ERV growth! NEY yield compressian?

ERV NEY H1 H2 FY H1 H2 FY
At 31 March 2014 £m % % % % bps bps ops
Retail
Retail parks 165 a7 10 0o 10 7 18 25
Supersteres 70 51 05 02 a7 5 3 9
Shopping centres 12 55 0o 23 24 5 ) 1"
Department stores 24 54 01 01 02 38 58 94
Leisure 21 77 20 26 46 6 65 71
AllRetal 392 56 0é 09 15 8 18 26
Offices
City 98 53 12 56 793 9 30 39
West End 137 51 23 23 46 16 28 41
Provincial 5 41 00 00 00 23 24 L7
All Offices 240 52 17 41 58 13 29 40
Total 632 55 09 20 30 10 22 31

Table shows UK tatal excluding assets held in Europe

1 Like-for-like las calculated by IPD)
2 Including notional purchaser s costs
3 Cityup 4 0% ona like-for-like basis
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

TOTAL PROPERTY RETURN [AS CALCULATED BY IPD EXCLUDING EUROPE}
Retail Offices Total
British Land IPD British Land IPD  Briush Land PO
Full-year to 31 March 2014 % % % % % %
Capital return 46 42 53 129 89 75
-ERVgrowth 15 00 58 49 30 17
- Yield compression 26 bps 33bps 40 bps 92 bps 31bps 45 bps
Incame return 59 37 35 50 49 57
Total property return 107 101 193 185 142 136
I Netl equivalent yzeld movement
PORTFOLIO WEIGHTING
2014 2014 2014
2013 [eurrent] {current] [pro forma'l
At 31 March % % Em
Retail
Retail parks 245 231 2,767 215
Superstores 126 111 1,321 101
Shopping centres 176 156 1862 144
Department stores Lb &7 564 43
Leisure 30 28 338 26
All Retail 623 573 6,852 529
Offices
City 171 171 2,038 169
West End 18 4 227 2720 253
Provincial 08 08 96 7
All Offices 363 406 4,854 439
Residential? id 21 245 32
All Otfices and Residential 377 427 5,099 471
Total 1000 1000 11,951 1000
Table shows UK total excluding assets held tn Europe
1 Profarma for developments io date at estimated end value las determined by the Group s external valuers|
2 Stand-alone residental
PORTFOLIO NET YIELDS!
EPRA Overall
EPRA topped-up topped-up Net Net
netinitial net initial netimtial  reverstonary equivalent
yield yield? yeld? yeld yield
At 31 March [excluding developments) % % % % %
Retail
Retail parks 53 56 57 LY 57
Superstores 49 51 51 50 91
Shopping centres 53 54 954 54 55
Department stores 50 50 71 40 54
Leisure 71 7 89 56 77
All Retail 53 55 58 54 56
Offices
City 55 58 59 62 53
West End 29 43 L4 53 91
Provingial 69 69 49 56 61
All Offices 40 49 50 56 52
Total 48 53 55 55 55
Table shows UK total excluding assets held in Europe
1 Including national purchaser s costs
2 Including rent cantracted from expiry of rent-iree periods and fixed uplifts notin beu of rental growth
3 Including fixed/mimimum uplifts [excluded from EPRA defintion}
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

OTHER INFORMATION
UNAUDITED
CONTINUED

ANNUALISED RENT AND ESTIMATED RENTAL VALUE [ERV]

Annualised rent ERY Average rent
[valuation basts)
Total Total Caontracted? ERVZ

At 31 March 2014 [excluding developments] £m' £m Epsf £ pst
Retait
Retail parks 157 1465 245 264
Superstores 68 70 218 216
Shopping centres 104 12 302 39
Department stores 30 24 136 09
Leisure 25 21 141 i1é
All Retail 384 392 227 224
Offices
City 88 a8 475 487
West End 76 137 484 520
Provincial b 5 271 219
All Offices 170 240 449 492
Residential? 3 -
All Offices and Residential 173 240
Total 557 632 266 277

Table shows UK total, excluding assets held in Europe

1 Gross rents plus where rent reviews are cutstanding anyincreases to ERV [as determined by the Group s external valuers] less any graunds rents payable under head leases
excludes contracted rent subject ta rent free and future uplift

2 Office average rent and ERV £ psfis based on office space only
3 Stand-alone restdential

GROSS RENTAL INCOME?

12 menths lo Annualised as at
31 March 2014 31 March 2014
Total Total
[Accounting basis) £m £m
Retail
Retail parks 150 159
Superstores 72 A
Shopping cenires 115 103
Department stores 33 33
Leisure 29 29
All Retail 399 395
Offices
City 89 87
West End 84 93
Provincial ) 6
All Offices 179 186
Residential? 3 3
All Offices and Residential 182 189
Total 581 584

Table shows UK total, excluding assets held in Europe

1 Grossrentalincome will differ from annualised rents due to accounting adjustrments for fixed and minimum centracted rental uplifts and lease incentives
2 Stand-alone residential
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

LEASELENGTH AND OCCUPANCY
Average lease length Occupancy rate
Occupancy
To expiry To break Occupancy  {underlying]’

At 31 March 2014 [excluding developments) Years Years % %
Retan
Retail parks 91 82 98 783
Superstores 150 14 8 1000 1000
Shopping centres N 81 956 973
Department stores 266 233 1000 1000
Leisure 207 207 1000 1000
All Retail 123 13 974 §85
Offices
City 91 73 9468 969
Wesi End 112 94 857 884
Provincial 83 840 1000 1000
All Offices 102 84 05 921
Total 15 103 948 9261
Table shows UK total excluding assets held in Europe
1 Including accommodation under offer or subject to asset management
RENTSUBJECT TO LEASE BREAK OR EXPIRY

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 201517 2015-19
At 31 March £m £m Em £m £m £m £m
Retail
Retail parks 7 8 6 12 13 21 4é
Superstares - - - - - - -
Shepping centres 8 7 9 9 5 24 38
Department stores - - - i - - 1
Leisure - - - - - - -
All Retail 15 15 15 22 18 45 85
Offices
City i 1 19 4 17 21 42
West End i 4 7 8 10 12 30
Pravincial - - - - - - -
All Offices 5 26 12 27 33 72
Total 17 20 A 34 45 78 157
% of contracted rent 27% 31% 6 5% 5 4% 7 3% 12 &% 251%
Potential uplift at current ERV 2 2 4 (2] 1 7 6
Table shows UK total excluding assets hetd in Europe
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

OTHER INFORMATION
UNAUDITED
CONTINUED

RENT SUBJECT TO OPEN MARKET RENT REVIEW

25 2016 7 2018 09 2015-17 2015-1¢
12 months to 31 March £m Em £m Em £m £m £€m
Retail
Retail parks 19 18 16 22 25 53 100
Superstores 15 20 5 4 8 40 52
Shopping centres 9 14 14 15 0 37 62
Department stores 2 5 - - - 7 7
Leisure - - - - - - -
All Retait 45 57 35 41 43 137 221
Offices
City 1t 14 2 15 14 27 56
West End 6 17 13 13 20 36 69
Provincial - b - - - & &
All Offices 17 37 15 28 34 69 131
Total 62 94 50 &9 77 204 352
Potential uplift at current ERV 2 2 - - - 4 4
Table shows UK total, excluding assets held in Europe
MAJOR HOLDINGS
British Land Rent Occupancy Lease
share Sq ft per annum! rate? length
At 31 March 2014 (excluding developments under construction) % 600 £m % Years?
Broadgate London EC2 50 3,963 177 98 72
Regent s Place London NW1 100 1589 70 983 Gé
Meadowhall Shopping Centre, Sheffield 50 1,448 81 980 §1
Sainsbury s Superstores 52 2864 68 000 151
Tesco Superstores 31 2808 &3 j000 W47
Paddington Central 100 608 23 94 2 101
Teesside Shopping Park Stockton-on-Tees 100 422 i5 986 70
Drake Cireus Shopping Centre, Plyrmouth 100 414 16 992 63
Debenhams Oxford Street 100 363 n 1000 250
10 Portman Square W1 100 134 5 68 2 120

1 Annualised conlracled rent including 100% of joint ventures and funds
2 Includes accemmodation under oifer or subject to assel management

3 Weighted average to first break

170 The British Land Company PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2014




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

OCCUPIERS REPRESENTING OVER 0 5% OF TOTAL CONTRACTED RENT
At 31 March 2014 % of contracted rent % of contracted rent
Tesco ple 77 Facebeok 09
Sainsbury Group 60 AsdaCroup 09
Debenhams 58 JPMorgan o8
UBS AG 32 ReedSmith o8
Home Retail Group 27 C&WPIc(Cable & Wireless plc] o8
Kingfisher [B&Q] 27 JDSports 08
HM Goverameant 25 Gazprem a7
Next plc 2 4 Deutsche Bank AG Q7
Virgin Active 20 Mayer Brown Q7
Arcadia Group 20 Hennes Q7
Spint Group 16 Mothercare 0é
Alliance Boots 16 ICAPPIc 0é&
Herbert Srith 14 PetsatHome 0é&
DSG International 13 Credit Agricole 0é
Marks & Spencer Plc 13 Carlson (TGl Friday sl 0&
Royal Bank of Scotland plc 172 Astraleneca 0s
Hutchison Whampoa 11 Nokia 06
Aegis Group 11 Henderson 05
House of Fraser 10 Steinhoff 05
New Look 10 Lewis Trust [River Island! 05
SportsDirect 0% Aramco 05
TJX Cos tnc (TK Maxx] 0% LendLlease 05
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY
Acquisitions
British Annual
Price Land passing
{gross] share rent
Full-year to 31 March 2014 Area £m £€m £m3
Completed
Paddington Central Offices London 470 470 21
Aldgate Flace Residential London 40 20 -
The Sharediich Estate’ Mixed-use London 6 & -
Hercules Unit Trust unit purchase? Retail Various 262 262 16
Sainsbury s superstore portfotio® Retar Various 83 83 -
SouthGate, Bath [50%) Retatt South West 202 101 5
Hilden Block, Ealing Broadway Shopping Centre Retai London 29 29 2
Tesco Extra Craigavon Reta:l N lreland 23 23 1
1-5 Baker Street Offices London 22 22 i
Harmswaorth Quays Canada Water Residential London 1 11 -
Other é [ -
Total 1,154 1,033 46

Entered into an optian agreement with The City of Londen Corporation to draw down a development agreement subject to securing revised planning consent on the sites
Units purchased over the course of the financial year

British Land share of net rent topped-up for rent frees

E R e e

26% egquity interest
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

OTHER INFORMATION

UNAUDITED
CONTINUED
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY
Disposals
British Annual
Price Land passing
{gross] share rent
Full-year to 31 March 2014 Area Em Em Em!
Completed
Puerto Venecia Zaragoza Retall Spain 242 121 7
Bon Accord and St Nicholas Aberdeen Retail Scatland 189 94 6
The Triton Building INEQ) residential Residential London 94 94 -
Eastgate Shopping Centre, Basildon Retail South East 89 89 7
St James Retail Park Northampten Retaill Midlands 53 53 3
St James Retail Park, Dumbarton Retail Scotland 44 46 3
PREF, Udine Retaul ltaly 40 26 2
West Cernwall Shopping Park, Hayle Retail South West 26 11 1
Marble Arch House residential Residential London 17 17 -
6 and 7-9 Eldon Street [Princes Trust House) Offices London 17 17 1
Marsh Mills Retail Park Plymouth Retail South West 13 13 1
New Century Park land Offices Midlands 13 13 -
Other 40 53 3
Exchanged
Cwmbran Retail Park Retal Wales 32 32 2
Residential sales Residential London 29 29 -
Total 962 710 36
1 British Land share of net rent topped-up for rent frees
DEVELOPMENT
Near-term pipeline
British Land
share Sqft Total cost
At 31 March 2014 Sector % 090 £m! Status
Blossom Street, Shoreditch Mixed-use 100 322 164 Pre-submission
5 Kingdom Street? Offices 100 240 162 Consented
4 Kingdom Street Offices 100 147 99 Consented
Glasgow Fart [restaurant and car park| Retail 59 10 5 Consented
Total near-term Faks 430
1 Total cost including site value
2 210000 sq ft of which 15 consented
Medium-term pipeline
British Land
share Sq ft
At 31 March 2014 Sector % 000 Status
100 Liverpool Sireet Dffices 50 512 Pre-submission
Power Court, Luton Retail 100 149 Pre-submission
Aldgate Place, Phase 2 Residential 50 145 Ccnsented
Drake Circus Leisure Retail 100 105 Pre-submissien
Fort Kinnaird Edinburgh {Bebenhams) Retail 29 30 Pre-submission
Glasgow Fort [Additienal Retail Unit) Retall 59 30 Consented
Lancaster Retail 100 300 Pre-submission
Eden Walk Shopping Centre Kingsten Mixed-use 50 500-400 Pre-submission
Surrey Quays Mixed-use 100 1500-2 000 Pre-submission
Harmsworth Quays Mixed-use 100 1,000-1 500 Pre-submission
Total medium-term 4,271-5,3M
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DEVELOPMENT

Recently completed and committed developments

British Practical Residential
Land completien Current Costio end
share Sqit calendar value complete ERV Pre-let value?
At31 March 2014 Sector % 000 Year £m £m! £m? Em £m
2010 programme
10-30Brock Street
Regent s Place? Mixed-use 100 505 Completed 402 3 205 191 18
10 Portman Square Offices 100 136  Completed 183 4 78 49 -
Marble Arch House? Mixed-use 100 87 Completed 70 4 44 - 19
39 Victoria Street Offices 100 93 Completed 82 3 54 00 -
199 Bishopsgate Offices 50 144 Completed a0 1 35 20 -
Whiteley Shopping
Fareham Retal 50 321 Completed 55 0 26 24 -
Bedford Street Residential 160 24 Completed 34 1 00 o 28
Glasgow Fort [Leisure] Retail 59 46 Completed 1" 3 o7 07 -
The Leadenhall Building Offices 50 605 2014 265 29 189 g0 -
5 Broadgate Offices 50 710 2015 251 63 192 192 -
Total 2010 programme 2,669 1,413 m 850 573 165
Recently committed
Milton Keynes
Kingston Centre Retail 50 21 Completed 5 - 03 a3 -
Old Market, Hereford? Retait 100 305 2014 66 15 48 39 -
CravenHill Gardens Residential 100 25 2014 47 4 - - 58
Fort Kinnaird Edinburgh Retall 29 95 2014 3 3 04 03 -
Broadgate Circle Offices 50 45 2014 i0 8 12 - -
Broughton Park, Chester Retail 59 954 2014 K} & 06 0é -
Whiteley Leisure Fareham Retaill 30 58 2014 1 ) 06 04 -
Meadowhall Surrounding Land Retail 50 22 2015 1 3 04 04 -
Glasgow Fort, M&S and
Retail Terrace Retail 5% 112 2015 1 20 16 o7 -
Deapdale, Preston Retail 29 Pl 2015 1 4 04 D4 -
Yalding House Offices 100 29 2015 il [ 15 - -
The Hempel Residential 100 40 2016 44 26 - - 92
Aldgate Placa, Phase 14 Residential 50 221 2016 16 45 - - 45
Clarges Mayfair® Mixed-use 100 195 207 213 183 57 - 449
Total recently commuitted 1,253 422 335 178 70 b64
Total committed under construction 2,547 933 427 553 349 664

Data includes Group s share of properties in joint ventures and funds (except area which i1s shown at 100%)
From 1 April 2014 to prachical completion
Estimated headline rental value net of rent payable under head teases [excluding tenant incentives)
Residential development of which E148m completed or exchanged and a further £16m under offer

Includes 126 000 sq ft of residential of which £102m has now seld and completed

End value excludes sale of hotel site receipts of £6m (British Land share) estimated

1
2
3
4
5 Includes 10 000 sq ft of residential of which £17m has now sold and completed during the year
[
7 Completed post year-end

8

Includes 104 000 sq ft of residential
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND QTHER INFORMATION

OTHER INFORMATION

UNAUDITED

CONTINUED

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE MEASURES @

The data below follows EPRA best practice recommendations on sustainability reporting for managed properties It also includes additronal

develepments data and Scope 3 carbon emissions to provide a comprehensive pizture of resource use across our business 1t covers 6% of our total

investment portfolio, as we focus on our managed properties and developments where we can influence performance

Scope
[number
2013114 201213 2011112 of assets)
EPRA best practice recommendations across our managed portfolio!
31 Energy cansumption from electricity (MWh]) 163,404 174 246 191,188 466/781
3 2 Energy consumption from district heating and coaling (MWh) 289 349 135 11
33 Energy consumption from fuels [MWh] 28,826 30,084 25918 56/63
3 & Building energy tntensity (kWh per m2] Offices 25475 274 89 307 41 2927
Shapping centres 4912 5775 58 34 9/9
Retail parks 8 86 1015 10 48 A2/42
3 4 Building energy intensity Offices 6,160 6324 §744 23123
[kWh per warkstation or 10,000 visiters) Shopping centres 1,564 2,197 2478 e
Retall parks 297 431 352 41741
35 Direct[Scope 1} greenhouse gas emissions (tonnes CO,e) 6,953 6,694 5581 43/63
3 6 Indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions [tonnes CO,e] 89,993 97420 105,610 466/781
37 Greenhouse gas intensity from building energy QOffices 013 014 016 2727
[tonnes CO,e per m?) Shopping centres 003 003 003 99
Retail parks 0005 0005 0005 42142
3 8 Water withdrawal by source (m3) 680,349 664,950 699,222 215/738
39 Building water intensity [m? per m2] Offices 068 066 074 27127
Shopping centres 024 020 0t9 99
Retall parks oos 027 031 12/12
39 Buillding water intensity Offices 1451 14 86 1575 24(24
Im? per warkstation or 10,000 visitors) Shopping centres 825 741 B 88 99
Retail parks 249 133 13 6% 12/12
310and 3 11 Waste by disposal route [tonnes and %] Recycled 13,052 (65%] 10 407 (60%) 10313 (57%) 83/83
Incinerated 5,435127%) 5,162 [30%) 5,588 [31%) 83/83
L andfilled 1,475(7%) 1739 (10%) 2297 13%) B3/83
Additional developments data
Site energy use {MWh) 4307 5,295 6620 33/34
Site water use [m?3) 148,564 54,302 27,369 33/34
Waste diverted from landfill on developments (tonnes and %] 50,290 {83%) 272,667 (92%) 194 053 [98%) 33/34
Absolute Scope 3 emussions [tonnes CO,e)
Occupier energy use - Dffices
Managed portfolio electricity and gas use 42,684 50042 51,839 468/781
Occupier energy use - Retail
Managed portfolio electricity and gas use 1,292 1653 1461 468/781
Vacant space energy use -~ Offices and Retail
Managed portfolio electricity and gas use 1,268 248 547 468/781
Lifecycle emussions - Offices, Retail and Residential
Managed portfolio and head office 10,159 9,846 10 586 468/781
Water use Managed portfolio 227 217 232 468/781
Embodied carben and construction site activities Developments 184,100 205 500 134 590 35/37
Business travel by British Land staff Head office 298 2N 205 11
Total 240,028 267777 199370 504/819

1 Asper EPRA best practice recommendations total energy and water data covers energy and water procured by British Land Energy waler and carbon intensity data covers

whole building usage for Oifices and common parts usage for shopping centres and retall parks

2 Energy data covers energy procured by British Land The magonty of retail energy use is procured directly by retail occupiers For Scope 1and 2 carbon data please see

page 22

For more detailed data on all these indicators and additonalindicatars, please see our Futl Data Report 2014 www britishland com/crdata
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TEN YEAR RECORD

UNAUDITED

The table below summarises the last ten years results, cash flows and balance sheets Figures for 2005 onwards are prepared under IFRS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND QTHER INFGRMATION

Figures for 2004 are the UK GAAP comparatives adjusted ta show gross rental inceme on a proportional basis FRS 21 became effective in 2006
under UK GAAF and has been applied retrospectively to 2004 and earlier years This standard requires proposed dividends nat approved by the

balance sheet daie ta be excluded from the balance sheet

IFRS
2014 2013 2012 2051 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
£m £m Em Em Em £Em EmS Em £m £m
Income
Grass rental incame! 601 567 572 541 561 650 709 706 75 630
Net rental income 566 541 S46 518 545 598 667 641 701 585
Fees and cther income 15 15 17 18 i5 20 40 50 50 9
Interest expense [net) (204) (208) (218) (212) [244) [292) (350 (370) (436} (3401
Administrative expense (78) i76) {7¢) [48) {65) (58) (73) (84) (87 (53]
Minority interest 21 - - - - - - - - -
Underlying profit 297 274 269 256 249 268 284 257 228 181
Exceptional costs [not included - - - - - M9 - (305} 122 [180]
in underlying profit]é
Dividends declared 266 234 231 231 225 198 179 107 88 B4
Summarised balance sheets
Total properties at valuation' 3 12,040 10,499 10337 9572 8 539 8625 13470 16,903 14 414 12 507
Net debt {48900 (42660 (46900 143730 [4,081) (6941 (64131  [7741) {6 e84)  16538)
Other assets and liabiliies 23 [268) (264) f298] (51] 1297 22} (300) 72 58]
EPRA NAV/fully diluted adjusted net assets 7,027 5967 5,381 5101 4407 3387 6,936 8 862 7802 5913
Cash flow movement - Group only
Cash generated from operations 243 197 2n 182 248 406 477 494 455 464
Cash outflow from operations (24) (7) (5} 28 12) {201) [295) (275) (351) (338]
Net cash inflow from operating activities 219 190 206" 210 136 205 182 219 104 126
Cash [outflow) inflow from capital (660 1202] [547) [240) 1391 418 857 (54] 786 (527
expenditure, iInvestments
acquisitions and disposals
Equity dividends paid (159 {203 (212] 1391 {i54] {188 (161) 91 (84) 77
Cash [outflow) inflow from management 607 213 630 157 [485] (58) (830) 1,029 459
of liquid resources and financing
lncrease ldecrease] in cash® 7 (21 77 (121 (542 377 48 63 19 (19}
Capital returns
Growth in net assets? 178%  09% 55%  157%  301%  [(511%)  ([216%) 134%  N9%  155%
Total return® 20 0% 4 5% 9 5% 177%  335% [616%] (181%] 143% 332% 172%
otal return — pre-exceptional 20 0% 45% 95% 177%  335% (603%) (181%) 213% 348%  208%
Per share information®
Net asset value per share 688p 596p 595p S567p S504p 398p 114p  1.3%p  1,23ip 935p
Memorandum
Diidends declared in the year 270p 26 4p 261p 26 0p 240p ?98p 290p 16 9p 14 1p 13 0p
Owvidends paid in the year 267p 26 3p 260p 26 0p 273p 300p 257p 14 4p 133p 123p
Diluted earnings
Underlying earnings per share 294p 303p 297p 285p 28 4p 410p 44 3p 359%: 294p 222p
IFRS earnings lloss| per sharet? 110 2p 315p 53 8p 952p 1324p [(6141pl (2510p) 3894p 1BB3p 104 3p
1 Including share of joint ventures and funds
2 Represents movernent in dituted EPRA NAY from 2006 onwards and adjusted drluted net assets for 2005 and before
3 Including surplus ever book value of trading and development properties
4 Including exceptional finance costsin 2005 £180m 2006 £122m 2007 £305m and 2009 £719m
5 Restaled for [FRS The UK GAAP accounts shows gross rental income of £620m and underlying profit of £175m
4 Represents movementin cash and cash equivalents under IFRS and movements in cash under UK GAAP
7 Under UK GAAP the revatuation of nvestment properties 1s not included in earnings per share
8 Adjusted for the nghts 1ssue of 341m shares in March 2009
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
2013/14

Fourth quarter ex-dividend date
Fourth quarter dvidend paid

02 July 2014
08 August 2014

2014/15

First quarter Interim Management Statement announced 16 July 2014
First quarter ex-dividend date October 2014
First quarter dividend paid November 2014
Half-year results announced ) 18 Novermnber 2014
Second guarter ex-dividend date January 2015
Second quarter dvidend paid February 2015
Third quarter Interim Management Staterment January 2015
Third quarter ex-dividend date April 2015
Third quarter dividend paid May 2015
Full-year results announced May 2015
Fourth quarter ex-dividend date July 2015
Fourth quarter dividend paid August 2015

The Board will announce the availability of a Scrip Alternative for each dividend via the Regulatory News Service and on the Group s websiie
[www briishland com), no later than four business days before each ex-dividend date For the fourth quarter dridend of 2013/14, the Board expects
to announce the split between PID and non-PID income at the same time Any Scrip Alternative will not be enhanced

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS - 31 MARCH 2014

Range Number of heldings Yo Balance as at 31 March 2014! %
1-1,000 7623 5301 3600516 035
1001-5000 4,992 3472 10,837,022 106
5,001-20,000 903 628 8,619,782 285
20001-50,000 245 170 7939 495 078
50 001-Highest 617 429 988,769,644 9696
Total 14,380 100 1,019,766,481 100
Helder name MNumber of holdings % Balance as at 31 March 2014 %
Indwviduals 7,285 5066 12 543 540 123
Nominee and institutional investors 7.095 4934 1,007,222 941 9877
Total 14,380 100 1.019,764,481 100

1 Excluding 11 266 245 shares held in treasury
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REGISTRARS
British Land s Share Registrars are Equiniti who can be cantacted at
AspectHouse Spencer Road Lancing West Sussex BN9 60A

Equiniti s shareholder enquiry ine1s 0871 384 2143
Calls cost Bp per minute plus network extras
Lines are open from 8 30am to 5 30pm, Monday to Friday

The generat enquiries number for overseas callers is
+44 (01121 4157047

The Registrar s website i1s www shareview co uk Registering
on this site will enable you amongst other features, to view your
British Land shareholding enline, to update your details and to
opt to receive sharebolder mailings electrorically

In addition to being our Share Registrar, Equiriti are also
Regisirars for the BLD Property Holdings Limited Stock

Bank of New York [operating through Capita) are Registrars of
British Land s Debentures They can be contacted at The Registry
34 Beckenham Read, Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU

The bondholder enquiry line 1s 0871 664 0300 Calls cost 10p per
minute plus network extras Lines are apen from 300am to 5 30pm
Monday to Friday

SHARE DEALING SERVICE
Equiniti offer Shareview dealing, a service which allows you to buy
or sell Briish Land shares if you are a UK resident

You ¢an deal in your shares on the internet ar by phone Log on

to www shareview co uk/dealing ar call 0845 603 7037 between

8 30am and 4 30pm, Monday te Friday, for more information about this
service and for detalls of the rates If you are an existing shareholder
you will need your account/shareholder reference number which
appears on your share certificate

DIVIDENDS

As a REIT British Land pays Property Income Distributian (PID)
and non-Property Incorme Distribution (nen-PI0) dvidends

More information on REITs and preperty incorme distributions can
be found in the glossary on page 179, or in the Investars section
of our website at www britishland com/investors/dividends

PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS

British Land dvidends can be directly mandated into your bank or
building society account iInstead of being despatched to you in paper
cheque form More information about the benehits of having dividends
paid directly inta your bank or building society account, and the mandate
form to set this up, can be found in the Investors section of our website
at www britishland com/investors/dividends

SCRIP DIVIDEND SCHEME

British Land offers shareholders the apporiunity to participate in the
Scrip Dmdend Scheme This enables participating sharehotders to
receive sharesinsiead of cash, when a Scrip Alternative 15 offered for a
particular dwvidend For more information and for details of how to sign
up to the Scrip Dividend Scheme please visit the Investors section of our
website at www britishland com/investors/dmvdends/scrip-dividend

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

HONORARY PRESIDENT

Sir John Ritblat became Managing Director of British Land in 1970 and
Chairman in 1971 He retired érom the Board in December 2006 and
was appointed Honorary President, in recognition of his work building
British Land into the industry leading Company it 1s today

WEBSITE

The British Land corporate website contains a wealth of material

for sharehalders including the current share price, press releases
and the Investors section which contains detailed information on,
among ather things, REITs and dwvidends The website can be accessed
at www brihishland com

WEBSITE DELIVERY OF SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS

if you currently receive paper coples of shareholder communications,
you may prefer to receve electronic copies via the British Land website
instead When a documentis produced for sharehalders yau wilt receive
an email containing a link directly to the new document |f you would

Uike further information, or would like to elect for website delivery

of shareholder communications please visit www shareview co uk

or telephone Equiniti s shareholder enquiry ine on 0871 384 2143

Calls cost 8p per minute plus network extras Lines are open from

8 30am to 5 30pm, Monday to Friday

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of The British Land Company PLC will be held at

The Ocean Room, The Cumberland Hotel, Great Cumberiand Place
London W1H 70L on 18 July 2034, at 11 00am

SHAREGIFT

Shareholders with a small number of shares thevalue of which makes
it unecenomic to sell them, maywish to consider donating them to the
charity ShareGift [registered charity 1052686} which spectalises in using
such holdings for charitable benefit

A ShareGiit transfer form can be obtained from
Equiniti

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BN99 50A

For further information contact
ShareGift

17 Carlton House Terrace
London SW1Y 5AH

Telephone +44 (0120 7930 3737
Website www sharegift org

UNSOLICITED MAIL

Onrequest British Land 1s legally required to make s share register
available to other orgarusations The Malling Preference Service

ts an independent organisation offering free services ta help reduce
the amount of unsolicited mail you recewve For more information or
to register, visit www mpsonline org uk, telephone 0845 703 4599
orwrite to

The Mailing Preference Service

FREEPOST 29

LON 20771

London WIEOZT

REGISTERED OFFICE

The address of British Land s head office and registered office 1s
York House

45 Seymour Street

London WIH 7LX

Telephone +44 [0)20 7486 4466

Fax +44(0)20 79355552
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Annualised rent is the gross property rent recewvable on a cash

basis as at the reporting date Additionally it includes the external
valuers estimate of additonal rent in respect of unsettled rent review,
turnover rent and sundry income such as that from car parks and
commercialisation, less any ground rents payable under head leases

Assets under management is the full value of all assets managed
by Brittsh Land and includes 100% of the value of all joint ventures
and funds

BREEAM (Building Research Establishment Environmental
Assessment Method) assesses the sustainability of buildings
against a range of criteria

Capital return is calculated as the change in caprial value of the UK
portfolio, less any capital expendiiure incurred expressedasa
percentage of capital employed over the period as calculated by IPD
Capital returns are calculated monthly and iIndexed to provide a return
over the relevant period

Capped rents are subject to a3 maximum level of uplift at the specified
rent reviews as agreed at the time of letting

Collar rents are subject to a miimum level of uplift at the specified
rent reviews as agreed at the time of letting

Contracted rent is the annualised rent adjusting for the inclusion
of rent subject to rent free pericds

Developer s profitis the profit on cost estimated by the valuers The
developer s profit s typically calculated by the valuers to be a percentage
of the estirated total development costs including land and notional
finance cosis

Development uplft is the total increase in the value [after taking account
of capital expenditure and capitalised interest) of properties held for
development during the period It alsc includes any developer s profit
recognised by valuers in the period

Development construction cost is the total cost of construction of a
project to completien excluding site values and finance costs (finance
costs are assumed by the valuers at a notional rate of 5 75% per annum)

EPRA is the European Public Real Estate Asscciation, the industry
body for European REITs

EPRA Cost Ratio (including direct vacancy costs) is the ratio of net
overheads and operating expenses against gross rental income [with
both amounts excluding ground rents payable) Net overheads and
operating expenses relate to all admimistrative and operating expenses
including the share of joint ventures overheads and operating expenses,
net of any service fees recharges or other income specifically intended
to cover averhead and property expenses

EPRA Cost Ratio (excluding direct vacancy costs) s the ratio calculated
above, but with direct vacancy cosis removed from net overheads and
operating expenses balance

EPRA earnings Is the profit after taxation excluding investment and
development property revaluations and gains/losses on disposals
changes in the {air value of financial instruments and associated
close-out costs and theur related taxation

EPRA NAV per share 1s EPRA NAY divided by the diluted number
of shares at the pertod end
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EPRA net assets (EPRA NAV] are the balance sheet net assets excluding
the mark-to-market on effective cash flow hedges and related debt
adjustments and deferred taxation on revaluations

EPRA netinitial yietd is the annualised rents generated by the portfolio
after the deduction of an estmate of annual recurring iIrrecoverable
property outgomngs expressed as a percentage of the portfolio valuation
(adding notional purchaser s costs), excluding develapment and
residential properties

EPRA NNNAV s the EPRA NAV adjusted to reflect the fair value of
debt and dervatives and to include deferred taxation an revaluations

EPRA Topped-Up Net Initial Yield 1s the current annualised rent, net
of costs, topped-up for contracted uplifts, where these are not in lieu
of rental growth expressed as a percentage of capital value after
allowing fer notional purchaser s costs

EPRA vacancy rate is the estimated market rental value [ERV| of vacant
space divided by ERV of the whole portfolio excluding developments
and residential property This is the inverse of the occupancy rate

Estimated Rental Value [ERV) s the external valuers epinion as to the
open market rent which on the date of valuation could reasonably
be expected to be obtained on a new tetting or rent review of a property

Fair value mevement is accounting adjustment to change the book
value of an asset or Lability to its market value

Gearing see loan to value [LTV]

Gross investment activity as measured by our share of acguisitions
sales and investment in committed development

Gross rental iIncome is the gross sccounting rent receivable [guoted
either for the periog or on an annuzlised basis| prepared under IFRS
which requires that rental income from fixed/minsmum guaranteed
rent reviews and tenant incentives is spread on a straight-line basis
over the entire lease to first break This can result in income being
recognised ahead of cash flow

Gross Value Added [GVA] provides 2 snapshot of a company s overall
contribution to the UK ecanomy bath directly through activities and
indirectly through spending

Group 1s The 8ritish Land Company PLC and its subsidiaries and
excludes its share of joint ventures and funds [where not treated as a
subsidiary) on a ine-by-Une basts [l e not propartienally consolidated]

Headline rent s the contracted gross rent recevable which becomes
payable aiter all the tenant incentives in the letting have expired

IFRS are the International Financial Reporting Standards as adepted
by the European Union

Income return is calculated as net income expressed as a percentage
of capital employed over the period, as calculated by IPD Incomne
returns are calculsted monthly and indexed to provide a return over
the relevant period

Interest cover is the number of times net interest payable 1s covered
by underlying profit before net interest payable and taxation

IPD)s Investment Property Databank L td which produces an
independent benchmark of property returns and Briish Land UK
portfolio returns




Lettings and lease renewals are divided between short-term
[tess than twa years lease lengthl and long-term [more than two
years lease length] Lettings and renewals are compared both

to the previous passing rent as at the start of the financial year and
the ERV immediately prior tc letting Both comparisons are made
on a net effective basis

Like-for-like ERV growth is the change in ERV over a period on the
standing investment properties expressed as a percentage of the
ERVatthe start of the period Like-for-like ERV growth is calculated
monthly and compounded for the period subject to measurement,
as calculated by IPD

Like-for-Uke rental income growth is the growth in net rental income
on properties owned throughout the current and previous periods
under review This grewth rate includes revenue recognition and lease
accounting adjustments but excludes properties held for development
in either period and properties with guaranteed rent reviews

Loan to value [LTV] ts the ratio of principal value of gross debt tess
cash short-term deposits and liquid investrments to the aggregate
value of properiies and investments

Mark-to-market s the difference between the book value of an asset
or Liability and its market value

Multi-channet retailing is the use of a variety of channelsn a customer s

shopping experience including research before a purchase Such
channels include retail stores, onlina stores mobile stores mobile
app stores, telephone sales and any other method of transacting with
a custommer Transacting includes browsing buying returning as well
as pre- and post-sale service

Net Development Value is the estimated end value of a development
project as determined by the external valuers for when the building
1s comnpleted and fully let [taking Into account tenant incentives and
notional purchaser s costs] It s based on the valuers view on ERVs,
yields, letuing voids and rent-irees

Net effective rent is the contracted gross rent recevable taking into
account any rent-free peried or other tenant incentives The Incentives
are {reated as a cost-to-rent and spread over the lease to the earliest
termination date

Net equivalent yield is the werghted average income return [after
atlowing for notional purchaser s costs) 2 propertywill produce based
upon the timing of the iIncome received In accordance with usual
practice, the equivatent yields las determined by the external valuersl
assume rent 1s received annually in arrears

Net Imitial Yield i1s the current annualised rent net of costs
expressed as a percentage of capital value after allowing for notional
purchaser s costs

Net rental income is the rental incomne receivable in the penod after
payment of direct property outgaings which typically comprise ground

rents payable under head leases, vaid costs net service charge expenses

and other direct irrecoverable property expenses Net rental income

1s quoted or an accounting basis Net rental income will differ from
annualised net cash rents and passing rent due to the effects of Income
from rent reviews, net property outgoings and accounting adjustments
for fixed and minimum contracted rent reviews and lease incentives

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

Net reversionary yield is the anticipated yield to which the initial yield
will mise [or fall) ence the rent reaches the estimated rental value

Occupancy rate is the estimated rental value of let units as a percentage
of the totat estimated rentizl value of the porticlia, excluding development

properties ltincludes accommodation under offer or subject to asset
management (where they have been taken back for refurbishment and
are not avarlable to let as at the balance sheet date]

Omni-channel retatling is the evolution of multi-channel retailing,

but s concentrated more on a seamless approach to the consumer
experience through all available shopping channels 1 e mobile internet
devices, computers, bricks and mortar, television, radio, direct ma,
catalogue, et¢

Overrented is the term used to describe when the contracted rent
1s above the estimated rental value [ERV)

Overall topped-up netinstial yield 1s the EPRA Net topped-up
Initial Yield adding all coniracted uplbfits to the annualised rents

Passing rent s the gross rent less any ground rent payable under
head leases

Portfolio valuation movement is the increase in value of the portfclio
of properties held at the balance sheet date and net sales receipts

of those sold during the period, expressed as a percentage of the
capital value at the start of the period plus net capital expenditure
capitalised interest and transaction costs

Property Income Distributions [PIDs) are profits distributed to
shareholders which are subject to tax In the hands of the shareholders
as property (ncome PlDs are normally paid net of wathhalding tax
currently at 20% which the REIT pays to the tax authorities on behalf
of the sharehalder Certain types of shareholder {i e pension funds)
are tax exemnpt and recewe PIDs without withholding tax Property
companies also pay out normal dividends called non-PiDs, which

are treated as normal dividends and are not subject to withhelding tax

Property valuation 1s reported by the Group s external valuers

In accordance with usual practice they reportvaluations net, after
the deduction of the noticnal purchaser s costs, including stamp
duty land tax agentand legal fees

Rack rented is the term used to describe when the contracted rent
15 1n line with the estimated rental vatue [ERV], implying a nil reversion

Rent-free period see Tenant [or lease] Incentives

Rent reviews take place at intervals agreed in the lease {typtcalty every
five years] and their purpose i1s usually to adjust the rent to the current
market level at the review date For upwards-only rent reviews, the
rentwill either remain at the same level or increase f market rents
have increased) at the review date

Rents with fixed and mimimum upbfts are either where rents are
subject to contracted uplifis at a level agreed at the ime of letting
orwhere the rent 15 subjeci to an agreed minimum level of upliit
at the specified rent review
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

GLOSSARY OF TERMS
CONTINUED

Retail planning consents are separated between A1, A2 and A3 - as
setaut in The Town and Country Planning [Use Classes) Order 2005
Within the Al consent category, Open Al consent grants planning for
any type of retail while Restricted Al consent places limits on the types
of retail that can operate [this 1s typically a restriction that only bulky
goods operators are allowed to trade at that site|

Class  Description Use for all/any of the fellowing purposes

Al Shops Retail sale of goods other than hot food, post
office sale of tickets or as a travel agency
sale of sandwiches or other cold food off

the premises, hairdressing direction of
funerals display of goods for sale, hiring
out of dornestic or personal goods/articles
the reception of goods to be washed cleaned
or repaired, a retail warehouse club being

a retall club where goods are sold, or
displayed for sale, only to persons who are
members of that club oras a night club

Financial and Financial services, professional services

professional [other than health or medicall, or other

services services [including betting] appropriate
for a shopping area

D2 Assembly
and leisure

Cinemas, music and concert halls,

bingo and dance halls (but not night clubs)
swimming baths skating rinks gymnasiums
or areas for indcor or outdoer sports and
recreations

Reversien is the increase inrent estimated by the external valuers
where the passing rent is below the estimated rental value
The increases to rent arise on rent reviews and lettings

Scripdividend British Land offers its shareholders the apportunity
to recewe dividends (n the form of shares instead of cash Thisis
known as a Scrip dividend

Standing investments are assets which are directly held and not
in the course of development

Tenant [or lease) iIncentives are incentives offered to occupiers to enter
into a lease Typically this will be an inital rent-free period or a cash
contribution to fit-out Under accounting rules the value of lease
mcentives Is amartised through the Income statement on a straight-
line basis to the earliest lease termination date

TMT stands for technology media and telecommunications

The residual site value of a development is calculated as the estimated
Inet] development value, less development profit, all development
construction casts, finance costs [assumed at a notional rate] of 2
project to completion and notional site acquisition costs The residual
is determined to be the current site value

Topping out 1s a traditional consiruction ceremony to mark the
occasian when the structure of the building reaches the highest point
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Total property return is calculated as the change in capitat value,
less any capital expenditure incurred plus net income, expressed as
a percentage of capital employed over the pericd, as calculated by IPD
Total property returns are calculated monthly and indexed to provide
a return over the relevant period

Total return (total accounting return] is the growth in EPRA NAV
plus dvidends paid, and this can be expressed as a percentage of
EPRA NAV per share at the beginning of the period

Total Shareholder Return is the growth in value of a shareholding
over a specified penod, assuming dwvidends are retnvested to purchase
additional units of stock

Total tax contribution 1s a more comprehensive view of tax contributions
than the accountancy-defined tax figure quoted in most financial
slatements It comprises taxes and levies paid directly as well as

taxes cotlected from others which we administered

Turnover rents i1s where all or a portion of the rent is inked to the
sales or turnover of the accupler

Under rented is the ierm used to describe when the contracted rent
1s below the estimated rental value [ERV], implying a positive reversion

Underlying earnings per share (EPS) consists of underlying profit
after tax divided by the diluted weighted average number of shares
Inssue during the period

Underlying profit before tax 1s the pre-tax EPRA earnings measure with
additional Company adjustments Adjustments include mark-to-market
adjustments on or profits on disposal of held for trading assets mark-
to-market adjustments on the convertble bond and 1ssue costs of the
convertible bond

Virtual freehold represents a long leasehold tenure for a period
of up to 999 years A peppercorn, or nominal rent s paid annually

Weighted average debt maturity — each tranche of Group debt
1s multiplied by the remaining period to its matunty and the resutt
15 divided by total Group debt in 1ssue at the period end

Weighted average interest rate is the Group loan interest and derwvative
costs per annurm at the period end, divided by total Group debtin 1ssue
at the peried end

Weighted average unexprred lease term 15 the average lease term
remaining to first break or expiry across the portfolio weighted

by contracted rental income (including rent-frees| The calculation
excludes residential leases and properties allocated as developments

Yield compression occurs when the net equivalent yield of 2 property
decreases, measured in basis poinis

Yield on cost is the estimated annual rent of the compteted development
divided by the total cost of development including site value and finance
costs accruing at a rate of 4% per annum to the point of assumed rent
commencement, expressed as a percentage return

Yield shift 1s a movement [usually expressed in bps] in the yield of
a property asset, or Uke-for-like portfolio, over a given period Yield
compression is a commonly-used term for a reduction inyields




FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Tiis Report contains certain forward-looking statements Such statements reflect current
views on among other things our markets actvities projechions objectives and prospacts
Such farward-loo<ing stalements can sometimes butnotalways beidentified by their
referencs toa date of pointin the future or the vse of forward looking term nolegy ncluding
terms such as beleves estmates antcipates expects forecasts intends due

plans prejects geal target am may will would could sheuld orsim lar
axpressions or in each case their nega ve or other variations or camparahle terminalogy
Bytheir nature forward-looking statements inve’ve inherent risks assumptions anc
uncertainues bacause they relate to future events and depend on circumstances which may
or may nat occur and may be beyend our ability te control or predict Therefore thay sheuld
be regarded with caution

Important faclors that could cause actual results performance or achievements of Brinsh
Land to ditfer malerially from any outcomes or resu.ts expressed or implied by such
ferward-looking statements include among ather things [al generat business and polibical
social and economic conditions globally (b) ingustry and market irends (including demang
inthe property nvestment markat and property price velatility) [c] competivon [¢] changes
1n gevernment and other regulabien including inrelatian to the enviranment health

and sa‘ety and taxation [in particular in respect of 8ritish Land s status as a Real Estate
tovestment Trust) lehinftaton [f] labour retalions and work stappages Igl natural
disas.ers {h] Britisn Land s overall business strategy and investment cheices in its partfolio
management [l lagal or other proceadings sgainst ar affecting British Land |jl reliable

and secure [T nfraswructure |<] changesin occupier demand and tenant default

lllchanges in finzneial and equiy markets includ nginterest and exchange rate flucluaticns
[m} changes in accaunting practices and the interpretation of accounting standards and
[nlthe availability and costcffinance The company s principal ris<s are descabed in

grea er detall in the secuon of this Repart headed Principal risks Forward looking
statements should therefore be construed inlight of atl such factors

Information contaned in tnis Report relaung to British Lana ar its share price or tne yield
on(ts shares are not guaran.ees of and should not be relied upon as an indicater of future
performance Any forward-looking statements maoe by or on behalf of British Land speak
only as of the date they are made Such forward logking statements are expressty qualified
intheir entiraty by the factars referred to above and no representation assurance guarantee
orwarraniy s gven in relation to them [whether by British Land or any of its associates
direciars officers employees or advisers) including as ta their compleleness accuracy

or the basis onwhich they were prepared

QOther than in accordance with our legal and requlatory obligations (including undear the UK
Financial Fenduct Authority s List ng Rules and Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules|
British Lana does not intend or uner ta<e to update or revise ‘arward lacking statements
tareflect any changes in Eritish Land s expectations with regard thereto or any changes
ninfermation events conditions or circumstances on which any such sta ement s based
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